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t

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
.,

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION ;

i

l

COMMISSIONERS: !

Shirley Ann Jackson, Chairman
Kenneth C. Rogers

Greta J. Dicus i

Nils J. Diaz
Edward McGaffigan, Jr.

|
,

in the Matter of Docket No. 70-3070-ML

LOUISIANA ENERGY SEHVICES, L.P.

(Claiborne Enrichment Center) March 21,1997

The Commission grants Nuclear Energy Institute's motion for leave to file an
|

nmicus curiae brief in the appeal of the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board's j
second Partial Initial Decision, LBP-96-25, 44 NRC 331 (1996), and adjusts '

the brie-fing schedule and page limits for responsive and reply briefs. The I

Commission also grants Louisiana Energy Services' motion for the Commission
to defer filing of petitions for review of the third Partial Initial Decision, LBP-
97-3,45 NRC 99 (1997).

1

1

RULES OF PRACTICE: AMICUS CURIAE

"[Aln amicus curiae necessarily takes the proceeding as it finds it. An
amicus curiac can neither inject new issues into a proceeding nor alter the
content of the record developed by the parties." Public Service Co. of New
Hampshire (Seabrook Station, Units I and 2), ALAB-862,25 NRC 144,150
(1987) (footnote omitted).

ORDER

He Commission has before it two contested motions in the proceeding on
Louisiana Energy Services' (LES's) application for construction and operation

1
'

95

I

,

,

,

1

1

!
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|

of the Claiborne Enrichment Center near Homer, Louisiana. The hrst is the
Nuclear Energy Institute's (NEl's) motion for leave to file an amicus curiae

| brief in the appeal of the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board's second Partial

| Initial Decision, LBP 96-25,44 NRC 331 (1996). The second is LES's motion
'

for deferral of the schedule for seeking Commiss.sn resiew of the Board's third
Partial Initial Decision, LBP-97-3,45 NRC 99 (1997b We have decided to grant
NEl's motion, and LES's motion in part, and to make appropriate adjustments
in the briefing schedule and page limits.

1. Attached to NEl's motion is the amicus brief itself. NEl seeks leave to
file its brief because it believes that LBP-9525 rests on "significant legal error
which, if allowed to stand, could severely affect the interests of the nuclear
energy industry." The Intervenor, Citizens Against Nuclear Trash (CANT),
opposes NEl's motion and requests that the Commission deny it. According to
CANT, it would be " unduly burdensome" to require CANT, with its " extremely

i limited resources," to respond to yet another entity's arguments, when the license
! applicant is " adequately represented by two large law firms with significant

resources." In the alternative, CANT requests that it be given sufficient time to
respond to the NE! brief.

NEl's motion for leave to file the amicus brief is granted. CANT will
suffer no substantive prejudice from the amicus filing: "[Aln amicus curiae
necessarily takes the proceeding as it finds it. An an.icus curiac can neither
inject new issues into a proceeding nor alter the content of the record developed |
by the parties." Public Service Co. of New Hampshire (Seabrook Station. Units '

I and 2), ALAB-862,25 NRC 144,150 (1987) (footnote omitted). We adjust
CANT's briefing deadline and page limits as indicated below so that CANT's
brief can take account of the NE! filing.

2. LES's motion requests that the Commission defer the filing of petitions
for review of the third Partial Initial Decision, LBP-97-3, until after a fourth

;

Partial Initial Decision is issued sometime in the near future. LES states that
"this approach will allow LES, and indeed all parties, to evaluate whether to file
a petition for review based upon both partial decisions, and would allow the two
partial decisions to be addressed simultaneously and therefore most efficiently."

CANT opposes the motion. According to CANT, LES's approach would bc
" unduly burdensome and unfair" because it might require CANT to simultane-;

| ously address both LBP-97-3 and the Board's forthcoming decision. However,

| a proposed filing schedule submitted by CANT indicates that CANT does not
object to delaying the fihng of a petition for review of LBP-97-3.

We have decided against mandating simultaneous petitions, because the two
decisions likely will address quite separate issues: decommission;ng funding

| (LBP-97-3) and " environmental justice" (the anticipated fourth Partial Initial

! Decision). However, to the extent that LES's motion requests a delay in filing
a petition for review, we grant the motion. We anticipate that the parties can

96

<
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better evaluate the need for and scope of further petitions after they have the. >

opportunity to review the Board's fourth Partial Initial Decision, which we ;

expect to be issued by May 1,1997.
,

3. To accommoc ate the NEl amicus brief, we amend the briefing schedule
and page limits with respect to LBP-96-25 as follows:

(1) LAIN 1 shall file a single respoasive brief on or before May 1,1997.
Its brief shall not exceed 55 pages.

(2) The reply briefs shall be file.1 on or before May 15,1997.
. To accommodate the delay in filing petitions for review of LBP-97-3, we

2

establish the following schedule:
(1) ittitions for Review of LBP-97-3 shall be filed within 7 days after

the date of issuance of the fourth Partial Initial Decision.
(2) Responses to any petition for review of LDP-97-3 shall be filed in

accordance with 10 C.F.R. 5 2.786(b)(3).
Finally, the deadline for filing petitions for review of the fourth Partial Initial

Decision is extended by 7 days beyond the deadline established by 10 C.F.R.
6 2.786(b)(1).8 In all other respects, all petitions and responses shall be filed in
accordance with 10 C.F.R. 5 2.786.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

For the Commission

JOHN C. HOYLE
Secretary of the Commission '

Daied at Rockville, Maryland,
this 21st day of March 1997. )

I

i

l
!

I We have anempted to devise a schedule that avtuds simultaneous hhngs. However, we recognize that depending
on the d.ne of issaance of the fourth Parual truual Decision this schedule may need to be readjusted. The parues
terran free to request an adjustnrnt in this schedule if they beheve that circumstances warrant it.
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Cite as 45 NRC 99 (1997) LBP-97 3 '

| 1
f

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 1

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 1

i

|

ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

Before Administrative Judges:

I
|

Thomas S. Moore, Chairman
|

Richard F. Cole i

Frederick J. Shon ;

!

in the Matter of Docket No. 70-3070-ML

(ASLBP No. 91-641-02-ML)
(Special Nuclear Material License)

LOUISlANA ENERGY SERVICES, L.P.

(Claiborne Enrichment Center) March 7,1997

|
!

In this Partial Initial Decision in the combined construction permit-operating I

license proceeding for the Claiborne Enrichment Center, the Licensing Board )
resolves in favor of the Intervenor a portion of decommissioning funding

{contention B.1 and environmental contention J.3 concerning the conversion 1

component of the estimated cost of tails disposal.

RULES OF PRACTICE: BURDEN OF PROOF

The Commission's rules of practice for the conduct of formal adjudicatory
hearings provide in 10 C.F.R. 5 2.732 that the applicant-;ias the burden of proof
in the proceeding. Thus, in order for the applicant to prevail on each contested
factual issue, the applicant's position must be supported by a preponderance
of the evidcace. Philadelphia Electric Co. (Limerick Generating Station, Units
1 and 2), ALAB 819,22 NRC 681,720 (1985); Pacific Gas and Electric Co. |

(Diablo Canyon Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2), ALAB-763,19 NRC 571
577 (1984). See 1 Charles H. Koch, Jr., Administrative Law and Practice i 6.44
(1985).
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! i

|
'

USEC PRIVATIZATION ACT: DEPLETED URANIUM TAILS
i

'Ihe USEC Privatization Act,42 U.S.C. 6 2297h-11(a)(1)(B) now makes the |
Department of Energy, at the request of an NRC-licensed enricher, responsible !
for the disposal of depleted uranium tails at DQu's disposal costs, including a i
pro rata sha.e of any of DOE's capital costs. |

| !
4

PARTIAL INITIAL DECISION
(Resolving Contentions B and J.3) !

| This Partial Initial Decision addresses contentions B and J.3 dealing with
,

| decommissioning funding filed by the Intervenor, Citizens Against Nuclear Trash j
(" CANT"), in this combined construction permit-operating license proceeding. '

| The Applicant, Louisiana Energy Services, L.P. ("LES"), seeks a 30-year
materials license to possess and use byproduct, source, and special nuclear |
material to enrich uranium using a gas centrifuge process at the Claiborne |

[ Enrichment Center (" CEC"). The Applicant intends to build the CEC on a site '

in Claiborne Parish, Louisiana, adjacent to and betweet, the two unincorporated
African-American communities of Center Springs and Forest Grove some 5
miles northeast of the town of Homer, Louisiana. The history of this licensing
proceeding may be found in our earlier Partial Initial Decisions, LBP-96-7,
43 NRC 142 (1996), resolving contentions H, L, and M that challenged the

| Applicant's emergency plan and safeguards measures, and LBP-96-25,44 NRC
331 (1996), resolving contentions JA, K, and Q that challenged the need for
the facility, the treatment of the no-action alternative in the final environmental
impact statement ("FEIS"), and the Applicant's financial qualifications.

1. DECOMMISSIONING FUNDING CONTENTIONS

A. Contentions B and J.3

CANT's contention B, titled " Decommissioning Plan Deficiencies," asserts
that "[t]he LES decommissioning [ funding] plan does not provide reasonable
assurance that the CEC site can be cleaned up and adequately restored upon
cessation of operations." Although the Intervenor proffered a number of
supporting bases for this contention, the Licensing Board, as then constituted,
found three bases supported the contention. In basis B.1, CANT asserts that |

there is no realistic basis for LES' then estimate (of $9.5 million per year)
for the cost of depleted UF, tails ("DUF,") disposal because the Applicant

| does not have a plan for the offsite disposal of tails. The Intervenor claims
in basis B.4 that LES provides no details on how CEC decommissioning costs

100
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| were determined. Finally, in basis B.5, CANT declares that the Applicant's ;

| summary of decommissioning costs fails to indicate the facilities that will be j
i decontaminated and the extent to which they will be decontaminated. LBP-91- ;

41,34 NRC 332,337 (1991). On the strength of these three bases, the Licensing
'

Board admitted contention B " insofar as it challenges the reasonableness of LES'
i decommissmmng funding plan." Id.

In admitting contention B, the Board noted that the Commission's hearing
notice for the licensing proceeding directed that the Applicant must have a
" plausible strategy" for the disposition of DUF, tails. 56 Fed. Reg. 23,310, )

l23,313 (1991). Additionally, the Board stated that the Commission's regulations,
10 C.F.R. 5 70.25(a), (e), require that the Applicant submit a decommissioning
funding plan containing a cost estimate for decommissioning and the means j
for adjusting cost estimates and funding levels periodically over the life of the ;

facility. See also 10 C.F.R. 6 40.36(a), (c)(1), (d), (e)(3). In light of these
factors, the Board ruled that, although there was no regulatory requirement
that the Applicant have a " concrete plan" for the disposal of depleted uranium 1

tails, LES must have a plausible strategy for tails disposition and, in order !
for the regulations to have any meaning, the Applicant's " cost estimate should i
contain reasonable estimates for an adequately described decommissioning
strategy." 34 NRC at 338. Thus, the Board ruled that CANT's cont:ntion B
supported by bases B.1, B.4, and B.5 had satisfied the Commis ion's c_ontention
pleading requirements by alleging that "the decommissioning funding plan does
not contain reasonable estimates for decommissioning nor does it adequately
describe the underlying decommissioning strategy." /d.

CANT's contention J, titled " Inadequate Assessment of Costs Under NEPA,"
alleFes that the Applicant's environmental report ("ER") for the CEC does not

,

|
adequately describe or weigh the environmental, social, and economic impacts j

and costs of operating the facility and that the costs of the project far outweigh j
the benefits of the proposed action. In basis J.3, the Intervenor asserts that
LES has not provided a sufficient foundation for its decommissioning cost
estimates and incorporates the bases it proffered in support of contention B. The
Licensing Board found that bases B.4 and B.5 also supported contention J and
admitted the contention. Id. at 350. Although CANT contention J.3 is phrased
only in terms of a challenge to the Applicant's ER, the contention necessarily
encompasses the Staff's later-filed environmental impact statement as well. See
44 NRC at 337-38. Further, because the Intervenor's contention J.3 challenges
the same decommissioning costs (albeit in the context of the Applicant's ER and
the Staff's EIS) that are the subject of contention B, all parties addressed the
contentions together in their testimony. Similarly, we do not separately address
CANT's contention J.3 and our findings and conclusions on contention B also
encompass contention J.3. i

1

1

|
1
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B. Witnesses and Exhibits

In support of its position on contentions B and J.3, the Applicant presented
the testimony of a panel of witnesses consisting of Peter G. LeRoy, Bernard
G. Dekker, Richard W. Dubiel, and John M. A. Donelson. Due to a pretrial '

procedural ruling the prefiled direct testimony of this panel of witnesses appears
in the record in two parts, i.e., that of Mr. LeRoy and Mr. Dekker (LeRoy-
Dekker fol. Tr.1016) and that of Mr. Dubiel, Mr. Donelson, and Mr. LeRoy
(Dubiel-Donelson fol. Tr.1026).

Mr. LeRoy,'the Licensing Manager of the CEC, was responsible for com-
piling the information on decommissioning planning and funding in the LES

| Decommissioning Funding Plan the LES Safety Analysis Report, and the Ap-

| plicant's ER. (LeRoy-Dekker at 2 fol. Tr.1016.) Mr. Dekker is the Managet of
| Safety, Safeguards, and Licensing for Urenco Nederland B.V., which operates

,

! uranium enrichment facilities at Almelo in the Netherlands. He has held that

| position since 1984 and, in his over 18 years working for Urenco Nederland,
B.V., he has gained extensive experience in the operation, decontamination, and
decommissioning of gas centrifuge uranium enrichment facilities. Mr. Dekker
was retained by the Applicant to aduse LES on various matters with respect
to planning and funding for decontamination and decommissioning af the CEC,
including the development of the LES Decommissioning Funding Plan. (/d.)

Mr. Dubiel holds a bachelor of science degree in physics and a master of
science degree in nuclear engineering and he currently is the Director of Special i

Programs at Applied Radiological Control, Inc. In that capacity he is responsible
for overseeing specialty heahh physics and radiological de mamination services
provided to the United States Departments of Energy and Defense and various
NRC licensees. He has over 20 years of experience handling NRC-licensed
materials, including classifying, packaging, and shipping radioactive waste for
disposal. (Dubiel-Donelson at 2 & Attach. 2 fol. Tr.1026.) Like Mr. Dubiel,
Mr. Donelson also has earned a bachelor of science degree in physics and a
master of science degree in nuclear engineering. He is an engineer in the
Fuel Management Section of the Nuclear Engineering Division of Duke Power
Company and his specific area of responsibility is uranium enrichment. Mr.
Dcnelson is knowledgeable about the characteristics and properties of uranium

,

in various physical and chemical forms. (Id. at 3.) |

The prefiled direct testimony of these witnesses on contentions B and J.3 was )
admitted into evidence pursuant to a pretrial stipulation of the panies and with- '

out further objection at the hearing. (Tr. 1016, 1026.) Because the Applicant
did not offer these witnesses as experts and, in light of the parties' admissibility I

Istipulation, the Board did not rule at the hearing on the qualifications of these
witnesses as experts. Obviously, however, as the LES official responsible for
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,

compiling the information on decommissioning in the LES license application,
Mr. LeRoy is qualified to testify on that information and related submittals.
Further, we find that Mr. Dekker is qualified by knowledge and experience and
that Mr. Dubiel and Mr. Donelson are qualified by education, knowledge, and
experience to testify as expert witnesses on the issues involvec in contentions

!
B and 13.8

In support ofits contentions B and 13, the Intervenor presented the testimony
of Dr. Arjun Makhijani, President of the Institute for Energy and Environmentalr

Research. (Makhijani at I fol. Tr.1081.) Dr. Makhijani carned his Ph.D. in
engineering from the University of California, Berkeley, where his dissertation
subject involved controlled nuclear fusion. He currently serves as a consultant to
the United States Environmental Protection Agency (" EPA") Science Advisory
Board, Radiation Advisory Committee, and he is a member of the Subcom-
mittee on Radiation Cleanup Standards of the EPA National Advisory Council
for Environmental Policy and Technology. He has also been a consultant to
numerous other institutions such as the Congressional Office of Technology
Assessment, Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory, Tennessee Valley Authority, Ford
Foundation, and Edison Electric Institute. Dr. Makhijani has extensive experi-
ence in the area of nuclear waste classification and disposal and he has published
numerous books and reports on these topics, including co-authoring High Level
Dollars Low-Level Sense: A Critique of Present Policy for the Management
of Long Lived Radioactive Waste and Discussion of an Alternative Approach,
Apex Press, New York (1992). (Id. at 1 & Attach.) The prefiled direct tes-
timony of Dr. Makhijani was admitted pursuant to a pretrial stipulation of the
parties and the Intervenor offered his testimony as that of an expert in the field I

,

j of nuclear engineering. (Tr.1081.) We find that Dr. Makhijani is qualified

|
' i

l
i

|

3 Pursuant to a supulanon of the parues, the foHowing Applicant estubits were admitted into evidence relating
[ to contenuons B and J1 Apphcant's Exhbn 3. SECY 91-019. "Disposioon of Depleted Uramum Tails from

Ennehment Plants." Jan. 25.1991 (App. Exh. 3). Apphcant's Exhibis 4. correspondence (with attachments) j
i

between NRC and LES re decommisuorung designated 4(aHg)(App Exh. 4(aNq)). Apphcant's Exlubit 5, letter
,

from Frank A. Shallo, Vice President. Market Development. CoGLMA. inc., to W. Heward Arnold. President. '

LES (Oct. 16.1991)(App. Exh. 5)' Apphcant's Exkbu 6, letter from fvank A Shillo Vice President Market.

Development. COGEMA. lac. to W. Howard Arnvid. President. LES. feb. 22.1995 (App. Exh 6t Appheant's
t Exhibit 7. Uramum Enrichment organizanon (Dak Ridge. Tenn ) Manin Manerta rnergy Systems, hc.. "The
| Ulumate Disposition of Depleted Uramum." Dec 1990 (report prepared for U.S Dep's of Energy theremaher

Marun Manetta Repon](App. Exh 7); Appheant's Exlubit 8 Waste Management Technology Division, Sciencei

! Applications Internanonal Corp.. -Depleted Uramum Disposal Opuons Evaluanon," May 1994 (report prepared
i for EG&G Idaho. Inc.. and U 5, Dep't of Energy)(herematter EG&G Report) (App. Exh 8); Apphcant's Exhibit

9. Bureau of M nes. U.S Dep's of the Intenor. Mmerals Yearbook,1992, at 183-89,194. 202, 208 (App Exh.
9). Previously, Apphcant's Exhibits I, the CEC License Apphcatmn. l(a) the CLC safety Analysis Report. |(ej.
the CLC Proposed License Condsuons: and l(h), the CLC Environmental Report. which are aho relevant to these

| contencons. were prevmusly adnuned Inno evidence. (Tr. 31.)
|
!
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j by education, knowledge, and experience to testify as an expert on the issues '

involved in contentions B and J.3.2
'Ihe NRC Staff presented the testimony of a panel of witnesses consisting

of Yawar 11. Paraz, John W. N. liickey, and Dr. Joseph D. Price, although
only Mr. Faraz and Mr. Hickey presented the Sdf's rrefiled direct testimony.
(Faraz-liickey fol. Tr. I106.) Mr. Faraz holds a bachelor of science degree
in nuclear and mechanical engineering and he is a nuclear process engineer
in the Certification Section, Enrichment Branch, Division of Fuel Cycle Safety
and Safeguards, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards ("NMSS").

l Since April 1994, he has served as the NRC Licensing Project Manager for
the CEC. (Id. at 1.) Mr. liickey earned a bachelor of science degree in
mechanical engineering and a master of science degree in environmental health.
Ile is the Chief of the Enrichment Branch, Division of Fuel Cyc!c Safety and
Safeguards, NMSS, which has responsibility for all regulatory matters related
to uranium enrichment. (/d. and Attach. 2.) Dr. Price earned his Ph.D. in
chemical engineering and currently he is a senior chemical engineer with Science
Applications International Corporation ("SAIC"). As task manager, he directed
SAIC's effort to develop under contract to the NRC the Safety Evaluation Report |
for the CEC and, in over 16 years with SAIC, Dr. .' rice has had extensive
experience in safety, transport, and environmental analyses of nuclear waste |
facilities as well as chemical process modeling and alialpsis. (Staff Exh. 4.)$ ;

Pursuant to the pretrial stipulation of the parties and without further objection at j
the hearing, the prefiled direct testimony of Mr. Faraz and Mr. Ilickey on these ;

contentions was admitted. (Tr. IlN.) We find that Mr. Faraz, Mr. liickey, and
;

Dr. Price are qualified by education, knowledge, and experience to testify as j
experts on the issues involved in contentions B and J.3.

i

As in the case of the other contentions adjudicated in this proceeding, the
Commission's rules of practice for the conduct of formal hearings provide in 10 l

C.F.R. 6 2.732 that the Applicant has the burden of proof in the proceeding. )
Therefore, in order for lea to prevail on each contested factual issue, the '

Applicant's position must be supported by a preponderance of the evidence.
Philadelphia Electric Co. (Limerick Generating Station, Units I and 2), ALAB-
819, 22 NRC 681, 720 (1985); Pacific Gas and Electric Co. (Diablo Canyon
Nuclear Power Plant, Units I and 2), ALAB-763,19 NRC 571, 577 (1984).
See 1 Charles 11. Koch, Jr., Administrative Low and Practier i6.44 (1985). In

2 Without objecuan. Intervenor's Exhibit I-AM-70. santha Natwnal Laboratones, " Performance Assessment of
the Propowd Disposal of Depleted Uraruurn as Class A Low-level Waste." Dec.1992 (I-AM-70) was offered
into evidence by CANT on these contenuons and adtructed. (Tr.1081 )

3 Without objecton Staff's Extubit 4 (staff Enh. 4). a statement of Dr Pnce s professional quahficatior's, was
ofYered into evidence by the Staff and adnutted. (Tr.1806 ) Previously, the staff's Safety Evaluation Report
("SLR"). staff Exh. l. and the Staff's FEIS, staff Erh 2, which are also relevant to these consentions, were
adnutted into evidence in the proceedmg. (Tr. 154, 501.)

|
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accordance with the Commission's burden of proof rule and pursuant to the
stipulation of the parties, the Applicant presented its case on these contentions
first, followed by the Intervenor, and then the NRC Staff.

" "9ARD FINDINGS ON PARTIES' POSITIONS

Before turning to contention B, a further brief explanation of the applicable
standard for judging the Intervenor's challer.ge to the Applicant's funding
plan is helpful. As previously mentioned, the Licensing Board admitted
CANT's contention B to the extent that it challenged the reasonableness of
the LES Decommissioning Funding Plan. In so ruling, the Board noted that
the Commission's hearing notice required the Applicant to have a plausible
strategy for the disposal of DUF, tails as part of its funding plan and that the
Commission's regulations required the funding plan to contain reasonable cost
estimates for the components of the plan. Although in its hearing notice the
Commission listed a number of possible generic tails disposal strategies such as
storage of tails at the plant site as a possible future resource or conversion of tails
to uranium oxide for disposal, the Commission did not specifically define what
constitutes a plausible strategy. The plain meaning of these terms, however,
provides the answer. The dictionary defines " plausible" as " reasonable" or
" credible," Webster's Third New International Dictionary 1736 (1971), and
" strategy" as a " plan." Id. at 2256. Thus, in assessing the plausible tails disposal
strategy adopted by the Applicant as part of its decommissioning funding plan,
we first must determine whether the funding plan contains a reasonable or
credible plan to dispose of the DUF, tails generated at the CEC and then
determine whether the Applicant's cost estimates for the components of the
plan are reasonable.

A. LES Tails Disposal Strategy

The Applicant's tails disposal strategy is capsulized in the LES Decommis-
sioning Funding Plan that appears as Exhibit I to the LES License Application.
In pertinent part, the Applicant's funding plan states- I

I

Ihe annual tails disposal cost is estimated to be $16.175 nullion. This is rnultiplied by |
30 years to amse at the $4853 rmilion figure Costs are based on consertmg UF, to U 0 |3 3
with subwquent disposal m a facdity under cognizance of the NRC. U 0, conversion costs3

are based on estimates by a vendor which could make this service available to LES. Disposal
costs are based on NRC recornmendations and a study by Martin Manetta. The converuon

,

|
and disposal costs are added and escalated to 1996 dollars. I
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(App. Exh.1, at Exh.1, at I-4.) Further, the LES funding plan states that the
Applicant intends to set aside the annual tails disposal cost component of its t

overall decommissioning costs in an external trust that meets the requirements |
of the Commission's funding regulations. (/d. at I-2 I-5, I-8 to -9.) Finally, the :
LES plan states that tha Applicant will update its decommissioning cost estimate )at least once every 5 years. (/d. at I-6.)

At the hearing, the Applicant's witnesses, Mr. LeRoy and Mr. Dekker,
provided additional details of the LES tails disposal plan. Their testimony
recognizes that there currently are no facilities in the United States to convert
DUF, to U 0,, but they stated that COGEMA, Inc., the American affiliate of a3

Rench nuclear fuel company, "has indicated to LES in writing its willingness <

to consider providing, in the United States, conversion services for DUF,."
(LeRoy-Dekker at 24 fol. Tr.1016; App. Exhs. 5 & 6.) These LES witnesses
asserted that, in its letters to LES, COGEMA irdicated that the experience gained i
by its parent company in successfully operating a commercial-size defluorination
facility in France could be used as the basis for employing technology in the
United States to convert DUF, to U 0,. As the COGEMA letter states, the ;3

" prudent management of depleted UF, should consider conversion to U 0, i3

powder, which is insoluble in water, does not react with external chemical j
agents, is free of fluorine and is the most compact form for storage." (App. Exh. l

5.) Additionally, Mr. LeRoy and Mr. Dekker testified that, in 1991, COGEMA
estimated its charge for deconversion services to be in the range of $3-5 per
kilogram of uranium and its 1995 updated estimate indicated a range of $4-
6. These witnesses stated that these estimates assume the construction and
operation of a deconversion facility in the United States under NRC standards.
(LeRoy-Dekker at 24 fol. Tr.1016; App. Exhs. 5 & 6)

After conversion of the DUF, tails to U 0,, the LES disposal strategy provides3

for the U 0,, as waste, to be shipped to a final disposal site for deep land3

burial such as in a deep mine. Again, the LES disposal plan recognizes that
currently there are no operating deep disposal sites, but Mr. LeRoy testified that
it is reasonable to assume such a site will be available in the future because
in the United States there are dozens of underground uranium mines and other
underground mines. (LeRoy-Dekker at 34 fol. Tr.1016.)

Ahhough the Applicant's tails disposal strategy calls for LES to convert
the CEC tails to U 0, and then ship the U 0, for deep burial as waste, Mr.3 3

LeRoy candidly admitted in his testimony that, "[als a practical matter, LES is
holding open its options for disposition of UF,." (ld. at 19.) He testified that
"for purposes of this licensing proceeding, in order to satisfy the Commission's
requirement that the CEC license application contain a ' plausible strategy' for
disposition of depleted uranium. LES has assessed, and factored into its funding
plan the costs of conversion of DUF, to DU 0, and land disposal (deep burial) of

|3

DU 0, as if it were a waste." (/d.) The Applicant's witnesses stated, however, '

3
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that LES did not necessarily plan on disposing of the depleted uranium from
the CEC by burying it as waste and that there were other potential options
for the future disposition of DUF,. They noted that the Department of Energy
(" DOE") is currently analyzing the tails disposition issue and that European
enrichers consider depleted uranium tails a resource rather than a waste product.
Further, they testified that Urenco's long-term plan for the disposition of depleted
uranium is being studied and that, at present, the plan calls only for the offsite
conversion of tails to U 0,. (/d. at 20.) Finally, Mr. LeRoy readily conceded3

that, as a practical matter, LES will follow the same tails disposition option that
DOE selects for its stockpile of tails. (Tr. 1076-77, 1069-70.)

The NRC Staff witnesses, Mr. Farar. and Mr. Hickey, stated in their direct
testimony that they found the Applicant's tails disposition plan calling for
conversion of DUF, to U 0,, with subsequent deep subsurface burial, an3

acceptable plausible strategy. In this regard, the Staff's review of the LES
decommissioning plan in the SER states:

Currently there are no facthnes designed and equipped for the disposition of large
volunes of depleted uranium originating from ennchment facilities. The Department of
Energy (DnE) current! ' possesses essentia!!y the entire depleted UF, inventorv in the United 1

States. In July 1993, the Umred States Ennchment Corporation (USEC) took over from DOE
low enriched uramum production activities conducted at the two operatmg gaseous diffu3 ion
plants (GDP) located in Portsmouth. Ohia and Paducah. Kentucky, Currently neither DOE
nor USEC has in place a plan concerning final disposition of the DL'F . The Energy Pohey
Act of 1992 requires DOE to address this issue. The NRC str.ff believes that it is premature to

require a prescriptive resolution prior to DOE's deterrmuadon on disposition of DUF,. w hich
will, to a large extent, determine the disposition options for LES' DUF,. Ii r the purpose
of estimating funding requirements related to the disposition of DUF,. the NRC staff finds
accentable the appheant's estimates based on conversion of DUF, to U 0,. which is much3

mmt environmentally stable than L'F or uranium tetrafluoride (UF,). and disposition in a
deeper than shallow land bunal facdity (for example. an abandoned mine cavity).

(Staff Exh.1, at 15-12.)
Additionally, in the FEIS, the Staff modeled the respective doses for both

near-surface and deep burial disposal because there currently are no disposal
i

facilities for large quantities of depleted uranium tails. Because the projected i
drinking water and agricultural doses from a modeled near-surface burial site i

consisting of an earth-mounded bunker subject to the environmental character-
,

istics of the humid southeastern United States exceeded the 10 C.F.R. Part 61 i

limits, the Staff concluded that a deep disposal site is most likely to be selected
for tails disposal. (Staff Exh. 2, at 4-66 to -67 & Appendix A, at A-9.) The |

Staff also modeled a hypothetical deep disposal site. It assumed the site would
be an existing cavity, such as an abandoned mine, located in the United States
and would have geologic characteristics similar to those of two representative
sites that previcesly have been characterized for disposal of radioactive waste,
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i.e., a granite formation overlain by a thin layer of glacial till or a sequence
of interbedded sandstone and basalt layers. (Staff Exh. 2, at 4-66 to -67 &
Appendix A, at A-10.) The Staff's FEIS analysis concluded that all estimated
dose impacts for a deep disposal site are less than those set forth in 10 C.F.R.
Part 61. (Staff Exh. 2, at 4-67 to -68 & Appendix A, It A-lO to -15.)

The purpose of the Applicant's tails disposal strategy is to enable the
computation of reasonable cost estimates for the various essential elements of
the decommissioning plan, thereby ensuring compliance with the Commission's
regulatory requirement that during the CEC's life LES escrows sufficient funds
to cover, inter alia, the cost of tails disposal. With this in mind, we find that
the Applicant has presented a plausible disposal strategy. The Applicant's plan
to convert DUF, to U 0, at an offsite facility in the United States and then ship3

that material as waste to a final site for deeper than surface burial is a reasonable
and credible plan for tails disposal. Although no conversion facilities currently
exist in the United States, the LES materials license will give the Applicant
15 years before it first must move the accumulated DUF, offsite. (App. Exh.
l(c), at 1-2.) The conversion of DUF, to U 0,, as the COGEMA experience in

3

France demonstrates, is a commercially feasible process using known chemical
processes that could be readily employed in the United States by COGEMA or
another entity without first having to overcome difficult technical hurdles. (App.
Exh. 7, at 18; Staff Exh. 2, at Appendix A, at A-1 to -4.) Thus, contrary to the
Intervenor's assertion,4 the fact that there is no currently operating defluorination
facility in the United States or a firm cornmitment by COGEMA or some other
entity to build such a facility does not somehow make it unlikely, or unreasonable
to assume, that one will be built here in the future to convert DUF, tails to U 0,.

3

Similarly, in light of the numerous existing uranium and other mines in the
United States, it is reasonable to assume an appropriate site for deer. burial of
U 0, will be available in the future. Indeed, the reasonableness and credibility3

of the LES disposal strategy is enhanced by the Department of Energy's clear
need to address the disposal options for its huge inventory of DUF, that, as of
mid-1992, amounted to some 534,000 metric tonnes (App. Exh. 8, at 3) - an
amount of depleted uranium tails five times the amount of tails the CEC will
produce under its 30-year license.

Further, CANT's legal challenge to that element of the Applicant's disposal
strategy calling for deep burial of U 0, is without merit. It argues that pursuant3

to the Commission's regulations,10 C.F.R. 5 61.55(a)(2)(iv), deeper than surface
buriel is unavailable for DUF, disposal. According to the Intervenor, DUF,
was:c which CANT claims is closely comparable in radiological properties
to transuranic waste, must be disposed of in a geologic repository (with a

i

d
Couzens Agment Nuclear Trash's Proposed Reply hndings of luct and Concluuona of Law Regarding I

Contennons B and J 3 (June 26.1995) at 21 (hemnaner CAKr Rf] 1
1
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consequent order of magnitude increase in cost) unless the Commission first
approves and licenses a specific disposal site. The Intervenor claims, ;herefore,
that LES does not have the option of establishing, based on a generic analysis
like that in the FEIS, that the tails can b: disposed of in some intermediate waste

,

dispSal fadlity.8 The Intervenor's assertions, however, merely reneat the same
arguments CANT made to us in its pretrial " Petition for Waiver of 10 C.F.R.
5 61.55(a)(3) and 10 C.F.R. 6 61.55(a)(6) and for Classification of Depleted
Uranium Tails as Greater Than Class C Radioactive Waste" (Jan. 17, 1995).
In a pretrial Memorandum and Order (Mar, 2,1995) we rejected these same
arguments and denied the Intervenor's waiver petition. Our earlier ruling is the
law of the case on these issues and forecloses any reexamination here. Thus.
in accordance with our earlier ruling, we find that the Applicant's tails disposal
sfrategy is not deficient for failure to treat the CEC tails as greater than class
C waste with mandatory disposal in a Feologic repository licensed under 10
C.F.R. Part 60.

Although we find that the Applicant's tails disposal plan is a plausible strategy
for purposes of estimating LES' tails disposal costs, we note that a recent change
in the law by the enactment of the USEC Privatization Act, Pub. L. No.104-
134,100 Stat.1321 (1996), will most likely dictate the actual LES disposal
strategy.* That Act now makes DOE, at the request of an NRC-licensed enricher,
responsible for the disposal of depleted uranium tails at DOE's disposal costs,

8 Cmuns Against Nuclear Trash's Proposed hndings of ract and Conclasions of Law Regarding Contentens B i
and J 3 (May 26.1995) at 2810,39 47 [heremafter CANT PFJ I
*In ns entirety. 42 ti S C.12297h Il provides as follows

tal Responsibihty of Dol
(1) The secretary, at the request of the generator, shall accept for disposal low level radioactive

wasic, including depleted uranium af it were ulumately determined to be low. level ra&oacuve waste,
generated by~

(A) the Corporanon as a result of the operauons of the gaseous diffusion plants or as a resuh
of the treatnrnt of such wastes at a locanon other than the gaseous &ffusmn plants or

(B) any person heensed by the Nuclear Regulatory Comnussion to operate a uranium
ennchnrnt facihty under sections 2073,2093 and 2243 of this utle. |

(2) Except as provided in paragraph (3). the generator shall reimburse the secretary for tie ssposal I
of low-level ra&oactive waste pursuant to paragraph (1)in an amount equal to the Secretary's costs.
inclu&ng a pro rata share of any capital costa, but an no event more than an anmuni equal to that
which would be charged by commercial. State. regional, or inters.. . compact enuties for d posal of
such waste.

(3) in the event depleted uranium were ulumately determined to be low. level radioactsw waste.
the generator shall reimburse the Secretary for the &sposal of depleted uramum rw %mi to paragraph
(1)in an amount equal to the Secreta y's costs, inclueng a pro rata share of any capital costs.

(b) Agreenrnts with oder persons
The generator may also emer imo agreenents for the &sposal of kiw. level ra&oacuve wasic subject

to subsechan (a) of this sechon with any person other than the Secretary that is authonzed by apphenble
laws and regulanons to dnpose of such wastes

(c) State or interstare compacts
Norwithstanding any other provismn of law no state or interstate compact shall be hable for the

treament, storage. or disposal of any low-level radmachve waste (mclu&ng nused waste) attnbutable to
the operauon. decontanunatmn, and decommissiomng of any uranium ennchnent facihty
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I including a pro rata share of any of DOE's capital costs. 42 U.S.C. 5 2297h-
Il(a)(1)(B),(a)(3). As previously indicated, the Applicant's Licensing Manager,
Mr. LeRoy, testified that, as a practical matter, LES will follow the same disposal

.

option selected by DOE for the government's DUF, stockpile Similarly, the !
Staff's witness, Mr. Ilickey, testified that the NRC anticipates that LES will use I

the same tails disposal method that DOE selects. (Tr. I156-57.) The Intervenor I
also .ipparently agrees, for in its proposed findings CANT states that "LES
intends to rely on DOE's disposition strategy." CANT PF at 50. Thus, even |
though the USEC Privatization Act,42 U.S.C. 5 2297h-11(b), provides LES with |

the option of using other authorized persons for tils disposal, we think it is clear,
and all parties apparently agree, that the Applicant's actual disposal method will
be to transfer the CEC tails to DOE and pay DOE's disposal charges.7 |

|

1

B. Cost Estimates for Tails Disposal

While we recognize that DOE's future charges for tails disposal will ulti-
mately determine the Applicant's tails disposal costs, the Commission's regu. :

lations require that the Applicant provide reasonable cost estimates for its tails |
disposal plan at this time in order to ensure that LES sets aside sufficient funds
during the life of the CEC to cover its disposal costs. Accordingly, we must |

'

determine whether the Applicant's cost estimates for the components of its cho-
sen plan are reasonable on the basis of the record before us. We turn now to I

those cost estimates, noting that, because DOE's disposal scheme is likely to be
the same as the Applicant's plausible strategy, the current bearing record still
is relevant to the issue of whether the Applicant's ultimate tails disposal cost
estimate is reasonable.

As earlier indicated, the Applicant's Decommissioning Funding Plan provides
that the annual tails disposal cost for the CEC is $16.175 million, totaling $485.3
million for 30 years of operation. (App. Exh.1, at Exh.1, at I-4.) At the
hearing, Mr. LeRoy's direct testimony stated that the annual tails disposal figure ;
includes $0.8 million for shipment costs, $12.0 million for conversion costs of

|

|

i

7 As a practical matter, the enactment of 42 U.s C.12297h.ll(a) and (c) making doe responsible for depir:ed |
uramum tails upon the request of the ennchet and maulaung any state or interstate compact from habihty for such )
mastes. also mools the latervenor's legal argunwnt that the LES tads dnposal strategy is implausible because u

]fails to provide that the tails from the CLC must be dnposed of in Louisiana. or withm the states of the Central
,

innerstate Compuet of which Imuiuana is a nrmber, under the proviuons of the low level Radicactive Waste
j

Pohey Act ("tLRWPA"k 42 U s C. 6 2021b et seq. and the practical workings of that law. CANT PF ai 710. i

3434. CANT RF at 15-11 The Apphcant already has mdicated that its actual dispmal nethod wiu he to transfer '

the CIC t.uls to doe - a view shared by the staff and the Inienenor. Therefore. in hght of the new federal )opuon available to the Apphcant at is a virtual certamty, for numy of the reasons urged by the intervenor in
,

ils argunent, that no State or interstate compact will undertake the tireconsunung, expenuve. and pohucally I

difficult task of heenung a facihty for depleted uraruum tails, thereby further ensuring that the Apphcant wdl
request doe to dispose of the Cl C tails nus, the intenenor's elaborate argunent under the tLRWPA has been

1

overtakrn by the passage of the USf.C Privanzanon Act.
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DUF, to U 0,, and $3.375 million for disposal of U Or (LeRoy-Dekker at 233 3

fol. Tr.1016.) In the SER, the Staff found the Applicant's estimated facility
decommissioning funding, which includes the Applicant's annual tails disposal
cost of $16.175 million, adequate. (Staff Exh.1, at 15-21,15-23.) At the
hearing, Mr. Faraz and Mr. Hickey stated in their direct testimony that the

*LES tails disposal estimates were reasonable and, more specifically, that the
Applicant's estimated cost for U 0, burial was reasonable. (Farae-Hickey at 7,

3

!. fol. Tr. I106.) 'Ihc Intervenor challenges each of the Applicant's component
cost estimates.

1. Transportation Costs

In his prefiled direct testimony, Mr. LeRoy stated, without elaboration, that
| the LES estimate of $800,000 per year transportation costs for depleted uranium

| tails "is based on conversations with shippers of UF, and U 0,." (LeRoy-
3

l Dekker at 25 fol. Tr.1016.) The Intervenor's witness, Dr. Makhijani, challenged
the validity of the LES estimate, asserting that it implicitly assumes that the
conversion facility will be located very close to the disposal site. He opined that,

,

| because the location of the disposal site is unknown, such an assumption is rash
and that it was unlikely any community would accept both a conversion facility
and a disposal site. Dr. Makhijani testified that the Applicant's transportation
costs should have provided for the cost of the shipment of U 0, from the3

| conversion facility to the disposal site as well as for packaging the U 0, for
3

shipment. (Tr.1200.)
The Applicant's testimony setting out the basis for its annual tails disposal

cost estimate is sparse, at best. Nevertheless, contrary to Dr. Makhijani's
assertion, the reasonable inference from Mr. LeRoy's bare-bones testimony that i

the LES estimate is based upon information from shippers of UF, and U,0, is
that the Applicant's estimated shipping costs are based upon the shipment of
DUF,, tails to the converter as well as the shipment of U 0, from the converter to3

a disposal facility. And, in the end, any weakness in the Applicant's testimony
about its transportation costs is rectified by the transportation cost data contained

1

in the 1990 Martin Marietta Report, "The Ultimate Dispo.sition of Depleted 1

Uranium," prepared at Oak Ridge for DOE (App. Exh. 7, at 17-18) and the 1994 |
EG&G Report, " Depleted Uranium Disposal Options Evaluation," prepared at |

Idaho Falls also for DOE. (App. Exh. 8, at 48 50.) I

The Martin Marietta Report estimated that the rail transportation cost of
shipping DUF, from Paducah, Kentucky, the location of one of the gaseous
diffusion plants then owned by DOE, to an unspecified West Coast location
for conversion and disposal was approximately $0.15/kgU. The EG&G Report
estimated that the truck transportation cost of shipping U 0, from Piketon, Ohio,3

the location of another DOE facility, to the Nevada Test Site ("NTS") in Nevada
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was approximately 50.18/kgU in 1993 dollars. In addition, the EG&G Report
estimated that 55-gallon drum container costs added another 50.ll/kgU to the
estimate. Obviously, precise transportation cost estimates cannot be obtained at .

this time because such costs are dependent on the location of the conversion
facility and the ultimate disposal site. But the application of this same rail rate ,

from Paducah to the same West Coast location for the CEC UF, tails yields ;

transportation costs of less than half the amount to be set aside by LES for
annual transportation costs. Even escalating that cost to 1996 dollars yields an
amount that is a little over half the LES estimate. Similarly, the application of
this same truck and container rate from Piketon to the NTS for the CEC U 0,3

yields total transportation costs that are about 90% of the amount to be set aside i

by LES for annual transportation costs. Even escalating that cost to 1996 dollars |
yields an amount that is approximately the same as the LES estimate. Although
Paducah, Kentucky, and Piketon, Ohio, obviously are not Homer, Louisiana, this

,

comparison serves to illustrate the dimensions of the rail transportation costs of L

UF, and the truck transportation costs of U 0, from cast of the Mississippi3

River to the West Coast and the NTS, respectively. Accordingly, we find that -

the Intervenor's challenge to the Applicant's annual tails disposal transportation
cost estimate is without merit and that the LES estimate of the transportation
component of its tails disposal estimate is a reasonable one.

2. Disposal of U,0,

The Applicant's annual tails disposal estimate also includes $3.375 million
for the deep disposal by burial of U 0,. Mr. LeRoy testified that the LES

3

estimate is based upon a June 18,1993 letter from the NRC to LES. (LeRoy-
Dekker at 25 fol. Tr.1016.) In part, the NRC letter states that "[ulntil the
specific disposal site and method are identified, the estinnted cost is uncertain.
However, for financial planning purposes, we believe that it is reasonable to
assume a disposal cost of approximately $1.00 per kilogram of U 0,." (App.3,

'

Exh. 4h, at 1-2.) In turn, the Staff's basis for the $1.00/kg U 0, relies upon3

the 1990 Martin Marietta Report and the Staff's trtcking of low-level waste
iburial charges. (LeRoy-Dekker at 26 fol. Tr.1016; Faraz-Hickey at 9 fol. Tr.

1106.) The Martin Marietta Report estimates the permanent disposal costs of
U 0, utilizing the waste disposal fees for shallow burial at the federal NTS

3

and Hanford, Washington disposal sites. It states that, with efficient packaging,
low-density U 0, would cost about $0.25/kgU for NTS disposal and $1.00/kgU3

'

at Hanford. The Report concludes that the higher cost disposal estimate of
$1.00/kgU represents the prudent basis for current estimates. (App. Exh. 7, at
17.) j

Mr. LeRoy explained that the LES estimate stated in kilograms of U 0, is |3

about 15% higher than the estimates from the Martin Marietta Report stated in
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kilograms of uranium because U 0, is about 85% uranium by weight. (LeRoy-
3

| Dekker at 27 fol. Tr.1016.) Additionally, he testified that a 1994 EG&G Report

| indicates that the LES burial estimate of $1.00/kg U 0, remains valid. (/d. at3
!

26.) The EG&G Report estimates the cost of nonretrievable burial of DU 0, by3

DOE at the NTS to be $0.15/kgU in 1994 dollars and about 19% rnore, or $0.18,
|

for a non-DOE generator. Further, the EG&G Report estimates the cost of U 0,
3 ,

burial at the Hanford Site at $1.81/kgU. (App. Exh. 8, at 51; LeRoy-Dekker
at 26-27 fol. Tr.1016.) Thus, Mr. LeRoy concluded that the LES estimate of
$1.00/kg U 0, in 1993 dollars, which translates to $1.27/kgU in 1994 dollars,3

falls squarely within the range of estimates in the EG&G Report of $0.18 to
$1.81/kgU in 1994 dollars and remains reasonable today. (LeRoy-Dekker at 27
fol. Tr.1016.) :

IDr. Makhijani challenges the reasonableness of the Applicant's U 0, burial3

cost estimate asserting that the estimate of the Applicant and the NRC Staffis
not based on the Applicant's own plausible strategy for tails disposal. Rather, )he asserts that while the LES disposal plan calls for deeper than surface burial, i

| the two studies on which the LES and Staff estimates are based deal only with
near-surface burial costs, not deep burial. (Makhijani at 4,20 fol. Tr.1081.)

While acknowledging that the disposal cost estimates in the Martin Marietta
and the EG&G Reports are based on near-surf ace disposal, Mr. LeRoy testified
that deep disposal should be no more costly than near-surface disposal because
deep burial of U 0, does not require expenses for engineered barriers and j3

containers that are usually required for near surface disposal. He stated that j

lower costs for deep disposal also would result from reduced security expenses |
Ibased on the decreased likelihood of an intruder entering a deep burial site.

(LeRoy-Dekker at 31-32 fol. Tr.1016.) Similarly, the Staff witnesses, Mr.
Paraz and Mr. Hickey, indicated that several factors will tend to decrease the
cost of disposal for depleted uranium including the large volume and uniformity |

of tails; the economies of scale that will be possible if the CEC tails are buried
with those from DOE; and savings in construction costs if the tails are disposed
of in an existing underground cavity. (Faraz-Hickey at 10 fol. Tr. I106.)

Based on this Applicant and Staff testimony, we find that it was not un-
reasonable for the Applicant to base its cost estimate for deep disposal on the
near-surface cost estimates in the Martin Marietta and the EG&G Reports. Ac-

!
cordingly, we find that the LES cost estimate for burial of the CEC dcpleted
uranium tails is a reasonable one.8

i

sin its proposed findings. the intervenor argues that the LLS esonate for bunal of U,o, is also unreasonable
because it fails to take into account the costs of sating, charactenzing, and heensing a disposal f.u:ihty. CANT
PF at 36. CANT RF at 19-20. But the argunrnt the Intervenor now rnakes in its proposed findangs is not !

one it sought to support at the heanng with evidence in rnaking its evidentiary presentauon. the Intervennt
sought to demonairste that neither LLS nur the Staff had pmposed or provided for the conungency that there

fConunuedb
|
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| 3. DUF, Conversion Costs |
| The Applicant's estimate of $12 million annually, or $360 million over 30 i

years of operation, for the conversion of DUF, to U 0, comprises the largest |3

component of the LES tails disposal cost estimate of $16.175 million per year
or $485.3 million owr 30 years of operation. In their prefiled oirect testimony,

| Mr. LeRoy and Mr. Dekker stated that "[t]he cost of conversion of DUF, to
depleted U 0, is based on an estimated conversion cost of $4.86 per kilogram |3

of uranium ($1996), which was provided to LES by COGEMA, Inc., the U.S. !
-affiliate of a French nuclear service company." (LeRoy-Dekker at 23-24 fol. |
Tr.1016.) The Applicant's wi nesses then stated that COGEMA has indicated it

to LES in writing its willingness to consider providing conversion services for ;
! UF, in the United States and that, in a 1991 letter (App. Exh. 5), COGEM A !

estimated that its charge for such services in 1991 dollars would be in the I

range of $3 to $5/kgU. (/d. at 24.) Referring to Applicant's Exhibit 6, they
then stated that "[iln its more recent letter, COGEMA provided an updated 1

estimate of $4 to $6/kgU ($1995), which is in line with LES' conversion cost i

estimate of $4.86 ($1996) ($4.67 in $1995)."' (/d.) They also declared that i

these estimates assume construction and operation of a conversion facility in the I

United States and are based on COGEMA's actual experience in construction
and operation of a commercial facility in France. (/d.) Mr. LeRoy and Mr. I
Dekker asserted that these cost estimates also are comparable to actual costs
incurred by Urenco for conversion of UF, to U 0, in Europe. Further, they3

| testified that "[tjhe estimate provided by COGEMA includes the understanding
| that COGEMA would assume responsibility [for the] handling of any non DU 0,

3

| material produced during conversion (e.g., hydrofluoric acid-liF) [and] LES )
'

is responsible for dispositioning the DU 0, only." (/d. ) Finally, the LES |3

witnesses declared that this practice is consistent with Urenco's actual conversion
experience in Europe, where HF remained with the converter. (/d. at 25.)

At the hearing, the Intervenor's witness, Dr. Makhijani, challenged the
validity of the Applicant's conversion cost estimate of $4.86/kgU asserting, in j

may he no duposal site avail.ible m 15 years or even 30 years at the end of the CLC bcense term The Imervenor
thus argued that a careful analysis of the safety and durabihty of UF, storage cyhnders was necessary (Makhyani
at 22 23 foi Tr.1081 ) There is ample evidence in the accord about the safe uwful hfe of UF, cyhnders that
addresses the Imervenor's concern about cyhnders (App Exh 7, at 9.l| ) The Apphcant and uw staff are not j
required to counter an evidentiary case that the Intervenor never made
'The Apphtant did not explam further the dernanon of die LES conversion cost "esumaic" provided to 115 by |

CoGEMA of a rather euct 54 86/kgU m 1996 dollars or 54 67 in 1995 dollars when the 1991 CoGLMA leuer
(App. Enh 5) and the subsequent 1995 letter ( App I.xh 6) referred, respecuvely. to a charge m the range of
$t5/kgU and $46 in respondmg to a June 18,1993 staff request for reviwd Luis disposal cost esumates gApp l
Exh. 4h). Inwever, the Apphcant snformed the staff that "li]he cost of converuon of DUF, to depleted uramum j

oude (dup (, App. Exh 4o ) h appears that the $4 00 is merely the nud-range or CoGLMA's 1991 estimate of
) is based upon an esumate of $4 00 per kilogram uramum This estimaie was provided to LLs by

1

CoGEMA ;

$3-5 escalated from 1991 to 1995 and 1996 dollars usmg the Apphcant's standard 4% per year escalator yieldmg |
$4 67 in 1995 dollars and $4 86 in 1996 dollars j

!
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effect, that the Applicant's failure to break the estimate into constituent parts
,

'tecludes any evaluation of the estimate or its reasonableness. (Tr. 1205-06.)
Specifically, he testified that the Applicant's $4.86 figure unJerstates the cost
of conversion because it fails to include the considerable cost of approximately

'

$1.50/kgU for neutralizing to calcium fluoride ("CaF,") the hydrofluoric acid
("HF") byproduct that is produced during the conversion of UF, to U 0,,. (Tr.3

1206-09.) Such neutralization costs were necessary he asserted because his past
evaluation of the demand in the United States for hydrofluoric acid showed that

,

it was a declining market. According to Dr. Makhijani, a very large use of !
HF is in the production of ozone-depleting chlorofluorocarbons ("CFCs") that
now are being phased out pursuant to federal law and international agreements.
Although recognizing that HF is used in the initial production of UF,, Dr.
Makhijani testified that large purchases of Russian high-enriched uranium for
reactor fuel and the additional relcase of American stockpiles of high-enriched
uranium will further drive down the domestic demand for HF by limiting the
need for enrichment services. He further stated that a 1990 Oak Ridge report, J

"The Ultimate Disposition of Depleted Uranium" (DE 91-006414), that was !
published before the establishment of any firm deadlines for phasing out CFCs |
or the American purchase of Russian high-enriched uranirn, concluded that ;

there may be no market for contaminated hydrofluoric acid in the United States. |

Finally, Dr. Makhijani testified that converting high-enriched uranium in the
form of uranium metal to reactor fuel can be done using conversion methods
that either use or do not use HF and that the process for conversion in this,

| country has yet to be selected.
On the basis of the evidentiary record in this proceeding, we cannot find

that the Applicant's estimated cost of $4.86/kgU (totaling $12 million annually
and $360 million over 30 years of operation) is a reasonable estimate for
converting DUF, to U 0,. The LES estimate is deficient because it fails to

3

include the significant cost of neutralizing the hydrofluoric acid byproduct of
the conversion process. The evidentiary record is clear that the Applicant's
cost estimate for converting DUF, to U 0, does not include any provision for3

incurring the additional substantial cost of neutralizing the byproduct HF from
the primary conversion process. (LeRoy Tr. 1055, 1049. Ser alm App. Exh. 7
at 17.)'8 Instead the Applicant's position assumes that the COGEMA operation

|

10 the I G&G Report estabhshes that the conversion costs of neutrahzmg HF to CaF are significant and contnbute3.

aboui 5150/kgU to the total converston cost of SM 40 m 1992 dollars. (App. Enh. 8. at 4h Hakey Tr !!33-|
1 35 ) Tius HF neutrahzatmo cost esumate in 1992 do!!ars is derived from the EG&G Report and excludes any

construcuon or other miscellaneous fees. It also assumes that the disposal cost for CaF2 is nunnnat due to its
shght contartunanon and likehhood of disposal as ordinary wasie. (thekey Tr.1134.;5 ) The Staffs wnness.
Mr. Hickey, agreed that the esumate of $1.50/kgU for the neutrahzauon of byproduct HF to CaF was reasonable2
and that he had no other esumate to offer. (Tr.1135 ) Adding the conservauve 51.50 cost of HF neutrahzanon
10 the Apphcant's enumated costs for runverung DUf to U 0, results in a more than 30% increase to the 1.136 3

ICumsmued)
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in Frece, in which HF is recycled as part of COGEMA's extensive nuclear fuel
cycle manufacturing activities or otherwise marketed, will be replicated in the
United States. It has not, however, provided any supporting evidence that there
will be a sufficient market in the United States for the byproduct HF allowing it !
to be economically recycled or otherwise sold. Without evidence to show that
there will be a sufficient market for the byproduct HF in the United States, we
can only conclude that a domestic conversion facility, regardless of whether it

'

is ultimately built and operated by COGEMA or some other entity, will have to
neutralize the HF as an additional step in the conversion process and that the

'

additional cost must be included in the cost of conversion. Thus, contrary to the

j assertions of the Applicant's witness that the conversion of HF to CcF is t.ot
3

; the Applicant's concern because COGEMA's cost estimate for UF, conversion

| includes the understanding that COGEMA would assume responsibility for all

| conversion byproducts except U 0,(LeRoy at Tr.1050), the reasonableness of
3

j the LES conversion cost estimate component is not " converter specific" and is
| not dependent upon COGEMA performing the service."

In making this finding, we are aware that the Applicant's witness, Mr. LeRoy,

| testified that in "the conversations we have had with COGEMA and in the SECY

| paper [SECY 91-019 (App. Exh. 3)], it is stated that COGEM A, after converting

| the DUF, to U 0, uses the HF that is produced either for the forward process3

| of converting natural U 0, to natural UF, or the HF is sold on the industrial
3

| market." (Tr.1049. See also Tr.1050, LeRoy-Dekker at 29 fol. Tr.1016.) But
I this proffer of the COGEMA model in France, with its extensive nuclear fuel
| reprocessing, manufacturing, and waste disposal activities under one govee r. ment

| umbrella, is not sufficient to establish, without significant additional evidence,
the feasibility or likelihood that a conversion facility in the United States could
economically recycle or otherwise market the byproduct HF from the conversion

| of the CEC tails.

| This failure of proof is especially significant in the circumstance where the
l domestic chemical market also will be faced with the byproduct HF from the !
I conversion of the huge DOE stockpile of tails as well as the ever-increasing

conversion costs, mereasmg the Appheant's annual conversmn costs from $12 milhon to $15 7 milhon and, over
,

30 years of operation from 5 W) nulhon to $471 nulhon The addmon of this increase in conversion costs to the
|

| LES total'. ails disposal cost esurnate mcreases it from $4853 n lhon over 30 years of operanon to almost 5600

| nulhon.
H

j Indeed for this name reason we rescetsd the intervenor's assertwn in considenng the Apphcant's transponauon
cost esumate that the Apphcant's disposal strategy was tmt plausible bi cause LLS did not have a firm comnutmenti

from CoGEMA. Inc., to bmid a conversion facihty in the Umied Sietes 'the Apphcant offered no evidence that
CoGEM A. Inc., actually would build and oper.ae a converuon facihty m the Umted States. Rather, u only offered
an expression of interest letter staung TonLMA Inc?s withngness to conuder the ponnbahty of providmg. In
the Umted states. convernon services." (App. Exh. 6 ) necai e the Appheant had no such comnutment. the
Imervenor asserted that the Lt.S transponauon esumale would have to include the costs of shippmg the DUr, to j
Itance and retunung the U o to the Umted States CANT RF at 28-22 The record mdicates those costs would3 g
add some 545 nothon a year to the LLS nansponauon costs. (App Exh AD at % codis E, at E-2. txRoy Tr.
1059-60 )

I
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accumulation of tails from the United States Enrichment Corporation. Indeed, |
Mr. LeRoy indicated that the Applicant's cost projections for disposal did not

'

include any analysis of the future market for conversion byproducts and he I

acknowledged that there could be a glut of such byproducts on the market in the
|

futurv irom tails conversion. (Tr.1051.) He further conceded that the question 1

| of the cost of neutralization of HF is not irrelevant to the LES cost estimate.
1 (Tc 1055-56.) He thus provided nothing to counter effectively the testimony
j of the Intervenor's witness, Dr. Makhijani, that his past analysis showed the
| domestic market for HF was shrinking due to the phase out of CFCs and the

decrease in demand for enrichment services from the introduction of Russian
| and American high-enriched uranium, see LBF-96-25, 44 NRC at 352-60, a
I conclusion he further buttressed with the 1990 Oak Ridge report indicating that

there may be no market in the United States for byproduct HF.
Further, we note that in assessing the environmental impacts from the -

conversion of UF, to U 0,, the Staff's FEIS assumes that the byproduct HF3

will be neutralized to CaF;. (Staff Exh. 2, at A-2 to -4.) More important,
however, is the Staff's response in the FEIS to public comments on the draft j
environmental impact statement concerning the decline in the American market
for HF. The Staff described the sale of HF as merely a " possibility"(Staff Exh.

.

2, Vol. 2, at 1-198) and went on to state in responding to comments about the
impacts of transporting HF that "[c]onversion operations would likely result in
production of calcium fluoride." (Id. at 1-199.) Similarly, the 1994 EG&G
Report introduced by the Applicant that evaluates the disposal options and costs
for DOE's depleted uranium and estimates $8.40/kgU as the cost of conversion i

assumes that all byproduct HF from the conversion of UF, to U 0,is neutralized
'

3

by converting it to CaF and disposing of it in that form. (App. Exh. 8, at 43, ;
2

47.) Accordingly, on the basis of this evidentiary record, we cannot find that the .

Applicant has met its borden of proof and demonstrated by a preponderance of
'

the evidence that the LES cost estimate for the conversion of DUF, to U 0, is3

a reasonable one because it fails to include the substantial costs for neutralizing
the byproduct HF from the conversion process. 2

1

12 1n this regard. we note that the Staff's witness. Mr. Hickey. tesuhed that the Applicant's "estmate of $4 86 per
kilogram tof uranium] for conversion we beheve. includes the possibihty that the opuun of converung to ca%m
fluonde will be esercised" (Tr. Ilh31 ) Besides bemg contra &cted by the ApplicantiIN.-ny acRoy Tr -

1055). Mr Hickey's asseruon to tlw effect that the L.I.$ conversion cost esumate covers both the conversion of

DUF, to U 0, s.d the conversion of HF to CaF is not supponed by the record as a wh 31e3 2
Furtter. Mr. thekey opened that the Apphcant's conversaan cost esumate of 6186 revertheless was adequate to

cover the adeuonal cost of convertmg byprodu.:t HF to CaF . staung
,2

it]tw prices that were quoted to us from 11.5 that came from CoGEMA. we beneve were over-inflated |
and inclwied a hit of proht on the pan of CoGEMA. And, la fact. a conversion f.icahty could be buik m i

the Umted States. and they could dispose of the hydrogen fluonde in the form of calcium for less than i

55 a lulogram j
(CamamurJI ,

,
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1

Finally, we note that, in contrast to the detailed final decommissionir.g plan

| that LES must submit near the end of the license term, the Applicant's Decom-
missioning Funding Plan is required only to provide a reasonable cost estimate'

to ensure that the Applicant sets aside adequate funds to cover, infer alia, the
! cost of tails disposal. The reasonableness of the Applicant's cost estimate is

necessarily dependent upon all the circumstances and the Commission has in-
dicated that "the plan must contain essential elements sufficient to ensure that
a reasonable estimate of decommissioning costs can be made." Public Service

| Co. of New flampshire (Seabrook Station, Units 1 and 2), CL1-88-10,28 NRC
573, 587 (1988). liere, the largest component of the Applicant's estimate for
tails disposal is that for the conversion of DUF, to U 0,. As we have found,

3

however, the Applicant's estimate has not properly accounted for neutralizing
the byproduct ilF as part of its estimate. This additional cost is substantial and
it is not the type of expense, like an increase for inflation or the development of

! a new technology (see 50 Fed. Reg. 5600,5604 (1985)), that merely should bc
;

added sometime in the future after one of the Applicant's periodic decommis-
sioning funding reviews that the Applicant is committed to performing at least
once every 5 years. (App. Exh.1(c), at 7-1.) Rather, the neutralization of the
byproduct HF produced as part of the conversion of DUF, to U 0,is clearly an

3

essemial element of the conversion cost (and hence the tails disposal cost) that
reasonably can be estimated at this tiuc.

Further, because the depleted uranium tails are created as the Applicant
performs enrichment services, the Applicant's tails disposal funds must come
from a portion of the price charged by LES for the separate work units ("SWUs")
it performs. (Arnold Tr. 672-73; App. Exh. 4n, at 4: App. Exh.1(a), at 11.8-15;
Staff Exh.1, at 15-21.) In order to provide reasonable assurance that there
are adequate funds set aside to cover tails disposal, the Applicant must factor

,

the realistic reasonable cost estimate of tails disposal into its market price for
'

SWUs from the initiation of operations. (App. Exh. 4n at 4.) This is especially
important in light of the nature of the enrichment market and the Applicant's

,

financial structure. As we found in LBP-96-25,44 NRC at 355-56,359-60,361,
|

(Tr. 1831) Mr. Hickey then used the conversmn cost esumate in the EG&G Repat of 58 40 that includes
byproduct HF neutrahzanon to illustrate his asseruon rTr. 1131.1135 46; App. Exh. 8. at 471 According to Mr |
Hickey, after 5 years of operahon of the hypotheucal conversion facihty in the LG&G Report, the irutial plant I
coats would have been recovered and. thereaficr. the cost per kilogram for conversmn would amoum to about
$4 80 (Tr |136 ) But Mr thckey attempts to prove too much He not only fiuled to escalate his esumate from
the 1992 dollars of the EG&G Report to the 1996 dollars of the 1.L5 esumare - a step that raises ha esumate
considerably - but his assumpuons about the EG&G Report esumate (assumpuons that are not exphcit in the
LG&G Report) raise more quesnons than are answered regarding such things as return of capital. depreciatmn.
carrymg costs. innes. decomammanon costs. and profit margms Because the record provides no corroborstmg
support for the proposmon that a future donetic conversma facihty is to be built and operated without a heahhy
regard for profits. we are unable to accept Mr. Hickey's asseruons regarding the cost of conversmn of depleted
uramum tails, mcluding the neutrahzauon of byproduct Hr. In so concluding we are not unmindful of Mr. Hickey's
candid appraisal that the Staff's forecasur.g accuracy of duposal costs has been "very pimrJ (Tr.1153 )
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|. the enrichment market , a fiercely competitive, international one in which the
supply of enrichment production capacity and the supply of enriched uranium
far exceeds demand and this situation will prevail for the foreseeable future. In
such a competitive market, a significant shortfall in the funds set aside to pay for

| tails disposal cannot simply be remedied by a price increase without harming the
'

Applicant's competitive position and future market prospects. Moreover, unlike
a utility reactor operator that can rely upon a public utility commission to set

i a rate structure adequate to recover all decommissioning costs even after the
j shutdown of a facility (see 53 Fed. Reg. 24,018,24,031 (1988)), the Applicant's

tails disposal funds can only be collected from its charges for enrichment services

| on an ongoing basis.
In other words, LES must be totally self-reliant in paying for tails disposal.

| As we detailed in LBP-96-25,44 NRC at 378-80, LES is a newly formed entity
created to build and operate the CEC. It is structured as a limited partnership
and LES has no significant independent assets. Id.qt 398 99. Similarly,
none of the LES general or limited partners are corporations of worth. Id.
Further, under the LES Partnership Agreement, as well as general principles of
corporate and partnership law, the corporate parents and other affiliates of theI

i LES gencial and li.nited partners have no liability for the ob:igations of the ;

partnership. Id. at 402 n.30. In these circumstances, we cannot conclude that
the Applicant's tails disposal estimate need only be a rough approximation that
can be adjusted in the future upon periodic reviews by the Applicant. Rather,
for the LES tails disposal estimate to be a reasonable one, it must include the
substantial cost of neutralizing the HF from the . conversion of DUF, to U 0,.

3

Our finding in this regard is without prejudice to the Applicant acting to amend ;

the LES Decommissioning Funding Plan consistent with this Decision and the i

Commission's regulations.
1

C. Inter enor's Other Challenges

in addition to its direct challenge to the Applicant's tails disposal cost
estimate," the Intervenor also challenges the Staff's FEIS alleging that a number
of technical deficiencies and other shortcomings undermine its validity, thereby
discrediting the LES tails disposal estimate for deep burial of the CEC tails.
According to the Intervenor, these various deficiencies so esiscerate the Staff's ;

'

analysis that the FEIS cannot support the conclusion that deep burial of the

U At the heanng, the Intenenor did not pursue the specihc assernons set forth in CANT's onginal bases B 4 and |
B 5 and the Intenenor did not mclude 6ndmgs on these bases in fihng its proposed fin hnp Hence, the Intervennt j

has waned these claims and, punuant to 10 C I R. 6 2.754(b). is in def ault as to these claims. In any event. the
Apphcant and the S*aff presented test many and odier evidence on these maners. (tzRoy-liekker at 15-11L 4b47
fol. Tr 1016; App. Exh. l(a), at 11.8-10 to .16; I-arar-Hickey at 11 12 fot Tr.1106) and the Apphcant has nei
its burden of proof on these clauns. Hence, die claims in Intenenor's bases B 4 and B.5 cannot be sustained.

I19
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CEC depleted uranium tails will provide adequate protection to the public and
the environment. Consequently, the Intervenor asserts that the CEC tails must
be disposed of in a licensed geologic repository at a cost likely to be no less
than $10/kg U 0, and perhaps much more. (Makhijani at 4-7,16-17,20-21 fol.3

Tr.1081.)" We summarily address below the deficiencies in the FEIS alleged
by the Intervenor and find them without merit.

1. Use ofinappropriate pH, Retardation Factor, and Redox
l'otential Values

Dr. Makhijani asserts that the values chosen by the Staff for groundwater re-
garding pH, retardation factor, and redox potential for use in its FEIS analysis of
the environmental impacts of deep disposal of depleted uranium tails at two rep-
resentative sites (see supra pp.107-08) could result in a serious underestimation
of the doses to the public. (Makhijani at 8-13 fol. Tr.1081.) Specifically, Dr.
Makhijani claims that the pH value - an important factor gov rning uranium
solubility and subsequent uranium transport - of 7.8 that was used by the Staff
came from near-sulface water data from a location in New York. (See Staff Exh.
2, Appendix A, at A-12.) According to Dr. Makhijani, the pH of groundwater in
the basalt rock formations for repository locations has been found to be greater
than 9. (Makhijani at 9-10 fol. Tr.1081.) Contrary to Dr. Makhijani's assertion,
however, we find that the Staff's use of a pH value of 7.8 based on New York
data was not unreasonable in light of the reference literature for groundwater
showing a pH range of 7.2 to 8.5. (Price Tr.1115. LeRoy Tr. 1164-65.) Thus,
the Staff's use of a pH value falling within the reference range was appropriate
and reasonable.

Dr. Makhijani also argues that a retardation factor of 1200 should not have
been used by the Staff in the FEIS (Staff Exh. 2, Apnendix A, at A-13)
because it is considerably higher than the retardation factors for granite and i

Ibasalt rock formations recommended in a report of the National Academy of
Sciences. (Makhijani at 10 fol. Tr.1081.) The retardation factor is determined ;
by dividing the ratio of water velocity by the radionuclide transportation velocity. |

Radionuclides dissolved in groundwater are adsorbed and exchanged through
contact with the surrounding solid phase and thus travel at a lower velocity than

M The Applicant argues that !s tails disposal cost esumate was developed before the environnental impact
statement was prepared and was not bued on any information in the Fl.ls it imphes. iheretore. that the tmervenor's
challenges to the techmcal undirpsanings of the FLIS are irrelevant to the LLS disposal rest estimate for deep
hunal. (Tr.1066. Appheant's proposed Findings of |%: and Conclusions of t.aw (May 26,1995) as 402-03 )
But the Applicant's posumn ignores the thrust of the Interven#s argument that because of nunwrous denciencies
in alia staff's Analysis deep burial of U On has not been shown to protect the environnent theichy mandat ng3

disposalin a geologic repository at a much higher cost 1he Apphcant's witnesses also tenhhed, however. that on
the basis of their review of the st.iff's analysis of deep disposalin the i01S they found the analysts satafactory.
(Dubiel-Doncison at 1115 foi Tr 1026 )
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I

the groundwater. (Staff Exh. 2, Appendix A, at A-13.) The Staff's witness, Dr.
Price, as well as the Applicant's witness, Mr. Dubiel, both testified that the value

1,

used by the Staff, which was based on a Swedish study, was appropriate because j'

the data were from actual experimental observation for a comparable medium
and Ere corroborated by a second study using such data. (Price Tr. 1115-17,
1235; Dubies tr. I164-65.) Based on this testimony, we cannot find that the
Staff's use of a retardation factor of 1200 drawn from actual experimental data, j

i in contrast to theoretical evaluations, was unreasonable. |
IDr. Makhijani next claims that the redox potential value ("eH") of minus

100 millivolts used by the Staff in its FEIS analysis (Staff Exh. 2, Appendix
A, at A-12) is outside the range of values that the Staff otherwise lists in
the FEIS for uranium mines and he FEIS contains no other comparative
groundwater eH values. He asser.s that the solubility of uranium is critical
to the determination of the amour.r of uranium in groundwater and that the Staff
has made arbitrary assumptions r at tend to minimize the amount of uranium in
solution. (Makhijani at 10-12 L J. Tr.1081.)

Redox potential, measure , m volts or millivolts ("mV"), is a measure of
the potential of groundw or to oxidize or reduce (i.e., to change chemically
materials disposed of ' . groundwater). An increased redox potential increases
the potential for mnium to dissolve in water. (/d. at i1: Price Tr. I116.)
Although the Staff's comparative table of eH values in the FEIS and the Staff's
choice of an cH value of minus 100 mV certainly could have been more clearly
explained in the FEIS (Price Tr. I148-49), we find Dr. Makhijani's criticism
without merit. As Dr. Price testified the Staff chose an eH value of minus
100 mV because it was representative of deep groundwater from experimental
observations showing redox potentials of minus 26 mV to minus 210 millivolts,
with some reference data going even lower. (Tr. 1118-19.) He stated that the
data set forth in the FEIS for uranium mines are not fully representative of deep
groundwater and the conditions that will be chosen and prevail for the deep
burial of depleted uranium tails will be a reducing environment. (Tr. I145-49.)
The Applicant's witness, Mr. Dubiel, also testified that the reference literature
supported the Staff choice of eH value for the groundwater depths involved in
the FEIS evaluation. (Tr. 1165-66.) Based on this testimony, we find that the
cH value used by the Staff in its analysis is a reasonabk one. ]

i|

2. Failure to Perform Uncertainty Analysis, Consider Range of |

Geologic Settings, and Fully Analyze Appropriate Chemical
Form of Tails for Disposal

Dr. Makhijani next asserts that, contrary to sound scientific practice, the
Staff failed to perform an uncertainty analysis of deep burial as part of its j

environmental impact analysis so that upper and lower bounds for estimated ;
i

)
4
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doses could be obtained. Because of this failure, he asserts that the resulting .

Stalf analysis fails to meet the minimal test of sound science. (Makhijani at
1316 fol. Tr.1081.)

In response to this criticism, Dr. Price testified that an uncertainty analysis :

was impractical and imnecessary here because an actual deep hurial site was
not being characterized. Rather, he stated that the objective of the Staff's
analysis in the FEIS was not to support a licensing position on a disposal site
but merely to determine the plausibility of deep burial of depleted uranium as
a disposal strategy. Indeed, Dr. Price noted that the analogous NRC branch

,

| technical position for low-level waste facilities requires significant site-specific
Il data for the performance of an uncertainty analysis. (Tr. I120-21.) In these

circumstances, we cannot find that an uncertainty analysis was necessary for the
Staff's evaluation of the impacts from two representative hypothetical disposal
sites.

Further, the Intervenor's witness claimed that the FEIS analysis is deficient
for considering only two geologic settings, a granite formation and a basalt !

'

; formation, instead of considering a wide range of potential geologic settings.

! Dr. Makhijani indicated that the Staff first should have performed.a preliminary .

I
screening of all potential geologic settings for their respective advantages and

| disadvantages and only then selected particular rock types for study. (Makhijani
at 9 fol. Tr.1081,) The Staff witnesses, Dr. Price and Mr. Faraz, both testified |

that the use of two representative geologic settings was appropriate because the ]
objective of the FEIS analysis was to determine whether deep burial of depleted 1

uranium tails was plausible. (Tr. 1112-13.) All of the Applicant's witnesses
concurred in this same view. (Tr.1163.) Contrary to Dr. Makhijani's charge, we

,

! find that the Staff's use of two representative geologic settings was reasonable
! in light of the purpose of the FEIS evaluation.
' Finally, Dr. Makhijani asserts that the Staff's analysis is deficient for failing

to consider the appropriateness of converting UF, to UO, instead of U 0, for3

disposal. Although he concedes that both uranium oxide forms are insoluble in !|

water, Dr. Makhijani asserts that the complexes they form with other chemicals |
- in specific geologic environments could be different, depending on the particular !

conditions. Therefore, he claims the Staff should have considered UO in
| 2

| addition to U 0, and presented a comparative analysis showing the legitimacy3

; of its choice of U 0,. (Makhijani at 7-8 fol. Tr.1081.)3
! Dr. Makhijani's assertion is without merit. The record evidence ove wl '8"

ingly demonstrates that U 0,is the preferred form of uranium oxide for disposal.3

(App. Exh. 4I, at 18-19 & Appendix D, at D 1; App. Exh. 7, at 14-15; App. Exh.
8, at 11-13; LeRoy-Dekker at 30 fol. Tr.1016.) Further, as Dr. Price testified,
it is also necessary to consider how to manage and handle the uranium oxide
as it is produced, stored, and transported for burial, and U 0, is more stable3

upon exposure to the atmosphere than UO (Tr. I111.) Indeed, as Applicant's
2
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Exhibit 7 states "UO will ignite spontaneously in heated air and burn bril-2

liantly." (App. Exh. 7, at 36.)
Finally, in addition to the foregoing findings, we have carefully considered

all of the other arguments, claims, and proposed findings of the parties relative
to contentions B and J 3 and find that they are either without merit, immaterial,
or unnecessary to this Decision.

D. Concerns of the State of Louisiana

Pursuant to 10 C.F.R. s 2.715(c) of the Commission's Rules of Practice, the
State of Louisiana has participated in this proceeding as an interested State. In
its proposed findings, the State has requested that we condition any LES license
for the CEC to ensure that Louisiana does not have to take responsibility for
any radioactive waste from the CEC. Additionally, the State requests a number
of corollary conditions designed to ensure that no financial obligations fall on
Louisiana from any of the CEC radioactive waste."

he State's concern that any LES license authorization be conditioned so that
the State cannot be held responsible for any radioactive waste from the CEC has
now heen resolved by the recent enactment of the USEC Privatization Act. The
Act specifically provides that "[nlotwithstanding any other provision of law, no
State or interstate compact shall be liable for the treatment, storage, or disposal
of any low-level waste . attributable to the operation, decontamination, or.

decommissioning of any uranium enrichment facility." 42 U.S.C. 6 2297h-11(c).
With the enactment of this federal statute, no further consideration of the State's

request for license conditions is necessary.

III. CONCLUSION

For the reasons detailed in Pa.t II.B.3, we conclude that the Applicant's cost -

estimate of $12 million annually for the conversion of DUF, to U 0, is not a
3

reasonable one given its failure to include the substantial costs of neutralizing
the conversion process byproduct hydrofluoric acid. Thus, to this extent the
Intervenor's contention B.! is sustained. For the same reason and to the same
extent, the Intervenor's contention J.3 is sustained and, pursuant to 10 C.F.R.
651.102, the FEIS is hereby supplemented by the discussion of the economic
costs of tails disposal in this Decision and the underlying adjudicatory record.
See Philadelphia EIccrric Co. (Limerick Generating Station, Units I and 2),
ALAB-819,22 NRC 681,706 (1985).

U leussiana's hoposed Findings of fut and Conclusions of law in str mem of un Ini".nl Decision Relanve to
DUF waste Generased at the hoposed IIS 13cihty dune 23. tW5) at 3-5.6
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Pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 5 2.760 of the Commission's Rules of Practice, this

Partial Initial Decision will constitute the final Decision of the Comtnission on
these contentions forty (40) days from the date of its issuance unless a petition
for review is filed in accordance with 10 C.F.R. 6 2.786. or the Commission
directs otherwise. Within fifteen (15) days after service of this Partial Initial
Decision, any party may file a petition for review with the Commission on the
grounds specified in 10 C.F.R 6 2.786(b)(4). The filing of a petition for review
is mandatory in order for a party to have exhausted its administrative remedies
before seeking judicial review at the appropriate time. Within ten (10) days
after sesvice of a petition for review, any party to the proceeding may file an
answer supporting or opposing Commission review. The petition for review and
any answers shall conform to the requirements of 10 C.F.R. 6 2.786(b)(2)-(3).

! It is so ORDERED.
!

THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND '

LICENSING BOARD

! Thomas S. Moore, Chairman
| ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

Richard F. Cole
ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

| Frederick J. Shon
| ADMINISTr ATIVE JUDGE

March 7,1997
Rockville, Maryland
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Cite as 45 NRC 125 (1997) LBP-97 4
,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA >

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSIONy, ,

,

ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD

Before Administrative Judges:

G. Psiul Bollwerk,111, Chairman
,

| Peter B. Bloch
Thomas D. Murphy'

;

s

[ In the Matter of Docket No. 50-461-OLA
7

(ASLBP No. 97 725-01-OLA)
'

| ILLINOIS POWER COMPANY and
SOYLAND POWER COOPERATIVE

| (Clinton Power Station, Unit 1) March 11,1997

:

In this proceeding regarding the proposed transfer of the ownership share of ,

Clinton Power Station minority owner Soyland Power Cooperative to majority ,

owner Illinois Power Company, the Licensing Board grants the unopposed
request of Petitioner Southwestern Electric Cooperative, Inc., to diuniss its;

! protective intervention petition and terminate the proceeding.

1

RULES OF PRACTICE: INTERVENTION PETITION

Simply because a filing is labeled a petition to intervene does not prevent )
the presiding officer from treating it as a request to initiate a hearing if this, in I

fact, is what the petitioner is seeking. See Yankee Atomi: Electric Co. (Yankee |

Nuclear Power Station), CLI-96-1,43 NRC 1,5 (1996).
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MEMORANDUM AND ORDER
(Terminating Proceeding)

Responding to a January 23, 1997 notice of opportunity for hearing, see
62 Fed. Reg. 4437 (1997), in a February 28, 1997 filing entitled " Petition

, for Leave to Intervene " Petitioner Southwestern Electric Cooperative, Inc.
(Southwestern), sought leave to participete in any adjudicatory proceeding
convened in connection with an October 17,1996 application (as supplemented
and modified by letter dated December 31, 1996) for agency approval of an
operating license amendment for the Clinton Power Station, Unit No.1 (CPS).
The proposed license revision would permit the transfer of Soyland Power

| Cooperative's (Soyland) minority ownership in CPS to Illinois Power Company
| (Illinois Power), the facility's majority owner and operator. On March 7,1997,

this Licensing Board was established to rule on Southwestern's petition. See 62
Fed. Reg. 11,933 (1997).

| Subsequently, on March 11, 1997. Petitioner Southwestern filed a letter

| addressed to the Licensing Board requesting that this proceeding be terminated.
In support of its motion, Southwestern asserts that its original petition was

I intended only to preserve its interests in the event that Illinois Power, Soyland,
l or some ether party sought and was granted a hearing i No other party apparently

having filed a timely hearing request, Southwestern now wishes to have this
proceeding terminated.2

Under the circumstances, we grant Southwestern's request.

| For the foregoing reasons, it is, this lith day of March 1997, ORDERED
j that:

| 1. The March i1,1997 motion of Southwestern to terminate this proceeding
| is granted; and

|

.

|
!

l

I
Although Southwestern's february 78 tihng was labeled as a **peunon to intervene." this would not prevent uni

I frorn treanng n as a sequest to ininate a heanng if thm, m fact. was what Southwestern was neeking See ranker
Ammic Merrnc Ca (Yankee Nuclear Power Stanon). C11%I. 43 NRC 1. 5 (1954)
2 ity telephone ttu date, we were advised tiy counsel for Southwestern that neither ilhnois Power nor Soyland
objects to the ternunauan of dus proceedmg. Also, upon inquiry. cournet for the NRC Staff adwwd the Board
that the Staff has no objecuan to termination of stus proceeding.
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| 2. Southwestern's Rbruary 28, 1997 petition for leave to intervene is I
dismissed and this proceeding is terminated.

d
1

THE ATOMIC SAFETY AND |
"

LICENSING BOALD'

|

G. Paul Bollwerk. III, Chairman |

ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

Thomas D. Murphy
ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

|'
'

Rockville, Maryland
March 11,1997

, ,

i

i

!
,

1

I

l

?

s

I
3 Adnumuratwe Judge Bloch was not available to sign this Memorandum and Order He was, however, advised I

of its consents and apprmed us issuance,
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Cite as 45 NRC 128 (1997) LBP-97-5

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD PANEL
,

!

Before Administrative Judges:

i
'

G. Paul Bollwerk,111, Presiding Officer :

Jerry R. Kline, Special Assistant |

|
t

| In the Matter of Docket No. 30-02764-MLA i

| (ASLBP No. 97 722-01-MLA)
i

UNIVERSITY OF CINCINNATI

(Denial of License Amendment) March 27,1997 i

i

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER
| (Dismissing Proceeding)

*
,

1

! In this proceeding, Licensee University of Cincinnati (University) has chal-
lenged the December 12,1996 action of the NRC Staff denying the University's
January 5,1996 application for an amendment to its 10 C.F.R. Part 30 byproduct |
materials license. The requested amendment would allow specified visitors of '

radiation therapy patients to receive a dose of up to 500 millirem (mrem) total 1

effective dose equivalent (TEDE) per year instead of the current public dose !
limit of 100 mrem per year provided for in 10 C.F.R. 6 20.1301(a)(1). ,

Now pending before me is the March 13, 1997 motion of the University !

requesting that I dismiss this proceeding. In its motion the University declares
that on libruary 14, 1997, the NRC Staff issued Amendment No. 80 to the
University's license (NRC License No. 34-06903-05), a copy of which was

; provided on March 20, 1997. See Presiding Officer Memorandum (Mar.
26, 1997), attachs. 1-2. Under License Condition 27 provided for by that

! amendment, an individual visiting a patient is permitted to receive 500 mrem
I during the patient's confinement period provided:

|
!

! 128

|

1

|
1

, |
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;
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!

. (1) the visitor has been deternuned by a physician to be necessary for the ernotional and/or
! physical support of the patient;

(2) the visitor is 18 years of age or older and, if fernale,is not pregnant;

(3) the visitor (a) is instructed to maintain exposures as h)w as is reasonably achievable
(ALARA). emphasizing the basic radiation safety precautions of time, distance, and shielding,
and (b)is advised (i) that the exposures received may exceed the general public's regulatory
hmit, and fii) of the risks of radution exposure; and

(4) a visitor's exposures received under the license condition are estimated by appropriate
means to ensure the 500 mrem dose hmit is not exceeded, with records docunwnting
compliance nuuntamed for three years.

The University's motion also states that the Staff has no objection to the
University's dismissal request.

'Ihe controversy in this proceeding has been mooted by the issuance of the
Itbruary 14,1997 license amendment. Accordingly, the University's dismissal
request is granted and this proceeding is terminated.

For the foregoing reasons, it is, this 27th day of March 1997, ORDERED
that:

1, The March 13,1997 motion of the University to dismiss this proceeding
is gmnted.

2. This proceeding is dismissed.

G. Paul Bollwerk, Ill, Presiding Officer
ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

Rockville, Maryland
March 27,1997
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Cito as 45 NRC 130 (1997) LBP-97-6 !
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i

I
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ,f

y NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION f-

,

| ATOMIC SAFETY AND LICENSING BOARD PANEL
'

Before Administrative Judges: !
|
!

|
Peter B. Bloch, Presiding Officer

,

| Peter Lam, Special Assistant j

l in the Matter of Docket No. 55-20726-SP l

(ASLBP No. 96-721-01-SP) -|

(Re: Operator License)

!
RALPH L TETRICK
(Denial of Application for Reactor

Operator License) March 27,1997

The Presiding Officer denied the Staff's motion for reconsideration. He
ruled that the Staff should reasonably have forseen the importance of whether
or not to round up applicant's examination score. Consequently, Staff should
have raised this question earlier and it was untimely to do so in a Motion for
Reconsideration. Since the Presiding Officer also concluded that there was no

,

important safety issue involved, he used his discretion to deny the untimely j
motion. '

CORRECTED COPY OF MEMORANDUM AND ORDER
(Denial of Reconsideration, Stay)

On March 10,1997, the Staff of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission filed a
motion,"NRC Staff's Request for issuance of an Order Staying the Effectiveness
of the Presiding Officer's Initial Decision (LBP-97-2)"(Motion for a Stay). The ;

Staff asked that the Presiding Officer issue an order staying the effectiveness ;

j
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of his Initial Decision in this proceeding,' pending the Presiding Officer's
review and consideration of the Staff's Motion for Reconsideration (Motion
for Reconsideration), filed simultaneously. Ralph L Tetrick filed his response
to the Staff motions on March 17, 1997.

Because the Motica for Reconsideration has been filed, we rc.ain jurisdiction
over this case. See 10 C.F.R. 6 2.771; Consumers Power Co. (Midland Plant.
Units 1 and 2), ALAB-235,8 AEC 645 (1974).

I have decided that the Motion for Reconsideration shall be denied because
it improperly raises an argument based on evidence that should have been
incorporated in the record earlier in this case. The Motion for a Stay also shall be
denied. The Motion for a Stay stated, in part, that it was pending "the Presiding
Officer's review and consideration of the Staff's Motion for Reconsideration.''
Upon denial of the Motion for Reconsideration, I no longer have jurisdiction of
this case, so it would be inappropriate to grant a stay "pending consideration by
the Commission," as the Staff also requests.

With respect to the Motion for Reconsideration, I note that:

A motwn for recemsideration should not include new arguments or evidence unless a party
demonstrates that nts new matersal relates to a Board concern that could not reasonably ;

hwe been antscspared.

Texas Utilities Electric Co. (Comanche Peak Steam Electric Station, Units 1 and

2), LBP-84-10,19 NRC 509, 51'7-18 (1984). (Emphasis added to the quoted
paragraph by the Staff. See "NRC Staff's Response to Memorandum and Order
of March 21,1997,' March 25,1997 [ Staff Response] at 2.) In this case,

!Staff opposed Mr. Tetrick's challenges to three questions on its Senior Reactor
Operator's examination. It now argues that it could not anticipate that one of
these three questions might be struck, forcing the Presiding Officer to decide
whether or not a score of 79.59rk should be considered passing or failing 2

NRC Response at 3-4. We reject Staff's argument that it "did not yet have any
reason to anticipate that the Presiding Officer would strike Question 96. "

(NRC Response at 4.) The key question being litigated was the validity of
each of the challenged questions and whether or not Mr. Tetrick would pass the
examination. I conclude that the Staff should have anticipated this contingency
and presented arguments about how it should be resolved in the interest of
finality in decision making, I do not consider it appropriate to permit the Staff
to raise this argument at this stage of the proceeding.

I Ralph L Ternia (Dernal of Apphcatmn for Reactor operator tjcensch t.BP.97 2. 45 NRC 510997) Onmal
| Decisient

2 1t was necessary to the decision in this case for the Presidmg Officer to deternune whether or not to round off
the enanunatmn score. The Staff suggestion that this decmon was "sva spcmre" as involous

|

|
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In making this ruling, I recognize that Mr. Tetrick will be granted a license
while other candidates, with scores between 79.5% and 80.0%, were denied
a license. NUREG-1021, " Operator Licensing Examiner Standards," sets
forth that "80% of the questions must be correctly answered." Motion for
Reconsideration at 5. Only recently, the Staff has amended its NUREG to require
a passing score of "80.00" percent, changing the number of significant digits in
the NUREG itself from a whole percentage to 1/100th of a percentage point.
Motion for Reconsideration, attached Supplemental Affidavit of Brian Hughes at
5, 10. At the time that Mr. Tetrick took his examination, the revised NUREG
was not in effect and there was no published guidance, other than the NUREG
itself, concerning the number of significant digits in an examination score or
how a score should be rounded. I find, as the Staff suggests, that the Staff
had an established practice -first presented to the Presiding Of]icer only after
issuance of the Initial Decision. The Staff practice, which may be inconsistent
with the use of a whole percentage point standard ("80%") in the NUREG,8 has
required applicants to achieve a grade of 80% or greater - without rounding off
-in order to pass their written examination. Staff Motion for Reconsideration
at 5; Supplemental Affidavit of Brian Hughes at 8-10.

If this matter seriously atfected public safety, I would consi(cr this evidentiary
point even though it is untimely. See Midland, supra. However, I have no reason
to believe that a 0.41% difference in the score of a candidate on one portion

| of his examination is a valid reason for concern that his performance will be

| inadequate.

This decision also will have little effect on the Staff's use of a uniform passing
,

grade, it is necessary to establish and consistently apply a passing grade for '

i examinations, and the Staff has clarified the precise passing grade by amending
! the NUREG. Candidates whose scores fall even a fraction of a point below
| the passing grade should fail, even though they are not measurably inferior to
| candidates who pass by a fraction of a point. In this case, I have not decided the

| merits of the Staff argument about the interpretation of "80%" in a NUREG that I

is no longer current. My decision is based on the untimeliness of the argument
| and does not affect future cases. There is no reason to suspect a substantial
| negative effect on public safety because Mr. Tetrick had a written examination

|
score of 79.59%, rounded off to 80% through a permissible interpretation of the

| language of the applicable version of NUREG-1021. I am confident that Mr.
'

Tetrick, who has capably and respectfully conducted himself in this proceeding,
will continue to improve his skills and that he will not permit his marginal score

I

l 3 There is a strong presumpunn that the plain language of a statute or, t y analogy, of regu'atory guidance expresses
! the intent of its drafters Ardestam y ins. I12 S. C $l5. I16 L Ed 2d 496 (1991L h is appropnate to kx>k to

an exinnsic aid such as staff practice, only if the language of the regulatory guidance is unclear or of us apparent
clanry leads to absurd results. Blue Cross and Blue sherld of Alahuna v Wert:. 913 F 2d 1544.1548, reh's
demed. 921 F.2d 283 (19901

132 1

|

,



- _ _ . _ . .. .-- . . - .

I

| l

| !
|

; on the written examination to interfere with his being an outstanding Senior
| Reactor Operator.

ORDER

l
For all the foregoing reasons and upon consideration of the entire record in i

this matter, it is, this 27th day of March 1997, ORDERED that:
I, The "NRC Staff's Motion for Reconsideration," March 10,1997, is,

'

denied. 1

2. 'Ihe "NRC Staff's Request for Issuance of an Order Staying the Ef- I

fectiveness of the Presiding Officer's Initial Decision (LBP-97-2)," March 10, l
1997, is denied. )

3. The Staff of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission may issue to Mr.
Ralph L. Tetrick a Senior Reactor Operator License for Turkey Point Nuclear
Generating Plant Units 3 and 4.

4. Because of the issuance of housekeeping stays in this case, March 27,
J1997, shall be considered the date of issuance of the initial Decision (LBP-97-
|

2) for the purpose of calculating parties' rights and obhgations concermng an
appeal.

|
5. Pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 5 2.1251, this Initial Decision constitutes the final

,'action of the Commission thirty (30) days after March 27, 1997, unless any
party petitions for Commission review in accordance with section 2.786 or the |
Commission takes review of the Decision sua sponte. If there is no petition for !
review, the date on which this decision will become final is Monday, April 28, i

1997. |

6. Pursuant to 10 C.F.R. s 2.786, a petition for review must be filed !
within fifteen (15) days after service of this Memorandum and Order, which I

is considered served on the date it is mailed, pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 9 2.712(e).
Ilowever, since service of this Decision is by mail, five days shall be added to
the prescribed period of response, pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 9 2.710, which governs
the computation of time. Consequently, the date the petition for review must be
served is Wednesday, April 16,1997. Service of the petition for review must,

| pursuant to this Order, be made by express mail.
'

7. A petition for review and a response to a petition for review must meet
the requirements of 10 C.F.R. Q 2.786.

8. If a petition for review is filed, the answer must be filed within 10 days.
Since the petition for review shall be filed by express mail, two days shall be
added to the period of response pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 6 2.710, which governs
the computation of time. Consequently, the date the answer must be served is

|
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Monday, April 28,1997. Service of the answer must, pursuant to this Order, be 1

| made by express mail. |
1

.

Peter B. Bloch, Presiding Officer
ADMINISTRATIVE JUDGE

j

Rockville, Maryland
i
i

,

i

!
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Cite as 45 NRC 135 (1997) DD-97 5 i
1

I

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA I

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION i
,

n,

]

')OFFICE OF NUCLEAR REACTOR REGULATION
|

;

Samuel J. Collins, Director
.

I

in the Matter of

:

CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY Docket Nos. 50-255

(Palisades Nuclear Plant) 72-7 |
i

ENTERGY OPERATIONS,INC. Docket Nos. 50-313 - ;

|(Arkansas Nuclear One, Units 1 50-368

and 2) 72-13 j
|
'

WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER Docket Nos. 50-266
| COMPANY 50-301

(Point Beach Nuclear Plant,' 72-5 |

Units 1 and 2) March 4,1997,

'

,

!The Director of the Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation denies the request
| by Petitioner Fawn Shillinglaw, filed pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 5 2.2%, that the NRC

take action to prohibit loading of VSC-24 casks at any nuclear site until the
multiassembly scaled basket #4 at the Palisades nuclear plant has been unloaded )
and the experience evaluated for potential safe:y improvements. The Director
concludes that the NRC will not permit unloading of any casks until it obtains I

reasonable assurance, through a variety of means, of each licensee's ability to j
do so safely, and therefore need not suspend any licensee's use of tiie general j

license for dry cask storag: until the multiassembly sealed basket at Palisades i
I has been unloaded. ;

!

I
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i>iRECTOR'S DECISION UNDER 10 C.F.R. N 2.206

I. INTRODUCTION

On November 17, 1995, Ms. Fawn Shillinglaw (Petitior.er) hied a petition
,

pursuant to section 2.206 of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regidations (10 j
C.F.R. 6 ?.206) requesting that the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC)
take action to prohibit loading of VSC-24 casks at any nuclear site until the
multiassembly sealed basket (MSB) #4 at the Palisades plant has been unloaded
and the experience evaluated for potential safety improvements. In addition to
Consumers Power Company, the Licensee for Palisades, other licensees that use
the VSC-24 cask system are Wisconsin Electric Power Company at its Point :

Beach Nuclear Plant, Units I and 2, and Entergy Operations, Inc., at Arkansas j
Nuclear One, Units I and 2. I

'

ne petition has been referred to me pursuant to section 2.206. He NRC
letter to the Petitioner dated January 18, 1996, acknowledged receipt of the
petition. Notice of receipt was published in the Federal Reginer on January 25,
1996 (61 Fed. Reg. 2269). I

On the basis of the NRC Staff's evaluation of the issues and for the reasons
given below, the Petitioner's request is denied. j

II. BACKGROUND
l

NRC regulations contain a general license that authorizes nuclear power plants |
licensed by the NRC to store spent nuclear fuel at the reactoi site in storage casks
approved by the NRC. (See 10 C.F.R. Part 72, Subpart K.) In regard to dry cask
storage of spent nuclear fuel at Palisades, Point Beach, nd Arkansas Nuclear
One, the Licensees opted to use the VSC-24 Cask Storage System designed by
Sierra Nuclear Corporation. The VSC-24 Cask Storage System was added to the
list of NRC-certified casks in May 1993 (58 Fed. Reg.17,948). The associated
certificate of compliance, Certificate No.1007, specifies the conditions for use
of VSC-24 casks under the general license provisions of Part 72. Section 1.1.2,
" Operating Procedures," in the certificate of compliance for the VSC-24 casks
requires that licensees p epare an operating procedure related to cask unloading.
Specifically, the condition states:

Wrinen operating procedures shall be prepared for task handhng, loading, movenrnt.
surveillance. and nuuntenance. The operating proceduru suggested genencally in the SAR
lsafety analysis report] are considered appropnate, as discussed in Secuon I t 0 of the SER
lsafety evaluation reportl. and shotald provide the basis for the user's written operating
procedures. The followmg addit onal written procedures shall also be dedoped as part of

3the user operaung procextures:
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1. A procedure shall be developed for cask unloading, assuming damaged fuel. If fuel
needs to be removed from the multi-assembly scaled basket (MSB), either at the end

of service hfe or for inspection after an accident, precautions must be taken agamst '

the potential for the presence of oxidized fuel and to prevent radiological exposure
to personnel during this operation. This activiry can be achieved by the use of the '

S '^ valves, which permit a determination of the atmosphere a hin the MSB
before the removal of the structural and shield hds. If the atmosphere wittun the ;
MSB is hehum, then operations should proceed normally, with fuel removal, either
via the transfer cask or in the pool. However, if air is present within the MSB,
then appropriate filters should be in place to permi zhe flushu.g of any potential
airborne radioactise particulate from the MSB, via the Swagelok valves. This action

| wi!! protect both personnel and the operations area from potential contanunation.

| For the accident case, personnel protection in the form of respirators or supplied
air should be considered m accordance with the licensee's Radiation Protecnon'

Program.
1

I

In July 1994, the Licensee for Palisades discovered radiographic indications
; of possible defects in a weld in MSB #4. MSB #4 had been loaded with
| spent fuel earlier that month and placed inside a ventilated concrete cask on the

independent spent fuel storage installation (ISFSI) storage pad. The Licensee
evaluated the flaw indications and determined that the MSB continued to meet its
design tasis and was capable of safely storing spent fuel for the duration of the
certificate (20 years). Nevertheless, the Licensee stated that MSB #4 would be

| unloaded to support additional inspections and evaluations related to its future
use,' In preparation for the unloading of MSB #4, the Licensee reviewed the
unloading procedure issued in May 1993 (Revision 0) and identified several
technical deficiencies. A revision of the unloading procedure (Revision 1) was,

'

subsequently developed to resolve the identified technical deficiencies. The
revised unloading procedure is the subject of an ongoing NRC inspection.2

Through inspections at Palisades and other facilities, the NRC Staff identi-
fied a number of concerns regarding licensees' procedures for unloading spent
fuel from dry storage casks. The NRC Staff identified examples of procedural

. - _ .

3 The unkmdmg of MSB #4 was onginally planned for sever f months after the &scovery of the radmgraphic
mecauons of possible weld defects in July 1994. However, sne unloa&ng hea %en delayed several times and m

'its lener of January 17, 1997, the Ucensee informed the NRC staff that the unloadmg has been postponed unul
the fuel m MSB #4 can be reloaded into a ceru6ed storage and transportauon cask. The Utensee aho in&cated
it intends to pursue developnwnt and hcensmg of such a cask, has schened and received bids from venans, and

lans to award a contract before the end of the 6rst quarter of 1997-
In regard to the onginal (Revision 0) unloa&ng pocedure at Palisades. the NRC Stah concluded that, had the

bcensee anempted to unload a cask usmg the ongmal unloading procedure, the t.icensee would have needed
to suspend acuvines at one or more times dunng the unloadmg process in order to implement revisions to the
procedure. The NRC Staff found that this was a violauen of requirernents that all acuviues affecung quahty
be presenbed by procedures appropnate for the circumstances and that procedures are reywwed for aUquacy.
However. given the hnuted safety sigiu6cance of the procedural dencwncies and the fact that the Ucensee idenuhed
and corrected the dc6ciencies the NRC dnposiooned the violanon as a Non-Cned Violation in accordance wnh
the NRC Enforcement Pohcy. (See NRC laspecuon Report 54 255/96014 and DirectorN Decision DD 97-1,4:
NRC 33 (1997L)
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| inadequacies and quality assurance shortcomings experienced during preopera-

| tional tests and actual cask loading operations at several facilities. In addition,
| the Staff observed that some unloading procedures implemented by licensees ne-

glected to consider contingencies and assumptions on possible fuel degradation,
gas sampling technie'ies, cask design issues, radiation protectir n requirements,

,

i and the thermal-hydraulic behavior of a cask during the process of cooling and
I filling it with water from the spent fuel pool. To address these concerns, the

following item titled " Cask Loading and Unloading," was included in the NRC
dry cask storage action plan implemented in July 1995.)

Issue: Cask Loading and Unloading

[ As licensees have implenrnted their ISFSI plans. several issues hase been idenu edr

| related to the loading and unloading of casks. Loadmg issues have centered on
procedural inadequacies and quality assurance shortcomings. The unloading procedures
developed by beensees tend to be simphstic. This has resulted in neglecting to consider
contingencies and assumptions on failed fuel, air w.mphng techniques, disassembly
requirenrnts, design problems, and radiation protection quirements. The importance
of these procedures should be emphasized to heensees, ar.d technical issues related to
unloadmg problems resolved. This issue should also be addressed for shipping casks.

The NRC action plan developed for dry cask storage was formulated to
manage the resolution of a variety of technical and process issues associated
with the expanding use of that technology for the storage of spent nuclear fuel.
The item related to the loading and unloading of dry storage casks was added to
the action plan, in part, to ensure that the importance of the utiloading procedures
was emphasized to licensees and technical issues related to unloading problems
were resolved.

To implement the plan, the NRC Staff formed a working group to identify
issues associated with loading and unloading processes for dry storage casks
and to propose means of informing the industry and the NRC Staff of those
issues. The working group considered industry experiences, concerns identified '

during reviews and inspections, and other issues related to loading and unloading
proceduret. The working group completed its reviews in April 1996. He ;

concerns related to unloading procedures reviewed by the working group were j
found to involve either (1) isolated occurrences that had been adequately resolved !

by site-specific corrective actions or (2) generic issues that were addressed I
by incorporating remedial measures into ongoing Staff actisities, such as the
preparation of revised inspection procedures or other guidance documents.

I Action plans are used by the NRC Staff to manage the resolution of signihcant genene issues Such plans
are prepared when the anticipated resources that wiH be required to resolve genene or potennally genenc issues
exceed certain thresholds or when the NRC staff deternunes that an acnon plan would improve ses efficiency and
effecoveness
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( In May 1996, an event occurred at the Point Beach plant involving the
ignition of hydrogen gas during the loading of a VSC-24 cask.4 Completion
of the NRC inspection of the revised unloading procedure for P asades was
postponed following the event at Point Beach in order to allow licensees and
the NRC Staff to identify the cause of the hydrogen ignition and implement,

| appropriate corrective actions. Following the event, the NRC issued confirmatory |

| action letters (CALs) to those licensees using or planning to use VSC-24
| casks for the storage of spent nuclear fuel (i.e, Licensees for Point Beach,
! Palisades, and Arkansas Nuclear One). The CALs documented the Licensees'

commitments not to load or unload a VSC-24 ca.sk without resolution of material

I compatibility issues identified in NRC Bulletin 96-04, " Chemical, Galvanic,
'

or Other Reactions in Spent Fuel Storage and Transportation Casks," and
subsequent confirmation of corrective actions by the NRC. 1

On December 3,1996, the NRC Staff informed the Licensee for Arkansas
Nuclear One that it had completed its reviews and inspections associated ,

| with that facility and found that the Licensee had satisfactorily completed the '

commitments documented in the CAL. Shortly thereafter, the Licensee initiated ;
i cask-loadir.g activities. He review of responses to the bulletin related to

Palisades and Point Beach is ongoing and cask operations at those facilities
continue to be limited by the Licensees * commitments described in CALs.

111. DISCUSSION

In support of the Petitioner's request that VSC-24 casks not be loaded until
MSB #4 at Palisades has been unloaded and the unloading process has been
evaluated, the Petitioner cites the action plan prepared by the NRC Staff that
included the Staff's observation that some unloading procedures developed by
licensees tended to be simplistic. The Petitioner asserts that because problems
are discovered through experience, the proper way to unload casks will not I

be known until a cask is actually unloaded. The Petitioner also claims that I

the unloading procedures should not be left to the Licensees to develop and
implement but should be the subject of detailed NRC evaluations.

ne NRC Staff's concerns about the quality of Licensees' unloading pro-
,

cedures led it to include the issue in the dry cask storage action plan. ne j

action plan provided a framework for the identification and resolution of various j
technical and administrative issues related to the use of dry storage casks. The
previously mentioned actions taken by the NRC Staff and Licensees adequately

'On May 28, IW6. a hydrogen gas igninon occuned dunng the welding of the shield hd on a VSC-24 can al i

the Pornt Beach Nuclear Plant. The hydrogen was torned by a chenucal rescuon between a zinc-based coanng I

(Carbo Zanc 11) and the borated water an the spent fuel pool |

I
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resolved the identified issues pertaining to cask unloading procedures. In the
specific case of the unloading procedure at Palisades, the Licensee's revised
procedure addressed many of the generic Staff activities on cask unloading and
is currently the subject of a thorough NRC inspection that will be completed in
the near future.

|
To fulfill some of the goals included in the action plan, the NRC Staff has

! cmphasized the importance of unloading procedures and shared observations

| with licensees using or considering dry cask storage during opportunities such

| as the Spent Fuel Storage and Transportation Workshop held in May 1996
| and meetings with individual licensees. On the basis that these discussions
i with the industry and other Staff actions had conveyed important operating

experiences to NRC licensees, the Staff deferred issuance of an NRC information
notice on the subject of loading and unloading of dry storage casks. The Staff
revised inspection procedures to specifically instruct NRC inspectors to review
unloading procedures developed by licensees and to identify those issues that
warrant particular attention. Guidance included in NRC Inspection ProceNre
60855, " Operation of an ISFSI," issued February 1,1996, states:

.

Ibr unloading actnities, anention should be paid to how the licensee has prepared to deal
wnh the poter<ial hazards associated with that task Some potential issues may include:
the radiation exposure associated with drawing and analyzing a sample of the canister's
potentially radioactne atmosphere, steam flashing and pressure control as water is adJed
to the hot canister, and filtenng or scrubbing the hot steam / gas mixture sented from the
camster, as it is filled with water.

Similar guidance was included in NUREG-1536, " Standard Review Plan for
Dry Cask Storage Systems, Draft Report for Comment," issued in February
1996 and will be included in the final version of the standard review plan that
is currently being prepared. The revised guidance documents ensure that recent '

and future reviews will address the adequacy of unloading procedures developed
by licensees.

The NRC Staff also reviewed the inspection history for existing ISFSIs to
determine if unloading procedures were reviewed with due consideration given
to the potential complications that may arise during the unloading process.
The NRC Staff performed audits or inspections of those licensee programs for
which the inspection record did not document whether the unloading procedu.es
adequately addressed the major issues included in the action plan. In regard to
the users of the VSC-24 cask system, inspections of unloading procedures at -

Arkansas Nuclear One (NRC Inspection Report 50-313/96-16, 50-368/96-16,
72-13/96-01 and Notice of Violation, dated .luly 31, 1996) and Point Beach
(NRC Inspection Report 50-266/95011, 50-301/95011, dated November 15,
1995) considered the concerns included in the NRC action plan.
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As previously mentioned, the revised unloading procedure at Palisades is the i

subject of an ongoing inspection, completion of which was delayed as a result of *

the hydrogen ignition event at Point Beach. The NRC inspection of the revised
unloading procedure at Palisades is being coordinated with the Staff's review of
the Licensee'e resnonse to NRC Bulletin 96-04 and is expected to be completed
in the near future, notwithstanding the Licensee's decision to postpone unloading
MSB #4 pending the availability of a certified storage and transportation cask.'

*

Further, the NRC has committed to state officials and members of the public
that the exit meeting for the inspection of the revised unloading procedure at
Palisades will be open to the public, the meeting will be noticed sufficiently in

'
advance to allow interested parties to attend, and the NRC Staff will allocate

,
time to discuss issues with the public following the meeting with the Licensee.

! The NRC Staff agrees with the Petitioner that learning from experience is an
'

essential part of improving the safety of nuclear power plant activities, including
'

, those associated with dry cask storage of spent nuclear fuel. This principle
| is reflected in the regulatory requirements pertaining to preoperational testing

of dry cask storage activities, as well as various provisions of NRC-approved,

| quality assurance programs. The issuance of Bulletin 96M and the CALs for !

| licensees using VSC-24 casks is another example of the NRC Staff's efforts to
I

ensure that applicable operating experience is incorporated into procedures at
facilities licensed by the NRC, In this case, the licensees using the VSC-24 cask
revised procedures to address the technical concems identified after the event at

|
Point Beach and agreed to defer cask operations pending the NRC's review of
responses to the bulletin and confirmation of corrective actions.

As previously mentioned, the Licensee for Arkansas Nuclear One loaded ,

VSC-24 casks following the NRC Staff's determination that the Licensee had
satisfactorily completed the commitments documented in the CAL. On the basis
of reviews and inspections performed to verify corrective actions associated with '

the bulletin, in combination with reviews performed for cask certification and
previous inspections of preoperational testing and other aspects of the Licensce's
dry cask storage program, the NRC Staff determined that the Licensee for
Arkansas Nuclear One could perform either cask loading or unloading operations
without undue risk to the health and safety of the public or its own personnel.
The NRC Staff, through reviews and inspections to verify corrective actions
associated with NRC Bulletin 96-04, must have confidence in the procedores
implemented by the Licensee for Point Beach before the NP.C permits that
Licensee to resume loading or unloading of VSC-24 casks. The Staff must also
obtain the necessary confidence that the Licensee for Palisades has implemented j

The Licensee for Pahsades responded to NRC Bulieun 96 04 by letters dated August 19 and Nmember 12.1996 I5

The NRC staff is awamng the tiensee's response to a request for informauon that was usued on rrbruary 12. i
1997. |

l,
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the corrective actions related to NRC Bulletin 96-N as well as the issues
included in the NRC action plan before permitting the Licensee to resume

| loading or unloading VSC-24 casks. ;

Thus, only after resolution of the issues identified in NRC Bulletin 96-04
and other questions t at may arise during the inspections of 'he Licensecs' ;h

revised procedures at Point Beach and Palisades, will the NRC permit them
to unload casks. As part of its review, the NRC Staff will consider matters ;|

I such as the dry-run exercises hcensees performed to verify key aspects of |

unloading procedures. as well as licensees' actual experience in the loading and
unloading of transportation casks, loading of storage casks, handling of spent
fuel assemblics under various conditions, and performing relevant maintenance
and engineering activities associated with reactor facilities. Given that the
NRC Staff will not permit unloading of any casks unless it obtains reasonable
assurance of each licensce's ability to do so safely, the NRC does not have
reason to require unloading of MSB #4 at Palisades before allowing resumption
of normal activities under the general licenses at Arkansas Nuclear One, Point
Beach, or Palisades.

The Petitioner's request is, therefore, denied.

IV. CONCLUSION

The Petitioner requested that the NRC prohibit loading of VSC-24 casks at
any nuclear site until MSB #4 at the Palisades plant has been unloaded and the
experience evaluated for potential safety concerns. Each of the claims by the
Petitioner has been reviewed. I conclude that, for the reasons discussed above,

| no adequate basis exists for granting Petitioner's request for suspension of the
licensecs' use of the general licenses for dry cask storage of spent nuclear fuel at

| Palisades, Point Beach, or Arkansas Nuclear One until the MSB at Palisades has

been unloaded and the experience evaluated for potential safety improvements.
A copy of this Decision will be filed with the Secretary of the Commission

for the Commission to review in accordance with 10 C.F.R. 6 2.206(c).
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As provided by this regulation, this Decision will constitute the final action
of the Commission 25 days after issuance, unless the Commission, on its own
motion, institutes a review of the decision within that time.

FOR TIIE NUCLEAR
REGULATORY COMMISSION

l

Samuel J. Collins, Director
Office of Nuclear Reactor

| Regulation
|

| Dated at Rockville, Maryland,
| this 4th day of March 1997.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA I
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

i

OFFICE OF NUCLEAR REACTOR REGULATION '

Frank J. Miragtla, Jr., Acting Director

in the Matter of - Docket Nos. 50-321
'

50-366
50-424 !

50-425

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, et al. '

(Vogtle Electric Generating Plant,
Units 1 and 2; Hatch Nuclear Plant,

! Units 1 and 2) March 18,1997
,

The Acting Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation, has granted in
part and denied in part a petition filed by Michael D. Kohn, Esquire, on behalf of ;

Messrs. Marvin B. Hobby and Allen L. Mosbaugh requesting action regarding i
the Vogtle and Hatch nuclear facilities operated by Georgia Power Company and
allegedly by the Southern Nuclear Operating Company (SONOPCO or Southern -

Nuclear). The petition raised concerns about the managen..nt practices of GPC
and Southern Nuclear with respect to operation of the facilities, treatment of :

employees who raise concerns, provision of information to the NRC, and alleged |

; false testimony before the Department of Labor. Petitioners requested the NRC
{

[ to take immediate steps to determine if GPC's current management has the )
requisite character, competence, fundamental trustworthiness, and commitment .i

to safety to continue operating a nuclear facility. j
Some concerns raised by the petition were partially substantiated. Violations i

of regulatory requirements occurred. The petition was granted to the extent that: '

the NRC issued three Notices of Violation and civil penalties to GPC for certain
violations, the NRC issued letters to GPC (and GPC and SONOPCO employees)
regarding the requirements of 10 C.F.R. 56 50.7 and 50.9, the license transfer'

amendment proceeding evaluated many of the concerns, and the license transfer
amendments issued for the facilities were conditioned to address concerns about

1 -
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management. The petition was denied to the extent that the Acting Director
determined that no unauthorized transfer of the Vogtle operating licenses has
occurred, and concluded that none of the issues call into question the Licensee's
character, competence, fundamental trustworthiness, or commitment to safety in
the operation of its nuclear facilities. Therefore, further action with respect to
the issues raised in the petition was denied.

ATOMIC ENERGY ACT: LICENSING STANDARDS

'lhe general standard for integrity is whether there is reasonable assurance
that the licensee has sufficient character to operate the plant in a manner

| consistent with public health and safety and applicable NRC requirements. The
| Commission may consider the acts of the licensee (and its employees) that have

a rational connection to safe operation of a nuclear power plant.
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| DIRECTOR'S DECISION UNDER 10 C.F.R. 6 2.20 i

: ,

4 1. INTRODUCTION
i

j ' This is the final Director's Decision on the petition of Messrs. Marvin B. !
| Hobby 'and Allen L. Mosbaugh (Petitioners) dated September 11,1990, as
j supplemented October 1,1990, and July 8.1991, pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 6 2.2% |

(petition). - In CLI-93-15, 38 NRC 1 (1993), the Commission vacated and I.

i remanded a partial decision on the petition. DD-93-8, 37 NRC 314 (1993), |

_ dated April 23. 1993, and directed that the NRC Staff consider the outcome )
4

{ of a pending license transfer proceeding on the Vogtle facility before acting
|

j on the petition, due to the overlap in issues. After closure of the evidentiary '),

[ record and before issuance of a decision the Licensing Board terminated the |
| Vogtle license transfer proceeding based upon a settlement agreement between |
4 Georgia Power Company (GPC or the Licensee) and the sole intervenor, Mr.

Mosbaugh. Consistent with the Commission's guidance in CL1-93-15, this
Director's Decision addresses the matters considered in the partial Director's

*
Decision and the balance of the petition in light of the information disclosed in

i'

the license transfer amendments proceeding, in NRC inspections, ir.ve.stigations,
; and enforcement actions, and decisions by the Department of Labor.

1
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Although Mr. Mosbaugh has withdrawn his interest in the section 2.206
petition,' Mr. Hobby's request is still pending before the NRC. Inasmuch as the
petition was jointly filed by Messrs. Mosbaugh and Hobby and it is difficult to
segregate their concerns, this Director's Decision addresses all matters raised in
the petition, as supplemented by the hearing record.:

|

IL BACKGROUND

A. NRC Staff and Commission Action on the Petition

On September 11, 1990. Michael D. Kohn, Esquire, on behalf of Messrs.
Hobby and Mosbaugh, filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission,

(NRC) a " Request for Proceedings and Imposition of Civil Penalties for Im-"

properly Transferring Control of Georgia Power Company's Licenses to the
SONOPCO Project and for the Unsafe and improper Operation of Georgia,

Power Company Licensed Facilities" (petition). The Petitioners were formerly;

employed by GPC, which operates and is part owner of the Vogtle Electric
Generating Plant and the Hatch Nuclear Plant. The petition was referred to
the Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation (NRR), for the preparation
of a Director's Decision in accordance with section 2.206. %c NRC received
exhibits to support the petition on September 21,1990, and a supplement to the
petition on October 1,1990.

! De Petitioners made a number of allegations concerning the management 1'
Iof the GPC nuclear facilities.) Specifically, the Petitioners alleged that (1)

GPC illegally transferred its operating licenses to Southern Nuclear Operating
,

Company (SONOPCO);4 (2) GPC knowingly made misrepresentations in its ;

response to concerns of a Commissioner about the chain of command for the
Vogtle facility; (3) GPC made intentional false statements to the NRC about
the reliability of a diesel generator (DG) whose failure had resulted in a Site
Area Emergency at Vogtle; (4) a GPC executive submitted perjured testimony
during a U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) proceeding under section 210 of the
Energy Reorganization Act; (5) GPC repeatedly abused Technical Specification

3 By letter dated August 2,1996. Mr Mosbaugh withdrew from the 2.206 petioon. including "all requests
for further proceedings and imposioon of penalues relatmg to Georgia Power Company and Southern Nuclear I

,

open.ang Company, as well as their directors, ofheers, employees. and affihates " See w *hdrawal of Allen L
'

Mosbaugh, dated August 2.1996.
2 Smce this Director's Decision pnmanly addresses events that occurred pnor to Mr. Mosbaugh's withdrawal,

the term * Peut oners" refers to both he and Mr Hobby (However, the term "Intervenur" refers only ic Mr.
Mosbaugh).

3 Pentioners' concerns about Southern Nuclear and GPC managenrnt pracuces are pnnanly based on Vogtle-
specihe informauon. The Peuuoners offered no allegations based on observauons of operations at the Hatch
facihry

4 !!efore its incorporanon on January 1,1991, Southern Nuclear operatmg Company was knima as "soNoPCO
Pro cet_" Afterwards, it was commonly referred to as " Southern Nuclear "
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(TS) 3.0.3 at the Vogtle facility; (6) GPC repeatedly and willfully violated TS
at the Vogtle facility; (7) GPC repeatedly concealed safeguards problems from
the NRC;(8) GPC operated radioactive waste systems and facilities at Vogtle in
gross violation of NRC requirements; (9) GPC routinely used nonconservative

'

and questionable management practices at its nElear facilities: and (10) GPC
retaliated against managers who made their regulatory concerns known to GPC
or SONOPCO management? 'l t Petitioners requested that the NRC institute
proceedings and take swift an, amediate action ba. sed on these allegations.

On October 23, 1990, Dr. 'n aomas E. Murley, who was then Director of
NRR, acknowledged receipt of the petition and concluded that no immediate
action was necessary regarding these matters. This determination was based on
completed and continuing NRC inspections and investigations of the Licensee,
particularly those related to the operation of the Vogtle facility.

On libruary 28, 1991, the NRC requested the Licensee to respond to the
petition. The Licensee responded on April 1,1991 (response).

On July 8,1991, the Petitioners submitted to the NRC " Amendments to
Petitioners Marvin Hobby's and Allen Mosbaugh's September 11,1990 Petition;
and Response to Georgia Power Company's April 1,1991 Submission by Its
Executive Vice President, Mr. R.P. Mcdonald"(suppleraent). In the supplement,
the Petitioners alleged that GPC's Executive Vice President (1) made material
false statements in GPC's April 1,1991 submittal to the NRC regarding the
participants in an April 19,1990 telephone conference call. and that the submittal
attempts to cover up the improper conduct by shifting blame to Petitioner
Mosbaugh, and (2) made false statements to the NRC at a transcribed meeting on
January 11,1991, discussing the formation and operation of Southern Nuclear.
The supplement also contained a request for a variety of relief, ini ading that '

the NRC take immediate steps to determine if GPC's current management has
the requisite character and competence to continue operating a nuclear facility.
On August 26,1991, Dr. Murley acknowledged receiving the supplement and
informed the Petitioners that no immediate action was required and that the |

specific issues raised in the supplement would be addressed in his Director's |
Decision. On August 22, 1991, the NRC requested the Licensee to respond
to the supplement. The Licensee submitted its response on October 3,1991 )
(supplemental response). '

On September 18, 1992, GPC filed an application to amend its licenses to
transfer to Southern Nuclear its authority to operate the Vogtle units.'In response
to notices of the proposed is uonce of amendments and opportunity to request a

$ euuoner Mosbaugh had mformed NRC's ofhce of Invesuganons (ob of some of these alleganons termningP

an January 1990
'Isy separate apphcanon daicd September 18.1992. GPC also requested beense amendnwnes to transfer operaung

authonry for tte Hatch facihty to Southern Nucles
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| hearing that were published in the FederalRegister (57 Fed. Reg. 47,127,47,135
| (Oct.14,1992)), Messrs. Mosbaugh and Hobby filed, on October 22,1992,a
! petition for hearing and leave to intervene. In a Memorandum and Order issued

| November 17,1992, the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board (Board) denied Mr.

| Hobby intervenor status for lack of standing. On February 18,1993 (LBP-93-5,

| 37 NRC 90,111 (1993)), the Board granted the intervention petition of Mr.
'

Mosbaugh (Intervenor) and consolidated issues raised in the petition into the
following single contention:

The hcense to operate the Vogtle Electric Generating plant, Units 1 and 2, t,hould not be
transferred to Southern Nuclear Operaung Company, Inc., because it lacks the requisite
character, cornpetence, and integnty, as well as the necessary candor, truthfulness, and
withngness to abide by regulatory requirements.

*Ihe admitted bases for the character and integrity contention were Inter-
venor's allegations that (1) GPC knowingly misled the NRC about who con-
trolled licensed activities at the Vogtle facility by omission or misstatements of
information (thus concealing a defacto transfer of control of the Vogtle facility
to SONOPCO Project) and (2) GPC knowingly provided inaccurate, incomplete,
or misicading information regarding diesel generator (DG) starts and reliability
in 1990 statements, as well as in April 1991 statements regarding the knowl-
edge and involvement of senior GPC officials with respect to the inaccurate
1990 DG information.7 LBP-93-5,37 NRC at 104-11; LBP-94-37,40 NRC 288
(1994) (partial summary disposition of illegal transfer issue); LBP-93-21, 38
NRC 143,148 (1993). Some of the issues raised by the petition, as supple-
mented, were also considered in this proceeding concerning GPC's application
to transfer authority to operate the Vogtle facility to Southern Nuclear (license
transfer amendments proceeding).

In a partial decision on the petition, dated April 23,1993, DD-93-8,37 NRC
314 (1993), vacated and remanded, CLI-93-15,38 NRC 1 (1993), the Director,
NRR, addressed each issue raised in the petition except for the allegations of
discrimination and perjured testimony that were pending before the Department

7
Wuh respect to the DG repwtang issue. Intervenw anuded to alleged fabehoods in GPC's Apnl 19.1990

tacensee Event Report 90-006 (LER) to the NRC (thal reponed a DG start count after the March 20.1990 Site
Area Emergency (sAE)) and a related 01 investiganon See Amendments to Petsuon to inicrvene and Request
for Heanng, daled December 9.1992 (Arnended Petitwn) at 15-16. 18-19. Intervenor also asserted that in GPC's
Apnl 1,1991 response to Intervenor's sechon 2 206 peuuon. Mr R Pamck Mcdonald. Execuuve Vice President-
Nuclear Operations. knowmgly subnutted false mformanon (1) concerning the parucipation of Mr. W. George
Hairston. Ill Senior Vice President-Nuclear operations,in developing the Apnl 19.1990t scensee Event Report
90-006 (LER); and (2) when GPC managers became aware of errors m the LER Amended Penuon at 16-19 In
the amended pention. Intervenor noted that these and other allegatsons were subrrutted to of beginmng in June
1990 snd were the subject of a seehon 2 206 petmon 6ied on September 11,1990, and supplenunted September
21 and october 1.1990. challenging the charncter, competence, and insegnty of GPC and the proposed transferee,
Southern Nuclear.
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of Labor * and the allegedly false GPC statements to the N'RC about the DG starts.
The NRC Staff determined that certain concerns raised by the Petitioners were
partially substantiated, and Notices of Violation and a civil penalty were issued
in recponse to these issues. The Director declined to take further action with
respect to the matters resolved and concluded that (1) there was no unauthorized
transfer of the Vogtle operating licenses. (2) GPC facilities "are now being
operated in accordance with NRC regulations and do not endanger the health

| and safety of the public," and (3) the information available as of that date
' did not " call into qu,.stion the Licensee's character, competence, fundamental

trustworthiness, and commitment to safety with respect to operation ofits nuclear
facilities." 37 NRC at 345.

On July 14, 1993, the Commission vacated and remanded to the NRC Staff
"those portions of the section 2.206 petition decided [in DD-93-8] for the
Staff's further evaluation and final decision in conjunction with the Staff's

| resolution of the other remaining matters in the petition and in light of the
'

outcome of the transfer proceeding." CLI-93-15,38 NRC at 3. The Commission
indicated that its decision was based on the " overlap and similarity of some
issues between the section 2.206 pe'!!ien and the transfer proceeding" which
warranted that "the Staff's final determination of the common issues should
take into account the L,. censing Board's findings and the outcome of the transfer
proceeding " The Commission further indicated that the common concern raised .

by the allegations that GPC or Southern Nuclear officers (and the corporate !
'organization responsible for operation of the llatch and Vogtle facilities) lack

integrity should not be addressed in a piecemeal fashior., bio detemiined in an i

integrated manner after consideration of the remaining matters in the petition |
and the outcc ne of the transfer proceeding. The Commission, however, did |
not express any view on the soundness of the NRC Staff's analysis of the
issues addressed in DD-93-8 and did not bar the NRC Staff from taking prompt
enforcement action at any time during the ongoing review of the matters raised
in the petition. Id. at 3-4. Inasmuch as the hearing record suppleinents issues
raised in the petition, and consistent with Commission guidance, these matters
are addressed as part of this Director's Decision.

B. DG Enforcement Actions

The NRC Office of Investigations (OI) documer.ted the results of its investi-
gation of the DG issues in a report on 01 Case No. 90-020R, dated December
17,1993 (OI Report). 01 found that some GPC officials had either deliberately,
or with careless disregard, submitted falsc or misleading information to the NRC

*Ma vm B HJb> .. %.va hur Co., dol Case No 90 LRA-30, Allen Mosbaerk v Georpa Power Co,
DOL Case Nos 91 ERA-001 and 91 ERA-Oli j
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during an April 9,1990 presentation and in a related April 9,1990 letter; in an
April 19,1990 LER; in a June 29,1990 cover letter to the revised LER; and in
an August 30,1990 letter regarding DG start-count information.

The NRC Staff evaluated Intervenor's allegations and information in the
01 Report and, on May 9,1994, issued a Notice of Viola' ion and Proposed
Imposition of Civil Penalties (NOV) and Demands for Information (DFIs) to
GPC and six GPC employees. After considering the GPC reply to the NOV,
and the GPC and individual responses to the DFIs, the NRC Staff issued
a Modified Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalties
(Modified NOV) on Itbruary 13,1995? In the Modified NOV, the NRC Staff
concluded, among other things, that subject to commitments made by GPC and

j Mr. George Bockhold (Vogtle General Manager during 1990), the NRC "has
;

| no present concerns with the character and integrity of GPC or the individ 'als !

| identified in Demands for Information." |
l

|
C. Licensing llearing

in January 1995, after completion of the discovery period concerning the

| illegal transfer issue, evidentiary sessions of the amendment proceeding on
! the proposed license transfer were held. Intervenor's case consisted of (1) his

own prefiled testimony; (2) the testimony of Messrs. Marvin Hobby, William

| Shipman (who in October 1988 was the Vogtle General Manager for Support
and became General Manager in January 1991). Fred D. Williams (GPC Vice
President of Bulk Power Markets); (3) excerpts of prior testimony (e.g., DOL

,

proceedings Hobby v. GPC and Enker and fuchko v. GPC), see Transcript (Tr.)!

10,134-66,10,170-99,2757-58; and (4) deposition excerpts. Evidence received
addfessed (1) control of daily nuclear operations; (2) the development and
implementation of nuclear policy decisions; (3) the employment, supervision,
and dismissal of nuclear personnel; and (4) responsibility for nuclear costs.

| The hearing was to determine whether GPC, either through omissions or
| misrepresentations, misled the NRC about who was in control of the Vogtle
| facility. LBP-94-37, supra.

| |

I

|

'The Nov (staff E.th.11-46) found GPC's falure (on Apnl 9. April 19, June 29. and August 30.1990) to|

i provide informauon to the NRC that was complete and accurate in all material respects as required by 10 C F.R.
! l 50 9 consututed a seventy tevel 11 problem and proposed a s200.000 cml penalty in response. GPC generally

admitted each violation except the violation regarding air quahry statements in the Apnl 9 letter, See GPC Reply
to NOV and Dris, daied July 31.1994 (Inicrvenor Exh.11-105) The Modified NoV (Staff Exh.11-51) withdrew
the violanon associated with mr quahty, but maintiuned that the remammg violanons consututed a seventy leci
!! problem GPC paid the civil penalty on M. arch 1.1995. See teuer from Mr. L Milhoan to Mr. C.K. McCoy.
dated March 13.1995 (Intervenor Exh Il-60). at i
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Hearings on the DG issues were held from April through September 1995,I

and generated a transcript record of over 12,500 pages, prefiled testimony of
over 35 witnesses, and nearly 600 exhibits.'"

He Board ruled that (1) the allegations in the NOV were important to
| the admitted contention and were within the scbpe of the license amendments

,

!

| proceeding, and (2) Intervenor could inquire as to whether GPC withheld
l pertinent facts from the NRC with respect to the DGs. LBP-94-15, 39 NRC
| 254, 255-56 (1994). The Board allowed evidence on whether GPC officials were
! willful or recklessly careless of the facts (as opposed to complete and accurate):

(1)in the April 9 letter statement that air quality was satisfactory;(2)in the April
9 letter statement that recently obtained high dewpoint readings resuhed from
faulty instrumentation; and (3) in other communications with the NRC regarding
high dewpoints." See Memorandum and Order (Summary Disposition: Air

| Quality), dated April 27,1995 (unpublished), at 6-9. '

Some of the issues raised in the section 2.206 petition were also heard during
the hearing to give Intervenor latitude in establishing that certain communica-

,

tions from GPC to the NRC were false and misleading and, circumstantially,
to show a pattern of deception and falsehood associated with the original rep-
resentations to the NRC. Memorandum and Order (M( tion to Strike Mosbaugh
Testimony), dated May 11,1995, at 4-6."

Intervenor's diiect case included his written testimony and cross-examination
of adverse witnesses (present and former employees of GPC). GPC's case in-
cluded the testimony of site and corporate tnanagement regarding the Vogtle fa-
ci!ity, including Messrs. R. Patrick Mcdonald (GPC Executive Vice President-
Nuclear Operations), W. George Hairston,111 (GPC Senior Vice President-
Nuclear Operations), C. Kenneth McCoy (GPC Vice President-Vogtle Project),

!

i

N lncluded among these exhibits were the transcnpis of audio tape recordings (and two audio tapes) secretly
made ty Mr. Moshaugh in February through August 1990 at the Vogtle sine Mr Mosbaugh gave of 277 au&o I
tape recor&ngs in connection with has allegauens. ol reiained 76 lapes. clung conversanons on 22 tapes in the el |
Report. The Mosbaugh tape recor&ngs were akin to a conternpuraneous record of some events related to maners

,

in the heanng. but some tape encerpts played in the courtroom contained numerous inausble pomons and the
content, coraert, and tone of the remarks recorded were disputed. e g Tape 58. dated 4/19S0 (Board Exh.11-12). ;
Unsuccessful or incomplete attempts to amve at agreements on tape transcnpas led to different versmns or some j
tape eransenpts being proffered by the parties j

H Mr. Mosbaugh4 air quahty allegauon asserted that Mr George Botkhold. Vogtle General Manager, debberately j
nusrepresented DG air quahty in the Apnl 9 letter by withholeng then recent (known) outef. tolerance DG control ,

air dewpoint rea&ngs. a4 well as ernmeously assertmg that high readings were due to faulty instruments and that '

air quahty was sausfactory of Report (Into venor Enh. IM9) at 95 of s.ibstantiated this and the other alleganons
concerning DG anfornutuon and concluded that Messrs George Bockhold. George llairston Kenneth McCoy (Vice
President-Vogtle Project) and Wilham Shipman (General Manager-Plant Support) debberately (or with careless
&sregard) had subnutted false and incomplete informanon to the NRC ol ed not substanuate however, that Mr
Mcdonald debberaiety provided false informanon to the NRC in the GPC response to Intervenor's secuon 2.206 I

peuuon. See of Report at 12. )
u These matters included the FAVA (a radwaste nucrofiltration system) and "Diluuon Valve" alleganons provided

to of pnor to the Marth 20.1990 Site Area Emergency and also rassed in the section 2.206 petsuon The techmcal
matters raised by the allegations were not adnutted mio the hcense eransfer procec&ng May 11 order at 7-8.
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I Boc(hold, John G. Aufdenkampe (GPC Manager of Technical Support), Jimmy
'

Paul Cash (a Unit Superintendent for the Vogtle facility and a degreed Senior
Reactor Operator), Georgie R. Frederick (Supervisor-Safety Audit and Engi-
neering Review)," and the testimony of two former NRC employees." The
NRC Staff witnesses were Messrs. David B. Matthews (NRR Project Director ;

for the Halen and Vogtle facilities from 1988 through 1995), Pierce H. Skinner
(Region 11 Section Chief of Reactor Projects since 1991), Darl S. Hood (NRR
Licensing Project Manager for the Vogtle facility from August 1990 through

i 1995), Edward B. Tomlinson (an NRR Senior Reactor Engineer for DGs and
supporting systems since 1981), Luis A. Reyes (Region 11 Director of Division

| ' Reactor Projects from 1987 to 1992, and Deputy Regional Administrator for :

Region 11 through 1997), and Roy P. Zimmerman (NRR Associate Director for
Projects since June 1994).

After proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law were filed in the pro-
ceeding," Mr. Mosbaugh and GPC filed ajoint motion requesting that the Board
dismiss the proceeding and refrain from issuing an Initial Decision. On August
19,1996, the Board issued a Memorandum and Order (LBP-96-16,44 NRC 59)
terminating the license amendments proceeding based on Mr. Mosbaugh's with-
drawal as the sole intervenor pursuant to a settlement agreement with GPC? In
LBP-96-16, the Board recognized that the Commission encourages settlements
and stated:

13 Anwng alw other witnesses that testined for GPC were Thomas V 3reene. Jr (Assistant General Manager-
Plant Suppon). Michael W. Horton (Manager-Engineenng support). H .y w. Makrs (Licensiog Engineer-Vogtle
Project). Thomas 5. Webb (Licetismg Engmeer-Vogtie ute). Kenny C. Stokes (a Semor System Engineer in the
rnyneenng Support Departnrnt with pnmary responubihty for the DGs). Lewis A Ward (Manager of Nuclear
Af untenance and Supporti. and W F. " Skip" Kitchens (Assistant General Manager 4)perations and Chairmam of

, Vogtle Plant Revew Board). and Mark Briney (an acting Instrumentation and Control (l&C) supenntendent
' f srch- Apnl 1990),

m 1990. Mr. Mihon D. Hunt was an NRC inspector, and Mr Richard A. Kendall was a rnember of the NRC
inuent lavestiganon Team (11T) |

" Georgia Power Company's Protiosed Findmgs of Fact and Conclusions of Law on Diesel Ge-nerator Repomn '

a
Issues, dated November 6.1995, intervenor's hnal Staiement of fact and Conclusions of law, dated November i

30,1995.NRC Staff Proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in the rurm of an lmual Decision. dated |

December 12.1995. Georgia Power Companv's Reply to intervenor's and the NRC Staffs Pn9med Fwimgs of
Fact and Conclusions of law. dated th: ember 22.1995
8" Although the settienent agreenent was not made avslable to the Board or NRC. both Mr. Mosbaugh and

'GPC assured the Board that nothing in the settienrns agreenent would prohibit. restnet. or otherwise discourage
Mr Mosbaugh fmm rassmg safety concerns to the NRC in the future. Mr Mosbaugh aho stated that all of his
safety tw regulatory issues had been presented to ttw NI C. Jome Motmn of Ternunanon dated August 2.1996,
at 10

Mr Mosbaugh also withdrew his complaint before dol On August 23.1996. a DOL Adnunistranve Review
Board issued a "Fmal Order Approving Seulenrni and Dnnussing Complamt" after reviewing the confidenual
settlement agreenrnt regardmg the discrmunanon suit of Mr. Mosbaugh (DOL Case Nos 91 ERA 1,91 ERA-II).
Andmg the agiecment 10 be "a fair, adequate and reasonable seulement of the complaints " On August 29,1996,
the DOL Adnunistranve law Judge (to whom the suit had been remanded by the Secretary of tabor on November
20.1991 for a deternunanon regardmg Mr. Mosbaugh's damages) took note of the Order by the Adnunstranve
Review Board and issued an " Order of Dismissal"
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We are satisfied. based on our analysis of the record, that the Staff has been an active guardian

of the public interest at Plant Vogtle and, to the extent that they may have not already done
so, that the Staff wdi take the record we have developed into account in exercismg its
contmuing authonry. See Notice of Violanon and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty
(NOV) and Demands for Information (DFI), May 9,1994. Modified Notice rJ Violation and
Proposed imposition of Civil Penahies. Rbruary 13,1995; Notice of Violatinn (Department
of Labor Case Nos. 90 ERA-30, and 91. ERA-01I) May 29,1996.

i
44 NRC at 66.

D, Standards for Character and Integrity

in reaching this decision on the character and integrity contention, I have '

considered the following Commission guidance and precedent. In Metropolitan
Edison Co. (Three Mile Island Nuclear Station, Unit 1), CLI 85-9, 21 NRC
1118, i136-37 (1985) (footnotes omitted), the Commission stated:

A generally apphcable standard for integrity is whether there is reasonable r ssurance thata

the Licensee has sufficient character to operate the plant in a manner consistent with the
public health and safety and applicable NRC requirements The Comm ssion in making
this determination may consider evidence regarding bcensee behavior [ including the acts
of licensee employees since all organizations carry out their actanties throt.gh individuals)
having a rational connection to the safe operation of a nuclear power plant. This does not
mean, however, that every act of licensee is relevant. Actions must have some reasonable
relationship to heensee's character, ic., its candor, truthfulness, willmgness to abide by
regulatory requirements, and acceptance of responsibihty to protect pubbe health and safety.
In addition, acts bearmF on character should not be considtred ir Luon The pattern of

,

hcensee's behavior. including corrective actions, should be considered.

i

in Housfon Lighting and Power Co. (South Texa.t Project, Units 1 and 2), CLI-
80-32,12 NRC 281,291 (1980), the Commission stated that j

|
[elither abdication of responsibihty or abdication of knowlege, whether at the construction
or operating phase, could form an mdependent and sufficient basis for revoking a license or
denying a hcense appbcation on grounds of lack of competence (i c., technical) or character
quahtication on the part of the hcensee or hcense applicant. 42 USC 2232a.

l
Licensee communications to the NRC, whether written or oral, must be l

complete and accurate as required by section 50.9. In promulgating section
50.9, the Commission emphasized that forthrightness in communications with
the NRC is essential if the NRC is to fulfill its responsibilities to ensure that
the use of radioactive material and operation of nuclear facilities are consistent
with public health and safety, Completeness and Accuracy of Information:
Final Rule and Statement of Policy, 52 Rd. Reg. 49,362 (Dec. 31,1987). A
determination of whether information is " complete and accurate in all material

.
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respects" is to be judged by whether information has a natural tendency or
capability to influence an agency decisionmaker and omissions are actionable to
the same extent as affirmative material false statements. 52 Fed. Reg. 49,363.,

'
hus, a statement is material if a reasonable Staff member should consider the
information in question in doing his job, but the NRC need not rely on a fake

j statement for it to be material. See Randall C. Orem D.O., CLI-93-14, 37
| NRC 423,427-28 (1993) (whether a statement induced the agency to grant an
i application has no bearing on materiality) and cases cited therein.
! The term " material false statement" (which was often used by Intervenor

in the license amendments proceeding) is limited "to situations where there is
an element of intent," i.e., egregious situations. 52 Fed. Reg. 49,365. He
Commission also explained that intent is also indicated by careless disregard as:

[T]he " concept of ' careless d:sregard' goes beyond simple neghgence, as the term has been
apphed to judicial decisions defining willful conduct as it has been applied by dds agency.
See, e g., Trans World Airknes. Inc. v. Thursron. 83 L Ed. 2d 523, 531 (1985); Reich
Geo-Physical. Inc., AU-851, 22 NRC 941, %2-63 (1985). ' Careless disregard' connotes
reckless regard or callous indifference toward's one's responsibiliues or the consequences
of one's actions."

52 Fed. Reg. at 49,365.
In light of the importance of licensee communications and their role in

enabling the NRC to discharge its responsibilities, this Director's Decision
examines whether GPC acted with candor and endeavored to ensure that
submissions to the NRC were accurate. See Virginia Electric and Power Co.
(North Anna Power Station Units I and 2), CL1-76-22,4 NRC 480,486,491
(1976)("nothing less than simple candor is sufficient"), aff'd sub nom. Virginia
Electric and Power Co. v. NRC. 571 F.2d 1289 (4th Cir.1978).

i
i

Ill. DISCUSSION |

A. Alleged Unsafe Operating Practices (Petition il111.5 .8)

The petition included several concerns regarding unsafe operating practices at
the Vogtle facility. These concerns were initially addressed in the vacated partial
Director's Decision (DD-93-8) and are presented below with supplementation
based on the license amendments hearing record and minor editing.

1. Alleged Routine Entering into " Motherhood" |
De Petitioners allege (see Petition i111.5) that GPC routinely threatens the I

safe operation of GPC's nuclear facilities by allowing them to enter TS 3.0.3,
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referred to in the petition as " motherhood." Specifically, the Petitioners state that
(1) GPC repeatedly allowed the Vogtle facility to enter TS 3.0.3 by rendering j

both trains of safety-related load sequencers for the DGs inoperable, and (2) |
GPC did not make the required notifications to the NRC when TS 3.0.3 was
entered. !

Vogtle TS 3.0.3 requires that. when a limiting condition for operation (LCO) j
is not met, except as provided in the associated action requirements, action shall i

be taken within I hour to place the unit in a mode in which the TS do not apply
by placing it in hot standby within the next 6 hours, in hot shutdown within I

the following 6 hours, and at least in cold shutdown within the subsequent 24
hours.

The NRC established TS 3.0.3 to ensure that the reactor plant is shut down in
a timely and orderly manner when the LCO in the TS for the specific component
or system is exceeded or when a condition exists that is not addressed by TS |
requirements. The Licensee has satisfied the TS if it performs the final action !

within the time specified in the TS. If the condition requiring entry into TS
3.0.3 is corrected before commencing or completing the shutdown, the Licensee
need not initiate a shutdown. or if a shutdown is already initiated, may end the
shutdown and return the plant to the previous conditicas. ,

in accordance with 10 C.F.R. s 50.72, Immediate Notification Requirernents |
for Operating Nuclear Power Reactor:;, licensees are required to make immediate 1

(i.e., within I or 4 hours, depending on the circumstances) reports to the NRC
of any declaration of an emergency class specified in the Emergency Plan, and
certain non-emergency events. Non-emergency events include such items as the
initiation of any nuclear plant shutdown required by the TS, any deviation from .

the TS authorized by 10 C.F.R. 6 50.54(x), any condition where the nuclear I

power plant (including its principal safety barriers) becomes seriously degraded,
and any natural phenomenon or other external condition that poses an actual
threat to the safety of the nuclear plant or significantly hampers site personnel
in the performance of duties necessary for the safe operation of the plant. In 10
C.F.R. 6 50.73, Licensee Event Report System, events are identified for which
written reports will be made to the NRC within 30 days. These events include
several of the events requiring immediate reports pursuant to section 50.72, plus
additional events such as any event or condition that alone could have prevented
the fulfillment of the safety function of certain structures or systems. The NRC's
notification and reporting regulations do not contain an explicit requirement that
an entry into TS 3.0.3, in ano of itself, be reported. L.icensees are required by
section 50.72 to notify the NRC within I hour of the initiation of any plant

,

shutdown required by the plant's TS. Thus, the NRC is promptly notified of |
entries into TS 3.0.3 if the plant initiates a shutdown as a result of the problem '

that caused entry into the TS. However, there is no requirement to notify the ;
'

NRC of entries into TS 3.0.3 if a shutdown is not initiated. The NRC Staff has
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no basis to conclude that the Licensee's activities constituted unsafe practices ;
|or that these activities indicated that the character of the Licensee, including
i

|
those GPC individuals employed by Southern Nucleat in conjunction with the
transfer of operating licenses to Southern Nuclear, is unsuitable for operating a
nuclear power plant. j

IRe Nm .naff has reviewed GPC's entry into TS 3.0.3 through various
inspections conducted by region-based inspectors and through the observations,

'

of the permanently assigned resident inspection staff and concludes that GPC
.

; does not routinely enter TS 3.0.3.
In Inspection Report 50-424, 425/90-19, January 11,1991, the NRC Staff

documented that GPC management indicated that actions for an orderly shut-
down would not be initiated until at least 3 hours after entry into TS 3.0.3. GPC

| management also indicated that it could perform an orderly, controlled shutdown
within I hour, if necessary. GPC interpreted the action statement of TS 3.0.3 to !

allow 7 hours to be in hot standby, and to accomplish this, the shift crew could
wait for at least 3 hours after entering the LCO before commencing a shutdown.
It was also GPC's position that no notifications to the NRC were required under
these circumstances. GPC's actions in this area did not differ significantly from
those of other licensees, except that GPC did not immediately notify the load
dispatcher" and did not provide written guidance to the operations personnel.
In Inspection Report 50-424, 425/90-19, the NRC Staff identified the lack of
immediate notification as a weakness. On February 28,1991, GPC responded to
this finding by providing written guidance for the operators to use upon entering
TS 3.0.3.l* The NRC Staff reviewed this guidance and, as noted in Inspection
Report 50-424,425/91-14 dated July 19,1991, found it acceptable.

He specific example identified by the Petitioners regardirig this issue con-
cerned GPC's practice in the area of safety related load sequencers for Vogtle's
DGs. The Petitioners claim that the Licensee failed to recognize that the loss of

| a load sequencer resulted in the entry into TS 3.0.3 and thus required notification
l of the NRC.

"The NRC con 6rned that, while GPC ed not follow the acnons recommended in Genene letter 87-09 6 e.
,

I nou6 canon of the kmd dispaicirt within the hrst hour and performance of a controlled shutdown throughout the
next 6 hours), the NRC could nnd no instance of GPC ever exceceng the 7-hour ume hnut to be in hot standby
H The Licensce's wn:cen guidance for TS 3 0.3 entry was i ssued as TS ClanficauenA which are addiuonal pages

that the Lacensee nuuntams with the TS in the main conin I room. The guidance provided that upon entry .a
TS 3 0 3. the Umt Shift Supervisor should evaluate plani cahhuons and fortnulate a course of acuon, inclueng
acuons to prepare for and complete a safe and controlled shi tdown in cases where a lugh degree of con 6dence
custs that the techmcal issues can be resolved or repairs nade promptly to restore component operabihty, an |

anunediate power reducuon is not advisable However, accons are to be taken so ensure that an orderly shutdown
will be completed within the allowable ome wtule rep.urs or attempts to resolve operabilary are under way Within
the hrst hour, nouhcauons to the load &spau-her and rnanagenent should be made if the condmon sull custs.

| power reducuon should begin no later than 4 hours mio the achon 0 e.,3 hours of the allowable ame remartung).
In those cases where it is apparent that resolunon of the condibon will not occur within the allowable time, an
orderly shutdown will begin immc&ately.
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Each unit at Vogtle has two Engineering Safety Feature Actuation Systems
(ESFASs) sequencers and both must be operable during Modes 1, 2, 3, and
4. NRC and GPC personnel determined that removing the load sequencers
from service could result in entering the LCO for TS 3.0.3 or in entering TS
Table 3.3-2, depending on which portion of the sequencer system was removed.
Some of the circuits weic meluded in Table 3.3-2, but the TS did not address
the remainder of the system. The Operations Department had historically linked
load sequencer outages to the emergency DG LCO of TS 3.8.1.1.b (78 hours
to hot standby). During the NRC's special team inspection documented in
Inspection Report 50-424,425/90-19, GPC determined that TS Table 3.3-2 and
TS 3.0.3 should have applied to sequencer outages. When this determination
was made, GPC informed the NRC Staff that it had not reviewed past work
orders for load sequencers.

At that time, the NRC Staff reviewed both the completed maintenance
work orders that were performed on the sequencers on Units I and 2 and the L

related surveillance tests by the Instrumentation and Control Engineering and
the Operations Departments. The NRC Staff found several instances where the
work performed would have required the load sequencers to be de-energized.
However, the associated unit was found not to have been in !\! odes 1,2,3, o.
4 at the time this work was performed and therefore, no TS LCO applied.

Similar to the maintenance work order review, the NRC Staff reviewed re-
lated Instrumentation and Control Engineering and the Operations Departments'
surveillance tests. This review did not reveal any examples of the load se-
quencers having been de-energized while in Modes I through 4 at the time the
work was performed and thus no TS LCOs applied.

Accordingly, I conclude that GPC does not routinely threaten the safe i

operation of the Vogtle facility by allowing entry into TS 3.0.3. The Petitioners' |

claim that NRC notification requirements were violated upon entry into TS 3.0.3 |
was not substantiated. !

|

2. Alleged ignoring of Technical Specifications \

The Petitioners claim (see Petition 6111.6) that GPC routinely endangers
the public's safety by ignoring TSs and that this is illustrated by seven cited
examples. I

Example (1): Opening Dilution Valves When Required to Be 1

locked Closed (Petition iIII.6a)
:

The Petitioners state that the Licensee willfully and knowingly violated Vogtle
Unit 1 TSs by opening dilution valves required to be locked closed by TSs. The

|
1
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Petitioners claim that the valves were opened while the reactor coolant system
(RCS) was at mid-loop, and that this placed the plant in an unanalyzed condition
and created the risk of an uncontrolled buron dilution accident and an inadvertent
reactor criticality. The Petitioners allege that the valves were opened to expedite
an outage so that the plant could be placed back on line accerding to the outage

l schedule.
i

| 01 investigated this event, which occurred in October 1988 during the
; first refueling outage for Vogtle Unit 1. The results of that investigation are

| documented in 01 Report 2-90-001. The OI investigators concluded that TS

| 3.4.1.4.2 was knowingly and intentionally violated by Vogtle Operations shib
| supervisors, with the express knowledge and concurrence of the Operation;

Manager."' In its Report, 01 also concluded that a violation of the reporting
requirements of section 50.73 occurred, but that the evidence was insufficient
to conclude that this was a deliberate violation of reporting requirements.

On June 3,1991, after reviewing the OI findings, the NRC Staff issued
a Notice of Enforcement Conference and Demands for Information to GPC
and the Operations Manager at the time of the incident. The NRC Staff also -
issued Demands for Information to the Operations Superintendent and the Shift

'

Supervisor at the time of the incident.
After reviewing the responses to the four Demands for Information (De-

mands), the NRC Staff held an Enforcement Conference on September 19,1991,
with GPC and the Operations Manager. Subsequently, the NRC Staff sent letters )
to the Operations Manager, the Operations Superintendent, and the Shift Super- !

visor stating that no additional actions would be taken regarding their individual
NRC licenses. The NRC Staff also stated that, although the actions of these

i

individuals did not meet NRC expectations, there was insufficient evidence to !
support a conclusion that their actions in 1988 constituted a deliberate attempt ]
to disregard and intentionally circumvent the requirements of the TSs.

On December 31, 1991, after consultation with the Commission, the NRC
Staff issued a Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty of
$100,000 (Notice) to GPC. He Notice set out several violations identified during
the NRC investigation conducted between libruary 1,1990, and March 19,
1991, including a violation that, contrary to the requirements of TS 3.4.1.4.2, on
October 12 and 13,1988, with Unit 1 in Mode 5, loops not filled, reactor makeup
water storage tank valves 1208-U4-176 and 1208-U4-177 were opened in order
to add chemicals to the RCS. On January 30,1992, the Licensee responded to
the Notice. denied the violations, and protested the proposed imposition of the

"Mr. Wilham F. " Skip" Otchens. the operations Manager and a PRR chairman, and Mr. hmmy P. Cash a
Semor Reactor Operator sernns as the operauons Superintendent on Shift. are also mennoned in this Director's
Decwon in the discussions of the DG issue. See also Secuon in D herein regarding a January 1990 nreung
between Messrs Bockhold. Ltchens and Mosbaugh.
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civil penalty? The NRC Staff reviewed GPC's response and, on June 12,1992,
issued an Order Imposing Civil Monetary Penalty of $100,000 (Order). On July
9,1992, GPC responded to the Order, submitted payment of the penalty, and
noted that it did not plan to appeal this action.

The NRC Staff has also evaluated the PetRners' concern that the piant
was placed in a condition that could have resulted in an uncontrolled dilution
esent and inaIvertent reactor criticality. He NRC Staff reviewed an analysis
of this event that Westinghouse subsequently performed and GPC provided
on November 21, 1989, to support proposed license amendments to change
Vogtle TS 3.4.1.4.2, The change would allow the valves to be opened under,

administrative control to enable nonborated chemical additions to be made to
the RCS during Mode $b (cold shutdown with coolant inventory reduced to

I the extent that the reactor coolant loops are not filled) and Mode 6 (refueling),
using a flow path via the reactor makeup water storage tank. The results of the
Westinghouse analysis indicated that the minimum acceptable operato action
times of 15 minutes for Mode 5b and 30 minutes for Mode 6, as specified in
the NRC's Standard Review Plan (NUREG-0800), would be met. On the basis
of this analysis, the NRC Staff concluded that the opemng of these valves under
administrative controls with the RCS in a loops-not-fi: led condition, including
the mid-loop condition, would not result in an unsafe condition. This conclusion
formed the basis for the NRC Staff's approval of License Amendment No. 28
for Vogtle Unit I and License Amendment No. 9 for Vogtle Unit 2, each dated
February 20, 1990. The responses by GPC and specific individuals indicated
that precautions were taken when the valves were opened in 1988 to ensure that
the valves would remain open for no more than 5 minutes. While the NRC
Staff is unable to conclude that these undocumented controls were in place, the
NRC Staff does find that the actual amount of time the valves were open was
of insufficient duration to create a criticality event. Therefore, the NRC Staff
concludes that, although the TSs in effect at the time were violated, the actual
opening of the valves in 1988 did not endanger the health and safety of the
public.

Rus, to the extent that Petitioners al ege that a violation associated with
the operation of these dilution valves occurred, the allegation is substantiated
and the NRC has taken appropriate enforcement action. However, the evidence ;

does not substantiate that this action was willful. Rather, as indicated by the
responses of the Operations Manager, the Operations Superintendent, the Shift
Supervisor, and GPC to the NRC's Demands for Information and during the

|

|
h was GPC's uon that the Acuon statement in the TS staung that the salve should be closed inediately I20

I

if found open rneant that the valve could be opened for about $ nunutes. GPC based this position upm carher
correspondence between NRC and the nuclear mdustry which had explored potenual defimnons for "immediate" |

actions
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Enforcement Conference, the action resulted from an incorrect interpretation of
the TS requirement by the Operations hianager in 1988.

: Etample (2): Failure to Secure Dilution Valves as Required
hy TSs (PcM 'lIII.6b)*

On February 26,1990, the NRC Staff found that the dilution valves, identified
in Example I above, were required to be locked closed, but were not locked
while at mid-loop, in violation of TSs. The Petitioners assert that this is another
example of a willful violation of TSs by Vogtle senior management.

On February 26,1990, while Unit I was in hiode 5 with reactor coolant loops
not filled (mid-loop), the NRC Staff found that discharge valve 1-1208-U4-176
of the refueling makeup water storage tank was closed but was not secured

; in position as required by Action Statement (c) of TS 3.4.1.4.2. Instead of i
insta!!ing a mechanism to mechanically secure this valve, the Licensee placed a

'

" hold tag"2' on the valve, which provided only administrative control to preclude
valve operation. When the NRC Staff described this condition to the Licensee,

} Vogtle personnel contended that the administrative controls were acceptable to
'

fulfill the requirements of the TS that the valve be secured in position. GPC
later agreed that this method was an unacceptable interpretation of the TS and
took action to install a mechanical locking device. On April 26,1990, the NRC,

Staff issued Notice of Violation,50-424,425/90-05-01," Failure to hiechanically
|

Secure Valve 1-1208-U4-176 During hiode 5 as Required by TS 3.4.1.4.2.C." j
'

During a subsequent NRC inspection (Inspection Report 50-424,425/91-14),
the NRC Staff reviewed the Licensee's associated actions in connection with
this issue and closed this violation. The inspectors reviewed the locked-valve
procedure,10019-C, which had been revised to eliminate using a hold tag on
valves that are required by TSs to be secured in position. To secure the valve,
the Licensee routed a steel cable through drilled holes in the valve handle and
mechanically secured the cable to prevent personnel from operating the valve.
GPC conducted a comprehensive review of all remaining valves required by
TSs to be secured to ensure that each had a locking mechanism in place. GPC
committed to providing an appropriate locking mechanism for any valve secured
by a hold tag and required to be secured by TSs. However, GPC found no other
valve; in that category.

The NRC Staff concludes that, although a violation was issued, it resulted
from the Licensee's erroneous belief that use of a hold tag was an acceptable

21 A " hold tag" is a 3-inch by 5-inch red tag that is attached to a piece ot' equipment to indicate that it is rxx to
be operased. The untent of the " hold tag"is indicated by Vogtle's Adnunistrative procedure 3%C. "rquiprnent
Clearance and Tagging Procedure." =tuch states that "A hold tag, when attached to a piece of equipnwnt. protubits
the operanos of thal equipnient in all circumstances "
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j means of satisfying the TS requirement that die valve be secured. No evidence
was found of a willful violation of TSs by Vogtle senior management or other
personnel. Therefore, the allegation was not substantiated. '

Example (3): Alist:denlan f Shutdown Afargin (Petition k lli.6c)so

The Petitioners allege that in January 1989, two shifts of licensed operators

| miscalculated, because of procedural errors, the shutdown margin for Vogtle
Unit 1, which was shut down at the time, and consequently that the RCS boron

I concentration became " dangerously low" and that the Licensee did not write a
,

'

deficiency report, conduct a critique, review its actions for conformance to TSs,
or submit a report to the NRC.

Vogtle TS 3.1.1.2 requires that a specified minimum shutdown margin be .

'

maintained when the reactor is in Mode 3 (Hot Standby),4 (Hot Shutdown),
or 5 (Cold Shutdown). He required minimum value is specified by graphs of

,

shutdown margin as a function of RCS boron concentration. The minimum !
shutdown margin specified in TS 3.1.1.2 is sufficient to ensure, as a most j
restrictive condition, that if a boron dilution accident were to occur during the |
beginning of core life, the operator would have at W 15 minutes to take l

cor:ective action after the initiation of an alarm cauad by source range high
llux to avoid total loss of shutdown margin. An operator reaction time of at
least 15 minutes is consistent with the associated accident analyses of the horon
dilution event in the Final Safety Analysis Report (FSAR). The corresponding
surveillance requirement in TS 4.1.1.2 requires that tbc shutdown margin be
determined to be greater than or equal to the required value at least once every
24 hours by considering several factors, including RCS boron concentration,
RCS average temperature, and xenon concentration.

At SS p.m. on January 19,1989, control room operators at Vogtle manually
tripped the Unit I turbine and reactor to enter a planned outage to repair a leaking
socket weld far the drain line in the loop seal downstream of the pressuriter
safety relief valve. After the unit was shut down, an extra shift supervisor
on shift completed Procedure 14005-1, " Shutdown Margin Calculation," which
must be completed every 24 hours when the plant is in Mode 3,4, or 5. He
signed the procedure at 7:13 p.m. on January 19, 1989. However, the extra i

shift supervisor incorrectly completed Data Sheet 2, which applies to conditions I

where the average RCS temperature is equal to or greater than 557 degrees
Fahrenheit ( F). His action was incorrect because he should have completed
Data Sheet 4, which applies to conditions related to entering Cold Shutdown I

(Mode 5). The shutdown margin calculation that was completed by the shift i
!supervisor was based upon the wrong data sheet, and resulted in a calculated

163



- _- _ -. .. - - - -. - - . .- - - -. ..
_

| -

!

I |

shutdown margin of 6.6% reactivity (i.e., delta M)22 and a required shutdown
m.agin of 2.58% delta M. These results indicated to the operators that no boron

| . Jdition to the RCS was required in order to enter Cold Shutdown.
On January 20,1989, at approximately 9:00 a.m., a reactor engineer ques-

| tioned the apparently low RCS boran concentration of 1333 parts per million
(ppm). His concern prompted the Licensee to stop the unit cooldown until the ;

| shutdown margin calculation was verified. At 10:22 a.m., the reactor engineer
J

completed a shutdown margin calculation that assumed an RCS temperature of '
! 68 F and 0% reactivity for xenon worth. His calculation, which did not take

i
( into account xenon worth, showed that 1800-ppm boron concentration was nec- |

essary to obtain a shutdown margin of 4.015% detta M compared to a required |
'

shutdown margin of 17% delta M. This calculation failed to include credit
|

| for xenon worth, which would have added approximately 3.8% delta M to the '

! shutdown margin and provided more than an adequate margin above TS require-
ments without further boration. Since no TS timit was exceeded, GPC was not !

| required to submit, and did not submit, a written report to the NRC.
On January 20, 1989, at 1:38 p.m., the on-shift operations supervisor

| recalculated the shutdown margin that had been incorrectly'calcula'ed at 7:13
p.m. on January 19,1989. The new calculation relied upon plant data in efftet onL

January 19 and was based upon Data Sheet 4. The new calculation determined
that the shutdown margin was 4.185% delta M while the required shutdown

; margin was 1.92% delta M,

[ The NRC Resident inspectors reviewed Procedure 14005-1, Data Sheets 2

| and 4, the calculations concerning the data sheets dated January 19 and 20,
| 1989, and control room lags for that period. The NRC Staff discussed the

inspection findings in inspection Report 50-424, 425/91-20, dated September
12,1991. The NRC Staff found that the shutdown margin calculation performed
at 7:13 p.m. on January 19, 1989, was incorrect in that the wrong Data Sheet
of Procedure 14005-1 was used. However, the inspector found no evidence that
the TS limits on shutdown margin were ever exceeded or that an inadvertent
criticality could have occurred because the wrong data sheet was used. The
confusing instructions on Data Sheet 2 of Procedure 14005-1 contributed to
this error. On March 26,1989, the Licensee revised this procedure to simplify,
consolidate, and clarify the data sheets. The NRC Staff also confirmed that GPC

| failed to write a Deficiency Card for this event which would have prompted the I
| Lic nsee to perform a followup review of the error. The inspectors reviewed '

|
i

(
I

! 22 Rescuvity is dehned as the fractional change in neutron populanon from one neutron generauon to the
subsequent generanon. Reacnvity is expressed mathemancally as (K necove * I VK necow. or as dcIta F1. wheree e
K nsaveis the muhiphcanon factor m a nuclear system expressing the change in the hssion neutron populatione

j per generanon.
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GPC's Deficiency Card program and found it to be adequate. They could findt

I no other instances of a failure to write a Deficiency Card.
'Ihus, the NRC Resident Inspectors determined that violations occurred. The

extra shift supervisor failed to follow procedures in selecting the data sheet.,

| Additionally, a shift supervisor made an error at.i failed to write a Deficiency
| Card.

Based on its review of Inspection Report 50-424,425/91-20, the NRC Staff
has determined that these violations meet the criteria contained in sections V.A
and V.G.1 of the then.in-effect General Statement of Policy and Procedure for

| NRC Enforcement Actions (10 C.F.R. Part 2, . Appendix C) for violations for
! Ahich a Notice of Violation need not be issued. Section V.A allowed the

NRC to exercise discretion in issuing a Notice of Violation for isolated Severity
| Level V violations, regardless of who identified them, provided the Licensee had

| initiated appropriate corrective actions before the end of the inspection. Under
|- section V.G.1, the NRC need not issue a Notice of Violation if the violation

was identified by the Licensee, is normally classified at a Severity Level IV or
V, was reported if required, was or will be corrected (including measures to
prevent recurrence) within a reasonable time, was not a willful violation, and
was not a violation that could reasonably be expected :o have been prevented
by the Licensee's corrective action for a previous violation. This practice of
not requiring the issuance of a Notice of Violation when a violation meets the
aforementioned criteria was adopted by the NRC as a means of encouraging
licensees to identify and correct violations and to avoid expenditure of limited
resources for both the NRC and the licensee - resources that could be better
used in improsing safety.

In summary, the Licensee identified and corrected the shutdown margin
calculation error, which did not result in the violation of a TS limit and did
not require a written report to the NRC. Moreover, the corrected calculations
of the shutdown margin do not support the allegation that the error resulted
in " dangerously low" boron concentrations in the RCS or that it endangered
the health and safety of the public. The NRC inspectors determined that, even
though a Deficiency Card was not written, the Licensee's followup review of
the error was prompt and had been completed before the end of the inspection.

Example (4): "Taking" lERs (Petition g Ill.6d)

The Petitioners claim that GPC employees were told, on Maren 22, 1990,
to keep planned shutdowns on schedule by "taking" LERs.25 The Petitioners

1

23.Talmg" t1Rs unphes that personnel mienuonally do m a perform actions requ red by a TS at tte specified
ime reqmred by the TS acnon, At a later tme, dry subsequently acknoledge this actmn was mn perforned and i

ICommueh
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also contend that pressure to remain on schedule would necessarily result in an
intentional violation of TS and "taking" LERs in order to remain on schedule.

This issue was reviewed as part of Ol's investigation of an alleged intentional '

TS violation with regard to a moJe change with an inoperable neutron source
range monitor (see Exaraple 6 hereinafter). ops review and findings in this area

l are documemeu m OI Report 2-90-012. The 01 investigation did not substantiate ;

the alleged "taking" of LERs. The personnel interviewed stated that they had
never been instructed to do "whatever it takes" to stay on schedule. ;

On the basis of this investigation, the NRC Staff was unable to conclude
that Vogtle personnel either had a deliberate practice of, or were instructed to,
"take" LERs to stay on schedule. Similarly, statements made by the Petitioners
that SONOPCO's philosophy would necessarily result in managers intentionally
vio:.iting TS and "taking" LERs to remain on schedule were not substantiated
by the NRC Staff's review. Therefore, the allegation was not substantiated.

Etample (5): Surveillance Testing of Containment Isolation
Valves (Petition iIll.6.e.i)

The Petitioners claim that the Licensee knowingly concealed a violation
which, if uncovered, would have resulted in a safety-related shutdown of
Vogtle Unit 1. The violation allegedly concerned the failure to properly
test approximately thirty-nine containment isolaticn valves in violation of TS
surveillance requirement 4.6.1.1.a.

,

in February 1990, after operations personnel performed a monthly TS surveil-
lance on containment isolation valves and turned in their paperwork, the Shift
Supervisor recognized an error in that only two of thirty-nine valves had been

|
checked. The Shift Supervisor directed that all necessary surveillances be per- !

formed immediately. The Shift Supervisor then examined previous records and
found that the same error had also been made the previous month, and therefore,
that another violation of TS 4.6.1.1.a had occurred. The Shift Supervisor then '

informed the Work Planning Group of the error and this group prepared and
delivered a Deficiency Card to the control room. Since the missed surveillances
had already been completed by this time, no action was initiated under the TS's
LCO (shutdown within I hour). The Petitioners state that the Deficiency Card

| should have been initiated earlier by the individual discovering the deficiency
| and that the event was mishandled to conceal the discovery time and to avoid

the shutdown requirement of the LCO.

| then wnte a repon (l.LR) to the NRC as specihed in secnon 50 73. Thus, this "Libng" LLRs would allegedly be
done in order to forgo perfomung the acuviry required by a Ts er a urne the would cause a schedule delay
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,

GPC reported this issue in a timely LER 50-425/90-01, dated March 27,1990.
NRC resident inspectors reviewed the LER, as documented in Inspection Report
50-424, 425/90-10, and found that the task sheet contained in the procedure
for performing this surveillance was inadequate. The format of the task sheet

,

resuhed in cognitive personnel errors because the task sheet was unclear as to
the number of valves requncu ao be tested. De NRC Staff categorized this event
as a noncited violation because the criteria for exercising discretion specified
in section V.G.I of the then in-effect Enforcement Policy (10 C.F.R. Part 2,
Appendix C) were met (NCV 50-425/90-10-01).

An 01 investigation did not substantiate that this violation was willful.
01 concluded in 01 Report 2 90-012, that the missed surveillance had beeni

! reported in an LER and resulted from an inadequate Surveillance Ta3k Sheet
i that had listed equipment identification numbers of only two valves for the

monthly containment integrity check. 01 noted that the NRC resident inspectors
had reviewed the LER and documented the event without issuing a Notice of

( Violation. 01 also noted that the circumstances of this event were reviewed
during the NRC's special team inspection at Vogtle in August 1990, which
found that the Shift Supervisor did not conceal the true discovery time of
the missed surveillance in order to avoid a unit shutdown anj that the Shift
Supervisor's actions to initiate an investigation into the adequacy of the previous
month's surveillance and to concurrently perform the missed surveillances were
appropriate. Since the surveillance test is of short duration, it was completed
before the determination was made that the previous test had not been completed '

correctly. Since the surseillance test had already been 4epeated once the
| inadequacy of the previous test became known, a shutdown of the unit at that
i point was not required.

! On the basis of the NRC Staff's inspections and the 01 investigation, the )
| Petitioners' claim that the Licensee knowingly concealed a technical violation I

was not substantiated.

Example (6): Changing Modes with Required Equipment
Inoperable (Petition 6 III.6.e.ii) :

The Petitioners claim that the Licensee knowingly concealed another violation |
on March 1,1990, when a change from Mode 5 to Mode 6 occurred even !

though required equipment was not operable. Petitioners assert that the failure I

to comply with the TS translated into a 12-hour schedule enhancement at a |
criticaljuncture and was a willful violation.

The NRC resident inspectors, an NRC special inspection team, and 01
investigators reviewed this issue. Results of these efforts are documented in

| NRC Inspection Report 50-424/90-10 dated June 14,1990, and 01 Report 2-90-
| 012. GPC also documeated this event in LER 424/90-004 dated May 11,1990. ,

1
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This LER described the Licensee-' identified violation of TS 3.0.4 on March I,
1990, when Unit I entered Mode 6 from Mode 5 with an LCO in effect for a
neutron source range channel. The LER attributed the root cause to cognitive
personnel error by the Shift Superintendent who failed to review the back side of
the relevant LCO Status Sheet that noted the mode change was prohibited w hile

! the source range monitor was inoperable. Moreover, the Shif t Superintendent
had not otherwise recognized the prohibition before authorizing the rnode entry.

The NRC Staff interviewei various personnel involved in the review of plant
conditions and involved with documentation necessary to change modes. The
interviews indicated that the Shift Superintendent and the Unit Shift Supervisor
were aware of an active LCO at the time of the mode change, but neither had
connected the LCO to a mode restriction. Both of these individuals indicated
that there had been no unreasonable emphasis on the critical path schedule.

i

Both denied that they had ever been given any indication or instruction to do '

whatever it takes to stay on schedule. They also indicated that they did not feel
undue pressure to stay on schedule or any pressure to compromise plant safety
even though the mode change resulted in a reduction of the critical path outage
time,

i %e NRC Staff expressed concern that the format of the LCO status sheet
contributed to the problem. Because the status sheet is a two-sided form
with the remarks section on the back of the form, a cursory review of the
sheet could result in any remarks entered on the back of the form being
overlooked. On the basis of the NRC resident inspectors' review, the NRC

i

determined that a violation occurred as discussed in Inspection Report 50- '

424/90-10. This violation was categorized as a noncited violation because the
criteria for exercising discretion specified in section V.G.1 of the then-effective
Enforcement Policy (10 C.F.R. Part 2, Appendix C) were met (NCV 50-424/90-
10-03).

On the basis of evidence developed during the NRC inspections and 01
investigation, the allegation of an intentional violation was not substantiated.

Example (7): Failure to Declare RilR Pump inoperable and Enter LCO
(Petition iIII.6.e.iii)

, ne Petitioners allege that GPC knowingly concealed a TS violation when
! the "B" residual heat removal (RHR) pump was not declared inoperable after j

cracking of the nuclear service cooling water (NSCW) line. Specifically, the l

Petitioners allege that, during the second refueling outage at Unit 1 (IR2), I
with RHR train "A" out of service for maintenance, the RHR train "B" pump
experienced excessive vibration and the NSCW motor cooler experienced a
leak at its outlet. TS 3.9.8.1, "RHR and Coolant Circulation," was allegedly
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| violated because the Operations Department chose not to declare RHR pump
"lB" inoperable in an effort to mitigate the effect on the critical work path.

He NRC Staff addressed this item in the Special Team inspection docu-

| mented in Supplement I to NRC Inspection Report 50-424, 425/90-19, dated

| November 1,1991. In section 2.2 of the Insr.. tion Report, the NRC Staff
concluded that the Vogtle Operations Department hao an adequate engineering
basis for accepting operability of the RHR pump even with the pump's high
vibration and the NSCW leak.

| The inspection team also concluded that declaring the pump inoperable would
! not have affected the critical work path. The LCO actions would not have been

restricted because the containment, except for ventilation, had been isolated as
required by TS 3.9.4. The LCO actions would not have presented the Licensee
from continuing refueling activities in that the actions to close all containment
penetrations providing direct access from the containment atmosphere to the
outside atmosphere would have required only closing the containment ventilation
purge valve, which has an automatic closure signal. Thus, there is no evidence
that schedule considerations motivated the Licensee in this matter.

On the basis of evidence developed during NRC inspections, the allegation
that GPC knowingly concealed a TS violation when the "B RHR" was not
declared inoperable was not substantiated.

3. Alleged Cemetalment of Safeguards Problems

| The Petitioners allege (see Petition siIII.7a and Ill.7b) that GPC person-
i nei, including a Vice President and General Manager, and a Southern Company

Services Manager, knowingly and repeatedly hid safeguards problems from the
,

NRC and willfully refused to comply with mandatory reporting requirements.!

| The Petitioners further allege that the GPC Vice President made false statements
to the NRC during an Enforcement Conference about the status of safeguards
materials in Birmingham, Alabama, and that the alleged false statements proba-

| bly influenced a subsequent civil penalty action taken by the NRC. The Petition.
| ers claim that the false and misleading information presented at the Enforcement

Conference and other information withheld from the NRC were highly signifi-,

'

cant. The Petitioners assert that, if the NRC had the benefit of complete, factual
information, the NRC would likely have increased the Notice of Violation and
Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty in the amount of $50,000 issued to the
Licensee on June 27,1990. inta the hundreds of thousands of dollars.

|

i
I
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The Petitioners also allege that on July 23,1990, plant and SONOPCO seniot
management prevented the Site Security Manager from making a Red Phone"
notification within I hour as required by section 73.71. The Petitioners allege
that the manager was prevented from making the call in order to delay or defuse

| the NRC's knowledge of programmatic problems on the part of the Licensee
regarding im uanaling of safeguards documents.i

OI investigated the allegation that (1) GPC knowingly and repeatedly hid safe- '

guards problems from the NRC and willfully refused to comply with mandatory
reporting requirements, and (2) the GPC Vice President made false statements
to the NRC in an Enforcement Conference concerning the status of safeguards ;

material in Birmingham, Alabama. The results of these investigations are doc-
umented in 01 Report 2-91-003. The 01 investigations did not substantiate

| that GPC withheld pertinent information from the NRC at the time of the En-
! forcement Conference on May 22,1990, or that GPC management impeded the
I

reporting of safeguards events. On the basis of the OI investigations, the NRC !

Staff concluded that the Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil i:
!

Penalty of $50,000 were appropriate. I
, O! also investigated the allegation that on July 23,1990, plant and SONOPCO

( senior management prevented the Site Security Manager from making a Red

| Phone notification within I hour as required by section 73.71. Tbc results of
|

this investigation are also documented in 01 Report 2 91-003. Specifically, the i

j concern was that the Site Security Manager was allegedly prevented from making
; a Red Phone notification for two events. The first event was that a safeguards
I container had been found open and uncontrolled for half an hour in Birmingham,
| Alabama, in November 1989. The second event involved fourteen safeguards

documents that had been found uncontrolled in the SONOPCO offices on June
15, 1990.

'

The first event constituted a violation of the reporting requirements of section

| 73.71, in 1989, when the uncontrolled container was discovered and not reported

| to the NRC within I hour. In 1990, as part of its corrective actions in response
to an NRC enforcement action, GPC identified the fact that a required report

| for this event might not have been made in 1989.

| GPC's corrective actions in response to the NRC enforcement action also

| identified the second event. GPC's consideration of the reporting requirements
for the first event was subsequently combined with a similar consideration of
the need to report the second event. The second event also was not reported

! within I hour as required by section 73.71.

|
After reviewing ops investigation results, the NRC Staff concluded that the

j failure to make a timely report on the second event and the delay in informing
!

M A Red Phone refers to a ljcensee's Enrrgency Nouficauon system and is used for imirrdsaie telephone
meticahons to the NRC's opernhons Center in accordance with 10 C F R 6150.72 and 73 71,
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| the NRC Staff of the discovery of the failure to report the first event werc
! due to the GPC's cumbersome system for evaluating corporate security findings 1

through the site security organization, rather than any willful attempt to impedc

| the reporting process.
| Tlw NRC Staff decMed to take no additional enforcement ac ion for these *

| two issues. .... cision to refrain from issuing a Notice of Vlosation for the
alelay in reporting the first event was based upon section V.G.5 of the then-in- ,

| effect Enforcement Policy (10 C.F.R. Part 2, Appendix C). This provision of the
policy allowed the NRC Staff to forego a Notice of Violation when a violation I

is discovered as the result of corrective action for a previous enforcemen: action. ii

| The NRC Staff considered the violation for the delay in reporting the second
event to be an additior;al example of a violation that the Licensee had identified j

previously and for which it was, at the time, taking corrective actions. Therefoie, l

as provided by the aforementior.ed section V.G.5 the NRC Staff issued no
Notice of Violation.

Based on the OI investigation and NRC Staff review, the allegation was not ;

substantiated. I

4. Alleged Operation of Radioactive 11'aste Systems and Intimidation of
Plant Review Board Members

The Petitioners assert (see Petition s III.8) that GpC endangered the public's )
health and safety by operating radioactive waste systems and facilities known )

| to be in gross violation of NRC requirements. The Petitionces also state that i
Vogtle's General Manager, Mr. George Bockhold, intimidated members of the
Plant Review Board (PRB) when they attempted to consider if the use of the l

waste system should be resumed. I

The NRC's Special Inspection Team reviewed this item and discussed
its findings in Supplement I to inspection Report 50-424, 425/9019, dated
November 1.1991. The alleged improper installation and operation of the
radioactive waste system is discussed in section 2.1 of the Inspection Report
and the alleged intimidation of PRB members is discussed in section 2.7 of the
Inspection Report.

The Petitioners allege that GPC installed and opera:-d a radioactive waste
microfiltration system without performing an adequate engineering and safety j

evaluation in accordance with 10 C.F.R. 6 50.59.25 This specific system is known
as the FAVA system because it is supplied by FAVA Control Systems (FAVA).

25 Tule 10 of the Code of Trdrmt Rrrulusmn.t. section 50 59, allows hcensees to rnake changes in the facihty and
procedures. or conduct tests or expenmen:, an desenhed in the safer) analysas report, witLout pnor Comrrussion
approvat unless the proposed changes invol e a change an the Technical Specificanons or an unreviewsd safety
quesuon

I
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The Petitioners further alleged that the material configuration. fabrication, and
quality of the system did not meet the guidance of Regulatary Guide (RG) 1.143,
" Control of Stainless Steel Weld Cladding of Low-Alloy Steel Components,"
and the requirements of the American Society of Mechanical Engineers ( ASME)

*

Code.
In late ;~., uPC temporanly installed and operated a :.ystem at Voglic for

removing niobium-95. GPC planned to replace this temporary . modification with
a permanent system in the future.

In February 1988. GPC experienced difficulty in removing colloidal niobium-
95 with the temporary system following a reactor shutdown for maintenance
work. GPC contracted FAVA to help rectify this problem. The Licensee
corrected the situation by installing a 0.35-micron filter system downstream
of the existing prefilters. However, a large volume of radioactive waste was

,

| generated because the 0.35-micron filters rapidly exhibited high differential i

pressure and had to be changed frequently. The need to change filters frequently I

also resulted in Radwaste Department personnel receiving additional radiation
exposure. I

Upon evaluating the performance of the 015 micron filter system, the |
Radwaste Department determined that the best approach to the pmblem was
to install a backflush, precoat filter system. However, no operational data were
available for a system of this type in this specific application. FAVA supplied
a proprietary Ultra Filtration System (Model No. 5FD/E) for testing to evaluate
whether this was a practical and effective solution to the problem. GPC installed
the temporary FAVA system before the Unit I refueling ourye and operated
it under Test Procedure T-OPER-8801. The test system kept liquid effluent
releases well belo,w the TS limits. The Radwaste, Chemistry, and Engineering
Departments evaluated the test results, and GPC issued a general work order to
purchase a permanent system.

In the early part of 1989, the Quality Assurance (QA) Department performed j
an audit and identified a significant finding involving a programmatic breakdown |
in the procurement of the temporary FAVA system and a failure to meet
commitments of the FSAR. That finding prompted the Licensee to remove the
temporary FAVA system from service.

,

In late 1989, the Licensee sought to reinstall the FAVA system under a !
temporary modification because colloidal cobalt-59 and cobalt-60 had to be )
removed. The PRB reviewed this temporary modification and several members !

expressed strong objections to it based on the previous QA audit finding.
These objections prompted the Licensee to submit a Request for Engineering |

Assistance (REA) and perform a safety evaluation in accordance with section
50.59 in November 1989. The Licensee's engineering staff subsequently
reviewed the November 1989 safety evaluation and found it to be adequate,
except that it did not properly address the guidance of RG 1.143 regarding
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the use of polyvinyl chloride (PVC) piping. GPC performed another safety
evaluation in February 1990 to address this issue and the vulnerability of the
PVC pipes to radiation degradation. in the February 1990 safety evaluation,
the Licensee specifically stated that the FAVA system did not conform to the
criteria of RG 1.143. 110 wever, this deviation was found to be technically
acceptable for several ceasons: (1) The design of the FAVA spem had been
previously evaluated and found to be adequate in the REA response of November
1989, except for the PVC pipes; (2) the location of the FAVA system was
inside a shielded watertight vault, which provided adequate assurance that any
system failures would be contained and would not create the potential for offsite
releases; and (3) the presence of PVC pipe in the FAVA system, although

i

! contrary to RG 1.143, was acceptable based on subsequent design reviews
because the radiation exposure of the plastic was found to be within acceptable
limits.

Although the testimony of one of the PRB members indicated that the
temperature effects on the use of PVC in the FAVA system were not adequately
evaluated before the system was installed, the testimony of the corporate system

; engineer indicated that GPC had considered this before installing the system,
although it was not specifica'ly documented in the safety evaluation.

Vogtle management subsequently consulted the NRC resident inspector to
seek an NRC position on placing the FAVA system back in service. The |

inspector was also provided additional information by other Vogtle management
personnel documeating reasons why it should not be placed in service. The
Licensee forwarded this package to Region II and NRR for review. In March 4

1990, following Regien il and NRR concurrence during a teleg hone conference. I
'

the Licensee placed the FAVA system in sersice with the following NRC
stipulations:

(1) Dat procedures for operating the FAVA system require that an
operator be present any time the system is in operation;

(2) Rat all hoses to and from the FAVA system be verified to conform
to RG 1.143;

|
(3) That the cover over the FAVA system be securely fastened when the |

system is in operation to ensure that if a spraying leak developed, it I

would be contained in the concrete vault; and
(4) That the design of the walls of the auxiliary radwaste building be

evaluated to detennine if a design change was needed to reduce the
possibility of wall leakage if a hose develops a leak and sprays its
contents on the walls.

De Licensee complied with these stipulations upon returning the system to
operation.

He review by the NRC indicated that the FAVA system was originally
installed and operated by the Licensee without an adequate safety evaluation
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I and did not meet the guidance in RG l.143 in that PVC piping was used in this
system. However, this deficiency was of limited duration and the Licensee, upon
performing subsequent safety evaluations that were forwarded to and accepted

! by the NRC Staff, concluded that the system was acceptable for use. The
| NRC's extensive review developed no facts to support a co,closion that the

I Licensee willfully violated NRC requirements or willfully operated the facility

| in a manner to endanger the public health or safety.
| The Petitioners also contend that Vogtle's General Ma tager intimidated and
! pressured PRB members during a PRB meeting. The meeting occurred in

| Rbruary 1990 and was for the purpose of determining the acceptability of the
safety analysis for installing the FAVA microfiltration system.

As previously discussed, the Licensee performed several safety evaluations
for the temporary modification to install the FAVA microfiltration system.
The NRC Special Inspection Team found, through its discussions with PRB
members, that, while reviewing these safety evaluations, various PRB members
had expressed reservations on several occasions concerning the acceptability of
the FAVA system.

Although various PRB members may have expressed reservations, the in-
spection team, in reviewing the PRB meeting minutes regarding this temporary
modification, identified few instances of the PRB members documenting their
dissenting opinions. Specifically, the minutes of PRB meeting 90-15, on Febru-
ary 8,1990, documented one PRB member's negative vote and dissenting opin-
ions regarding the acceptability of exempting the temporary modification from
regulatory requirements and the adequacy of the system's safety evaluation. The
only other example of a dissenting opinion was in the minutes for PRH Meeting
90-32, on March 6,1990. This dissenting opinion related to the acceptability
of voting on the FAVA system installation when the PRB member who raised
the initial questions and concerns on the operation of the FAVA system was not
present.

During discussions with NRC inspectors, PRB members indicated that, during
the various PRB meetings concerning installing the FAVA system, they felt
intimidated and pressured by the presence of the General Manager at the PRB
meeting. On one occasion, an alternate voting member felt intimidated and
feared retribution or retaliatmn because the General Manager was present at the
meeting and the PRB member knew the General Manager wanted to have the
temporary modification approved. However, the PRB member stated that he
did not alter his vote and felt comfortable with how he had voted. This PRB
member also stated that he was not aware of any occasions where he or any
other PRB member succumbed to intimidation or any other occasions where he
or they feared retribution.

The PRB members informed the General Manager following the meeting
(PRB 90-15) that several of them viewed his presence as intimidating. On March
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1,1990, the General Manager addressed this concern by meeting with all PRB
members to reiterate each member's duties and responsibilities. He specifically
told the members that his presence at PRB meetings must not influence them
and that alternates should be selected who would feel comfortable with this
responsibility. He also addressed the difference between professional differences
of opinion and safety or quality concerns, and methods for resolving each.

Thus, the NPC Staff has found that, in one case, a PRB voting member
felt intimidated and feared retribution because the General Manager was present

,
at the PRB meeting. However, this member stated that he did not change

| his vote in response to the General Manager's presence ^ He stated that the2 '

; General Manager was informed of this issue and met with the PRB to allay fears.

| The information obtained by the NRC Staff indicated that retribution did not

( occur against any PRB member for revealing a concern about intimidation. The
inspection found that the instance involving a member fearing retribution was
confirmed, and the absence of dissenting opinions in the PRB meeting ininutes
called into question the openness of discussions at PRB meetings. Further
discussions with PRB members, however, indicated that the lack of dissenting
opinions was due to items being discussed and reviewed until all members were
comfortable with PRB decisions.

NRC resident inspectors at Vogtle frequently attend PRB meetings and have
found that the subjects are candidly discussed and the issues resolved without
apparent intimidation.

In summary, the allegation that GPC endangered the public health and safety I

by operating the FAVA system in gross violation of NRC requirements was
not substantiated. The allegation that a PRB member felt intimidated by the ;

General Manager during the meeting on the FAVA system was substantiated,
but the reaction did not affect the PRB member's decision regarding safety.: {

7

I
i

i

26 Dunng the hcense arrendments heanng on the DG issue. the lloard trard evidence on the FAVA issue in
the proceedmg to deternune whether or not animudanon of PRB nrmhers occurred The PRn member wlm felt
mirnudated was not called as a witness and provided no tesimiony The mierview notes of Mr Dill Lyon of tic
Quahry Concerns Program for the Vogile facihty on february 23. 1990. confirm that at the time of tir PRB's 1

vote on i AVA. the PRD member feh undue pressure to vote early, and probably wmild have voted no" had Mr. I

Bockhold not been present because he thoughi that FAVA did not meet Regulatory Guide entena. but that given |

his PRn role as a heahh and safety trviewer. and considenng the placenrni of impmgemens harners. there was I

no health and safety problem. He also stard that he would be withng to meet unh the Vogtle General Manager |
to discus 6 the matter funher. Intervenor rsh.11-231 at F 9 (marked but not received in evidence). |

The notes of the interview are comistent with the NRC mspection finding regarding intmudation.
27 The incident. however, is another example of how the management style of the Vogtle General Manager could

result in discouragmg individuals from voicing concems. Sec e g , section lil C of this Director's Decision
regartling the role of the Vogtle General Manager in the inaccurate and incomplete repomng of DG informauon
to the NRC.
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H. Alleged Illegal Transfer of Licenses (Petition i111.1 with Supplement
Dated October 1,1990; July 8,1991 Supplement % IV; License

,

Amendment Procecomg on illegal Transfer issue)
'

The Petitioners allege that GPC improperly trn sferred control of its licenses
to operate the Ifatch and Vogtle facilities to SONOPLv. The Petitioners contend
that Mr. Joseph M. Farley - who was an officer of GPC's parent company, ;

The Southern Company, and its subsidiary, Southern Company Services - !

was really the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of SONOPCO and was, in f act,
responsible for operating the GPC nuclear facilities, beginning with the first ,

of three phases in the planned transition to Southern Nuclear. Petitioners )
contend that Mr. Mcdonald, GPC Executise Vice President-Nuclear Operations, I

received management direction from Mr. Farley regarding Vogtle facility matters

i and that numerous oral and written statements regarding the organization were
intentionally false to conceal Mr. Farley's role from the NRC.

*

j

The Petitioners contend that during Phase I of the transition to Southern Nu-
cicar, UPC, in effect, transferred control of its NRC licenses to the SONOPCO
Project. They base their claim, in part, on Mr. Mosbaugh having witnessed the

;

daily operation of GPC's nuclear facilities at the site a,d Mr. liobby at GPC's l

corporate offices. The Petitioners alleged that (Petition at 6):

The actual chain of command lwas Vogtlel General Plant Manager George hockhold to
SONOPCO Vice President hkCoy; McCoy to SONOPCO's Senior Vice President. George
Hairston; Hatrston to SONOPCO*a Executive Vice President and Chief Operauons Orficer, i

R. Patnck Mcdonald. Mcdonald to SONOPCO's Chief Execuuve ORicer, Mr. Farley.

In a supplementary filing of October 1,1990, the Petitioners further contended {
that Mr. Farley," chose the GPC Corporate Officers which would be staffing the !
SONOPCO Project even though he is not an officer or employee of GPC." In )
the July 8,1991 Supplement (at 20), the Petitioners asserted that Mr. Mcdonald j
reported to Mr. Farley on administrative matters since the formation of the |
SONOPCO Project. I

The focus of the license amendment proceeding on the illegal transfer issue
was whether GPC, either through omissions or misrepresentations, misled the
NRC about who was in control of the Vogtle facility, particularly in the context
of the extensive communications with the NRC. LBP-94-37,37 NRC at 291.

A review of the history and background of the formation of Southern Nuclear
will assist in understanding thu issue.

1. Background: Formation of Southern Nuclear

The Southern Company is the parent firm of five electric utilities: Alabama
Power Company (APC), GPC, Gulf Power, Mississippi Power, and Savannah
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Electric. Two of these utilities are associated with nuclear facilities at three
different sites. GPC is the principal owner and the holder of licenses from the
NRC to operate the Vogtle nuclear facility near Augusta, Georgia, and the Hatch
nuclear facility near Baxley, Georgia. APC owns the Farley nuclear facility near

.

DothM, Alabama. The Southern Company also includes Southern Company ,

Services, Inc., a wholly owned service organization.
In 1988. The Southern Company established the SONOPCO Project for the

'

, long-term purpose of establishing an operating company to eventually operate

l the nuclear power generating plants that were then operated by GPC and APC.28
l The establishment of a single operating company was to be accomplished in

f three phases. During Phase I, SONOPCO - which had not yet received the- I

| approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) - was formed

| by The Southern Company as a " project" to provide support services to the

| operating companies (GPC and APC). In Phase II, which is now in effect
| for the Vogtle and Hatch facilities, SONOPCO (now called Southern Nuclear)

continues to provide support services to the operating companies, but has become

| a !cgal entity, having obtained the approval of the SEC, and thereafter being
incorpora:ed by The Southern Company. Phase 111 begins for the Vogtle and
Hatch facilities (and is currently in effect for the Farley facility) when Southern
Nuclear acquires NRC licenses to operate the nuclear facilities.

Because of delays associated with reaching agreement with one of the co-
owners, thc transition occurred more slowly than first anticipated, and Phase I
of the project lasted for approximately 2 years (1989 and 1990). During this
phase, Mr. Farley was responsible for the administraib .apects of forming
the new operating comp .ny. On February 24, 1989, Mr. Farley was elected
Executive Vice President-Nuclear of The Southern Company and Executive
Vice President of Southern Company Services Inc. Before these elections, he
had been President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of APC for almost 20
years.

Until Southern Nuclear acquired the NRC licenses, the GPC nuclear facilities
were to remain under the direction of GPC President, Mr. A. William Dahlberg,
111, with a reporting chain downward of Executive Vice President-Nuclear
Operations (Mr. R.P. Mcdonald), Senior Vice President-Nuclear Operations

28 1n March 1988. GPC and APC met with NRC to discuss then plans to form a sepa. ate operaung company.
SoNoPCo On July 25. 1988, NRC nrt with GPC to dmuss the enrporate orgamza iou of SoNoPCo and
GPC. including the generic ac tvities and imtlatives involving the Vogtle and Hatch facil, ties Enclosure 3 to the
nreung stammary prepared by NRC Region 11. August 11.1988, a Nuclear operanons-Transruan orgarusanon
ctiart, shows the Vice President-Nuclear (Hatch). and the Viec President-Nuclear (Vogt e) reporting to Mr. w G.i

Hairston. the semor Vice PresidensNuclear operauons and Mr w G H.urston reporung to Mr. R P Mcdonald. I
the Execuuve Vice President-Nuclear operanons on March I.1988. Mr. Mcdonald wa'i elected a scruor ofhcer
of GPC and named Execuuve Vice PresidenbNutlear effecuve April 25,1988. on May 4.1988. Mr. W G ,

Hairston was elected Semor Vice PresidenFNuclear operanons of GPC and Mr C.K. McCoy was elected Viec ]
*President-Nuclear of GPC (GPC subnuttal. Aptd 1.1991. Anachment 1. Exh, 4).

|
|
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(Mr. W.G. Ilairston, Ill), and the vice presidents for the Vogtle and Hatch
facihties (Messrs. C.K. McCoy and T.J. Beckham, respectively). The APC
plants were to remain under the direction of the APC Presidert, with a similar
chain downward of Mr. Mcdonald, Mr. Hairston, and the sice president for the
Farley facility. Mr. Mcdonald and Mr. Hairston were officers of both APC and
GPC.

During Phase I, w hich began on or about November 1,1988, technical support
was provided to all three nuclear facilities by a common Technical Services
Group under a Vice President of Southern Cornpany Services, Inc., who reported
to the Executive Vice President, Mr. Mcdonald. Administrative support to all
three facilities was provided by a common Administrative Services Group under
another Vice President of Southern Company Services, Inc., who also reported to
Mr. Mcdonald. Phase I was to be effective until the SEC approved the creation

|
of Southern Nuclear. Mr. Farley was not identified as having any responsibility |
for operating the GPC nuclear facilities during this phase. H<. was responsible

{
for providing administrative services through Southern Company Services, Inc., !

and was also res[xmsible for the formation of SONOPCO. Although not in effect
during Phase I, Mr. Farley had been designated to become the President and
CEO of Southern Nuclear when it was established. l

Phase 11 began on December 14,1990, with SEC's approval of The Southern )
Company's request of June 22, 1988, to form Southern Nuclear, and the
election of officers on December 18, 1990; the Southeri. Nuclear organization
was effectively implemented January 1,1991. As part of Phase 11, GPC's
Executive Vice President (Mr. Mcdonald) and Senior Vice President-Nuclear j

Operations (Mr, Hairston) became officers of Southern Nuclear and reported I

administratively to the President and CEO of Southern Nuclear, Mr. Farley.
The vice presidents of each nuclear facility also became officers of Southern
Nuclear. De Vice President of Technical Services and the Vice President
of Administrative Services, respectively, for Southern Company Services, Inc.,
became officers of Southern Nuclear, rather than officers of Southern Company
Services, Inc. During this phase, GPC and APC retained their NRC licenses
and the responsibility for operating their respective nuclear facilities.

,

| In Phase 111, Southern Nuclear has operating responsibility for the Hatch and
! Vogtle facilities in accordance with the provisions of the NRC operating licenses

for those facilities.29
|

!

| 2'The NRC approved hcense anendnwnts on Noventer 22. 1991. that aethonzed the transfer of heenses for
I the farley fauhty from APC to Southern Nuclear.

|

|
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2. Ellegal Transfer llearing and Petition issues

"Intervenor's Prehearing Statement of Issues" (Statement of Issues), dated
December 12, 1994, raised twenty-eight issues to support Intervenor's illegal
transfer issue for the license amendments proceeding." The issues were |

isubmitted in support cf Intervenor's contention that the Vogtle operating license
should not be transferred to Southern Nuclear because it lacks the requisite
character and integrity. The twenty-eight issues repeat and further supplement
assertions in the petition regarding an illegal transfer of control of GPC nuclear
facilities. These issues are summarized below based upon the more de. tailed |
discussion of each issue in the Appendix to this Director's Decision. |

The gravamen of Intervenor's twenty-eight issues, like the related issues in |
the petition, as supplemented, is that the nuclear officers in SONOPCO Project ;

reported to Mr. Farley, rather than to Mr. Dahlberg, GPC's CEO, and that )
Mr. Farley controlled the Vogtle facility based upon his involvement in (1)
controlling daily operations; (2) establishing and implementing nuclear policy
decisions; (3) employing, . supervising, and dismissing nuclear personnel; and
(4) controlling costs. Intervenor also asserts that numerous documents and
statements provided to the NRC regarding the organizational structure and
responsibilities for managerial control of the Vogtle facility were inaccurate or
incomplete because they do not show Mr. Mcdonald report'ng to Mr. Farley or
Mr. Farley functioning as the defacto Chief Executive Officer of the SONOPCO
Project.

Issues 1, 3-5, 7,10, !!,15,16,18, and 20-24 in Intervenor's Statement of
;

Issues assert Mr. Farley's role with daily operations of'the Vogtle facility and j
allege that GPC concealed this role and a defacto organization by providing the i

NRC inaccurate and incomplete information. As discussed in the Appendix to I

this Director's Decision, Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Farley functioned as the
defacto Chief Executive Officer of the SONOPCO Project is not supported by
the hearing record. Mr. Mcdonald did not report to Mr. Farley regarding GPC
licensed activities. The items cited do not demonstrate that Mr. Fwley exercised
control over licensed activities at GPC's nuclear facilities during 1.is involvement
in the SONOPCO Project. Rather, the record shows that GPC controlled the
daily operations of the Vogtle facility in accordance with a chain of command
extending from the Vogtle General Manager, through the Vice President of the
Vogtle facility, through the Senior Vice President-Nuclear Operations, through
the Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations, to the President and CEO of
GPC. A Nuclear Operations Overview Committee of the GPC Board of Directors

" Ahhough Intersenor idenufied 28 issues in tus statement of issues, two issues were tmth numbered 14A and
14B. and Intervenor presented no evidence or prop > sed rindings on issue 23.
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| conducted periodic reviews of the regulatory and operational performance of
( GPC's nuclear plants.

| . Issues 1, 9,15,17, and 20 of Intervenor's Statement of Issues (and page

| 4 of the October 1,1990 Supplement to the Petition) include allegations that
| hir. Fartcy controlled the Vogtle facility based upon his insolvement with
| establishing and implemenung nuclear policy decisions. As discussed in the

Appendix to this Director's Decision, the hearing record shows that nuclear
policy decisions for the Vogtle facility were established and implemented
by GPC, and there was no evidence that Mr. Farley established the outage,

'

philosophy or any other operational policies for the Vogtle facility. h!r. Farley's

|
limited involvement in a 1989 rate case matter before the Georgia Public i

Service Commission (i.e., his review of draft testimony regarding alternative
performance standards) did not indicate any control of GPC's nuclear operations
or licensed activities. Intervenor also provided no information that The Southern
Company hianagement Council acted as the SONOPCO Project board of
directors until the Project was incorporated.

Issues I,6,8,14A,14B,15,19,21,27, and 28 ofIntervenor's Statement of
Issues (and pages 1-3 of the October 1,1990 Supplement to the Petition), in-
clude assertions that Mr. Farley exercised control over nuclear personnel matters i

for the Vogtle facility because he (1) selected and approved GPC's management I
stafG (2) reviewed nuclear personnel in 1989 as evidenced by GPC Management
Cotacil's exclusion of nuclear personnel from its 1989 companywide review of I

management; (3) decided that Mr. Michael Barker, a GPC employee, would not
be unsferred from the SONOPCO Project to the Nuclear Operations Contract
Administration (NOCA) group in Atlanta; (4) prepared iur. Mcdonald's annual
performance appraisal; and (5) implemented changes in Vogtle personnel eval-
uations and pay, As discussed in the Appendix to this Director's Decision, the
record does not show that Mr. Farley controlled GPC nuclear facilities by em- I

ploying, supervising, and dismissing nuclear personnel, or that GPC provided |

inaccurate information to the NRC regarding Mr. Farley's involvement with per- !

sonnel matters. I

lssues 1,6,12,14A,148, and 17 of Intervenor's Statement of issues allege I

that Mr. Farley's control of GPC nuclear facilities is shown through budget and
personnel pay matters in that (1) Southern Nuclear, its predecessor, and The
Southern Company controlled GPC's nuclear budget since November 1988; (2)
Mr. Farley implemented changes in personnel evaluations and pay for Vogtle
nuclear operations personnel; and (3) the GPC Management Council did not
review GPC's 1990 nuclear operating budget. Intenenor asserts that inaccurate
and incomplete information was provided to the NRC regarding GPC's control
of budget and personnel pay matters. As discussed in the Appendix to tnis
Director's Decision, the hearing record does not support a conclusian that GPC i
misrepresented its budgets affecting the operation of GPC licensed facilities. )
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There is no indication in the hearing record that the particular process GPC used
to develop its budget is dispositive to Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Farley, The
Southern Company, or SONOPCO Project controlled the operation of the Vogtle
facility. Rather, the record shows that GPC was responsible for the costs of the
Vogtle facility. After review by GPC's Management Council, the operating and
capital budgets were approved by GPC's President and CEO, and the capital
budget was also approved by the GPC Board of Directors. The record does not
support that Messrs. Farley and Edward L. Addison, the President and CEO of
The Southern Company, approved GPC's nuclear budgets. As an Executive Vice
President of The Southern Company, Mr. Farley was involved in reviewing the
nuclear budgets as part of the normal process for preparing annual budgets in the
Southern system. Given The Southern Company's holding company status, Mr.
Addison's involvement in reviewing and providing guidelines and requirements
for adequate carnings and reasonable capital needs was appropriate, and did not
constitute control of operations at GPC facilities.

Issues I, 2,12,13,18.19, and 26-28 in Intersenor's Statement of Issues
contain assertions that GPC managers prwided inaccurate or incomplete infor-
mation to the NRC w hen describing its organization and plans to form Southern
Nuclear, and when responding to the petition. The alleged m:srepresentations
or omissions regard statements about (1) the Vogtle chain of command, (2) Mr.
Dahlberg's relationship with Vogtle site management, (3) Mr. Farley's respon-
sibilities as Executive Vice President-Nuclear of The Southern Company, (4)
the 1989 title of Mr. Dahlberg, (5) SONOPCO Project's control over the Vog-
tie facility since November 1988,(6) the composition of the GPC Management
Council, and (7) Mr. Farley's title in 1988. As discussed in the Appendix to this i

Director's Decision, the record shows that GPC provided some inaccurate or in-
complete information to the NRC when describing its organization and plans to
form Southern Nuclear, and when responding to the petition. This information
involved (1) the omission of Mr. Hairston when Mr. Mcdonald described the
Vogtle chain of command dunng a March 30, 1989 meeting (which was later |

corrected by GPC after reviewing the meeting transcript and was already accu-
rately depicted in the FSAR); (2) a 1989 FSAR organizational chart showing j

the position of Mr. Dahlberg as " Chairman and CEO" rather than " President i

and CEO"; and (3) GPC's April 1991 written response to the petition indicating
that the GPC Management Council included all senior vice presidents (which
was inaccurate because Mr. Hairston was not a member), and indicating Mr. |
Farley's title in 1988 to be Executive Vice President-Nuclear of The Southern I

Company (a position he did not assume until March 1,1989). While the NRC
expects licensees to provide complete and accurate information, the inaccurate
or incomplete information at issue here was of minor safety significance in
terms of the NRC Staff's understanding of the proposed license transfers, did
not mislead the NRC, and was not sufficient to warrant NRC enforcement action
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or conclusions that (1) GPC concealed an unauthorized role of Mr. Farley or a
defacto, unauthorized organization for control of GPC nuclear facilities; or (2)
GPC lacks the requisite character and integrity to be a licensee.

3. NRC Staff Testimony During Hearing on filegal Transfer issue

NRC Staff testimony (hereafter, " Staff") regarding the alleged illegal transfer
of control issue was jointly prt sented by Messrs. Frederick R. Allenspach,
an NRR technical reviewer who reviewed the Administrative Controls section
of the Vogtle Technical Specifications in 1987; Darl S. liood, the Licensing
Project Manager for the Vogtle facility; and John F. Rogge, Jr., formerly the
Senior Resident Inspector at the Vogtle site during the time SONOPCO and
Mr. Farley are alleged to have taken operating control of the Vogtle facility.
These individuals provided evidence based upon their own personal knowledge
and based upon their institutional knowledge derived from their work and their
relation to other members of the NRC Staff who perform activities relating to
the Vogtle facility encompassing the period 1987 to 1995.

The former Senior Resident Inspector's observation that GPC officials op-
erated the Vogtle facilities was particularly significant in that he and Mr. Al-
lenspach participated in the December 1988 inspection of the SONOPCO Project |
offices, interviewed GPC management, including Messrs. Mcdonald, Hairston,
and McCoy concerning the management chain of command through Mr. McDon- I

ald, along with the organizational structure and supporting role of the SONOPCO |

Project. Mr. Rogge concluded that GPC was in control of Vogtle operations and
|

that the changes in management personnel and organization begmnmg in 1988 1

did not affect GPC's control over Vogtle. He also concluded that the control
and direction of daily operations at the Vogtle facility were perfonned by the
onsite GPC employees under the direction of Mr. McCoy. Staff, ff. Tr. 2620,
at 4-6. Mr. Rogge's conclusions were based on the Vogtle FSAR statements,
the Vogtle TSs, and his interviews of Licensee personnel. Tr. 2159, 2716-17
(Rogge).

While the NRC did not inspect, or require to be reported, the number of times
that GPC's Executive Vice President-Nuclear communicated with the hesident
of GPC, the NRC Staff's focus regarding the conduct of operations is where
nuclear safety has its immediate and greatest impact, i.e., on the nuclear power
plant itself and its immediate management. Based on frequent visits and dealings
with Vogtle staff at the level of Vice President-Vogtle and the Vogtle General
Manager, plant operations appeared consistent with the organization described
in the FSAR. Tr. 2656-57, 2664 (Hood).

The NRC Staff witnesses' visit at the Vogtle facility and corporate offices
in Birmingham, Alabama, in September 1994 confirmed the accuracy of the
Updated Final Safety Analysis Report (UFSAR) descriptions and figures, and
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determined that GPC controlled operation of the Vogtle facility. Their conclu-
sions were based upon discussions with numerous managers of GPC, SNC, and
Southern Company Services, regarding their organizational re.;ponsibilities and
structure, including details of their respective employment and their involvement
with respect to the Vogtle facility, and discussions with the NRC's Resident
Inspectors stationed at the Vogtle facility regarding their observations of the
day-to-day control of the facility by GPC managers and the support services of
SNC and Southern Company Services employees. Staff at 9.

The NRC Staff witnesses were present throughout the hearing regarding the
illegal transfer issue, heard the evidence presented by all of the witnesses,
and Mr. Ilood was present during most of the depositions regaiding illegal
transfer. In their opinion, the hearing record disclosed no evidence to indicate
that the operating licenses for the Vogtle facility had been transferred by GPC
to SONOPCO Project or Southern Nuclear, or to otherwise alter the conclusion
in the partial Director's Decision, DD-93-8, that GPC controls operations at the

,

Vogtle facility. Tr. 2734 (Allenspach, Hood, Rogge).
In summary, the observations and testimony of key NRC Staff personnel

involved with regulatory oversight and technical review of Vogtle's conduct of
operations at the time of the alleged transfer of control indicate that GPC has
maintained control of Vogtle operations and licensed activities. The testimony
shows that the conduct of operations and support at the Vogtle facility has
proceeded, and is proceeding, consistent with the phased reorganizations that
were described at the outset to the NRC whereby Southern Nuclear will
eventually become the sole operator of the GPC nuclear facilities.

4. Conclusion

On the basis of the foregoing,I conclude that GPC has not transferred control
of the operating license for the Vogtle facility without the prior consent of the
NRC. While Intervenor identified some inaccurate or incomplete information to
the NRC by GPC, this inaccurate or incomplete information was either corrected
or not significant in the context of the numerous communications regarding the
three-phased 12ansfer and the NRC's focus on areas that directly impacted plant
operations and licensed activities. The inaccuracie.4 identified do not show a
pattern to deceive the NRC regarding the control of the Vogtle facility. Thus,
there is no basis to conclude that GPC either misled the NRC or lacks the
requisite character and integrity to be a licensee.
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C. Diesel Generator Reporting and Reliability issues (Petition ill!.3; )
License Amendments Proceeding on DG Issue)

Petitioners allege in the section 2.2% petition, and Mr. Mosbaugh contended
in the license amendments proceeding, that GPC Enowingly provided inaccurate,
incomplete, or misleading information regarding DG -ting resu!ts and reliabil-
ity (including the number of starts and the moisture content (i.e., " air quality")
of DG starting and control ait)" ir; 1990, as well as in April 1991 statements
regarding the knowledge and involvement of senior GPC officials with respect
to inaccurate 1990 DG information.32 The alleged inaccurate, incomplete, or
misleading information was provided in GPC's April 9,1990 presentation and
letter to the NRC (seeking pennission to restart); in the April 19,1990 LER on
the Site Area Emergency (SAE); in a June 29,1990 cover letter forwarding the
revised LER and addressing GPC's QA audit and DG recordkeeping practices;
in an August 30,1990 letter; in GPC's Petition Response of April 1,1991, as to I
Mr.11airston's involvement in developing false DG stait information during the

|
April 19,1990 telephone call and as evidenced by the actions of GPC managers I
when they became awale ofinaccurate start counts. Petition at 10-11; intervenor
Findings at 78-235 and 263-311.

Petitioners also claim that the inaccurate, incomplete or misleading informa- )
tion was conveyed in GPC's " White Paper" response during the August 1990

i

special teani inspection in that it (1) excluded Messrs. Hairston and McCoy ;

from the list of participants on the April 19,1990 telephorie call; (2) stated that 1

all revisions were reviewed by the Plant Review Board (PRB); (3) indicated
that Messrs. Jimmy Paul Cash (a Unit Superintendent) and George Bockhold i

worked together on the DG testing slide prepared for the April 9,1990 presen- j
tation to NRC: and (4) omitted Mr. Kenneth Burr, a Southern Nuclear corporate ;

engineer, from the list of individuals who wrote the April 9,1990 letter. At i

hearing,Intervenor Mosbaugh also cited GPC's failure to include Safety System I

Performance Indicator Data in GPC's April 9,1990 letter as another attempt to
mislead the NRC.

|

!

,

|
M The air quahty issues considered dunng the hcensing heanng concerned GPC's March-Apnl 1990 statements

to the NRC, including the NRC's incident Investiganon Teans (IIT). was whether GPC ofhenals were willful or |

trcklessly careless of the facts (as oppose I to complete and accurate): (a)in the statenwns in the Apnl 9 letter )
that air quahty was sanstactory tb) m the statenwns in the Apnl 9 letter that recently ohimned high dewpoint '

read ngs resulted from faulty mstrumenianan, and (c) in other communications with the NRC regarding high
dewpmnts Memorandum and order (Summary Disposition: Air Quality). dated Apnl 27.1995 (unpubhshed),
at 6-9. Intrevenor's claim that poor air quahty was the root cause of the DG failures that caused the sAE was init
within the scope of the heanng contenuon and is not considered in this Director's Decision. See id. at 6

32 The pennon stated that soNoPCO provided inaccurate false information. however, only corporate managers
at Mr. George Hairston's level (scruar Vice Presidem-Nuclear operanons) and above are othcers of both GPC
and SONoPCO/ southern Nuclear.
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'
01 conducted an investigation and issued a report in December 1993."

'01 concluded that: (1) the Vogtle General Manager deliberately presented
incomplete and inaccurate information to NRC in the April 9,1990 meeting
and letter with respect to DG starts and air quality measurements; (2) a group of
GpC ;nior managers conspired to submit a fdse statement in the April 19,1990
LER; (3) tL G e Senior Vice President-Nuclear Operations, with at least ai

[ minimum of careless disregard, submitted a false statement in the June 29,1990
, letter transmitting a revision to the LER;(4) the Vice President-Vogtle Project.

| with at least careless disregard, submitted a false and misleading statement in '

an August 30,1990 letter explaining why the April 9 letter was inaccurate; and
(5) the GPC Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations deliberately provided
inaccurate information in an April 1,1991 letter discussing panicipants in a late
afternoon conference call on April 19,1990.

The NRC Staff evaluated the results of the 01 investigation of the DG issues
and concluded that, contrary to section 50.9, GPC had provided inaccurate
and iticomplete information to the NRC on four separate occasions as a result
of an inadequate regard, individually and collectively, by a number of senior
GPC officials for complete and accurate communications with the NRC. The
performance failures involved in the violations constituted a Severity Level 11
problem as cited in the May 9,1994 Notice of Violation and the February 13,
1995 Modified Notice of Violation (wherein the NRC imposed a $200,000 civil
penalty)."

1. March 20,1990 Site Area Emergency

On March 20,1990, a worker accidentally backed a truck into a switchyard
support column causing a loss of offsite power at Vogtle Unit 1. At that time,
Unit I was in a refueling outage, and one of the DGs (DG-1B) had been removed

from service for a maintenance overhaul. The other DG (DG-1 A) was available !
and was called upon to start twice, but on both occasions failed to maintain
running speed. On a third attempt, the diesel started, restoring power 36 minutes
after the loss of offsite puer. This event prompted the declaration of an SAE.

On the same day as the event, GPC conducted several trouble 6ooting starts
on DG-1 A to determine, if possible, the cause of the e,ent. The dieel started
and ran without problems each of these times. The plant staff then shifted its
attention to the DG-1B in order to return it to service expeditioudy. As part

"The allegauon concermng $ SPI data was not subnuned to 01 until after the repon on DG statenrnts was
pubhshed of did not complete actmues on this assue due to the staleness of the issue and the airing of the matter j
at heanng tiefere settlenent was reached 1
M la t lip 94-t5. 39 NRC at 255-56, the Board ruled that allegatmns m the NRC's NoV nsued May 9.1994 !

were important to the admitted contentmn and wittun the scope of tir proceeding
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| of the effort to return the DG 1B to service, GPC perfonned a number of post-
maintenance starts and tests between March 21 and March 24. During these
tests, post-maintenance difficulties were experienced, including two failures of
the diesel to start on March 21 because of inadequate fuel in tae fuel lines after
diesel reassembly. In addition, during a run on March 22, DG-1B tripped on a
high lube un moperature signal; during a run on March 23, the diesel inpped
on low jacket water pressure and low turbo tube oil pressure signals; and during
a run on March 24, a high jacket water temperature alarm was received but the
diesel continued to run.

Immediately after the SAE, the NRC assembled an Augmented Inspection
Team (AIT), which arrived at the Vogtle facility on March 22, 1990. On
March 23,1990, the NRC issued a Confirmation of Action Letter (GPC Exh. '

11-4) to GPC that, among other things, confirmed that GPC had agreed not to
return Unit I to criticality until the Regional Administrator was satisfied that
appropriate corrective actions had been taken, so that the plant could safely
return to power operations. The letter also indicated that equipment involved
in the incident may be quarantined (minimizing personnel access to areas and

.

equipment consistent with safety) and that GPC could take any action it deemed
necessary to (1) achieve or maintain safe plant conditions, (2) prevent further
equipment degradation, or (3) test or inspect as required by the plant's TSs. A
quarantine order was subsequently issued by the NRC concerning DG equipment.
GPC Exh.11-65.

On March 24, Mr. William Shipman (General Manager-Plant Support)
and Mr. C. Kenneth McCoy (Vice President-Vogtle Project) discussed with
site personnel, including Mr. Bockhold (Vogtle General Manager) and Mr.
Mosbaugh (Acting Assistant General Manager-Plant Support), concerns that
these 'est results had raised about the pneumatic controls. The site was instructed
to make sure the NRC and the AIT participated in the troubleshooting activities
and received any documentation, and to obtain NRC concurrence before anything
was changed. Prefiled Testimony of C. Kenneth McCoy on Diesel Generator
Reporting issues, ff. Tr. 2839, "McCoy DG," at 3-4.

On March 25,1990, the NRC upgraded the AIT to an Incident Investigation
Team (llT)," composed of NRC and industry personnel and headed by the
NRC.

After recovery from the S AE, GPC assembled an Event Review Team to iden-
tify the root causes of the event and to determine appropriate corrective actions.
The Event Review Team included Messrs. Jimmy Paul Cash (Unit Superinten-
dent), Paul Kochery (Vogtle Engineering Supervisor-Operations Modifications),

"The results of dus mveshganon are docurnented m NURLG1410. " Loss of Vital AC Power and the Reudual
Heat Remmal System Dunng Mid-Loop operanons at Vogtle Umt i on March 20.1990."daird June 1940. Staff
Exh.11-46. at 1; see. e g., NURE G 1410. Appenda J (GPC Exh 11167).
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l
' Georgie R. Frederick (onsite Supervisor of the Safety Audit and Engineering

Review (SAER) group), and Tom Webb (Senior Licensing Engineer).
The NRC was informed of problems that occurred during the post mainte-

nance testing of DG-1B as indicated by a March 24,1990 memorandum by Mr.
Kendall (an AIT and llT member) that identified the March 23.1990 trip (Iow

{ ' jacket water pressure and low turbo oil pressure, also called start rumber 134)
as being significant.36 The NRC was briefed on GPC's troubleshooting plan for
additional testing of DG-1 A and DG-1B. Testing on DG-1B was conducted on

| March 27 and March 28, and included sensor calibration and replacement. testing
of the pneumatic logic controls, pneumatic leak testing, an undervoltage test, and
an operational surveillance. It resulted in DG-1B being declared operable on
March 28. The additional testing for DG-1 A, which was similar in scope, was

| performed between March 29 and April 1, at which time DG-1 A was declared

| operable. Additional starts on both diesels occurred after these tests, in order
to establish the reliability of the diesels.

At the NRC's request, GPC also examined whether the diesel control air
system could be the cause of the March 20 DG-1 A failure. GPC tested the
diesel air system for moisture and conducted a review of the control air filters.
High dewpoint readings were recorded on DG-I A on March 29 and additional
high dewpoint measurements were recorded on or about April 5-7,1990. GPC
eventually decided that most of the high readings were inaccurate.

On April 9,1990, GPC gave an oral presentation to the NRC in support of
GPC's request to return Vogtle Unit I to power operations after the SAE. In
response to an NRC request that GPC address DG reliability at the meeting,
Mr. Bockhold, the Vogtle General Manager, presented information on DG starts
since the SAE using a viewgraph slide, which listed the sequence of testing on
DG-I A and DG-1B and stated that there were "18 SUCCESSFUL STARTS"
for DG-1 A and "19 SUCCESSFUL STARTS" for DG-1B. GPC intended to

| convey to the NRC in the April 9 presentation (and the NRC understood)
'

'

that there were eighteen and nineteen "comecutive successful" starts without
problems or failures after the March 20 SAE. A written summary of the April
9 presentation was provided to the NRC in an April 9,1990 letter, "Vogtle

| Electric Generating Plant Confirmation of Action Letter," signed by Mr. Hairston
j and reviewed by corporate managers and Mr. Bockhold. The summary, the
i Licensee's troubleshooting efforts, and the NRC's inspection activities were

among the bases for the NRC's decision to authorize the restart of the facility
| on April 12, 1990."

|
i

36 An Apnl 6,1990 GPC hst of diesel starts from March 13 through Msch 23. which showed the problem starts
on Mach 22 and 23. was aho provided to the Irr.

I U NRC condmons ryarding the qaaranune of equipmeni mvolvid in the SAE and other nwasures to facihtaic
, the Ir!"s invesugahon of the event ihat were stated m the March 23.1990 Conrirmanon of Acuan txtier remamed

in effect.

1
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? 2, Diesel Generator Statements
l
i a. April 9,1990 Presentation and Letter

_
Intervenor alleged that GPC, by and through its officers and employees,

; knowingly, deliberately, and willfully submitted inaccurate information to the
NRC in an April 9,1990 oial presentation and letter reyarding the number of
starts of the DGs, Intervenor contended that (1) GPC submitted the numbers

| cighteen and nineteen successful starts with full knowledge that the numbers
! were incorrect, and (2) a typed " Cash List" that showed the inaccuracies was
I a backup slide that was circulated to corporate offices before the presentation.

See Tr. 8310,8313-15 (Mosbaugh); P cfiled Testimony of Allen L Mosbaugh,.
,

ff. Tr. 8263, "Mosbaugh," at 43-44; intervenor Findings 85-89. !
| In the Modified NOV issued February 13, 1995, the NRC Staff concluded

that, contrary to section 50.9:

[ljnfonnation provided to the NRC Region II Office by Georgia Power Company (GPC) in
an April 9,1990 letter and in an Apnl 9,1990 oral presentation to the NRC was inaccurate
in a material respect. Specifically, the letter states that: "Since March 20, the l A DG has

( been started 18 tinws, and the IB DG hae bem startd 19 Gmes. No failures or problems
have occurred dunng any of these starts"

| These statements are inaccurate in that they represent that 19 consecutive successful starts
without pmblems or failures had occurred on the IB Diesel Generator (DG) for the Vogtle
facihty as of Apnl 9,1990, when, in fact, of the 19 starts referred to m the letter associateu

with the IB DG at the Vogtle facihty, three of those starts had problems Specifically, Start
132 tripped on high temperature tube oil, Start 134 Inpped on low prer,ure jacket water and
Start 136 had a high temperature jacket water inp alarm. As of . 9,1990, the IB DG

.

had only 12 consecutne successful stans without problems or failures rather than the 19
|

represented by GPC. The same inaccuracy was presented to the NRC at its Region 11 Office
dunng an oral presentation by GPC on Apnl 9,1990.

The inaccuracy was matenal. In considenng a restart decision, the NRC was especially
interested in the rehabihty of the DGs and specifically asked that GPC address the matter
in its presentation on restan. The NRC rehed, in part, upon this information presented by
GPC on Apnl 9,1990 in the oral presentation and in the GPC letter m reaching the NRC
decision to allow Vogtle Unit I to return to power operation.

GPC asserts that the April 9,1990 presentation and letter contained incorrect
DG start-count information due to poor GPC internal communications and
personnel mistakes, including by Messrs. Cash and Bockhold, and it was not
due to indifference as to the need for accuracy. GPC August 30, 1990 Letter,

! (GPC Exh,11-18); GPC Response to NOV, dated August 2,1994 (Intervenor
Exh.11-105), at 2; Letter from C.K. McCoy to Mr. James I,ieberman, dated
February 1,1995 (GPC Supplemental Reply to NOV).

The NRC Staff found that the count errors were caused by performance
failures in collecting and reporting the data, and found no evidence that GPC

188

i

i



_. .. . _ _ . .

|
|

employees deliberately and knowingly submitted, or conspired to submit, in-
complete or inaccurate information. See Vogtle Coordinating Group Evaluation, l
Conclusions, and Recommendations, dated November 4,1994 (Staff Exh.11-50)
at 1-4; Testimony of David B. Mattnews, Pierce H. Skinner, and Darl S. Hood
on the Diesel Generator Issue (Staff DG Panel), ff. Tr.14,758, at i1; May 1994
NOV (Staff Exh.11-46); Modified NOV (Staff Exh.11-51). The Staff fcund that
the errors were caused by (1) Mr. Bockhold's failure in requesting the count to
instruct Mr. Cash as to his criteria for a successful start (without a problem or
failure)," the point at which to begin his count, and to assess the count data
provided to ensure that it was u hat he had requested; and (2) Mr. Cash's failure
in performing and reporting his count to ensure that the data provided were what |

Mr. Bockhold had requested. NOV (Staff Exh.1146) at 2-3; Staff DG Panel at |
4-5, i 1, I

The hearing record does not support Intervenor's position that the submission
of eighteen and nineteen successful DG starts reported to the NRC by GPC
in the April 9 presentation, and letter of the same date, were knowingly and

|willfully false." While recollections were not clear about events occurring 5
years earlier, Mr. Bockhold testified that he intended to present a number of
consecutiu success'ul starts as support for GPC s position that the DGs would
perform their intended function, and instructed Mr. Cash to review the operators'
logs and determine how many consecutive successful DG starts had been made
with no significant problems. Prefiled Testimony of George Bockhold, Jr., on
Diesel Generator Reporting Issues, ff. Tr. 3309, "Bockhold DG," at 6; Tr. 3422,
3424 (Bockhold). Mr. Cash (an experienced Unit Superintendent and member
of GPC's Event Review Team for the SAE) recalled that he was to determine
the number of starts after the event that were without significant problems."
Prefiled Testimony of Jimmy Paul Cash on DG Reporting Issues, ff. Tr. 4389,
" Cash," at 2, 3.

"The term '' successful start" was andnguous in that it was subject to sanous mrerpretations and is not dehned
by NRC in guidance documents such as Regulatory Guide 1.108 A count of successful starts without problems
or failures was dependent upon having a dehmtion for what consututed a successful start and the pomi at which to
begm the count 1r 6875 76 (Greene); Tr 592422 (Honon). see Tr 597s.99. 5%2. GPC witnesses had vanous
6nierpretanons of (1)" successful starts." (2) what consututed a problem start. and (3) when to begin the count,
rr 6475 (Gretae). Tr 3547 (Bockholdi;1r. 5922 %rton)
"Intervenor asserts that (1) the failure to uhhze estabhshed reuew and venhcanon procedures for the Apnl

9 letter and (2) the failure to subject the letter to PRH resiew is careumstanual evidence that corporate othetals
(who were both GPC and Southern Nuclear employees) wanted to keep the DG start mfommuon or the air quahry
informanon free of meamngful venficanon. Intervenor Imdings 130 159 While such acuons may have disclosed
problems in the count data. GPC's explanauon that the Apnl 9 leuer was not handled as rouune correspondence in |
order to expedite the drafting and reuew process is reasonable gnen that the TS do not reymre PRD review and I

its desire to expedite restart See Tr 2958 (McCoy) The nustakes eshibaed. however, are of regulatory concern |

as cned in the staff's enforcement action
"In tus June 14.1993 of interview. Mr Cash stated that he viewed a "ugmficant proolem" as somethmg that i

would have prevented the DG from runmns in an emergency of Exh.10. at 11. At heanng. Messrs Cash |
ar.d Bockhold considered a start successful wuhout s'Fmheant problems to be one where the diesel had started

t Continue:f)
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|

NRC personnel at the April 9,1990 meeting were aware of DG testing, but
did not know the number of consecutive successful starts of the I)Gs after March
20,1990. Tr.14,795 (Matthews); Hunt at 3-5. See Tr. 4949.d'

Although Mr. Bockhold (and other GPC personnel) were aware of problems
on the DG-1B during overhaul, he failed to adequately specify the starting point
for the count to ensure that the count did not include these problems and failed
to ensure that Mr. Cash, an experienced Unit Superintendent, understood his

.

criteria for " successful starts" without problems or failures. Mr. Bockhold did '

not determine the point at which Mr. Cash began his count (i.e., the specific start
number, date, or time) or whether his data included any starts with problems or
failures. The hearing disclosed no evidence that Mr. Bockhold or other GPC
personnel had any knowleJge as to the number of starts of the DGs on April 9,
1990, other than the Cash count that was among the materials assembled quickly
over the weekend prior to the April 9 presentationM

There is no evidence that a " Cash List" was a backup slide for the presentation
or that corporate and site personnel otherwise knew that the April 9 DG start
count was wrong? Mr. Bockhold assigned Mr. Cash to count diesel starts; Mr.
Cash did count diesel starts, and the numbers eighteen and nineteen presented
to the NRC on April 9 were incorrect (i.e., they should have been twenty nine
and twelve on DG-I A and DG-1B, respectively)." GPC ha3 admitted that the
violation occurred and Mr. Bockhold's role and responsibility in the underlying-
events. See Letter from Hairston to NRC, dated August 30,1990 (GPC Exh. ;

1 |

l <

properly and reached rated voltage and frequency Intervenor Exh 57 tGPC Interrogatory Response, dated Aug
9,1993L Tr. 3426 (Bockhold) These denmtions, however. were not used in any of Gl'C's Apol-August 1990

( conespondence regard:ng the DG start-count information
d' lor example, on Tuesday, Apnl 10, 1990, the d.sy after the meetinF between the NRC and GPC. Mr Rick

Kendall of the NRC's trT infor.ned GPC that he could not dupt case the Apnl 9 stan count and asked for the start
j

data GPC Exh.11-31. at 5. Preti ed Testimony of John Gilbert Aufdenkampe, Jr . on Diesel Generatur Reporung
1

issues (Aufdenkampe), ft Tr 4651, at 4-5.
|M While it is clear that the Apnl 9 start count was derived from Mr. Cash's efforu. there is confhcung evidence '

as te exactly what informatmn Mr Cash provided to Mr. Botkhold ou April 19. 1990. Mr Cash told Messrs.
Mosbaugh and Aufdenkampe (GPC ManaFer of Techmcal Sapporo that he gave Mr. Bockhold 'notals' and not
informauon on starts and stops. Tape 58 Transenpt (GPC Exh.11-2) at 36. Mr. Rockhold tesufied dunng fus of
meerview on August 14.1990, that Cash gave him start totals. 01 Exh.12 (Intervenor Exh. Il-13) at 8. Mr. Cash
stated in his August 1940 ol interview (Intervenor Exh 190L however, that he gave Mr. Dockhold toth total
stan numbers and a hst of stans. In his June 1993 of imerview. he said that although he could not recall specihc

i numbers, he gave Mr Bockhold the numbers greater than 18 and 19 of Exh 10. at 48 50. At the heanng he
could not remember exactly what count he gave Mr. Bockhold, but behaved he gave him the nurr.bers la and 19r

for DG-1 A and DG-IB. respecevely, or possibly 23 starts for IXLIB and 27 for DG% as was apparent from a
typed hsting of starts located by GPC m 1993 (Intervenor Exh 41 and GPC 23) See Tr 4447 48,4541. 4463-64
(Cash) Even though Mr. Cash stated that GPC Exh 11-23 was a typed versmn of his hst for Apnl 9. he was

| uncenaan dunng cross exanunauon and he could not recall having his handwntien hst typed or mcludmg starts
I pnor to March 20.1990, that were recorded on the hsung in hght of these statements. it is difheult to determine

what information Mr Cash provided to Mr. Bodhold.
U For example. Mr. Bockhold was not speci6cally told that the Apnl 9 (and Apnl 19) stan counts were wrong

unut Apnl 30 and May 2.1990, when Mr Mosbaugh gave him a hsung of DG starts that showed the errors. See
Bockhold at 14. Mosbaugh Apni 30, 1990 Memo (Intervenor Exh.11-29)

,

| "See August 30.1990 tetter (GPC Exh.11-18). Tables I and 2. The underreponmg of the DG-1 A start ccuut
was not relevant to the enforcement actmn.
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! !

11-18): Modified NOV (Staff Exh.11-51); GPC Supplemental Reply to the NOV,
t dated IWruary 1,1995.

In sum, the assertion that GPC deliberately provided false DG start informa-
|

| tion in the April 9 letter and presentation was not substantiated.
I

l

| b. April 19,1990 Licenser Event Report

! Mr. Mosbaugh alleged that a disputed portion of a taped conversation from the -
afternoon of April 19,1990 (Tape 58 Transcript (GPC Exh.11-2)) regarding the
draft LER, is evidence that a number of GPC vice presidents and plant personnel
engaged in a criminal conspiracy to intentionally submit false information to the,

! NRC in that GPC intentionally iterated the same false April 9 count information
to the NRC in LER 90-006. Tr. 8411-12,9982 (Mosbaugh). liis assertion is
based on his version of the following excerpt:

Shipman: Let's see. What other questions do we got? We got the stan thing straightened
out.

Itairston: (Interrupting) We got the starts - So we didn't have no, didn't have no inps?

Shipman: No, not, not .
i

McCoy: Let me explain. l'Il testify to ! hat.

Shipman: disavow. What else do we have Jack?

GPC Exh.11-2, at Il-14.
Mr. Mosbaugh also asserts that GPC tried to exclude him from the telephone

conversation taped m April 19,1990.
,

J
In the Modified NOV issued February 13, 1995, the NRC Staff concluded

'

that, contrary to section 50.9: !

1

[Ilnformation provided to the NRC by GPC in a Licensee Event Report (LER). dated Apnl
19,1990, was inaccurate in a material ,- spect. Specifically, the LER states: '' Numerous

j

sensor calibrations (including jacket water tempermures), special pneumatic leak testing, and '

multiple engine starts and runs were performed under vanous condittons. After the 3-20-
90 event, the control systems of both engines have been subjected to a comprehensive test
program. Subsequent to this test program, DGI A and DGlB love been started at least 18 i

times each and no failures or problems have occurred during any of these starts." !

These statements are inaccurate in that they represent that at least 18 consecutim successful
starts without problems or failures had occurred on the DGs for Vogtle Unit I (I A DG and
IB DG) following the completion of the comprehensive test program of the control systems
for these IX)s. when, in fact, followmg completion of the comprehensive rest program of the
control systems, there were no more than 10 and 12 consecutive successful starts without
problems or failures for I A DG and IB DG respectively.
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I
I 1he inaccuracy was matenal in that knowledge by the NRC of a lesser number of consecutive

successful Marts on I A DG and IB DG without problems or failures could have a natural
tendency or capabihty to cause the NRC to inquire further as to the reliabihty of the DGs.

i Staff Exh.11-51 at I and 20.
| Under 10 C.F.R. 6 50.73(a)(l), GPC was require ' - submit an LER, includ-

ing a descriptica of the event (10 C.F.R. 650.73(b)(1)) and a description of
correctise action taken (10 C.F.R. 5 50.73(b)(3)) by April 19,1990 (30 days

.

after the SAE).
I %c evidence does not support the claim that the above words from Tape

58 demonstrate a criminal conspiracy by high officials in GPC to present
i

false information to the NRC. Tapc 58 contains multiple, disjointed, jumbled, 1

and often inaudit le conversatians which do not demonstrate conspiracy to
; intentionally provide inaccurate information to the NRC. The NRC Staff found ;

that the taped statements were not sufficient to establish an intention to deceive or i

mislead the NRC.d5 Further, there was no evidence to support Mr. Mosbaugh's
claim that Mr. Mosbaugh joined the call late because GPC tried to keep him off
the call with corporate managers about the accuracy of the LER. See Mosbaugh
at 35, 48; Shipman at 5; Tr.10,932-33,10.976-77 (Shipman); and Tr. 4794-
4801, 5428 (Aufdenkampe).

On April 10, 1990, Mr. Mosbaugh becamu aware of the April 9 letter and
he and other site personnel (particularly Mr. Aufdenkampe) became concerned
that the statement that the " starts were without problems or failures" may have
been a material false statement to the NRC because of known DG failures after
the SAE. Mosbaugh at 32; Tr. 4752-53 (Aufdenkampe). Mr. Richard Kendall
of the IIT also asked GPC for data supporting the April 9,1990 DG start count
because he could not get the same numbers. IIT Telet nference Transcript,
dated April 10 (GPC Exh.11-31)." |

Mr. Webb, an engineer in the group that reported to Mr. Aufdenkampe (who j
reported to Mr. Mosbaugh), used the same diesel start language for the draft j
LER that was in the April 9 letter. McCoy DG at 10-11; Prefiled Rebuttal
Testimony of nomas E. Webb on Diesel Generator Reporting issues, ff. Tr.
13,096, "Webb," at 2-3; GPC Exh. II 171 B. Concerns about the accuracy of j
the count led the site to delete the start numbers from the draft LER and state i

I

d5 The NRC Staff version of the transenpt states:

Hairsson: We got the stans - o we Adn't have no. &dn't have no inps?
Shipnm No, not. not .
McCoy: [Inauable] three I'll lesufy to that

,

shipman: [Inau&blel &savow What else do we have Jack? i

GPC also offered a transenpi version of this exchange. The tape encerpt was plaved several tunes at the hearmg
in attempts for the Bond and the reporter to &scern the inao&ble poruons. wluch proved unsuccessful.
"No hstmg of start coums through Apnl 9 was ever locased among the volununous records und documents

collected by the Irr.
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that the diesels had been " started several times and no failures or problems
have occurred during any of these starts." Webb at 4. In response to a Plant
Review Board (PRB) comment on April 18, 1990, the phrase "several starts"
was replaced with "more than twenty times each" by adding April 10-18 starts
in thuontrol room logs to the numbers reported April 9. Webb at 5-7.47 PRB
Meeting ML. .. , 359 (GPC Exh.11-28) at 4; Webb at 5-6; Tr.13,211 (Webb);
Aufdenkampe at 2.

The site received notice on the morning of April 19,1990, that Mr. Hairston
wanted the phrase " greater than twenty" to be verified. Prefiled Testimony of
W. George Hairston, Ill, on Diesel Generator Reporting Issues, ff. Tr. 3531,
"Hairston DG," at 6; GPC Exh.11-25; Stringfellow at 2; Tr. 4058 (Stringfellow);
Tr. 4786-87 (Aufdenkampe); Webb at 6. The April 19 PRB, which was chaired
by Mr. Kitchens, Assistant General Manager--Operations and held that afternoon,
similarly advised that the phrase be verified, reworded, or deleted based on
verification efforts. Tape 57 Transcript (GPC Exh.11-1) at 15-16; PRB Meeting
90-60 Minutes (GPC Exh.11-29).

After the PRB meeting, Messrs. Aufdenkampe and Mosbaugh discussed the
draft LER by phone with corporate personnel and informed them that efforts
to verify the count were ongoing. Mr. Mosbaugh told Mr. Snipman (General
Manager-Plant Support for Vogtle Project) that there were two DG-1B trips

- (i.e., on March 22 at 12:43 (high lube oil temperature) and on March 23 at
17:31 (Iow jacket water pressure-turbine lube oil pressure)) which he believed
rendered the statement inaccurate. Tape 57 Transcript (GPC Exh.11-1) at 59-60.
Mr. Shipman emphasized the need to provide accurate information to the NRC,
regardless of what George [Bockhold] told [ Stewart] Ebneter. /d. at 62.

During another phone call regarding the LER between site and corporate
managers (Messrs. McCoy, Stringfellow, Bockhold, Aufdenkampe, Mosbaugh,
and Bockhold),'' Mr. McCoy also emphasized the need to be certain about the
number after completion of the comprehensive control test program (hereafter
" comprehensive test program" or "CTP"). Tape 58 Transcript (GPC Exh.11-2)
at 8. Mr. Bockhold strongly stated that his April 9 start counts were subsequent
to completion of a comprehensive test program and were " verified correct" by
Mr. Cash. GPC Exh.11-2, at 8. Mr. Bockhold's statement implied that GPC
need not await the completion of site serification effort- that Mr. Aufdenkampe
reported were under way to confirm the accuracy of the draft LER.*'

The term " comprehensive test program," however, was ambianous in that
GPC had not agreed upon definition of what it meant. Neither GPC personnel

dI Mr Webb devekred the hst of starts usmg control room logs knowmg that an rp-to-date start log with
numbered starts was not avaalable, Webb at 6 7.
'8 Tius call as often referred to as Tall A" on the Apnl 19 LLR.
''Mr Webb's effort to venfy the count was accomphshed from noon to around 4 p m. on Apnl 19 and was in

progress dunng the call
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! at the site on April 19, 1990, nor the NRC inspection staff present during
troubleshooting, knew the pararneters of the comprehensive test program (i.e.,

I when it began or ended).8" The change of the start-count wording from "since
March 20" to " subsequent to this test program" [the CTPJ defined a different

| starting point for counting diesel starts and created ambiguity in the LER. The
'

LER wortL ... .-hangeu without completely verifying the facts, or defining the
| time period involved as Mr. Webb (the individual who performed the count for

the LER) was never instructed to collect consecutive successful stafts without ;
problems or failures after the comprehensive test program.5' GPC's reliance on '

,
verbal assurances and inadequate verifications is a second instance cited in the

l violation of inadequate verification of information to be provided to the NRC.52
While it is unclear whether GPC site personnel realized that the list compiled
on . April 19,1990, showed that the April 9 start count of eighteen consecutive
starts on DG-1B was inaccurate, it is clear that the list neither confirmed nor
disputed the accuracy of the April 19 LER in that Mr. Webb was not told to get -

consecutive successful starts or starts after completion of the CTP. See Webb
List (GPC Exh.11-71); Webb at 6-8. ;

Even though Mr. Mosbaugh questioned the accuracy of the count after
the CTP, and suggested that it might not end until the undervoltage (UV)
test just before the DGs were declared operable, site and corporate personnel
(Messrs. Mosbaugh, Shipman, and Aufdenkampe), approved the LER with the
" comprehensive test program" language included. Tape 58 Transcript (GPC Exh.
11-2) at 8,22 23." The record shows that GPC's (including Mr. Mosbaugh's)
incomplete efforts to verify the LER start count caused erroneous DG start
information to be submitted in the April 19 LER. GPC insertei the words
" comprehensive test program" with the intent to exclude the problem starts
identified and relied on incorrect, verbal assurances that the count statement
"at least eighteen times each" was correct. /d. at 8-34. Although they
acknowledged during discussions of the draft LER that they did not know the

50
Among those who d d not know what the C'IP was, what its parameters were, or when it started or stopped

were Messrs Cash (Tr. 4471). McCoy (Tr 6995). Webb (Tr- 5696-97,13.12h), and sinngfellow (Tr. 4069-74) of
GPC; and Messrs Hurit (Tr 499.1), and Kendall (Tr 5036), the NRC employees w ho monitored diesel testmg and

]other activenes in 199fl
8' A copy of Mr Webb's bst (wnh notauons in black and red mk that were wntien by Mr, Mosbaugh at a later I

date) was adnutted as GPC Exh n-7E See Webb at 6-7 The hst contained some informanon on stops and starts. j
and noted that the tural starts idenufied through March 2G-Aprd 18 were 32 for DG-1 A and 27 for DG-1B. The
totals shown were not an accurate count of wnset uru successful araru wrrhour probleen orfaulures, but merely
totaled all starts idenufied after March 20 For example, the hit did not idenufy the probk m on start 136 or two
starts on the rnorning of Apnt 19 See GPC Exh 11-71 ("webb List"). August 30.1990 txtier (GPC Exh 11 18).
Attachnrrn B. June 29,1990 QA Audit Report (GPC Exh U-15). '

U
The audio tape recording of conversations on that date shows that Mr Mosbaugh and Mr. Aufdenkampe did

not emanune Mr webb's hst unul after the site had approved the revised languay in the EER See Tape 58 l
Transenpi it 8 34 The hst did not contain a notauon as to when a UV test was run on either diesel '

U Tius conversauon (i e., when the sne approved the last revisson of the llR, as often refened to as * Call B'
regarding the LER.

i

!
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i

starting point for the count (i.e., the first start following completion of the CTP),
1 Messrs. Mosbaugh, Aufdenkampe, and Shipman failed to clarify and verify

the starting point for the count of successful consecutive DG starts reported '

in the LER. Bere is no evidence, however, that any GPC or SONOPCO
| employee involved knew the exact number of starts following the CTP on April

| 19 or had a listing of starts (whether prepared by Mr. Cash or Mr. Webb)
j before the LER was approved." He inadequate verification efforts were Feared |
| toward defending information already provided to the NRC by changing the
! description of the period for the count (the CTP actually identified a subset of

the consecutive successful starts without problems or failures after the SAE).
GPC's lax verification efforts were caused in part by unjustified assurances by
Mr. Bockhold that information (which was assembled quickly using ambiguous
definitions) had been verified before being presented. As a result, GPC did not

| identify inaccuracies in the April 9 and April 19 start counts and the mistakes |
of Messrs. Bockhold and Cash in collecting and reporting the initial count. This !
failure was among those cited as a basis for the Seserity Level 11 violation !
against GPC. !

Therefore, the allegation that GPC employees, either individually or collec-
tively conspired deliberately to provide inaccurate information was not substan-
tiate 1.

c. Ju.te 29.1990 Cover Lener and Resised LER

, The Petitioners allege, as supplemented by Intervenor in the licensing hearing,
I that GPC deliberately submitted false infolmation to the NRC in a June 29.1990

cover letter to a revised LER, concerning the reasons for the error in the LER

i in that (1) Messrs. Hairston and McCoy knew that the information was false,
(2) neither Mr. Bockhold nor Mr. Cash informed Mr. Mosbaugh that there was I

a listing of the April 9 start data when Mr. Mosbaugh questioned t. e count, (3)
there were different reasons for the error stated in the various drafts of the cover
letter, (4) the Quality Assurance (QA) audit (which was the basis for some of
the statements in the cover letter to the LER Revision) was narrow in scope and
did not review all pertinent information, and (5) GPC was on notice that the
reason stated in the !ctter was false. Intervenor Findings 350-351; see Petition
at 10-11.

In the Modified NOV, the NRC found that. contrary to the requirements of
section 50.9, the LER cover letter, dated June 29, 1990, was inaccurate and
incomplete in material respects as evidenced by the following examples:

" Accurate informatmn was avalable m the Umt I Control teg which recorded the tirne and date of DG sints and
stops, and noted alarms and usher perunent infornunon Mr Cash had used this log and the Shift's Su-ervnor's
tag for the Apnl 9 counts j

I
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, The letter states that: "In accordance with 10 C F R. 50.73. Georgia Power Company (GPC)

| hereby submits the enclosed resised report related to an event which occurred on March 20.

| 1990. This revision is necessary to clanfy the information related to the number of successful i

diesel generator starts as discussed in the GPC letter daied Apnl 9,1990. *

1. The LER cover letter is incomplete because the submittal did not preside infonna-
tion recar+ag clenfication of the Apn! 9.1990 letter.

The incompleteness was matenal in that the NRC subsequently requested GPC to
make a subnuttd clar.fying the Apnl 9,1990 letter.

The letter states that: "If the entena for the completion of the itst program is understood
to be the first successful test in accordance with Vogtle Electnc Generating Plant (VEGP)
procedure 14980-1 " Diesel Generator Operabihty Test," then there were 10 successful
starts of Diesel Generator I A and 12 successful starts of Diesel Cencrator lit between the
completion of the tesi prograrn and the end of Apnl 19,1990, the date the LER-424/1990-06
was subnutted to the NRC. The number of successful starts included in the original LER
(at least 18) included some of the starts that were part of the test program. The difference
is attnbuted to diesel start recon! Leeping practices and the defimtion of the end of the test
program."

2. e last sentence in the above paragraph is inaccurate because diesel record keeping
prawices were not a cause of the difference in number of diesel starts reported in
the Apnl 19,1990 LER and the June 29,1990 letter. The difference was caused by
personnel errors unrelated to any problems with the diesel generator record keeping
practices.

The maccuracy was mr c. a* ir, %at it could have led the NRC to erroneously
conclude that the conect v c.~: es for the difference in the number of diesel
starts reported in the Apnl . 190 LER and the June 29,1990 letter had been
identified by GPC.

1 The last sentence in the above paragraph is also incomplete because it faded to
include the fact that the root causes for the difference in the nunber of diesel
starts reported in the Apnl 19. 1990 LER and the June 29, 1990 letter were
personnel errors. First, the Vogtle Plant General Manager who directed the Unit
Supenntendent to perform the start count (which formed the basis for the April 19
1990 LER) failed to issue adequate instructions as to how to perform the count
and did not adequately assess the data developed by the Unit Superintendent. In
addition, the Unit Superintendent made an error in reporting his count. Second,

5S , the General Manager forthe [ Acting Assistant General Manager-Plant Support J

Plant Support and the Technical Support Manager failed to clanfy and Serify the
starting romt for the count of successful consecutive DG starts reported in the
Apnl 19,1990 LER.

The incompleteness was matenal ha that, had correct root causes for the differ-
ence in the nunter of diesel starts reported in the April 19, 1990 LER and the

M The NRC corrected Mr. Mosbaugh's posmon designanon in a letter from Mr. LL. Milhoan. NRC, to Mr C K.
McCoy. GPC, dated March 13,1991
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June 29,1990 letter been presented. this information could have led the NRC to seek
i further infonnation.

Staff Exh.11-51, NOV at 2-3.

GPC asserts that the incomplete and inaccurate statements regarding the
,

reasons for the errors in the LER (and April 9 letter) were based or reasonable
attempts to provide an explanation based on the results of the QA audit

| report (GPC Findings at 140-63) and admits and accepts responsibility for the
! incompleteness of the letter (GPC Findings 285, 347). GPC maintains that DG

record. keeping practices contributed to the reporting of erroneous counts (noting
that the NRC Staff acknowledged that those practices may have contributed to
violations as esents unfolded). GPC Findings 286-291,

He NRC Staff viewed the performance failures of GPC site and corporate
personnel, particularly by those who were on notice of Mr. Mosbaugh's concerns
that the cover letter to the LER Revision was inaccurate and incomplete
(i.e., Thomas Greene, the Vogtle Assistant General Manager-Plant Support;
Michael Horton, the Vogtle Manager-Engineering Support: Mr. Frederick, the
Supervisor-SAER: and Harry Majors, a Licensing Engineer for the Vogtle
Project) as serious, but found that there was insufficient evidence to conclude
that GPC intentionally provided inaccurate or misleading information. See Staff
DG Panel at 6-11; NOV (Staff Exh.11-46); and Modified NOV (Staff Exh.
11-5 1).

(1) " PRIOR" KNOWLEDGE OF MESSRS. IIAIRSTON AND Mc'70) AND
NARROW-SCOPE At:DIT

I
Petitioners are correct that the QA audit was narrow in scope. There is no

evidence, however, that either Mr. Hairston or Mr. McCoy knew that incomplete
and inaccurate reasons were stated in the June 29,1990 LER Revision cover
letter as to why the LER contained erroneous start count information" or that
they intended to deceive the NRC. On the contrary, as described below, the
events leading to the development of the letter show that these GPC officials
and other GPC employees, endeavored, albeit unsuccessfully, to provide correct
information.

On April 20,1990, Mr. Webb was surprised by the LER phrase " subsequent
to the test program" and thought the LER could be inaccurate because, on
April 19, he had identified only about ten or eleven starts after operability of

"For exampic. both Mr Hairston and Mr. McCoy acknowledged dunng the heanng - as GPC conceded an its
resporue to the enforcement action - that errors in the April 9 letter and presentauon and the Apnl 19 LER were
also due to inadequate performance by GPC personnel, including Meurs Cash and Bockhold See McCoy DG
at 21; Tr.11.557.59 (Hairston). GPC Supplemental NOV Reply at 2-3.
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the DGs, Webb at 8-9. Mr. Moshaugh later generated his own list of DG-1B
starts using the Unit 1 Control Log, the Shift Supervisor's Log. and the Diesel
Start Completion Sheets, and, on April 30 and May 2,1990, he informed Mr.
Bockhold and Mr. Aufdenkampe that the April 9 ano April 19 counts were
wrong and for different reasons " Tr. 5211-12 (Mosbaugh); Tape ~15 Transcript
(GPC Exh.11-34 and Staff Exh.11-38) at 31. Mr. Bockhold instructed Mr.
Mosbaugh to see that the LER was revised and indicated he might correct the
April 9 start count in a planned mid May 1990 submittal on DG component
testing. Mosbaugh at 37; Tape 90 Transcript (Staff Exh.11-14) at 1-2; Bockhold
at 15.

By May 8,1990, when Mr. Mosbaugh chaired the PRB in his capacity as
Acting Assistant General Manager-Plant Support," the PRB approved a draft
revised LER which stated that- ,

l
1

After the 3 20-90 event, the control systems of both engmes were subjected to a comprehen-
sive test program which culminated in control logic tests on 3 30 for DGI A and 3 27-90 for |
DGlH. Subsequent to this test program. DGl A and DGIB had been started 11 times each I

'
(through 4-19-90) and no failures or problems have occurred during any of these starts

PRB Meeting 90-66, GPC Exh.11-37. Other revisions followed that updated
the consecutive successful starts through May 14,1990,* and were transmitted
to the corporate office licensing engineer who was responsible for drafting the
revised LER. Webb at 9-10; Tr. 4N7-50 (Stringfellow).

The site's inability to come up with a firm count number frustrated Mr.
Ilairston, however, in that he had to report to the NRC Regional Administrator,
Mr. Stewart Ebneter, on May 14, 1990, and on June 14, 1990, that tne start-

"Mr. Mosbaugh gave Mr Bockhold a handwntren hst of tX]-1B starts that conhrmed that there were only 11
DG-1B starts aher the -UV Test" (the end of the CTP in his opiniont Moshaugh at 36; Intervenor Exh 11-29
Tape 90 Transenpl(Staff Ed 11-14) at H He also told Mr. Bockhold that the Apnl 9 and Apul 19 coums were
wrong for d:fferent reasons.
"Dunng a May 10,1990PRB mecung (PRB Meeung Minutes 90-67 (GPC Enh.11-39)). Mr Mosbaugh taeung

as Gaarman of the PRB) assigned Mr. Bockhold the acuon of deternuning how the Apnl 9 lener would be
corrected, but on May 24. 1990, Mr. Bockhold closed the achon nem wnhout correcung the Apnl 9 lener

,

Aufdenkarr:pe at 17; Moshaugh at 38. Intervenor Eth !!-33 Mr Mosbaugh beheves he was removed from the j

PRB due to tus concerns about false staienrnts to the NRC. Mosbaugh at 37-38. The heanng record revealed j
only that, on May 10.1990. Mr Mosbaugh was removed from the PRB anj became a Technical Assistant to Mr ;

Bockhold t.ecause Mr. Greene resumed tus positions as Assistant General Manager-Plant Support aher attending i

Semor Reactor Operator training Prefded Tesumony of Thomas V. Greene. Jr.. on thesel Generator Reporung
issues, ff Tr 6716 (Greene), at 1.
"It was standard pracuce for an LER to update informatmn presiously provided to the NRC. Tr 13.137 (webb)

GPC ulumately deci ed to forego the term successful start and report vahd tesis and failures. as derined in RGd

| 108, extending through June 7.1990. Revised Prefiled Rebuttal Tesumony of Thomas E webb on Diesel
Generator Reporting issues. "webb Reused." rf. Tr 13.168 (webb). at 9-13. See LER Revision and Cover L.etter
(GPC Exh 11-16). GPC Eths. Il-171L through 171T. This approach, while providing unambiguous informanon
regarding DG starts, did ht:le to correct the statement of consecuuve starts without problems or failures through
Apnl 9 or 19 in that se reported starts using a different entenon and over a different penod than stated in the
pnar docunrnis. The cover letter only corrected the Apnl 19 start coum (10 and 12 for DG-1 A and DG-IB.
respecovely) based on the nar ow-scope audit
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count numbers were revised. Mr. Hairston directed Mr. McCoy to keep the
NRC informed of efforts to correct the count a" Hairston DG at 9-13; Tr. 3214
(McCoy).*i When he saw that the draft LER revision and cover letter contained
no explanation as to why the start data were different, Mr. Hairston directed

that a QA audit be conducted to determine (1)|he correct start count and (2)
the reason GPC could not get the number straight. " ston DC at 11-12: Tr.
3631 (Hairston). He also informed Mr. Ebneter that he would submit a revised
LER after completion of the QA audit. Hairston DG at 1213.

There is no basis to conclude that either Mr. Hairston or Mr. McCoy knew that
the information provided in the June 29 cover letter was false. Mr. Hairston's
actions demonstrated a concern for accuracy and an attempt to discern why
erroneous information was given to the NRC. He and Mr. McCoy read the audit
report and the table of starts appended to it to ensure that the count information

was correct. Hairston DG at 14. Mr. Hairston also instructed that the QA
audit results be provided to the Resident Inspector at the Vogtle site and that an
explanation of the differences in the count numbers between the LER and the
revised LER be explained in the transmittal letter to the revised LER. Hairston
DG at 14-15. Mr. Hairston and Mr. McCoy adopted the implied finding in the
audit report that DG record-keeping practices were the source of the erroneous
information provided on April 19. Hairston DG at 16-17; McCoy DG at 19-21.

Unfortunately,(1) the narrow scope of the QA audit resulted in GPC selecting
an incorrect or incomplete reason for the LER error; and (2) neither Mr. Hairston,
Mr. McCoy, nor the other GPC employees involved neticed that the QA audit
showed that the April 9 start count was wrong.

The audit's failure to examine the performance of site personnel in collecting
and reporting the initial counts rendered GPC unprepared to reach a complete
assessment of the causes of the April 9 start-count errors. There was no evidence
that the narrow scope of the audit was part of an effort to deceive the NRC.

The QA audit report specifically stated that the audit was narrow in scope
1

and did not identify a specific cause for the LER count errors, but implied I

they were caused by the failure to specify a starting point for the count and

i
*0 0n June 15.1990. Messrs Aufdenkampe and Mosbaugh told the NRC resident inspectors about the errors

and that the correct numbers depended on uhen you stan counung. Aufdenkampe at 18 Afier Messrs. Brockrnan
and Lbneter received calls that the DG siart informanon mas incorrect. the NRC met to discuss whether the
erroneous count was cause to reconuder the Apnl 12 restan decision. Tr.15JI9-20.15.33431,15.332 (Reyes).
Mr. Reyes, the Iseputy Regional Adrruru>trator for Regmn 11. recalled that eight stans would have been sufhcient
in has optruon rr 15.336-37 (Reyes) Mr Reyes beheved that GPC's tesung. correcove actmns and confirmatory
tesung after the event provided assurance that problems with the DGs dunng the sAE had been sesolved. Tr.
15.322-23 (Reyes).
*'intervenor assened that the phone call was too short to convey DG informanon and anstead was abwt an

,

eveis at Hatch occumng on that date. Intervenor hndings 339-346. Such specuhuson is not surhetent to rebut
i

GPC's tesumony regarding these calls
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the lack of up-to-date DG record-keeping practices. 2 The QA audit report |

bowever, alluded to this faulty conclusion without confirming that accurate start
data were not otherwise available in April 1990 (i.e., from the Unit 1 Control
Log that Mr. Cash had also used, which, unlike the Shift Supervisor's Log,
contained sufficient information to derive accurate count data).63 The audit was ;
also inadeone h scope because it did not examine the perkrmance of Mr. |
Bockhold and Mr. Cash in collecting and reporting the initial April 9 data (the ;

failure to define the criteria for " successful start" and the period for the count), ;

the asserances of Mr. Bockhold that deterre! fite verification efforts, or the 1

failure of site and corporate personnel to define the CTP" Thus, the audit failed ]
to identify their inadequate performance as causes for the erroneous information

i

reported on April 9 and in the April 19 LER.
|

While better DG record-keeping practices (i.e., no delays in routing or
completing start completion sheets, and an up-to-date DG Start Log with starts
numbered) would have made count information easier to retrieve, it is clear that .i
previous erroneous start counts were caused by (1) the performance failures )
of Messrs. Bockhold and Cash in initially collecting and reporting the data
(particularly with respect to the ambiguous term " successful start" and the
undefined period for the countf5 and (2) GPC's decision to reiterate the count
(as modified by the term CTP) without completing adequate verification efforts.
There is no evidence that Messrs. Hairston and McCoy were specifically aware
of this cause of the errors, as there was no evidence that Mr. Mosbaugh's reasons j

for believing the letter was inaccurate were ever communicated to them. Thus,
there is no basis to support Mr. Mosbaugh's assertion that GPC intended to
mislead the NRC."

"2 1he DG Stan Log. compiled from completion sheets hlled out by operations personnel and reviewed by the DG
Engmeer. Mr. Stokes. was not up to daie on Apnl 19 as there were delays in the rouung of the Completmn Sheets
from the operators to the Engmeenng Support Department (hea&d by Mr. Michael w. Horton) and operators
had not Alled out a sheet every ume lhe DG was started. Prehled Tesumony of Georgie R Iredenck on Diesel
Generator Reporung issues. ff Tr. 4125. "hedenck." at 7.

63 Pursuant to GPC pmcedures, the Umt I Control leg was to contan the start Imv! stop ume, and any signi6 cant
status changes for each DG start Procedure 10001.C. Logkeepmg (staff Exh 1131) at 2. Tr. 4232 the&nck)
The starts with problems and/or failures (Starts 132.134. and 136) were all recorded in the Umt I Control Log
(Staff Enha tl-23.1124). Tr. 4232 (hedend) The counts reponed in the Apnl 19 LER (and the Apnl 9 letter
start counO included starts before the operabihty test was conducted
"Mr. Rederkk was aware that Mr Cash had prepared the informauon for Mr. Dockhold's presentanon. and

had assumed that a separate count had not been made for the LER. Mr he&nck had not contacted Mr. Cash
dunng the audst to avoid baasing the results of the audit hedenck at 912. Tlus approach, while reasonable from
an auditor's perspecove, was not prudent given the performance problems associated with callectmg the DG start
counts and Mr Mosbaugh's statements to Mr. he&nch carly in the audit penod that he should exanune the role

ofprwnel ermrs in the crroneous counts. Tape 160 Transcnpt (Suff Exh 1116) at 24.
* Git ds! ror denne what constituted a " successful start without problems or failures" in the audit report and

did not grer on a Jenniuon unni the August 30. 1990 letter that subnuned accurate DG-l A and DG-lB start
counts for Apnl 9
" Messrs Bockhold. McCoy, and Hairston also failed in their review of the document to ensure that informanon

provided to the NRC in the June 29 cover letter was complete due to their failure to "clanfy" the Apnl 9 letter
and to provide a relevant discussion of the start count
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| Even though senior managers may not be intimately familiar with site |

| activities, the NRC expects that they will ensure that adequate care and attention
are given to written and verbal communications with NRC. When they do j

! become personally involved and have information made available to them (i.e.,

| the audit table showing the April 9 start count was wrong), they should take )
| necessary steps to ersure that inaccurate mformation is promptly corrected. |
|

'

i

| 12) GPC NOTIFIED TilAT TIIE LER COVER LFTTER WAS FAISE AND
j! iscO5tPLETE

Petitioners are correct that GPC was on notice that the draft LER was

| inaccurate and incomplete. Statements made by Mr. Mosbaugh in conversations
| with a number of GPC employees substantiate this claim. This fact, howeser,

does not dictate a conclusion that GPC intended to submit false information
to the NRC. Rather, it is another example of inadequate performance whereby

| GPC failed to correct erroneous and incomplete information. <

On June 29,1990, during a phone call with corporate personnel, and polling |
PRB members, on the LER Revision and transmittal letter, Messrs. Frederick,
Greene, Horton, and Harry W. Majors (a corporate licensing engineer for the
Vogtle Project)*7 did not fully consider and resolve the concerns raised by Mr.
Mosbaugh during the polling of the PRB members that (1) he letter failed I

to clarify the DG starts reported on April 9, (2) DG record-keeping practices
were not a cause of the difference in the DG starts reported in the April 19
LER because adequate information was available when the counting errors were
made, and (3) the erroneous counts resulted from personr " mors in developing
the count. Tape 187 Transcript (Staff Exh.11-18) at 2-28. Their actions played

,

' a part in GPC submitting incomplete and inaccurate information in the revised
LER. |

Site personnel were aware, as of June 15,1990, that (1) Mr. Hairston ;

was concerned about the erroneous start counts because he had attested to the |information later found to be inaccurate, (2) site verification efforts had been
1

inadequate and relied primarily on hearsay, and (3) Mr. Hairston planned to )
explain in the cover letter to the revised LER or elsewhere why the LER was |

Iwrong" and what corrective action was taken to prevent recurrence in the future.
Tape 157 Transcript (Staff Exhs.1135, ll-35A) at 10-13.

"Mr. Majors was to complete the LLR revismn padage and ensure that the DG start counts were consistent ,

with the QA audit results Prefiled Testunony of Hany W. Majors on Diesel Generator Reporung Issues. ff. Tr |

6212. "Mators." at i.
M one of the last drafts of the cover lener to the revised LER stated that the revised t1R was being subnuned "to

correct information related to the nurnber of successful Diesel Generator starts subsequent to the comprehensive
test program as discusaed in the LER and e'+ Apnl 9 kiter." GPC Exh Il 17tT. The staMm at was not in the
final cover letier.
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Mr. Frederick, the onsite Supervisor of the SAER group, who reported to a
corporate manager in Birmingham, supervised the audit conducted June 11-
29, 1990, which he understood was to determine accurate numbers for the
LER start counts." His staff reviewed DG test data sheets generated during
troubleshooting, maintenance, and surveillance testing, as well as the Unit i
Shift Supervisor's Log kept in the control room and the Dical Start Log (wnh
numbered starts) maintained by the DG system engineer. Frederick at 4-5; QA

| . Audit Report, dated June 29.1990(GPC Exh.11-15).* Unable to identify a GPC
'

definition of "CTP," the report concluded that the CTP ended upon completion
of the operability run pursuant to Vogtle surveillance procedure No.14980. In
reaching this definition, Mr. Itederick reasoned that the test program ended once
the machine was declared operable. Thus, the report concluded that there were

; ten and twelve consecutive successful starts on DG-I A and DG-1B, respectively.
as of April 19. Frederick at 6-7; GPC Exh.1115.

| Messrs. Horton, Frederick, Greene, and Majors were specifically notified
about Mr. Mosbaugh's concerns regarding the accuracy and completeness of the
letter, but failed to resolve them. Mr. Frederick knew the audit was narrow in
scope, that the audit had not identified the specific cause of the error in the LER,
and had been notified that he should examine the personal errors of Messrs. Cash

| and Bockhold, but unreasonably relied on his narrow-scope audit and dismissed
| the concerns raised by Mr. Mosbaugh.7 Mr. Horton, a voting PRB member,
| thought the June 29 cover letter statement about DG record-keeping practices was

i inaccurate because the DG Start Log was not used, but abandoned this argument
when informed that Mr. Hairston drafted the language.72 Messrs. Majors and
Greene too quickly dismissed the concern that the letter was incompl-te in that it

j did not " clarify" the April 9 count. Further, Mr. Greene, faced with a unit down,
'

adopted the corporate view rather than resolving the concerns of an individual
who had been personally involved in the development of the LER. See Tape
187 Transcript (Staff Exh.11-18) at 1-28.

i

|

" Tins was the stated purpose of the au&t and ed not implenrnt Mr Hairston's instrucuon that the rea ons for )
the error also be deternuned
"The Petmoners assen that delays in completmg the revised L.LR are evidence that GPC tned to mislead thei

'
NRC. There was no record evidence to support this proposmon Rather, the record revealed inept and protracted

, GPC efforts to arnve at updated counes and Mr H.urston's decision to have the revision await the results of the
l QA su&t. Compicuon of the ad&f was delayed due to &fficuiry in locanng the perunent records (the set in the

vault was not complete and up to date) and sone records (e g., the DG Completion Sheets. wiuch are routed
through the plant nuul system) were not aH located until the end of the suet. Fredenck nt 5-6; QA Audit Report,
GPC Exh.11-15 tMcCoy M). Both docunents were issued on June 29.1990.

78 Mr. Redenck later stated that (I) record keeping and the personal errors of Mr. Cash in makmg his count
and Mr Bockhold in instrucnng ham also contnbuted to the error and (2) as he was unaware of Mr. H.urston's
instrucuon for the tu&t to deternune why rmstakes were made, he had hnuted the root-cause deternunanons (e g.,
madequate trasmng, inadequate procedures) Tr 4270 7 6. 4274 (Fredenck).

72 in his DFl response and during the heanng. Mr Horton accepted responsibihty as a PRB member for the
inaccuracy in the June 29 cover letter (e g , Tr. 5897) and adtruried that tw had not adequately addressed Mn
Mosbaugh's concerns (Tr 5942).

,

|
|
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The hearing record and DFI responses indicate that Messrs. Horton, Frederick,

Greene, and Majors failed to resolve the concerns of accuracy and completeness
that were raised by Mr. Mosbaugh due to a combination of factors, including the
fact that (1) Mr. Mosbaugh challenged language that was personally drafted by
Messrs. Hairston and McCoy, (2) Mr. Frederick held strongly to his belief based
upon a narraw-scope audit that DG record-keepmg ned the errors m the
DG record-keeping practices explanation appeared reasonable," and (4) they
believed Mr. Mosbaugh's opinions were entitled to little weight. See Staff Exh.
Il-18; Frederick at Il-12; Horton at 5-6; Majors at 4-8; Greene at 4-8; Tr. 6913
(Greene); DFI Responses: Frederick at 8-10, Horton at 2-5, Majors at 4-11,
Greene at 5-13.

The actions of the individuals involved did not meet NRC expectations for
ensuring that information communicated to the NRC is complete and accurate
in all material respects. Their actions show a reluctance to question information
developed at the corporate office (unless they had direct information to the
contrary). They do not show, however, a concerted effort to misicad the NRC."

(3) MULTIPI.E EXPLANATIONS FOR DG STAIG COUNT ERRORS

Petitioners claim that the various explanations regar ling the DG start-count
information that appeared in drafts of the cover letter to LER revision indicate
that GPC endeavored to mislead the NRC. Petition at 11-12. The record shows
that the drafts were part of GPC attempts to defend or explain previous DG
start-count information without fully understanding what caused the errors. The
allegation of intentional deception was not substantiated.

GPC's failure to resche concerns raised about the accuracy of DG start-count
information both prior to and on June 29, 1990, resulted in site and corporate
personnel believing that the April 19 LER was sufficient to clarify the April 9
count as they did not realize that the numbers for, and interval of, the counts
were different. GPC had not yet defined what constituted "a successful start
without a problem or failure" and did not recognize that the LER Revision

D A single source document hke a t0 Start Log with compleuon sheets and numbered starts would have rnade
the task of assembhng and examitung the start data casiet. Aufdenkampe at 19-20. McCoy at 19-21. The heanng
revealed that the updated DG start leg Ohrough May 2.1940) (staff E.sh Il-22) did not record the problem
dunng DG 1B start 136 and recorded at and starts 132 and 134 as successful starts Tr 4230 (Rederick) and Tr.
6879-80 (Greene).
U in heanng tesumony and in Dil resp. nses. GPC employees often asserted that GPC failed to nret us

obbgations undet secton 50 9 due to Mr Mosbaugh's acuons. Eg. DFl Responses (Fredenck ai 410; Greene at
8.101); Majors at 7-10. Bockhold at 8-9. GPC at 4 6,12) While the enforcement acuon idenuhed Mr Mosbaugh
as being among the employees who contnbused to the Seventy inel Il problem, blanung Mr M >sbaugh detracts
from nramngful exanunauons of the source of GPC's errors and discourages accountabibty and responsbihry
Also, if GPC had adequately resolved Mr. Mosbaugh's claims, m June 1990, that an exanunanon of actons by
GPC personnel was necessary to understand and correct errors, it nught not have taken unut August 30, IWO. to
get an accurate count for Apnl 9.
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count of valid starts through June 7 did not clarify the start data presented m ;,

the April 9 letter and April 19 LER. The reliance on different types of starts for
'

a different interval and the various explanations set forth in the drafts epitomize
GPC's failure to adequately investigate the basis for the information originally,

conveyed on April 9 and to determine why errors were made. The use of the4

term " clarify" N the cover letter to the LER revision and ignorance regarding
'{'

the cause of misinformation made it difficult for various GPC managers and
i

their subordinates to provide a consistent explanation for the mistakes. The |

DG record-keeping explanation adopted was based on the QA audit that was
not adequate to explain the causes of the count errors. The record contains
no evidence of intentional efforts to deceise the NRC, but ample evidence of
evolving explanations showing GPC's reluctance to admit its mistake, promptly
correct the misinformation, and identify the multiple performance problems of
senior GPC personnel before April 9 and April 19.

|'

(4) SUhthtARY

Re record shows that (1) GPC was clearly aware, as early as May 2, that |
the April 9 letter and April 19 LER were incorrect and (2) GPC failed to take
sufficient actions to correct the April 9 letter and determine the reasons for the
e: Tors in the two submittals. While GPC undertook efforts to correct the LER,

! it narrowly focused on that submittal and did not examine the actions of the
individuals involved or determine whether accurate information was available

| from plant records.
The failure of GPC to correct the DG start counts in the Apri! 9 letter and,

'

to provide complete reasons for the inaccurate DG start counts in the LER, was

; in part due to the erroneous belief that the two submittals addressed the same
count information given that the April 19 start count was derived from the April
9 presentation. There is no evidence that any GPC employee knew the record-

: keeping statement was false or incomplete and no evidence of any . ; liberate
; efforts to conceal information from the NRC.

d. August 30,1990 lxtter
i

Intervenor contends that GPC deliberately (or with careless disregard) pro.
vided inaccurate or incomplete information in an August 30,1990 letter to tha
NRC in an effort to " cover up" problems in developing the April 9 letter, in
particular the (1)" top-down" drafting of the letter, (2) contradictory public state-
ments by Mr. McCoy, and (3) the steering of the August 30,1990 PRB meeting
that approved the letter. Mosbaugh at 59-60, Tr.10,394-95 (Mosbaugh); Inter-
venor Findings at 213-20.
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[ In the Modified NOV, the NRC cited GPC for two instances in which
'

inaccurate and incomplete information was provided in the August 30, 1990
letter:

The letter states that. "The confusion in the Apnl 9th letter and the original LER appear to
be the result of two factort First. there was confusion in the distinction between a successful!

| start and a valid test. . Second, an error was made by the indisidual who performed the
count of DG starts for the NRC Apnl 9th letter."t

1. These statements are inaccurate in that confusion between a successful start and a j

valid test was not a cause of the error regardmg DG start counts which GPC made j
in its Apnl 9,1990 letter to the NRC. !

The inaccuracy was material in that it could have led the NRC to erroneously i

j conclude that the correct root causes for the error in the April 9,1990 letter had )
| been identified by GPC.

j
l

<

, 2. The r.tatements are also incomplete. While an error was made by the Unit
j

! Superintendent who performed the count of diesel starts for the April 9.1990 ;
'

letter, the root causes of the error in that letter were not completely identified i

by GPC. Specifically. the Vogtle Plant General Manager who directed the Unit
Supenntendent to perform the stan count failed to issue adequate instructions as
to how to perform the count and did not adequately assess the data developed by
the Unit Supenntendent. In addition. the Umt Supenntendent did not adequately
report his count to the Vogtle Plant General Manager.

The incompleteness was matenal in that, had the correct root causes for the error m
the April 9,1990 letter regardmg DG start counts been reported. this information ;

t.ould have led the NRC to acck funher infunnation. i

GPC contends that the inaccuracies in the letter did not result from wrong-
doing on the part of any GPC employee, but acknowledges that Mr. Bockhold
should have taken greater care with respect to the letter and allowed greater
involvement by his staff. GPC contends that any misstatements or omissions
were unintentional. See GPC Findings 398-400.

The NRC Staff found no evidence that showed GPC deliberately provided
inaccurate and incomplete information in the letter, but found that Mr. Bock-
hold's actions and inactions as a senior manager contributed to the perpetuation
and escalation of errors and omissions, and that Mr. Bockhold's management
style rendered the performance of others ineffective. See Staff Exh. II-51 (cover
letter) at 2-3; Staff Exh.11-49 (DFI regarding Bockhold) at 9-10.

,
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(1) " TOP-DOWN" DRAITING OF AUGUST 30 I.E' ITER

During an Operational Safety Team Inspection conducted from August 6
to 17,1990, to examine the technical validity and safety significance of the !

allegations submitted to the NRC, see Intervenor Exh.11-83, the NRC informed i

GPC that the June 29,1990 submittal failed to address the April 9,1990 data-
and requested that GPC clarify DG starts reported on April 9,1990.

Mr. McCoy, aware of NRC concerns that erroneous start-count mformation
was intentionally provided in the April 9 letter, committed, during an August 17
meeting with the NRC special inspection team, to correct the DG start data and '

| explain the errors in the April 9 letter. Tape .258 Transcript (Staff Exh.11-19)
'

at 1, Despite this knowledge, no root-cause evaluation or other investigation
of the DG start-count errors was initiated. Instead, GPC's August 30 letter

| (which was drafted at corporate headquarters under the direction of Mr. McCoy
I and provided correct data for April 9) was dispatched without an assessment '

of the actions of Mr. Bockhold and Mr. Cash who developed the erroneous
information contained in the April 9 letter. As a result, Mr. McCoy failed to

| exercise sufficient oversight and GPC again failed to identify its mistakes and
take steps to ensure that the deficient conduct was not repeated.

| There is no evidence to substantiate the claim that the initiation of a draft
at the corporate offices was an effort to conceal information from the NRC.

| Site appmval was sought as evidenced by Intervenor's tapes. See, e.g., Tape
258 Transcript (Staff Exh.11-19). Those who were most knowledgeable (albeit
somewhat uninformed) about DG start data and the causes of the error were

*

! involved in reviewing and approving the correspondence.

!
!

(2) STEERING OF PRB MEETING

| The August 30 letter was the first time that GPC defined the term " successful
| start" and attempted to explain why the Apnl 9 start counts were erroneous. The
; actions of Mr. Bockhold, the Vogtle General Manager, significantly hampered
' efforts to provide accurate information about why errors were made.

The PRB functions as an advisory group to the General Manager. During
| the August 30,1990 PRB meeting that was reviewing a draft of the August 30

letter to the NRC, Mr. Bockhold changed the word " error" to " confusion" in
the phrase explaining the reason for errors in the April 9 letter and the April 19
LER. As revised, the erroneous information was due to "the confusion between
the distinction between a successful start and a valid test." Tape 184 Transcript,

j (Staff Exh.11-19) at 1-3 (emphasis added). When questioned whether Mr. Cash i

(who had collected the April 9 DG start data) was confused about the distinction
between a successful start and a valid test, Mr. Bockhold admitted that Mr. Cash
was not confused when he collected the data, but claimed that the sentence
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was accurate because other people were confused afterward. Id. at 6-8." Mr.
Bockhold also made several cor wnts indicating that he wanted unanimous
approval and discouraged some ! i - mbers from suggested revised wording
for the letter, Staff Exh.11-19 at 5 -i 1. liis forceful, overbearing, and, at times,
precipitous demeanor, (see Tr. 5769-76 (Aufdenkampe)) and failure to examine
his own role and responsibility, contributed significantly to misinformation being
provided to the NRC throughout April-August 1990."

Confusion after April 9 (whether by GPC or NRC personnel) could not have
caused the erroneous count information provided on April 9. This example of
Mr. Bockhold's forceful management style shows an environment where the
PRB reviewing the draft letter could not adequately resolve a concern about
the accuracy of the " confusion" statement or inquiry as to the role played by a
superior in the development and reporting of misinformation on April 9. Mr.

! Bockhold's failure to encourage his staff to have a questioning attitude thwarted
efforts to ensure the accuracy and completeness of communications with NRC.
There is insufficient evidence to conclude that this defensive posture was part|

| of efforts by Mr. Bockhold to deceive the NRC.

O) INACCt.' RATE PUBLIC STATEMENTS BY MR. McCOY

Intervenor asserted that because the reasons for LER errors stated in a 1990
press release by Mr. McCoy (Intervenor Exh. Il-67A) (i.e., employees did not
use all of the available data and used operator logs only) were different than
those stated in the August 30 letter (which stated that " confusion" between a
successful start and a valid test and a personnel error by the individual who
performed the count caused the error) shows that GPC lacks the willingness to
seek the truth. Mosbaugh at 60; intervenor Findings at 399-400.

'Ihe mere fact that a GPC officer stated more than one reason why GPC
l

had submitted erroneous information is not a basis for concluding that GPC was {
unwilling to seek the truth given what the record shows about GPC's inadequate '

attempts to determine why erroneous information was submitted. Inasmuch
as the press release contains scattered quotes from Mr. McCoy, it is difficult

D Gnen that the QA audit report showed that there were only two vahd tests (as defined by RG l.108) on the
diesel dusing this period (GPC Exh 11-15, Anachnent B; Tr 327480 (McCoy)), this was not the hkely source
of count errors.

,

"This incident and the PRD nrenng on the FAVA system, see Section !!! A 4. supra, are both exarnples of !

Mr Bockhold's forceful managenent sryle. on Apnl 30. 1990. senior officials of the NRC met with Messrs. )
Mcdonald. Hairston, McCoy and others to express NRC concerns about the " cowboy" or " cavalier" amtude that j
Mr Bockhold (and GPC) estubited in deahngs with the NRC Tr. 14.85045; Tr.14.955-56 (Matthews). GPC and i

Mr. Bockhold have since acknowledged the role Mr. Bockhold's managenrnt style played in GPC commumcating
inaccurate and incomplete mformauon and Mr. Bockhold has accepted responsibthty for tus nustakes. tetter from
G. Bockhold to J. t.ieberman NRC, dated irbruary 1.1995 The NRC StatI also noted that GPC commumcanons
substantially improved after Mr. shipman assuned Mr. Bockhold's posinon in the Fall of 1990. Tr 15.194
(Manhews). )
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to determine whether any statements are quoted in context. Consequently, it . I

is difficult to draw negative conclusions about GPC's character based on the
statements.

e. l'SI White Papers, Response to Section 2.206 Petition, and SSPI Data

(I) WillTE PAPERS TO NRC INSPECTION TFAS1 j

. Intervenor asserted that, during the NRC's special team inspection on oper- |
ating practices and allegations (the "OSI" inspection) conducted at the Vogtle |
facility in August 1990 (see Intervenor Exh.1183), GPC intentionally provided

]
false information (1) by indicating that Messrs. Cash and Bockhold sat together )
in Mr. Dockhold's office to work on the DG testing slide, (2) by omitting Mr.
Burr from the list of individuals who wrote the April 9 letter, (3) by excluding
Messrs. Hairston and McCoy from the listed participants in the April 19 phone
call that added the words " subsequent to the test program," and (4) by stating
that all revisions of the LER were reviewed by the PRB. Intervenor Findings at
357-376.

GPC contends that no negative inference should be drawn from any inaccu-
racies in the White Papers aa they resulted from honest attempts to respond to
questions posed by the NRC. GPC Findings 403-415.

During the August 1990 special team inspection addressing NRC concerns 1

about GPC's operating philosophy and allegations about inaccurate information
Ibeing supplied to the NRC. GPC responded to questions posed by the NRC in

various " White Papers." McCoy DG at 22-23; see GPC Exh.11-126; Intervenor
Exhs.11-131,11-95.

There is no evidence to support the claim that the inaccuracies in the
,

documents resulted from deliberate efforts to mislead the NRC and conceal '

the participation of senior GPC officials. As is evident from the discussion
on the Tape 253 Transcript (GPC Exh.11-122; Intervenor Exh.11-148), the
recollections of various GPC employees were cloudy as to who participated in
decision-making and who prepared documents. GPC employees freely stated
their opinions as to who participated in various decisions and there was nothing
to put GPC on notice that the information to be submitted was inaccurate. In
addition, the White Paper expressly conveyed "GPC's 'elief" at the time when5

(based upon information developed during the licensing hearing and enforcement
proceeding) GPC's investigation of issues was incomplete. Thus there is no
indication that the mistakes were intentional.
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(2) STATEMENTS IN RESPONSE TO SECTION 2.206 PETITION

Intervenor also contends that GPC intentionally tried to conceal Mr. Hair.
ston's participation in the April 19 call regarding the .LER when Mr. Mcdonald
signed GPC's response to the section 2.206 petition and later clarifications.

There is insufficient evidence to show that GPC intentionally provided inac-
curate information. There is no evidence that Mr. Mcdonald was specifically
aware of Mr. Hairston's participation on the April 19 call and Tape 58 (GPC
Exh.11-2) shows that Mr. Hairston joined the call after the wording regarding
the Comprehensive Test Program was added and did not participate in " Call
B" when Messrs. Shipman, Aufdenkampe, and Mosbaugh finalized the LER
language. See Tape 58 Transcript (GPC Exh. II-2; Staff Exh.1145 (Vogtle
Coordinating Group Report). The failure to identify various participants on the
calls indicates faulty recollection of GPC employees (shown to be inaccurate
by the Intervenor's recordings) and is among the numerous mistakes GPC made
in providing information on the DG issue. Performance failures, not deception,
appear to be the likely cause.

(3) SSPI DATA

Intervenor asserts that GPC's failure to include " bad" 1990 Safety System
Performance Indicator (SSPI) data in the April 9,1990 letter to the NRC and
to give such data to the IIT is evidence of a pattern of willfulness by GPC
and argues that the data should have been included in the April 9,1990 letter.
Intervenor Findings 44-73; Mosbaugh at 99-104; Tr.10.369 (Mosbaugh). GPC
contends that exclusion of the 1990 data, which was basco upon only a few
months rather than a full year, did not represent a relevant and material omission
concerning the Vogtle DGs. GPC Findings at 19198.

'Ihe fact that the data were not included in the final version of the April 9
letter is not significant. The record shows that the NRC asked GPC to address
the reliability of the DGs as part of the April 9 presentation. The SSPI data
given to the IIT addressed the years 1987,1988, and 1989 and was incomplete
for 1990. Intervenor Exhs. I1-89,11-91.

In a conversation taped by Mr. Mosbaugh on or about April 2,1990, Mr.
Bockhold discussed with Mr. Mosbaugh a document containing SSPI data for

; Vogtle DGs and indicated the data were to be given to the IIT and Mr. Brockman
of the NRC. Mosbaugh at 101; Intervenor Exh.11-89. Contrary to Intervenor's
assertion that it was hidden from the IIT, a document containing the SSPI data
was among the documents collected by the IIT after the SAE. See IIT Document

No.143 (Intervenor Exh.11-89).
Intervenor's allegation that a draft of GPC's April 9,1990 letter that contained

the SSPI data was telecopied to the GPC corporate office and the NRC was not
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proven. NRC Staff records show that draft information transmitted to Messrs.
Brockman (Region 11) and Matthews (NRC Headquarters) on April 5 and 6,
1990, did not cofitain the data. See Intervenor Exhs.11-65, ll-65A; see Tr.
3287-90.

De NRC's interest relative to restart was to understand the basis for GPC's
position that the DGs were operable and that GPC's corrective actions had
been effective. He NRC was not seeking a numerical value like SSPI (which

' represents the time that a given unit, on average, annually is unavailable),
,

either historically or currently, as part of its restart decision and does not
normally rely on such data." See NRC Staff's Reply to Intervenor's First Set
of Interrogatories, dated September 15, 1993, at Interrogatory 11.

Here is no basis to conclude that the data should have been included in
the April 9 letter in order to address the NRC's inquiry about DG reliability
and operability. Mr. Bockhold's decision not to include the data for the first

; few months of 1990 was not unreasonable. Intervenor has not shown that the
information was necessary for a decision on whether the short-term corrective
actions were sufficient to provide reasonable assurance to permit restart, and it
is clear that the infofmation was made available to the NRC.

|

(4) CONCLUSIONS REGARDING WillTE PAPERS, SECTION 2.206

g RFSPONSE AND SSPI DATA

I Here is no evidence to support Intervenor's assertion that GPC knowingly
submitted false informa: ion regarding Mr. Hairston's participation on the April
19 call about the LER. He misstatements are readily explained by faulty

; recollection, and do not indicate that GPC intentionally misrepresented Mr.
'

Hairston's participation. The audio recording made on that date shows that
he was not a significant participant in discussions about the accuracy )f the

;
LER.

Similarly, there is no basis to conclude that Mr. Bockhold was der ,tful in
i

failing to include Safety System Performance Indicator Data in the April 9 letter
in that the information, although incomplete, was provided to the IIT. There is no
evidence that the information omitted was requested by the NRC or reasonably
should have been included in the letter.

,

i

"The Vogtl. TSs addrea DG reliatuhty by requinns incree ed frequency of DG tesung if a specahed nurnber of
failures occ rred during the last 20 or 100 vahd testa. The ISs also require special reparung of DG test results.
These requittnents of the TSs are totally unrelated to SSU data SSP 1 data for indr.idual 'Xis are calculated
by dividing the unavailable hours (planned, unplanned, and esumated) by the total number of hours the DG is
required to be operational dunng the SSPI assessrnent penod GPC Exh.11140. Such data have httle or no value
with respect to DG operabihty and the effecoveness of correcove actions to allow restart.

,
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f Statements Concerning Air Quality in the April 9 Letter and to the llT

(1) INTRODUCTION

| A sufficient air supply is needed both to start the diesel engine and to
| operate the ougine controls. This air is supplied to each diesel engine by an

j independent, redundant starting air system that includes an air comprewor, an
after-cooler, a refrigerant air dryer,78 an air receiver, intake air filters, startingi

| valves, air distributors, instrumentation, controls, alarms, and the associated
| piping to connect the equipment. Alarms annunciate on the local control panel

in the diesel building and in the Unit's main control room to enable operators
to monitor the DG starting air system. Vogtle SER 19.5.6 (Board Exh.11-4) at
9-68.

The control air is supplied by the starting air system from a point downstream
from the air receivers. Control air is used by the pneumatic logic componentsi

! and sensors to control and protect the diesel engine. The control air passes
through a 5-micron filter and then through a pressure regulator that maintains j

control air pressure at 60 psig. See NUREG-1410, at 3-47 (Intervenor Exh.
11-1 0).

i

One of the ways of monitoring the quality of DG starting air is through |

dewpoint measurements taken by attaching the dewpoint testing equipment at a !
pressure gauge fitting on the air receiver. The temperature range of acceptable I

dewpoints at the Vogtle facility is 32-50cF. Dewpoint measurements obtained
at the Vogtle facility on the DG air system are documented in Maintenance
Work Orders (MWOs), which are used to perform the Preventise Maintenance
(PM) checks of the DG air dewpoints. See Intervenor Exh.11-78, at 5-10; see
Mosbaugh at 69-70; intervenor Exh.11-169.

The April 9,1990 letter submitted to the NRC to support GPC's request for
restart stated the following with respect to air quality:

GPC has resiewed air quahty of the DK) air system includmg dew point control and has )
concluded that air quality is satisfactory Initial reports of higher than expected dew points I

were tater attnbuted to faulty instrumentauon. This was confirned by internal inspection of !
[ one air receiver on Apnl 6,1990, the periodic replacement of the control ai.- filters tast done

in March 1990 which showed no indication of corrosion and daily air receiver blowdowns
j

with no significant water discharge. '

'8The er dryer at Vogtle is located upstream of the air recover the dryer removes waier sapor from the.

compressed air before the air reaches the receiver and is designed to run conunuously FsAR 19.5 6 ai 9 5 6-4
(Board Exh il-3). board Exh. !!-4 at 948 Compressed ambient air. saturated with water vapor, enters the dryer
and is precooled by the outgoing refngerated air by an air t+mr heat exchanger The precooled air then eniers the
air-to-refngerant heat exchanger (i e., the refngeration evaporator) where it is cooled by the dryer's refngeranon
syssem. As the air cools, water sapor condenses anto hquid droplets which are separated out of the air stream by
a rnoisture separator. and automatically discharged by a draintrap Board Exh 11-3 at 9.5 6-4.
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GPC Exh.11-13, at 3. On May 9,1994, the NRC issued the NOV to,

| GPC, which included a Violation B on air quality based on (1) GPC's failure
to provide complete information regarding control of DG air quality (i.e.,

i dewpoints) in the April 9,1990 letter by only stating that initial reports of
! high dewpoints were attributed to faulty instrumentation and (2) GPC's failure '

| to stas that high dewpoints for Vogtle Unit 1 v'ere also attributable to system
! air dryers occasionally being out of service for extended periods end to system

| repressurization following ' maintenance. Staff DG Panel at 7; Staff Exh.11-46,
| at 3-4.

After reviewing GPC's response to the NOV, the NRC Statf concluded that
as of April 9,1990, GPC had an adequate technical basis to support a finding
that air quality was acceptable, and that dewpoint information of a historical '

nature, i.e., from before the SAE, was not necessary for the April 12, 1990
restart decision. Staff Exh.1150, at 5-6; see also Staff DG Panel at 9. In the
Modified NOV, dated fibruary 13,1995, the NRC withdrew Violation B. Staff
Exh.11-51, Appendix at 2-3.

Intervenor asserted that the air quality statement in the April 9 letter is
materially false and deliberately misicading in that (1) high dewpoints were
not due to " faulty instrumentation" (Intervenor Findings at 285) and (2) the
results of the April 6,1990 inspection of the air receiver, the inspection of air
filters, and the daily air receiver blowdowns did not support a conclusion that air
quality was satisfactory (Intervenor Findings at 306 09)? See also Petition at
9. Intervenor also alleged that GPC was recklessly careless in communications
regarding high dewpoints and concealed high dewpoint readings from the IIT.
See Mosbaugh at 66-92.

GPC maintains that the letter conveyed its udgment that, as of April
9,1990, the diesel control air quality relative to moisture or humidity was
satisfactory based upon the April 6 air receiver inspection and the daily air |

|
l

"Intervenor also alleged that water was collected from the aesel air system pnor to Apnl 9.1990. in that (1)le
saw a jar of 5 ounces of yellowish fluid in Mr. Kochery's of6ce on March 30.1990,and O) a taped (and partially
inau&ble) conversation in& cates that the water cane from &esel pneumatic tubing (air system "Inp hnes") that
were disanenibled on March 29. Mosbaugh at 93-94

DG vendor representauves who were present dunng the March Apnl 1990 disassendy of most of the &csel
sensing hres and performed the &esel logic functional testmg. mcluding the exonnectu n of all protective inp
hnes within the engine control panel. did not recall obsersmg or heanng about any water or moisture prchlems
m the thesel startmg or control air m March. Apnl 1990. Rebuttal Testimony of ShelJon OwYoung w.d IMert
Johnston on Air Quahry statements, if Tr.12.428. "owYoung-Johnston," at 4 5. Tt.12.741,12 7' 59 :owYoung.
Johnston). others present in Mr. Kochery's ot6ce had no recollectwo of tie meident .md even &sputed Mr

|Mosbaugh's transenbed version of the March 30.1990 tape segment Tr. 7552 53,75470 (stokes). Chenault
1

Rebuttal at 3 4 iff. Tr 14.020L see also Tr. 14.071 73.14.076 (Chenaulo.
In addiuon. in May 1994, the NRC Staff inspectors czarruned whether water had been n the &esel control air

system m 1990. The Staff idenuhed nunwrous examples of out-of4peci6 cation dewpoints, but found no evidence
of actual water formanon in 'he &esel control ait system knes or corrosion. stari Exh 11-5. at 1. 6-8. see alu
'lestinony of Edward B. Tomhnson and Pierce 11 Slunner on Asr Quahty, ff Tr.14.497. " Staff AQ." at 1411.
Thus, there is no evidence to substannate the claim that water was in the inp kne.
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receiver blowdowns, which did not indicate a high-humidity environment in
the starting air system. See GPC Exh. II-55A (Tape 41 Transcript), at 2;,

Supplemental Testimony of George Bockhold on Air Quality Statements, ff. Tr.
6397, "Bockhold AQ," at 5-6. The statement that " initial reports of higher than
expected dewpoints" was not intended to describe all past maintenance issues
or to refer to any dewooint readings taken after March 29,1990. Id.; Tr. 6582 ;

(Bockhold). |

The NRC Staff concluded, based on the hearing record, that (1) the air quality I

portion of GPC's April 9 letter was incomplete in that it did not reference the
fact that the Instrumentation and Control (I&C) technicians were unfamiliar with j
the use of the VP-1114 instrument, and initially misused it, in taking dewpoint 4

measurements in early April 1990; and (2) the reference in the April 9 letter to
" initial reports" should reasonably include high dewpoint measurements taken
prior to April 9. Tr.14,756-57,15.111 (Matthews). The NRC Staff found
that out-of-specification dewpoint readings identified by Intervenor during the

,

hearing (Intervenor Exh.11-169) did not show that air quality was unsatisfactory |

since inspection of the receivers and controls showed no evidence of corrosion
or a long-term water problem. Tomlinson and Skinner at 12-13.

|

(2) ACCURACY OF STATEMENT TilAT AIR QUALITY WAS SATISFACTORY

Mr. Mosbaugh alleges that corrosion seen during the April 1990 inspection |
of an air receiver is evidence that air quality was not satisfactory, as stated in
the April 9 letter. See Mosbaugh at 82-83.

'

One DG-I A air receiver tank (K02) was inspected by GPC and NRC Staff
representatives on April 6,1990. See Affidavit of Milton D. Hunt, dated March
1,1995, ff. Tr. 4882, " Hunt Affidavit," at 5; Pretiled Testimony of Kenneth
Stokes on Diesel Generator Air Quality Statements, ff. Tr. 6962," Stokes," at 2
3; Rebuttal Testimony of Harvey Handfinger, ff. Tr. I1,346, "Handfinger," at 2;
Tr. I1,450-56 (Handlinger)." The metal was clearly visible inside the receiver
and there were no loose rust particles in the tank,88 water droplets on the tank |walls, or other signs of moisture during the inspection. Tr. I1,374,11,450-56, '

11,483. The fact that there were normal rust spots on the welds inside the tank
and that the control system air filters appeared "new" also indicated that air
quality was not a problem. Hunt Affidavit at 5-6; Tr. 4930 (Hunt). .

*
,

I

|
"Mr Harvey Handhnger was GPC's Manager of Maimenance. reporung to Mr. Kitchens (Assistant General |

Manager-operanons) Mr. Mark Bnney, as the acung Instrurnemanon and Control Supenntendent, reponed to 1

Mr Handhnger. 1

8' Mr. Shipman's Apnl i1.1990 notes (GPC Exh.11-147) showed that there was rninor " flash" corrosion or rust
observed on the weld seams of the aar receiver sanit. as expected, given that welded joints on the carbon steel tank !
form a then " rust' or corrosion him imnedsately after welding Rebuttal Tesunwny of Wilham B Shipman (ff. i

Tr.10.890). " Shipman Rebuttal." at 14 |
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Mr. Mosbaugh did not dispute the statement from the April 9 letter that air
quality was satisfactory when that statement was read to the IIT on April 11,
1990, and Messrs. Kochery and Stokes indicated that the statement was correct,
even though the 50-degree dewpoint requirement had not always been met. Tape
41 Transcript (Staff Exh.11-15) at 1-2,5-7.

Based on the evidence set forth above, particularly the absence of significant
rust, corrosion, or moisture,"2 the statement in the April 9,1990 letter that air
quality was satisfactory was not inaccurate.

|
|

Q) INCOMPLETE REASONS FOR llIGli DEWW)lNT READINGS

The record shows that GPC's statement that " initial reports of higher than
expected dewpoints were later attributed to faulty instrumentation" is incomplete
in that it failed to indicate that high readings were also obtained after the SAE
due to technicians being unfamiliar with backup equipment, but there is no basis |
to conclude that GPC intended to mislead the NRC. I

On March 9,1990, there were out-of-specification dewpoint readings of 61 F
and 66 F taken on DG-I A air receivers K01 ano K02, respectively. GPC
believed the high readings were valid since humidity would have risen while
DG-1 A was out of service and disassembled from March 1 to March 13,1990,

,

for overhaul maintenance and testing in that the receivers had been depressurized ;

and opened to the room atmosphere. Prefiled Testimony of Lewis A. Ward on
Air Quality Statements, ff. Tr. 7740, " Ward AQ," at 3-4; Tr. 7878-S0 (Ward).8)
After overhaul maintenance, air receivers are recharged using multiple " bleed-
and. feed" cycles, as necessary, until the dewpoint is within the acceptable range. !
The dewpoint readings were within specification on March 12. 1990, and the j

DG was declared operable on March 13,1990. Ward AQ at 4; GPC Exh.11-62.
On March 28,1990, air quality, including the possibility of small debris or

moisture in the diesel air system, was discussed at a meeting with the llT where
GPC stated it would determine the last recorded dewpoints for DG-I A and take
another dewpoint reading in an effort to identify the cause of the March 20,1990 |

82 1f any water had ever formed in the pneumanc control mr s> stem, water would hkely accumulate in the bowl
of the control mr siter in the diesel engme control panel, but there was no evidence of water in that filter before
or dunng the March 1990 outage owYoungdohnston at 5-6; see atm Tr 12.495 502 (O* Young, Johnston)
Moisture corrosion problems in the sesel air start system in 1990 would have aho caused degradauon due to
corrosion or corrosion products which would have been obvious dunng the inspecuon and tesung of the diesels, but
there was no evidence of corrosmo dunng the mspectmn and tesong of the 6esels folkming the SAE. Tesumony
of Kenneth stokes on Air Quahty Statenenis, ff Tr. 6962. " stokes? at 4. For example, the logic board. which
was renmved and replaced subsequent to the DG-1B start on March 24,19W)(Stari 136), showed no signs of a
water or nmisture problem and inspecuons dunng each 18-month replacenrnt of the control air f>hers revealed
no rreure problem. Tr. 7704, 7685-86 (Siokes).

83 Mr. Ward attnbuted the tugh rea&ngs to an actual high-humiety con &uon as a resuh uf DG-I A. mclu&ng its
air start system, being out of service and disassemt led from March I to March 13.19%), for overhaul mantenance
and tesung. Wad AQ as 4.
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,

spurious trips on DG-1 A. See GPC Exh.11-49 (llT Transcript), at 95-96; see
also Bockhold AQ at 1. GPC Instrumentation and Control (I&C) technicians
performed the monthly preventative maintenance dewpoint check on DG-1 A

! on March 29, 1990, recorded out-of-specification high readings of 80*F and
60 F, and documented them on an MWO for evaluation and trending purposes."

| See GPC Exh.11-155, at 1 MWO l-90-01513 (GPC Exh.11-155); Rebuttal
; Testimony of Mark Briney on Diesel Generator Reporting Statements, ff. Tr.

12,075, "Briney," at 5; MWO l-90-01651. dated March 30,1990 (Intervenor
Exh.11-!43).

. During an April 3,1990 telephone conference with IIT and Region II
I personnel, GPC (Mr. Bockhold) stated that the air quality was satisfactory, but

did not mention fewpoint readings. See GPC Exh.11-50 (IIT Transcript) at 59-
| 60; see also Bockho'd AQ at 2. Mr. Bockhold testified that he was not aware

( of the March 29 high reading on that date and probably focused on the clean
condition of the air tilters.85

On April 5,1990, GPC initiated a blowdown on the DG-I A air receivers to
check for the presence of moisture, a feed-and-bleed of the DG-1 A air receivers
to lower the dewpoint, and a check of all the diesel control system air filters
for the presence of moisture. See Briney at 5-6; GPC Exh.11-156 Dewpoint
readings of 84'F and 82 F were obtained on DG 1B. See GPC Exh.11-156. at
1; Intervenor Exh.11-169, at 3.

On April 5 through April 6, a series of high dewpoint readings on DG-l A
was .obtained using the Alnor VP-2466 dewpoint instrument. See Intervenor
Exh.11-143 at continuation sheets 1-3; Intervenor Exh.11-169. at 2. On April
6, Mr. Bockhold informed the IIT that he was aware (on April 5) that there
were high dewp9nt readings for the DG-1 A on March 29," and that GPC

8''Intervenor's allegation that the March 29 rejecuon of a Deficiency Card show hat GPC antended to conceal
the lugh dewpoints reaangs from NRC (Inter enor Findings 605 606), was not substanuated The problem
was adequately documented by means of a Maintenance Work Order. an act mconsistent with an mient to keep
informatma Imm the NkC.

85 Mr. Bockhold adnuned that some of his responses to the !!T that day may, an retrospect. have been nusleadmg

Tr M60-63. 6507 08 (Bockholdi.
Intervenor's alleganon that Mr Bockhold was made aware of the March 29.1990 high rea&ngs on ur about

March 29. and that he dehberately withheld this information from the irr dunng an Apnl 3.1990 teleconference
Orc Interventw Fm&ngs 533. 536).however. was nos supported by the evidence. Mr. Bockhold could not recall
bemg aware of the high readmgs pnor to Apnl 5. See 11T Transenpt (GPC Exh.1151) at 1. 4-5. Tr 6566
(Bockhold) Messrs. Hunt and Bockhold understood that dewpoints above 32 50 F were not of immediate concern
for operabihty of the desels but could cause pans in the desel air system to corrode if they occurred over the
long term. Tr. 4898 99 (Hunt). GPC Exh 11-51. at 6-8. Tr. 6466-67. 6558 59, 6608 09 (Bockhold). There is
no evidence that any GPC employee includmg Mr Moshaugh. beheved the diesels were inoperable due to poor
air quahty or shared such a view with Mr Bockhold See Tr. 6697 (Bockhold). Therefore. there is insufheient
evidence to conclude that, by Apnl 3.1990. Mr. Bockhold knew about the March 29 dewpoint readmgs or
wrthheld that informanon from the NRC's trT.
8' An NRC Region 11 mspector. Mdton Hant. reviewed MWos on the &esels and discovered the March 29.1990

lugh dewpoint rea&ngs on DG-I A air receivers in early Aprd 1990 and informed GPC. See Hunt Afridavit at 5.
Tr. 6566 (Bockhold) (Contmurd)
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thought the dewpoint sensor instrument was had and was trying to obtain a
backup instrument.87 See GPC Exh.11.9 (llT Transcript) at 1, 4-5. On the

; afternoon of April 6. following the ser.cs of high readings on DG-1 A, GPC
tried to determine whether there was an actual high dewpoint condition or faultyi

instrumentation and used a backup EGtG dewpoint instrument (VP-ill4) to
verify ihe accuracy of the Alnor VP-2466 readings on DG-1 A. Tr.12,081-82

,

| (Briney). See intervencr Exh.11-143 at continuation sheet 3; Intervenor Exh.
11-169, at 2. The sendor's instruction manual for the VP-1114, however, could

! not be located and the I&C techi.icians taking the measurements lacked training
on the VP-1114.88 Id. at 12,082-83; see also Tr.12,784 (Hammond).

On April 7,1990, an I&C technician took dewpoint measurements on the
Unit I and Unit 2 air receivers using three different instruments - the Alnor
VP-2466, the EG&G VP-1114, and the recently acquired General Electric (G.E.)
rental Alnor Model 7600. The VP-2466 and VP-1114 readings were out-
of-specification high while the G.E. rental instrument readings were out-of-
specification low. See Intervenor Exh.11-217, at 3; see also Intervenor Exh.
11-169.

GPC's acting I&C Superintendent could not draw any definitive conclusions
from the out-of-specification dewpoint results obtained on April 6-7, but was
convinced that eight independent air systems would not simultaneously fail to
provide satisfactory air to the receivers. Briney at 7-8; see also Tr. 6554-55
(Bockhold)."

The then NRC inspector believed that he saw a listing of dewpoint readings
taken April 6-7 before he left the site on April 7,1990,*' and was aware

Intervenor alleged dunng the heanng that GPC. in its 1994 NoV response and in the 1995 prehled air quality
tesnmony of Mr. Bodhold, imennonal!y falsely asserted that GPC self-reported the March 29 high dewpoint
readmgs to the NRC (Intervenor findmgs 537 538. 540-541) while Mr. Hunt's subsequent tesurnony shows
GPC's statenent to be m error since Mr Hunt resched he dncovered the Mar::h 29 high deupomt readmgs, no
evidence was presemed to substannate the clasm that the error was intentional
" Although Intervenor is correct that Mr. Bockhold's Apnl 6.1990 statenents to the IIT that there was not a

i
backup dewpoint analyzer at the plant was inaccurate (Intervenor Findings $43-544L there is no basis to conclude |
that the statenrnt was mientionally false, parucularly since the backup instrumem (VP.lll4) was used subsequent ;

to the telephone conference with the IIT. I

sa lniervenor estabhshed at the heanny that the EG&G Model 911 instrument had been used by 1&C technicians )
on one occasion in March 1989 See Tr.12.216-17 (MwO 18900822 reflects dewpoint teadmgs taken by l&C ;

sechnician usmg an EG&G instrunrmt !
I

"Intervenor's allegation that GPC engaged in inientional willful conduct in claimmg that the VP.2466 dewpoint
mstrument was defective (Intervenor Find:ngs 547 550, 578-579. 583. and 604) was not substannated By Apnl
6.1990. GPC had a reasonable basis to suspect the Alnor VP 2466 instrunent was faulty in th> "I the extended
cahbrauon due dale for the mstrunem was about to expire; (2) the last in-specificanon reading was on March
29.1990. for DG-1B. and (3) all of the Apnl 5 dewpoint readmgs on the DG-1 A and DG-|B using the VP-2466
instrunrnt were out.of-specific. con high See GPC Exh.11159. see also Bnney at 13. see also Eth 11-169. at ;

23. !

"'Mr. Bockhold had provuled a hst of high dewpois nrasurements to Mr Hunt, and Mr. Hunt suggested I
that GPC borrow dewpois test equipmem from the V.C. Summer Nuclear Plant in order w accurately nrasure

-

j
dewpoint readmgs and venfy the condinon of the air. Tr. 6537,6563 (Bodhold); Hunt Afhdavit at 5. Tr. '924 25.
4935 (Huno.
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l
of GPC's opinion that the high readings were due either to faulty dewpoint
equipment or operator error. Affidavit of Milton D. Hunt, ff. Tr. 4882, " Hunt

| Affidavit," at 5; Tr. 4924-25,4930-31,4933-36 (Hunt). See GPC Exh.11-52.
j

GPC later determined (based on an EG&G instrument borrowed from V.C. |
Summer around April 8 with its instruction manual) that the initial readings taken

|
with the VP Ill4 instrument had been used improperly (without the required
flow meter) on April 6-7, 1990?8 Briney at 8-9; Tr.12,088,12,340 (Briney); j
Tr. 6513 (Bockhold); Intervenor Exh. I1169. By April 8,1990, readings on i

both units that were taken using the flow meter (VP-lll4 and FS-3529) were
,

in specification (and in close agreement) except readings on the DG-2A K02 |
receiver (where the dryer was found to be turned off)y: GPC concluded that the !

prior Alnor readings from the VP-2466 instrument were not valid. Tr.12,166
(Briney), 12,857-59 (Hammond). See Brincy at 9; Tr.12,203,12,2% (Briney); j
Interrenor Exh.11-169.

]
During a morning conference call on April 9,1990, Mr. Lewis A. Ward,

Manager of Nuclear Maintenance and Support located in the corporate office, |

told the IIT that with the borrowed instrument, all of the April 8 dewpoint
readings were within specification. See GPC Exh.11-61, at 4. Mr. Skip Kitchen 3,
Assistant Plant General Manager-Operations, then stated that a high DG-2A

|dewpoint reading believed to be caused by an air dryer being inadvertently
|

turned off (probably on April 6) was being addressed by blowing down the air
receiver. There was no mention of I&C technician errors?' See IIT Transcript
(GPC Exh.1161) at 4-8. In response to an IIT request, GPC committed to

,

provide a history of dewpoint data for the past year. Id. at 7-9. !
During the April 9 meeting with the NRC in Atlanta, the NRC was told that !

air qdality was good, that high readings were attributed to a faulty dewpoint I

instrurnent, and that an April 6 inspection of an air receiver, as well as
inspections of the control air filters and daily air receiver blowdowns, confirmed
that air quality was acceptable. Intervenor Exh.11-71, Project No. 006211

During the April 11 teleconference with the IIT, Mr. Bockhold (referencing
the table of dewpoint measurements dating back to March 1989 that had been
prepared to address the NRC's request for data) stated that air quality had been
and remained satisfactory for a number of reasons, including the April 6 air
receiver inspection, which showed only light corrosion around the welds and

'I Dunng the heanng, an NRC staff wimess. Mr. ISerce Skinner. contacted an EG&G representause who told
him that it would have been extremely difheult for an 11C techrucian to throttle flow to the correct level without
a flow neier. Tr 14.644 45 (Slurmer). Incorrect flow causes errors in dewpoint readings.14
"Intervenor's claim that all eight air receivers had expenenced high. out-of.specificahon dewpoints due to

personnel inadvenently or intentionally turrung off the air dryers (Intervenor Findmg 581) was not substantiaied.
tntervenor provided no evidence to support tus claim and Mr. Hunt recalled that the dryers were out of service or
off only a few umes. Tr 5008-10 (Hunt).
"The notes of Mr Bailey. taken dunng GPC's Apnl 9.1%0 nreting with NRC in Atlanta. also reflect that this

tugh dempomt reading was reported to the NRC. See intervenor Exh 1170. ai 5

217

|

!
|

|
.

I



- - ._. - . _. _- -- = - -

:

I
r

a minor amount of oil on the bottom. See GPC Exh.11-56, at 6-7; Rebuttal
Testimony of W.F. Kitchens, ff. Tr.13,590, " Kitchens," at 9; see also GPC
Exh.1156, at 2. De data provided to the IIT (GPC Exh.11-57) did not include
the high dewpoint readings from April 5-7,1990, because GPC did not believe
the readings were accurate or reliable. Kitchens at 9."

(4) CONCLUSIONS

The April 9 letter was incomplete, as it did not indicate that high readings
were also caused by technicians being unfamiliar with a dewpoint instrument.
By April 9,1990, senior GPC management at the Vogtle facility (Messrs.
Bockhold and Kitchens) and in Birmingham, Alabama (Mr. Ward), knew about
the problems the I&C technicians had in using the VP-1114 instrurnent correctly.
While the letter's reference to " initial reports" is ambiguous, all high dewpoint
measurements taken near the time of the SAE and prior to April 9 could have
influenced an NRC decision on restart.

He evidence does not establish that GPC acted with reckless disregard for
the truth, intentionally misrepresented information, or conspired to mislead the
NRC in communications regarding DG air quality. GPC took reasonable steps to
determine air quality (incluJing the receiver inspection), perfermed blowdowns
on the air receivers to remove any moisture that could affect DG performance,
and generally kept the NRC infonned about their activities. While GPC provided
incomplete information about the causes of high dewpoint readings based on the
belief that recent out-of-specification readings were not valid, and there may have
been some delays in sharing information about dewpoints with the NRC, the
evidence considered as a whole falls short of demonstrating that GPC engaged in
making willful or recklessly careless misrepresentations, and does not otherwise
show that GPC lacks the requisite character and integrity to operate a nuclear
plant. !

g. Conclusions Regarding Diesel Generator Statements
1

Petitioners allege that GPC, deliberately or with careless disregard, submitted j
false and misleading information regarding DG starts (1) in an April 9,1990 l
presentation and letter to the NRC (seeking permission to restart after the SAE); I

(2) in an April 19,1990 Licensee Event Report (LER) 90-006 on the SAE by

"Intervenur's alleganon that GPC imentionally concealed the VP ill4 " con 6rmatory readings" (Intervenor
Findings 555-565. 575. 590 596)was not substanuated. VP ill4 readings were among those given to the NRC. l

but quesuons about the accuracy of those readings were resolved by Fs-3529 readings tAen on Apnl 8. Given j
that the NRC was interested in dewpoint readings (and not necessanly the paiticular equipment used to ot4ain i

them) and that VP-ill4 readings were included on the hsting provided to the ITr. there is insuf6cient evidence I

to support Inte.venor's claim. See GPC bh.11-51, at 7-8. GPC bh.11-57; intervenor Exh 11-169. at 2 I
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means of a conspiracy among GPC managers; (3) in a June 29,1990 cover letter
forwarding the revised LER; and (4) in an August 30,1990 letter. Petitioner
also alleges that GPC knowingly submitted false or misleading statements (1)
concerning DG air quality in the April 9,1990 letter (and in contemporaneous
discussions with the NRC's IIT); and (2) in GPC's April 1,1991 response to
Intervenor's section 2.206 petition with respect to Mr. Hairston's involvement
in developing the false start information (i.e., during an April 19 call) and when
GPC managers became aware ofinaccurate start counts. These claims were not
proven.

Although Petitioners are correct that misinformation was provided to the
NRC in various communications related to DGs, the weight of evidence fails
to show that GPC knew the information was false or incomplete. He repeated
failure of GPC to provide accurate and complete information relatmg to the
count of DG starts in April 1990 stemmed from GPC performance failures
that do not amount to deliberate efforts to deceive or mislead the NRC or to
avoid regulatory requirements. The erroneous counts of eighteen and nineteen
consecutive successful starts without problems or failures for DG-l A ard DG-
IB, respectively, as of April 9 (instead of twenty-nine and twelve) were caused
by GPC's use of ambiguous terminology to show diesel reliability during
a poorly defined period. When questions arose about the a,: curacy of the
data, GPC managers relied primarily on serbal assurances that defended the
information and revised the count description without (1) examining the causes
of the initial misstatements, (2) dcermining accountability, and (3) promptly
correcting erroneous information that was presented to the NRC. The reliance .

on verbal assurances and incomplete site verification efforts on April 19 did
little to address or identify mistakes by the General Manager in requesting and
presenting the start count, and the Unit Superintendent in reporting the start data
he collected. Consequently, the count reported included problems or failures and
was not a count after the CTP (which GPC later determined commenced with
the surveillance test where a DG is declared operable).

%ere was no evidence that any of the current GPC or Southern Nuclear
personnel who were involved (Messrs. Bockhold, Cash, Shipman, Aufdenkampe,
McCoy, Hairston, Frederick, Greene, Horton, Majors, Kitchens, and Ward)
conspired, or acted individually, to submit information they knew to be false
from March 20 through August 30,1990, regarding DG testing or air quality.
Clearly, these statements reflect only a portion of the many exchanges between
the NRC and GPC concerning efforts to determine the causes of the SAE. The
faUute of GPC pe:sonnel, individually and collectively, to take steps to ensure
that the NRC was provided with complete and accurate information during this
period nonetheless is a very significant regulatory corwrn that constituted a
Severity Level 11 problem at the facility - conduct far t .ow NRC expectations.

.
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Based on observations of NRC Headquarters and Regional inspection staff
throughout April through August 1990, GPC took sufficient actions to ensure
that the DGs were reliable and operable. GPC's performance fell short,
however, with respect to the level of importance and diligence afforded some
communications to the NRC and prompt resolution of concerns about the
accuracy and completeness of information providd to the NRC. This sometimes
" cavalier" GPC attitude led GPC to fix the words trather than to verify and
reverify facts) in communications to the NRC. Mr. .Bockhold's manaFement
style contnbuted to an atmosphere whereby site employees were reluctant to ,

question the accuracy or completeness of communications to the NRC, unless
they specifically knew that the information was wrong.

It is unreasonable that it would take over 4 months (until August 1990) to
get an accurate start count for April 9 and take 4 years (until GPC's 1994
NOV Response) to understand why errors were made. Nevertheless, GPC now
recognizes its role in providing incomplete and inaccurate information to the
NRC and its failure to take steps to e.c ure communications that satisfy the
requirements of section 50.9." GPC site and corporate managers and GPC<

employees (including members of the PRB) have accepted responsibility for the
mistakes made in 1990 as indicated in responses to the NOV and Demands
for Information, and in testimony during the hearing. GPC no longer asserts
that Mr. Mosbaugh and Mr. Cash, alone, are responsible for incorrect DG start
counts.

In the end, whether the start counts were twenty-nine and twelve (instead
of the eighteen and nineteen reported on April 9), er whether all causes of
high dewpoint readings were reported, did not affect the soundness of the
decision that the DGs were ready to perform their function. The incomplete
and inaccurate information was material in that it had the ability to influence
the NRC in its dealings with GpC. Correct and complete information may
have led the NRC to inquire further before authorizing restart in April 1990

"Conecove acuan taken by GPC managenwnt in response to the NOV included. (1) makmg the NoV available
to all employees and comnuttmg to post an NRC orkt if one were to be issued, (2) emphasizmg the importance of
thorough record keepmg dunng off-nornud hours in a letter from GPC's Senwr Vice President-Nudear operanons
to the %ce Presidents for the Hatch and Vogtle facihties; OI) stressmg the imponance of effccuve commumcanons
and the effecuve resoluuan of conc rus in letters from the Esecuuve Wee Presidem-Nuclear operatwns to nuclear
operstmns employees. (4) posung copies or secuon 50 9 for all employees to read, t5) discussing GPC's pohey
of open, complete. and accurate comnumcaimes with the NRC in nreungs between the semur %ce Presidem-
Nudear operauons and employees at the Hatch and Voyrie sites, and distnbuung letters to all employees on the
sane subject;(6) observmg commumcaur n with the NkC to ensure that the enf orcement actmn does not adversely
affect the completeness of stmemems. P) makmg GPC's reply to the NoV available for all GPC employees to
read. (8)counichng the Umt supenmendent and Vogtle General Manages by GPC's Semor Mee Presidens-Nudear
operauons. (9)issums an " oral Renunder" to the Umt supenmendem pursuam to the Posinve Daciphne Sysiem;
and (10) prohibiung the 1990 Vogde Gereral Manager from resuming a hne managemem posiuon with GPC or
Southern Nuclear nuclear facibues through February 1.19% pendmg completwn of personal trammg and 60
days pnor mmee to the NRC See GPC Reply to NoV and DFis, dated July 31.1994.as supplememed I.bruary
1. 1995.
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[ and about GPC operations, in general, at Vogtle. These events illustrate the
i need for improvement in communications, both within GPC and with the NRC,

and the need for Licensee personnel to maintain a questioning attitude about

; explanations and data provided to the NRC.
| The repeated involvement of hir. Bockhold in GPC's submission of incom-

plete and inaccurate information to the NRC is significant. Mr. Bockhold ably
handled immam issues, but his sometimes overbearing and forceful manage-
ment style, his reliance on rewrites rather than reverifications, and his failure to
examine his own inadequate performance contributed in no small measure to the
Severity Level 11 problem. GPC, Southern Nuclear, and Mr. Bockhold himself
acknowledged his deficient conduct and, by letters dated August 5,1994, as
supplemented February 1,1995, made commitments that he would not resume
line management responsibilities at GPC or Southern Nuclear plants unless he
had satisfactorily completed training in management communications and re-
sponsibilities, and the NRC received 60 days prior notice of the assignment."
This commitment was reiterated in correspondence regarding the applications
to transfer the authority to operate the Vogtle and llatch facilities to Southern

| Nuclear and was included in the orders authorizing those transfers.
!

D. Management Attitudes and GPC Credibility (Intervenor's Proposed
Findings for Hearing on DG Issue at 68-78, 225-60)

Intervenor argues (Intervenor's Proposed Findings at 68 78,225-60) that ev-
idence of the bad character of the proposed transferee, includes: (1) GPC's !
operating philosophy of power generation above safety," (2) intimidation of j
h1r. hiosbaugh in the .lanuary 1990 meeting where hir Bockhold had written i
the word "backstabbing" on the board after h1r. hioshaugh's allegations that |
Mr. Kitchens had violated TS requirements by opening dilution valves,'" (3)

"Mr, Boekhold further cornnutted that he would not assunr a hne managenrni posinon al any nuclear power
plant pnur to February 1988 without sansfymg the condiuons staied.
"Intervenor asierts that Mr. Hairston's statenrnt that he has two goals in operaung a nmicar plant,i c.. staying

i

un the hne and short refuehng outaFes," Tr 9.lM748 Olaatstonk in& cates that Mr H.urston places conunued I
operauon and short outages over safety. Imervenor Proposed Fin &ngs at 69. Mr. Hairston tesuhed that safety
as not a goul. but a foemdauon for generatmg pewer. These upsmons are not evidence of a pour autatude toward
safety.

| ""While Mr Mosbaugh's percepuun of the "ba kstabt mg" mcident may have led hsm to beheve that GPC l
suspected him of prompung 'nquines by the NRC. Messrs. Dockhold and Ltchens both tesuhed that they were
not aware at that time that Mr Mosbaugh had given any alleganon to the NRC, and Mr Hockhold beheved that
the word referred to an undesirable workmg relanonship between Mr. Mosbaugh's orFamzanon and Mr. Kuchen's
organizauon that needed to be resolved. Bockhold Rebuttal at 2-4. Ltchens Rcbuttal at 2 4. Tr 13.597 601
(Kitchens). Tr 13.347 48. Thus. n appears that the incident is an example of Mr Bockhold's forceful and
nonenmes overhearmg management style.
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Mr. Bockhold's emphasis on a "yes sir" attitude,"(4) the GPC employee survey
results,"" (5) Mr. Dockhold's apparent disdain for regulatory involvement

{
| and attitude about conveying information to the NRC."" (6) Mr. Bockhold's

)
| handling of the FAVA microfiltration system concern, and (7) the selective j

memory and opinions of Mr. Hairston."c Intervenor's Findings at 69-78, 225- '

60.

I am not persuaded that an of these events are evidence of a lack of character.,

!
The intensity with which Mr. Mosbaugh pursued his concerns for over 5 years

,

is an indication of the isolation he felt in an organization that did not adequately I
resolve his concerns. Mr. Mosbaugh's deeply held belief that GPC suspected I

either he or his departrrient was relaying concerns to the NRC led him to tape
'

j '

surreptitiously conversations at the Vogtle facility.
The NRC Staff also held serious concerns about corporate and site manage-

! ment which. in addition to the allegations received by thai time, led the NRC to
; convene a meeting with senior GPC officials on April 30,1990, to candidly dis-
| cuss these concerns, particularly with respect to the performance and attitude of I

"Ms. Mosbaut asacrts that, dunny a February 7,1990 meenng on teorganuanon ait personnel downsizing
Mr. Bockhold ment oned his traimng in saymg "yes sir" and told Mr Mosbaugh if you "can't conform andi

1

accept. then you reed to get out." Mr. Mosbaugh interpreted the remarks to nran that he should conform to
managenrnt's vru of the "&luuon valve" matter dunng his upcommg 01 inserview. Intenenor's Propowd |

| Rndmgs at 39 43. Mr Boekhold could not recall the remarks, but beheved the nreung was about accepung I

upper managemens's &recuons regardmg reorganizauon philosophy or the ehmananon of parucular pmuons mi

the orgamranon. Bockhold Rebunal at 5 6. Whether or not Mr Mosbaugh is conces about the reason for the
, staienrnt, the statenrnt. If rnale, would esemphfy Mr Buckinild's nverbeantig management style.
( D''in his proposed findmgs (at 235). Intervenor states that the results of a surses mf nw' lear personnal taken in the

spnns of 1990 showed that 7N of Vogtle employees agreed with the statenrnt unplo)ces are afraid to vmee an
opsmon that manatenrnt does not want to hear" and 52% of Vogtle empleyces agreed with the statement "I am

{afraid to voice an opmion that my managernent does not want to hear " GPC's response to these survey results
I

and the problems rescaled by the issues in DG informanon esclosed by the NOV was to renund employees that
conditwns adverse to maclear safety should be brought to rnanagement's attenuon and are to be addressed and

,

! resol ed Harsson Rebuttal tff. Tr.13,439) at 24; GPC Nov Reply at 6
'"8

Intervenor asacrts that GPC's (11 ununrly recogneuon of the NRC's 1990 onsite problems with Mr. Bockhold's
atutude and commumcatumo (2) failure to asknowledge penonnel ermrs as a root cause in the NOV Response,
and (3) Mr Hairston's testmamy regar&ng Mr. Bockhold's performance is evidence that GPC managenrnt sull

i simws a lack of concern fur completeness and accuracy of anformanon subnvtied to the NRC. Intervenor's Proposed
i

Fin &ngs at 244-47. Mr H.ursioni 1990 acuons Oncludmg telephone calls to Mr Ebneter) and has tesurramy that
Mr 11ockhold's management style sonrunes caused him (Mr Bockhold) to miss opportumnes. does not in&cate
a lack of concern for accurate and complete communicatens with NRC. NRC Staff has observed impreved
couaaunications and performance once Mr Bockhold was no kmger in a Vogtle hne managenent posmon. Tr
15.194 (Matthews). These improvements, the conecuve actions taken, and GPC's Response to the Mo&fied NOV

i Onclueng the comnutments regarding Mr Bockhold), provide r-amnable assurance that the problems of the past
| have been addressed.

"U
tntervenor assens that it is meredible that Mr. Hainton (l) &d rms recall the &seussson about DG starts dunng

the Apn! 19,1990 telephone call ( Call A") between GPC corporate and site personnel, but did renwrr.ber his prior
call that sanr day with reactor operators. and (2) had a imuted undentaa&ng of dewpoints. Intervenor Proposed
Fin &ngs at 253-54 Tape 518 shows that Mr Hairston had hnused mvolvemem in " Call A" and nrrely asked af the
absence of tnps m the count had been venfied GPC Esh. Il-2. at 11 14. Dy contrast, he spoke at length with an
operator atmut wirther he had correctly desenbed tus observauons and actmns in the DG room dunng the sAE.
Thus. it sa not unreasonable that Mr. Hairston nught have a nmre vmd recollecuon of one incident occurnng on

| that date.
|

| 222

c



. .. . -- . . .. - .-

l'

i
I ;

:

I

\
I

the Vogtle General Manager, George Bockhold. During the succeeding months, l
i

Mr. Bockhold played a major role in the failure of GPC to submit complete and
accurate information to the NRC. GPC's communication record improved once
Mr. Shipman replaced Mr. Bockhold in October 1990. *

1

j The NRC Staff concluded that problems experienced by GPC have been
i

j addressed and that GPC has accepted responsibility for its pertarmance failures
|

| in its response to the NOV and in testimony during the bcense amendments
!

I. proceeding. Corrective actions have included corporate statements to employees |
| emphasizing the need for open and frank communications at the facility, and the )Southern Nuclear and GPC commitments with respect to management training j

for Mr. Bockhold. These corrective actions and improvements in performance
indicate that GPC or Southern Nuclear do not lack the requisite character and

| attitude to be an NRC licensee. Consequently, I do not conclude that these !'

events are evidence of bad character. '

i

E. Discriminating Against Employees for Engaging in Protected
Activities (Petition illi.a.111.4; July 8,1991 Supplement ill)

Petitioners assert that Mr. Ilobby, who was GPC's General ManaFer of
Nuclear Operations Contract Administration (NOCA) from December 19d8 to j

April 1990,"" was discharged frorn GPC after attempting to bring to GPC
management's attention his concern that it had improperly transferred control of
its nuclear licenses to SONOPCO. Petitioners state that Mr. liobby had earlier
been instructed by GPC Vice President of Bulk Power, fied R. Williams, to
destroy all copies of the confidential memorandum dated April 27,1989, that had
been written by Mr. Hobby and co-signed by GPC Senior Vice President-Fossil
and Hydropower, George F. licad, expressing concern for the perception that
GPC may have improperly transferred control of its nuclear facilities. Petitioners
also assert (Petition iIII.9.d) that GPC and SONOPCO management retaliated
against managers who make their regulatory concerns known to them.8"

On February 6 and 28,1990, Mr. Ilobby filed complaints with the Depart-
ment of Labor (DOL) contending that he had been discharged for engaging in
protected activity in violation of section 210 (now 211) of the Energy Reorga-
nization Act (42 U.S.C. 9 5851) of 1974, and the regulations promulgated by
I)OL at 29 C.F.R. Part 24. Each of the above issues that Mr. Hobby identified

W
Mr. Hairsion teshrted that Mr Bodbolf s nuuiagenent style sonrtmrs led Mr. nodhold to nuss opportunines

and that. althouya quahhed,it was unhkely thnt Mr Bodbold would return to hne nuinagenent at a nuclear power
racihty. Tt 11.55154 (Hairston)
"" Mr. Hobby was also Assistant to GPC sciuor Vlec President. Mr Geo ge Head. unut Mr Head retired in May
1989. Mr. Ilead 6 posinon was then rilled by Mr Kerry Adarns.
3M

Although not espressly stated an the petinon. the coniplaints or both Messrs. Hobby and Moshaugh in their
respective Dot discnnunauon suits are pertinent to this concern
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in the petition to the NRC with respect to his discharge was included in the
complaints. See DOL Case 9(LERA-30.

On August 4,1995, the Secretary of Labor (Secretary) issued a Decision
and Remand Order, finding that in 1990, senior managers of GPC discriminated
against Mr. Hobby when his position was eliminated and he was forced to resign
from GPC."* The Secretary determined that ( .'C terminated Mr. Hobby for

I engaging in protected activities, which included raismg safety concerns related
to the operation of the Vogtle facility in the April 27,1989 memorandum. His
Decision and Remand Order rejected the DOL Administrative Law Judge's |
Recommended Decision and Order that had been issued on November 8.1991,
which found that actions taken against Mr. Hobby were not motivated by his
engaging in protected activities. He Secretary remanded the complaint to the
Administrative Law Judge to determine a complete remedy.5

On October 4,1995, the NRC conducted a predecisional enforcement con-
ference regarding the Secretary's Decision and Remand Order to discuss the
apparent violation, the root cause, and GPC's corrective actions to preclude re-
currence (see Conference Summary dated October 11,1995b ne Conference

| was open to the public in accordance with section V of the NRC Enforcement
! Policy, NUREG-1600, and written comments were subsequently submitted by

Mr. Hobby for NRC consideration in reaching its enfo rement decision.
,

The Commission's regulations in section 50.7, " Employee Protection," pro-

( hibit discrimination by a Commission licensee against an employee for engaging

| in protected activities. On May 29,1996, the NRC issued a Notice of Violation
to GPC for two separate violations of section 50.7 - one in accordance with the
Secretary's finding regarding Mr. Hobby, and the other in accordance with the
Secretary's finding that Mr. Mosbaugh had been discriminated against by being
discharged for making audio tape recordings that constituted evidence gathered
in support of a nuclear complaint, and for engaging in other protected activities.
The Notice of Violation regarding Mr. Mosbaugh was in accordance with the

j Secretary of Labor's Decision and Remand Order in DOL cases 91-ERA-001

| and 91-ERA-011 on November 20, 1995, finding that Mr. Mosbaugh's sus-
I

|
i

H*The Secretary also found that other acts of disentrunanon occuned such as relocation of Mr Hobby's office,
resencuans of has access to the buildmg. and revocauon of tus execuuve parkmg priv&ges |

' M This Dol case (90LERA 30) also considered Pennoners' assernon Occ secuan 2.206 Pennon I!!!4. July
I 8,1991 Supplement iID that Mr. Mcdonald knowmgly subnutted false tesunwny in another Dol proceedmg

("fanAcr/Fuch") an an anempt to demonstrate that Messrs Gary Yunker and John Ivchko were not improperly
kept out of a GPC posioon shal would prmespate in the SoNoPCO Proicct Penuoners claim that Mr. Hobby
advised GPC's counsel before the Dol heai ng that Mr. Mcdonald's proposed testmmny was false and that GPC s j

| counsel responded by advtsmg Mr En*y that his testinony would have to be changed in lus Decismn and !

Renund order of August 4,1995, the Secretary stated,in relevant pan: *Because I found other evidence sufhcient Ii

to estabbsh that Complamant {Mr. Hobby) engaged in proiected acuvny on January 2. [1916 ohe prehearing |
mecung).) it was unnecessary to consider at that juncture whether counsel attempied to suborn Complamant to i

perjury. Even tf counsel shd. that esidence would not aher this decision " Deciuon and Rcmand order at 13. See

| also id at 5,9-t 3 |

t
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pension and discharge were acts of retaliation for engaging in protected activity.
The NRC stated that these violations were of very significant regulatory concern
because they involved acts of discrimination by senior corporate management,
and the NRC categorized each of the two violations as Severity Level 1. Be-
cause the 5-year period provided in the Statute of Limitations for imposing a
civil penalty had expired, no civil penalty was proposed for the violations. He
NRC took u.. ...forcement action to emphasize the importance of ensuring that
employees who raise real or perceived safety concerns shall not be subject to
discrimination for raising those concerns and that every effort will be made to
provide an environment in which all employees may freely identify safety issues
without fear of retaliation, harassment, intimidation, or discrimination.

The NRC also issued separate letters to each of the senior corporate man-
agers the Secretary identified to be involved with the discriminatory actions 88

In these letters, the NRC recognized that the discrimination found by the Sec.
retary occurred over 5 years ago, prior to implementation of 10 C.F.R. 5 50.5,
" Deliberate Misconduct," and that the NRC, therefore, was taking no enforce-
ment action against these senior managers. The NRC expressed concern that the
discriminatory actions found by the Secretary could have had a chilling effect on
other GPC employees; emphasized that harassment, intimidation, and discrimi-
nation against a licensee's employees for their engaging in pro ccted activities is
unacceptable; and provided official notice as to the enforcement actions against
indisiduals that the NRC is authorized to take under section 50.5.

During the enforcement conference and in a written reply dated June 27,1996,
GPC denied the violations, objected to the NRC's reliance on the Secretary's
decisions that were not yet final agency action, and acknowledged its right to
appeal the Secretary's decisions once they become final.

Mr. Hobby's allegation that he was unlawfully dismissed because of a concern
about the improper transfer of control of licensed activities is substantiated by
the Secretary's decision of August 4,1995. Mr. Hobby's regulatory concern
regarding transfer of control constituted a protected activity."" Therefore, Mr,
Hobby's dismissal because he expressed this regulatory concern is a violation
of section 50.7. I am satisfied that the NRC has taken appropriate enforcement
action to prevent the recurrence of violations of section 50.7 in the future,
and to ensure a proper environment in which employees can express regulatory
concerns without fear of retaliation, harassment, intimidation, or discrimination.
To the extent that Petitioners' request for NRC involvement relates to matters

# n the Hobby case, the secretary idenuhed Messrs I-red wilharns. Dwight Evans. H G (GraJy) naker. Jr.,i
and Thornas Doren in the Musbaugh case, the Secretary idenn6ed Meurs. A.W. Dahlberg and Ken McCoy.
"" As 1 discuss in Secuan III B of this Director's Ikcision. I am sans6ed that the sueged transfer of control of
hcensed acoviues for GPC nuclear facihues did not, in fact. occur. This fact does not. however. alter the hnding
than Mr. Hobby engaged in a protected acavity

225



. . . __ . _ _ . . _ - . - _ _ _ _

properly within the jurisdiction of the NRC, the request has been granted by
means of these enforcement actions.

I find no reason to withhold my Decision on this 2.2% petition because of,

| GPC's right to appeal the Secretary's decision when it becomes final. Further
NRC actmn in the event of a successful appeal is not precluded by my Decision
at this time.

|

F. Conclusions Regarding GPC's Character

The NRC reviews, inspections, and investigations related to the issues in
the petition, as supplemented by the license transfer amendment proceeding,
revealed a number of instances where the NRC was given incomplete and
inaccurate information associated with the proposed license transfer to Southern
Nuclear and DG reporting. The allegations that there was an illegal transfer of
authority to control operations at the Vogtle and Hatch facilities and that GPC

! and Southern Nuclear otherwise lacked the character and competence to operate
a nuclear power plant were not substantiated.

With respect to Petitioners' claim that GPC and Southern Nuclear routinely
engaged in unsafe operating practices. the NRC found instances where GPC had

violated NRC requirements, but the matters identified do not support Petitioners'
allegation that GPC or Southern Nuclear (1) praised managers for taking risks,
(2) did not take any adverse action against managers or employees who engage '

in nonconservative and questionable compliance practices, and (3) refused to
critically investigate events or practices resulting in LERs. j

With respect to GPC communications related to the proposed license transfer j
to Southern Nuclear, the NRC Staff found that there wue instances where the

j
NRC was provided inaccurate or incomplete information about the existing and |

proposed organizational structure in the formation of Southern Nuclear during
an oral presentation to the Commission in March 1989 while discussing the
chain of cornmand for the Vogtle facility, in GPC's written response to the
petition, and in licensing correspondence supporting the applications for transfer.
These inaccuracies, when considered in the context of the extensive interactions
between GPC and the NRC, were not significant and are not evidence of an intent
to misrepresent or deceive the NRC. Thus, the misstatements do not warrant
NRC enforcement action.

'Ihe NRC Staff did confirm that significant violations of Commission regu-
lations have occurred at the Vogtle facility since 1987 and these violations have
resulted in escalated enforcement actions by the NRC. The violations involved
(1) opening " dilution valves" required to be locked closed; (2) providing inaccu.
rate or incomplete information to the NRC regarding DG testing after the March !

20,1990 SAE; and (3) discriminating against Messrs. Mosbaugh and Hobby for
i

engaging in protected activities. {
1
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The Staff's review of the baron dilution violation revealed that the GPC
employee did not meet TS requirements or NRC expectations, but there was not
a sufficient basis to conclude that the individual had intentionally violated a TS
requirement. GPC and the individual admitted the mistaken TS interpretation.

Based on the findings of the DOL, the Staff concluded that GPC had
discriminated against the Petitioners because they engaged in t3rt tected activities,
which was a Severity Level I problem. This NRC enforcement action was
taken to emphasize GPC's obligation to ensure that employees who raise real or
perceived safety concerns are not subjected to discrimination and that assiduous
efforts are required in order for employees to have an environment where
they may freely identify safety issues without fear of retaliation, harassment.
intimidation, or discrimination. GPC has taken corrective action consistent with
these goals.

The failure of GPC to provide the NRC with complete and etccurate informa-
tion relative to DGs throughout 1990 that were cited in the Modified NOV were
serious. The significance of the performance failures of GPC stems r,ot from the
effect such inaccuracies had on the safety of plant operation, but because the cir-
cumstances surrounding the communications demonstrate an inadequate regard
by a number of senior Licensee officials, and by GPC management as a whole,
for providing complete and accurate information to the NRC. Information s hout

the DGs and GPC's determinations about the causes of errors were important
for the NRC to determine whether GPC was fulfilling its responsibihties as a
licensee.

GPC was clearly aware of the NRC's interest in the DGs because the NRC
specifically asked GPC to address DG reliability as part of its restart presentation
of April 9,1990. GPC should have taken steps to ensure the comp eteness and
accuracy of its submittals, but instead, at times, engaged in poorly defined efforts
to obtain information to satisfy the NRC on an issue having a direct bearing on
the NRC's decisica to allow restxt.Jhis performance is not acceptable,

it is also significant that GPC misse'd repeated opportunities to ensure com-
pleteness and accuracy ofinformation and to promptly correct information when

; its own staff questioned the accuracy of the April 9 information and subsequent
j explanations about inaccurate information. Even though senior GPC manage-
1 ment became involved,. GPC did not recognize the need to correct the April 9
'

start data until the NRC's request during the August 1990 inspection. Further,
i GPC continued to submit information that was inaccurate and incomplete and

,

; did not recognize the implications of its performance failures until they were
j identified by the NRC in the enforcement action almost 4 years later.

The NRC Staff has concluded, however, that the performance problems
exhibited throughout these events are not sufficient to establish that Southern
Nuclear, and the GPC employees who would work for that company as a result
of a transfer of the liatch and Vogtle operating licenses to Southern Nuclear,
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lack the requisite character to be a licensee. GPC's overall performance in
keeping the NRC informed of post-repair and troubleshooting activities, GPC's
technical competence in addressing those matters, Mr. Hairston's efforts to
keep the NRC informed about errors identified as GPC became aware of them,
and the corrective actions taken by GPC management in response to the NOV
(which include measures to ensure effective cor aunications and resolution of
employee concerns, and measures emphasizing open, complete, and accurate
communications with the NRC), are among the indications of GPC's diligence,
competence, and character. Testimony of Messrs. Roy P. Zimmerman and Luis
A. Reyes on the Character and Integrity Contention, ff. Tr.15,256,"Zimmerman-
Reyes," at 5-7. The NRC Staff's evaluation of GPC's response to the May 9,
1994 NOV on the DG issue and GPC and individual responses to the DFis
issued to Messrs. Bockhold, McCoy, Greene, Horton, liederick, and Majors
revealed that GPC officials have accepted responsibility for, and regret, their part
in GPC's deficient performance. The NRC Staff remained concerned, however,
about whether GPC, Southern Nuclear, and Mr. Bockhold fully understood the
ramifications of the DG enforcement action and the future performance of Mr.
Bockhold in line management positions at nuclear power facilities. Staff Exh.
Il-51 (cover letter).

I find that GPC's tendency to defend information provided during the restart
presentation, rather than to verify the accuracy of the data, was inconsistent with
the simple candor upon which the NRC relies to discharge its responsibility for
ensuring public health and safety. See North Arma. CLI-76-22,4 NRC at 491.
There is not a sufficient basis, however, to conclude that GPC cndeavored to

intentionally mislead the NRC or otherwise engaged in a pattern of deception
and falsehood in its licensing communications. The failures can be traced to (1)
the collective performance of senior GPC managers, including the management
style of the General Manager who repeatedly failed to ensure that complete and
accurate information was provided to the NRC; (2) the reluctance of site and
corporate personnel to question the views of superiors; and (3) the inadequate
efforts to verify information submitted to the NRC.

Based on a review of the facts set forth above, including the evidentiary
record of the adjudicatory proceeding, the enforcement actions taken against
GPC (i.e., regarding opening " Dilution Valves," DG reporting, and section
50.7 violations), and the favorable performance of GPC (and corrective action
taken) since 1990, there is no basis to conclude that Southem Nuclear lacks
the requisite character, integrity, and competence necessary to operate the
Vogtle and Hatch facilities in accordance with the Commission's rules and
regulations The individuals employed by GPC and Southern Nuclear have

J
not been shown to have intentionally submitted to the NRC information that
was inaccurate, incomplete, or misleading in a material respect. Rather, the
performance problems exhibited in GPC communications to the NRC were due

1
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!

! to the failures of certain individuals to take steps necessary to ensure the accuracy
'

and completeness of information and to promptly correct such misinformation.
| In recogniticn of the role, management style, and repeated performance failures

of the former General Manager, the license transfers for the Vogtle and liatch
facilities have been conditioned to limit his involvement in line management
activities consistent with commitments of GPC and Southern Nuclear.

IV. CONCLUSION

As discussed above, NRC has conducted several inspections, investigations,
and technical reviews regarding the concerns in the petition, and proceedings
before NRC and DOL have been conducted regarding most of the concerns.
Some of the concerns raised by the Petitioners were substantiated. Violations of
regulatory requirements have occurred in the operations of the Vogtle facility.
Notices of Violation and civil penalties have been issued to the Licensee,
letters have been issued to several individuals, and certain conditions regarding
one individual are being imposed by the NRC in conjunction with the license
transfers. To this extent, the Petitioners' request for action pursuant to section
2.206 had been granted.

On the basis of the NRC Staff's review and the license amendments hearing
record, I conclude that no unauthorized transfer of the Vogtle operating licenses
occurred, and that the GPC nuclear facilities are being operated in accordance
with NRC regulations and do not endanger the health and safety of the pub-
lic. On balance, the evidence does not support the conclusion that GPC, the
SONOPCO Project, or Southern Nuclear deliberately provided false or mislead-
ing information to the NRC or that Southern Nuclear or GPC (including the
GPC employees that would be employed by Southern Nuclear as a result of the
license transfer) lack the requisite character and integrity to be an NRC Licensee
as required by section 182 of the Atomic Energy Act,42 U.S.C. 9 2232, and 10 i

C.F.R. 6 50.80. Bus, there is no basis upon which to grant Petitioners' request
that the operation of the facility be suspended. !

With respect to Petitioners' request that the NRC institute proceedings and
impose civil penalties based on the matters addressed in the petition, the
issues in the petition that give rise to substantial health and safety issues have,
in fact, been the subject of a lengthy proceeding and escalated enforcement
actions by the NRC. Also, based upen the findings of the DOL, the NRC I
has addressed both Petitioners' specific concerns that they were discriminated |
against for engaging in protected activities (and the associated issue that GPC

|
retaliates against managers who make their regulatory concerns known) by taking
escalated enforcement actions against GPC. Based on actions already taken by
the NRC Staff, there is reasonable assurance that the GPC facilities operate with

,
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adequate protection of the public health and safety. Therefore, I decline to take
any further action with respect to matters raised in the petition. To this extent,
the Petitioners' request for action pursuant to section 2.206 is denied.

A copy. of the Director's Decision will be filed with the Secretary of
the Commission for the Commission's review in accordance with 10 C.F.R.
f 2.206(c) of the Commission's regulations. As provided by this rey 'stion, the
Director's Decision will an .itute the final action of the Commission 25 days
after the date of issuance unless the Commission, on its own motion, institutes
a review of the Director's Decision in that time.

FOR THE NUCLEAR
REGULATORY COMMISSION

Frank J. Miraglia, Jr., Acting
Director

Office of Nuclear Reactor
Regulation

, Dated at Rockville, Maryland,
| this 18th day of March 1997.

APPENDIX

ALLEGED ILLEGAL LICENSE TRANPTR ISSUES

"Intervenor's Prehearing Statement of Issues" (Statement of Issues), dated >

December 12, 1994, raised twenty-eight issues to support Intervenor's illegal
transfer issue for the license amendments proceeding."" The issues were
submitted in support of Intervenor's contention that the Vogtle operating license
should not be transferred to Southern Nuclear because it lacks the requisite
character and integrity. The twenty-eight issues repeat and further supplement
assertions in the petition regarding an illegal transfer of control of GPC nuclear
facilities.

"0Although latervenue identined 28 issues in his Staternent of Issues, two issues were both numbered 14A and
14B. and Intervenor presented no evidence or proposed findings on issue 25.
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1

L ALLEGED INACCURACIES ABOUT MR. FARLEY'S ROLE
IN THE CONTROL OF THE VOGTLE FACILITY

v
The gravamen of Intervenor's twenty-eight issues and related issues in the

petition, as supplemented, is that the nuclear officers in SONOPCO Project re- )
ported to Mr. Earley, rather than to Mr. Dahlberg, GPC's CFO, and to demon- |
strate that Mr. Farley controlled the Vogtle facility based upon_his alleged in-

i
volvement in (1) controlling daily operations; (2) establishing and irr,olementing I
nuclear policy decisions; (3) employing, supervising, and dismissing nuclear I.
personnel; and (4) controlling costs. Intervenor also asserts that numerous docu-

]
| ments and statements provided to the NRC regarding the organizational structure
i and responsibilities for managerial control of the Vogtle facility were inaccu-
'

rate or incomplete because they do not show Mr. M: Donald reporting to Mr.
Farley or Mr. Parley functioning as the defacto Chief Executive Officer of the
SONOPCO Project.

|

A. Controlling Daily Operations

( Intervenor asserts in Issue I that GPC misled the NRC about the corporate
L management structur: over the Vogtle facility during a March 30,1989 meeting
| in that Mr. Mcdonald's description of the chain of command ignored Mr.
| Farley's role as the chief executive over the Southern Company's nuclear
| division, which commenced exercising operating responsibility over GPC's
! nuclear plants in November of 1988. Intervenor asserts that Mr. Mcdonald
| inaccurately stated that he solely reported to GPC's CEO, Mr. Dahlberg.
| Interrenor claims that Mr. Mcdonald reported to Mr. Farley who reported to

Mr. Edward L. Addison, the President and CEO of The Southern Company.
)

Similarly, in Issue 10, Intervenor alleges that GPC's April I,1991 Petition
|

| response falsely stated that certain organizational charts filed with the SFC
and included with a May 15, 1989 memorandum from Mr. Fred Williams
to Mr. Hobby, accurately depicted GPC's organizational structure before the

j. incorporation of Southern Nuclear in that they do not show that Mr. Mcdonald

| reported to Mr. Farley or that Mr. Farley functioned as the de facto Chief
| Executive Officer of the SONOPCO Project.
| The hearing record does not support Intervenor's claim that Mr. Farley
| exercised control over GPC's nuclear facilities beginning in November 1988.

Mr. Farley testified that he had neither the authority, nor attempted to control
management decisions about licensed activities or personnel matters concerning

! the Vogtle facility. Prefiled Testimony of Joseph M. Parley, ff. Tr.1749, "Farley,"
at 17-18,22; Tr.1801-02 (Farley). Mr. Shipman (who in October 1988 was the

| Vogtle General Manager for Support and in January 1991 became the Vogtle
General Manager), Mr. McCoy (GPC Vice President-Plant Vogtle), and Mr.i

!
'

|
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Hairston testified that Mr. Farley did not issue orders or in3tructions regarding
the operation of the Vogtle facility or any aspects of the facility or otherwise
become involved in the maagement of personnel or activities at the Vogtle
facility. Tr.1976 (Shipm. 4; Prefiled Testimony of C. Kenneth McCoy, ff.
Tr.1560, "McCoy," at L Prefiled Testimony of W. George Hairston, III, ff.
Tr.1688, "Hairston," at 47-48; Tr.1726-28,171' (Hairston). In addition. Mr.
Mcdonald testified that Mr. Farley never influenced mm regarding operation of
the Vogtle facility. Prefiled Testimony of R. Patrick Mcdonald, ff. Tr.1249,
" Mcdonald," at 25; Tr.1550-51 (Mcdonald).

The record of the Hobby DOL proceeding indicates that GPC President.
Mr. Dahlberg, testified that the operation of GPC's nuclear facilities is his
direct responsibility; that Mr. Mcdonald takes his management direction from
Mr. Dahlberg regarding the operation of GPC's nuclear plants; and that Mr.
Mcdonald reports to Mr. Dalhberg for management operations dealing with
GPC plants (Hobby DOL Transcript at 305, 307, 309). Mr. Farley stated that he
did not have any responsibility for operating GPC's nuclear facilities and that
Mr. Mcdonald did not report to him with respect to the operation of Hatch and
Vogtle (id. at 567, 568). Mr. Mcdonald stated that he reported to Mr. Dahlberg
regarding the operation of GPC's nuclear facilities (id. at 613, 614).

In a deposition of May 5,1990, taken in the same Hobby DOL proceeding, at
13 and 14. Mr. Mcdonald stated that he had no reporting responsibilities to Mr.
Farley. A May 15, 1989 memorandum from Mr. Fred D. Williams, the GPC
Vice President for Bulk Power Markets, to Mr. Hobby, forwarded a copy of
the most recent published organization chart which showed that Mr. Mcdonald
reported to Mr. Dahlberg for operation and support activities of the Vogtle and
Hatch facilities, and that Mr. Hairston reported to Mr. Mcdonald.

While the record shows that Mr. Earley received verbal reports from Messrs.
Mcdonald, Hairston, McCoy, Louis B. Long (SCS Vice President-Technical
Services), and Charles McCrary (SCS Vice President-Administrative Services)
concerning the performance of GPC's nuclear units, and attended staff meetings
(Issue 15), this does not support a determination that Mr. Farley was part
of the management structure over the Vogtle facility. As the future CEO of
Southern Nuclear and as manager over certain support services provided to the
Vogtle facility, Mr. Farley periodically briefed The Southern Company Board of
Directors, received information, and attended meetings. Such sctivities do not
amount to control of operations or other licensed activities at the Vogtle facility.

Intervenor asserts that, during a deposition, Mr. Shipman stated that Mr.
Mcdonald and Mr. Hairston reprted to Mr. Farley. Mr. Shipman tcr.t;iied during
the license amendments hearing that he understood Mr. Mcdonald reported to
Mr. Farley for certain things and there were certain things that Mr. Mcdonald
did not report to Mr. Farley on. Tr.1966 (Shipman). This is consistent with
Mr. Farley's testimony that Mr. Mcdonald would informally report to him
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with regard to governmental affairs, such as congressional proceedings, and
administratise matters unrelated to the operation of the plants. Such activities
do not indicate that Mr. Farley had line management responsibilities or that
Mr. Mcdonald reported to Mr. Earley with respect to any licensed activities
involving the Vogtle facility.

The Petitioners claim that control of operating the nuclear facilitio is based
upon Mr. !LE, .iaving witnessed the day-to-day operation at GPC's corporate
offices (Petition at 5-6). During the hearing, however, no direct evidence was
offered to support the claim that Mr. Mcdonald reported to Mr. Earley regarding
the operation of the liatch or Vogtle facilities. Messrs. Ilobby and Mosbaugh
both acknowledged that they had no personal knowledge that Mr. Mcdonald
received direction from Mr. Farley regarding the operation of the Vogtle or
llatch facilities. Tr. 2157-58 (Mosbaugh) and Tr. 2377 (Hobby); Hobby DOL
Transcript at 239). Mr. Mosbaugh admitted that he had no first-hand knowledge
of the day-to-day interaction among Messrs. McCoy, Hairston, Mcdonald, and
GPC officers, and had never been in the Birmingham, Alabama offices of
SONOPCO. Tr. 2128 (Mosbaugh).

Intervenor also asserts (Issue 1) that Mr. Dan Howard Smith, a Department
Manager with Oglethorpe Power Corporation (a co-owner of the Vogtle facility),
had observed that Mr. Farley was the chief executive of the SONOPCO Project,
that Mr. Mcdonald reported to Mr. Farley who reported to Mr. Addison (the
President and CEO of The Southern Company), and that Mr. Farley's control
over nuclear operations might violate the terms of the operating licenses for
GPC's nuclear facilities."' However, Mr. Smith testified at his deposition
that after reading the transcript of the March 30,1989 meeting on the Vogtle
Unit 2 full-power license, during an April 1989 co-owner's committee meeting,
GPC provided a chart, at his request, that clarified the reporting chain. Smith
Deposition at 22-23, 36-37.

Intervenor's reference to Mr. liobby's meniorandum of April 27,1989, which
alluded to concerns about Mr. Mcdonald's reporting relationship (Issue 1),
does not establish that there was an improper exercise of control by Mr. Farley
and 'Ihe Southern Company. Mr. Rogge, the NRC Senior Resident inspector,
testified that "No one to my knowledge ever expressed a concern that GPC was
not in control of operations at Vogtle." Testimony of Frederick R. Allenspach,
Darl S. Hood, and John F. Rogge on the " Illegal Transfer" Issue, ff. Tr. 2620
"Allenspach, Hood, and Rogge," at 6.

In issue 3, Intervenor asserts that 1988 amendments to FSAR Ct apter I
inaccurately depicted the corporate organization for the operation of the Vogtle
facility because FSAR 61.4.1.2, " Description of Corporate Organization," did

I" Mr. Hobby's Memorandum of April 27.1989 (Ethibit A of the Septernber 21.1990 supplement to the Peution) l
refers to Mr. Snuth's concern abut control of GPC facibnes. I
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not state that "The Southern Company had newly established a nuclear division
with responsibility for operating GPC's nuclear plants."

He NRC was given timely notification of the plans to form a separate
operating company by virtue of the meetings held on February 16 and May 3,
1988, with the Commissioners and others to brief the NRC about The Southern

Company's tentative plans to form a separate nuclear operating company and to
review the several phases iiat would have to be insolved, pending SEC approval,
and ultimate license amendments, as well as by meetings held March 2 and 18,
1988, and July 25,1988, with NRC personnel. Farley at Il-12. Therefore, its
omission from FSAR 11.4.1.2 by the 1988 amendments was not significant in
terms of NRC awareness.

In Issue 4, Intervenor claims that the 1988 amendment to FSAR Chapter 13
(i.e., Vogtle FSAR Amendment 39, dated November 23, 1988) was inaccurate
because it described the Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations (Mr.
Mcdonald) as an officer of both GPC and APC who is " responsible to the
chairman and CEO of each company for all aspects of operation of the nuclear

,

generating plants in the Georgia Power and Alabama Power systems, as well I

as technical and administrative support activities provided by SCS," but did
not indicate that Mr. Farley was the fimetioning chief executive of SONOPCO
Project. Intervenor claims that the amendment was also mis cading because
technical and administrative services reported to an executive officer of the
SONOPCO Project, with Mr. Farley serving as chief executive officer. |

As President and CEO of ADC in November 1988, Mr. Farley was not part
,

of Vogtle line management, and he exercised no line management responsibility
over licensed activities at the Vogtle facility. A September 21.1988 memoran-
dum by Mr. Addison noted that Mr. Addison had asked Mr. Failey to guide the

,

formation of the new company (Southern Nuclear) and that Mr. Mcdonald was j
serving as Executive Vice President of GPC and APC and was responsible for |
the operation of the Hatch, Vogtle, and Farley nuclear facilities. Bus, the ab- i
sence of Mr. Farley from the Chapter 13 organizational charts and descriptions |
submitted by Vogtle FSAR Amendment 39 is not an inaccuracy. |

Services by SCS to GPC were provided in accordance with a January 1,1984 |

services agreement between them. Messrs. Louis Long, SCS Vice President of
Technical Services, and Charles McCrary, SCS Vice President of Administrative |

Services, reported to Mr. Mcdonald with respect to the Vogtle facility, not to
Mr. Farley. On April 24, 1989, the arrangement was made formal by a letter
of agreement between Messrs. Mcdonald and H. Allen Franklin, the President
of SCS at the time. McCoy at 8; Hairston at 21 and Tr.1712; Deposition of
Meier at 40-41. Therefore, Intervenor's claim of inaccuracy is not supported by
the record.

In Issue 5, Intervenor states that the organizational chart, Figure 13.1.1-1,
was inaccurate in the Vogtle FSAR amendment, dated March 28,1990, because
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it failed to depict Mr. Mcdonald's reporting relationship to Mr. Farley and it
showed the Administrative and Technical Services Vice Presidents reporting to
Mr. Mcdonald and then to Mr. Dahlberg. The hearing record does not support
Intervenor's assertions.

| Figure 13.1.1-1, as revised March 28, 1990, accmately shows that the
Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations, an officer of both APC and
GPC, reported to the President and CEO of GPC on Vogtle matters since Mr.
Parley was not involved in the operation of the Vogtle facility or activities
authorized by the Vogtle licenses. Figure 13.1.1-1 also accurately depicted the
Vice President for Administrative Services and the Vice President for Technical
Services reporting to Mr. Mcdonald and then to Mr. Dahlberg. Under a services
agreement between SCS and GPC, Mr. Dahlberg had the authority to direct
activities of these SCS officers for the functions they were performing in support
of plant operation (Hairston at 35). The fact that Mr. McCrary reports to Mr. |

Parley concerning certain administrative matters unrelated to plant operations,
including the formation of Southern Nuclear and general industry a:tivities (see
Ihrley, ff. Tr.1749, at 16; Hairston at 33; McCoy at i1), is not relevant to Vogtle
licensed activities and does not indicate that Mr. Farley controlled operations at
the Vogtle facility.

In Issue 18, Interve.wr alleges that, during a January 11,1991 meeting with
the NRC, Mr. Mcdonald falsely stated that Mr. Farley had no responsibilities for
administrative matters related to the SONOPCO Project. See also July 8,1991
Supplement to Section 2.206 Petition, iIV. Based on the meeting transcript and
Mr. Mcdonald's testimony, the January 11,1991 statement was not inaccurate.

Mr. Mcdonald testified during the hearing that his statement on page 42
of the meeting transcript": was that prior to Phase II (the incorporation of
Southern Nuclear), Mr. Farley had been performing a job as a Vice President of
The Southern Company, had been providing certain services to Mr. Mcdonald ;

!under a contract with SCS, and had no responsibility for certain administrative
support that was depicted on organization charts discussed during the meeting.
Administrative support was being performed by Mr. McCrary for Mr. Mcdonald
pursuant to an April 24, 1989 agreement. While Mr. McCrary provided |

administrative services to support Mr. Farley's responsibility to guide the
formation of Southern Nuclear and Mr. Farley's general industry activities, Mr.
McCrary did not report to Mr. Farley with respect to the administrative support
function for the Vogtle facility. Mcdonald at 9.

U2 The meeung transenpt, at page 42. shows thai Mr. Mcdonald (refernng to an orgamzauonal charo states
Yes. A month ago there was no hne here. Mr Farley mas perfonrung his job as a Vice Presidem of
s% Southern Company He had no responsibihties for dus adnutosuauve support. Thai adrmrustranve
support that we had basically wu bemg done. and he was a pan of a contract - it was a contract to ne
from Southern Sernces for pronding essenually nmch the same suppon we have here now

'
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In Issue 7, Intervenor states that the March 1991 FSAR amendment revising
'

Figure 13.1.1-1 is false because it shows the Executive Vice President-Nuclear
Operations, Mr. Mcdonald, reported to the President anu CEO of Southern
Nuclear, Mr. Farley, for Southern Nuclear matters only, and because it shows
that Mr. Mcdonald reported to the President and CEO of GPC for GPC matters.

'

Intervenor claims that (1) Mr. Mcdonald repe ';d to Mr. Farley on matters
pertaining to Vogtle, (2) both Messrs. Mcdonald and rancy reported to Southern
Nuclear Board of Directors on matters pertaining to GPC's nuclear operations,
and (3) Mr. Farley reported to The Southern Company CEO, Mr. Addison, and
to The Southern Company Management Council. Intervenor similarly alleges in
Issue 22 that GPC's April 1,1991 response to the petition falsely asserts that,

during Phase II (after incorporation of Southern Nuclear), all Southern Nuclear,

| management in the reporting chain above the Vogtle Plant General Manager
: , vere officers of GPC because Mr. Farley stated during his deposition that he

was never an officer of GPC.
Once Southern Nuclear was incorporated Mr. Farley became its President

and CEO and Mr. Mcdonald, who retained his positions as Executive Vice
F.Tsident of GPC and AFC, became the Southern Nuclear Executive Vice
President. Ilairston at 37-3't. Thus, Mr. Mcdonald reported to Mr. Farley,
and they both reported to the Southern Nue'1 Board of Directors, regarding
Southern Nuclear matters.110 wever, for licen s activities at the Vogtle facility,
Mr. Mcdonald continued to report directly to GPC President and CEO, Mr.
Dahlberg. Farley at 17-19; Mcdonald at 4; McCoy at 13. Since Mr. Farley was
CEO of Southern Nuclear during Phase II, and was not part of the management
chain for the Vogtle facility,'" Intervenor's assertions that Figure 13.1.1-1 and

| GPC's petition response were inaccurate were not substantiated.

; In Issue 11, Intervenor alleges that in the April 1,1991 response to the
petition, GPC falsely represents that Mr. Farley did not have management control

J,

over GPC licensed activities or GPC personnel matters.'
'

; The record shows that Mr. Farley did not have control over GPC's licensed
activities. Mr. Mcdonald, who signed the April 1,1991 response, testified
that Mr. Earley did not exercise any management control over GPC's licensed
activities, and that he (Mcdonald) was not aware of a single instance where

| Mr. Farley controlled, or made, a GPC staffing or operating decision. McDon-

] aid at 10. Neither the hearing record nor results of NRC's regulatory oversight
;

1
*

\

|

"'The agreenrnt executed by GPC and Southern Nuclear (GPC Heanng Exhibits 20 and 21) expressly stated
- that Southern Nuclear would not perform any acuvines in connect on with the nuclear r5s that were required
J by the operaung beenses to be perforned by the txensee, GPC. Hairsion at 36 38 As part of his responsibihues

as Execuuve Vice Presidens-Nuclear of The Southern Company. Mr f arley bnefed the Southern Company Board
and Mr. Addison on nuclear developnents f arley at 21. This responsibihty to provide informanon dos not
consurute control of heensed actsvines at the Vogtle facihty

1
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support Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Farley had management control over GPC
licensed activities or GPC personnel matters.

In Issue 20, Intervenor claims that statements by Mr. Stephen H. Cbesnut (a
GPC manager-in-training in August 1990), recorded on Mr. Mosbaugh's Tape
No. 260, and statements during Mr. Shipman's August 1994 deposition, show
that SONOPCO Project managers observed that Mr. Farley, rather than Mr.
Dahlberg, -,..m.ied GPC's nuclear operations."' See also October 1,1990
Supplement to Petition at 4-5.

Given that (1) Intervenor's testimony concerning Mr. Chesnut's statements on
Tape No. 260 was stricken from the record,(2) Intervenor subsequently withdrew

[
the tape transcript, (3) Intervenor did not call Mr. Chesnut as a witness (see Tr.
1909-11,2047), and (4) Mr. Shipman, a SONOPCO Project manager, testified
that he never had any doubt that the responsibility for the licensing and operation
of the GPC nuclear facilities rested with Mr. Dahlberg (Tr. 1982-83),"5 there is
no basis to conclude that these SONOPCO Project managers believed that Mr.
Farley controlled GPC's nuclear operations or other licensed activities.

In. Issue 23 Intervenor alleges that GPC's April 1,1991 response to the
petition falsely asserts that Mr. Dahlberg is contacted on a daily basis by GPC
nuclear operating officers concerning the status of GPC nuclear plants in that
" phone records" showed differently. Intervenor did not submit any " phone
records" or other evidence to support his assertion.

'The testimony of Mr. Dahlberg and Mr. Mcdonald established that Mr.
Dahlberg or his staff received daily reports from a GPC nuclear officer con-
cerning the status of GPC'< nuclear plants and was contacted if some unusual
or unexpected operational event occurred. Dahlberg at 16-17. Mcdonald at 3,
22. See also Tr. I135, i154 (Dahlberg).

Accordingly, the hearing record does not support Intervenor's allegation in
issue 23 that GPC's April I,1991 statement is inaccurate.

*

"4 Smularly, in lasue 21. Intervenor alleges that in its Apnl 1.1991 response to the pet tion. GPC falsely assert.
that O) Vogtle project management does mg assume that Mr Farley, rather than Mr. Mcdonald controls Vogtle's
operanons. and (2) Mr. Mcdonald reports to Dahlberg on all rnaners concermng the operatbn of GPC's nuclear
facihues

Mr Mcdonald tesuhed that he was conndent that Vogtle managers understood that he, and all other GPC
ofhcers, managers, and employees. reported to Mr Dahlberg on all maners pertairung to the operauon of GPC's
nuclear facahues as specihed in the l'sAR. and Intervenor's assumphon that Mr. Twley was in control was based
on statements by Mr McCor that had been taken out of context. Mcdonald at 17, 20 21.
"8 Mr. Shipman said he had corrected lus deposanon statement (Intervenor Exh.10) that, in Apnl 1990. Mr.
Hainton reported to Mr. lwley through Mr Mcdonald to correctly indicate that Mr. H.urston reported to Mr
Dahlberg through Mr. Mcdonald. Tr 1992 95. Licensee Exh. li Mr. Shipman explained thai his iruual
deposioon statement was in the consent of informauon customanly provuled to Mr. f arley by the SoNoPCO
Project execuuves and he thought at the time of his 1994 depositmn that Messrs. Hairston and Mcdonald were
of6cers of sCS as weH as GPC and APC ami as such, reponed to Mr Farley wnh respect to SCs maners Tr.
19667,1983-85.1993-95 (Shipman).

I
i
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; In Issue 15, Intervenor contends that GPC failed to tell the NRC, during a
| December 1988 inspection of the corporate offices in Birmingham, Alabama,
| that Mr. Earley was involved with the SONOPCO Project as CEO of the

SONOPCO Project, and failed to inform the NRC about Mr. Mcdonald's
| " reporting relationship" to Mr. Farley."' intervenor claims that: (1) Mr. Farley

reported to Mr. Addison and The Southern Company Management Council
which served as a board M 1 rectors for the SONOPCO Project; (2) Mr. Farley
was involved with the operation and management of The Southern Company's
nuclear plants, presiding over weekly staff meetings; and (3) GPC's letter of'
December 29,1988, to NRC continued to mislead the NRC about Mr. Farley's
role by stating that, "as shown on FSAR Figures 13.1.1-2 and 13.1.1-3, the
Executive Vice President, the Senior Vice President-Nuclear Operations and the
Vice President-Nuclear do provide line management direction for the eperation
of the Plant."

The record shows that Mr. Farley was President of APC during the December
1988 inspection, and he did not become Executive Vice President of The South-
crn Company and SCS until March 1,1989. Farley at 1. The announcement
that he would be the CEO of Southern Nuclear upon its incorporation was not
made until March 1989. Farley at i1; Tr.1723 (Hairston).

Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Farley presided over weekl./ staff meetings
'

designated as "Farley staff meetings" is not supported by the hearing record.
.Although SONOPCO Project staff meetings were held beginning m November
1988, Mr. Farley did not attend these meetings until he relocated to the
SONOPCO Project offices, after his election to Executive Vice President of
The Southern Company and SCE, effective March 1,1989. and he provided no
management oversight or direction at those meetings. Fa...y at 21; Mcdonald at
21; Hairston at 24. Consistent with providing support services to the SONOPCO
Project and his future position as CEO of Southern Nuclear, Mr. Farley's
attendance was to keep abreast of system plant developments and, as Executive
Vice President-Nuclear of The Southern Company, the meetings enabled him to
proside periodic reports to The Southern Company Board of Directors. McCoy
at 17-18; Farley at i1,21; Mcdonald at 21; Tr.1341-42 (Mcdonald), Tr.1848-
51 (Parley), Tr. 1989-90 (Shipman); McCrary Deposition at 38. The fact that Mr.
Farley was kept informed and periodically briefed The Southern Company Board

U'liam December 19 through 21. 1088, the NRC conducted an inspection of the corporate utgaruzation.
responubihties, and functmns of SoNoPCO at Birmmgham. Alabama. dunng Phase i of the Southern Nuclear
transition (Inspechon Report Nos. 50 321/88-41. So.366m8-41. 5442448-60. 5042548 77. 5434848-33. and
5436448-33) and observed. in Part 3 of the report. .nar

in preparanon for cornhimng the managenunt of Vogtle. Hatch, and Farley into one organizauon.
GFC has reorganized and moved the corporate nuclear operations to Birnungham. . . Currently, the
Execuuve Vice Preudent and Senior Vice Presdent for Nuclear operations are officers of bodi GPC and
APC. .The Vice Presidents for each of the three projects (Vogtle. Hatch, and Farley) report to the
Semor Vice President of Nuclear Opernoons.
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of Directors does not warrant the conclusion that he was part of the management
structure for the Vogtle facility or exercised control over its operation or its other
licensed activities.

The hearing record does not support Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Hairston's
letter of December 29, 1988, that referenced organizational charts shown in;

| FSAR Chapter 13, misled the NRC about Mr. Farley's role in the operation of

| the Vogtle facility (see also issues 4,5, and 7 herein). Mr. Farley had no such
j role.
! Accordingly, there is no basis to conclude that the NRC was misled during

its December 1988 inspection or by subsequent submittals regarding the orga-
I nization in control of GPC's licensed activities.

In Issue 16, Intervenor contends that during a July 25,1989 meeting with the
NRC, GPC failed to accurately portray the actual contiguration of the SONOPCO

,

|

organization by not revealing that Mr. Farley had management responsibility
over the Vogtle facility. Since the record does not support that Mr. Farley
had management responsibility over the Vogtle facility, this contsntion is not

j
substantiated.

i

In Issue 24, Intervenor alleges that GPC omitted from the Vogtle Emergency !

Plan any discussion of Farley's management functions and responsibilities as I
'

they related to the Corporate Emergency Plan described in Appendix 7 of the
Vogtle Emergency Plan (Revision 12, effective April 1990). Intervenor's bases
for this allegation are that (1) the Vogtle emergency procedures demonstrate
that Mr. Farley had an emergency plan responsibility because he was listed
in the On-Call Project Manager's telephone list as " Georgia Power Corporate
Management"; and (2) Messrs. Mcdonald, Hairston, and McCoy as well as the
rest of the corporate emergency organization were controlled from a practical
standpoint by Mr. Farley.

Mr. McCoy testified that Revision 12 (dated April 1990) of the Corporate
Emergency Plan accurately indicated that Mr. Farley had no role in the Corporate
Emergency Organization, and that Mr. Farley was not part of .the " Senior ,

Corporate Management" identified in the Corporate Emergency Notification I
Tree (Figure C-1 of the Corporate Emergency Plan for the Vogtle Electric |

Generating Plant, Revision 12). McCoy at 18-19; see also Tr.1597 (McCoy);
Supplemental Prefiled Testimony of C. Kenneth McCoy, ff. Tr.15M), "McCoy '

Supplemental," at 1. Even though Mr. Farley was accurately identified as
Executive Vice President.-Nuclear of The Southern Company, his name was
listed under the heading " Georgia Power Corporate Management" in the On-
Call Project Manager's telephone list. The heading was incorrect and, beginning
in 1991, the section was renamed " Corporate Management" and included the
designated title for each individual. McCoy Supplemental at 1; see also Tr.
1574-76,1588-89 (McCoy).
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The On-Call Project Manager's telephone list does not identify who is to
be called in the case of a significant event at the Vogtle facility, is not part of
a procedure, and is not intended to be used by the On-Call Project Manager

! (corporate) to idemify who is to be notified in the event of an emergency.
| Administrative procedure VNS-EP-N, entitled " Duties of the On-Call Project
| Manager"(GPC Exh. 9), identifies who is to be otified by the On-Call Project
I Manager, in what order,U' and Mr. Farley was not itquired to be ncutied by

the On-Call Project Manager as a part of the emergency call-out procedures.U8
McCoy Supplemental at 2-3; Tr.1580-92 (McCoy).

The record does not support Intervenor's assertion that Messrs. Mcdonald,

| Hairston, McCoy, and the rest of the carporate emergency organization in
Birmingham, Alabama, were controlled by Mr. Farley. Messrs. Mcdonald and
McCoy both testified that there was no attempt by Mr. Farley to control the
operation of the Vogtle facility and that line management authority over licensed
activities at the Southern Nuclear offices was very clear - through Mr. McCoy
to Mr. Hairston, Mr. Mcdonald, and Mr. Dahlberg. McCoy at 19; Mcdonald

| at 25. GPC's response to the March 20,1990 Vogtle SAE also demonstrates
that Mr. Farley did not participate in the emergency response, but only listened-

to discussions regarding the event consistent with his need to know information.
Tr. I825-29 (Farleu). I

Accordingly, the allegation in Issue 24 is not suppoited. The hearing record
does not support that Mr. Farley had emergency plan responsibilities indicative
of a control over GPC's nuclear facilities or that he exercised control over GPC
managers and personnel involved with GPC's emergency response. Therefore,
the claim that Mr. Farley was omitted from the Vogtle emergency plan in order i

to mislead the NRC is unwarranted.
In summary, Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Farley functioned as the defacto

Chief Executive Officer of the SONOPCO Project is not supported by the
record. Mr. Mcdonald did not report to Mr. Farley regardmg GPC licensed
activities. The items cited do not demonstrate that Mr. Farley exercised con-
trol over licensed activities at GPC's nuclear facilities during his involvement
in the SONOPCO Project. Rather, the record shows that GPC controlled the

l
daily operations of the Vogtle facility in accordance with a chain of command I
extending from the Vogtle General Manager, through the Vice President of the

|

U7 li a significant event occurred at the ,'igtle facihty. Adnunntrative Procedure VNS-LP.04, as it emissed in
1990. required that the appropiiate GPC sorporate managenent be noufied and briefed on the enrrgency If any
one of due to be nonfied were not available. the on-Call Protect Manager would go to the next person up the
hne. On occasions, Mr. McCoy was unable to reach Mr Mdknald or Mr Hairston. and he called Mr Dahlberg
McCoy Supplemental at 3-4
U8

The adtrunistranve procedure did not regwre that Mr Farley be contacted for s'Fnsficant events at the Vogtle
facihty. but in pracuee, both Mr Farley and Mr Dahlberg would be called IJ
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Vogtle facility, through the Senior Vice President-Nuclear Operations, through ;

the Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations, to the President and CEO of
GPC. A Nuclear Operations Overview Committee of the GPC Board of Directors
conducted periodic reviews of the regulatory and operational performance of
GPC's nuclear plants.

s

I B. Establishing and Implementing Nuclear Policy Decisions
]!
i

| Intervenor's Statement of Issues and the petition, as supplemented, include '

| allegations that Mr. Farley controlled the Vogtle facility based upon his involve-
I ment with establishing and implementing nuclear policy decisions. (Issues 1,9,

15,17, and 20; October 1,1990 Supplement at 4).
In issue 15, Intervenor claims that, in 1987, Messrs. Addison and Farley met {

privately and agreed Mr. Farley would serve as " chief executive of Southern
Company's nuclear division" and decided to locate Southern Nuclear in Birm-

! ingham without the knowledge of senior GPC officials. I
Intervenor's assertion that Messrs. Addison (CEO of The Southern Company) !

and Farley agreed in 1987 that Mr. Farley would become the chief executive of a
Southern Company nuclear operating subsidiary is not supported by the hearing
record. Although he did not recall the exact date, Mr. Addison believed that
his discussions with Mr. Farley about Mr. Farley heading the Southern Nuclear

i

Operating Company occurred "when the decision was made to go forward." I
Addison Deposition at 36-37. The hearing record shows that Mr. Addison did
not make the decision unilaterally, that Mr. Farley was elected to the position
of President and CEO of Southern Nuclear by the Board of Directors, which
included GPC's CEO (Mr. Dahlberg) and GPC's Executive Vice President-
Nuclear Operations (Mr. Mcdonald) after Southern Nuclear was incorporated
on December 17,1990. Hairston at 37. The fact that Mr. Addison, the CEO of
the holding company, discussed with a senior officer the possibility of that officer
heading a new subsidiary, does not violate any Commission regulation and does
not support a conclusion that Mr. Farley directed GPC licensed activities.

There is no basis in the record to conclude that Messrs. Addison and Farley
decided where SONOPCO would be located, or that this information was
withheld from GPC management. While Mr. Farley told Mr. Addison that
he would consider heading up Southern Nuclear if the corporate offices were
in Birmingham, Mr. Addison discussed the merits of the location with GPC,
the issue was examined by task forces, and Southern Nuclear wa. located in
Birmingham, Alabama, due to its proximity to the engineering support staff and
the economics of that location. Addison Deposition at 80-81, 83; Tr.1821,
1823 (Farley). Mr. Thomas McHenry, the GPC Manager-Nuclear Support,
represented GPC on the implementation task force, and Mr. H.G. "Grady" Baker,
GPC Senior Executive Vice President, was on the steering committee. Tr.1331
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(Mcdonald). Mr. Farley believed that the decision as to location was made by
the Board of Directors in May 1988. Tr.1822-23 (Farley).

In issues 15 and 17, Intervenor alleges that by 1989 the Southern Company
Management Council began functioning as the SONOPCO Project Board of
Directors. Intervenor states in issue 17 that (1) GPC's April 1,1991 response -

| to the petition falsely stated that The Southern Company Management Council
j was not involved in operating issues pertaining to GPC's nuclear plants;'"' and
; (2) the functioning of the Management Council was omitted from the April 1

| response and the FSAR.
| De record shows that there was no Board of Directors for the SONOFCO

'
Project and no Board of Directors for Southe a Nuclear until it was incorporated

'

at the end of 1990. Tr.1773-75 (Farley); Farley (ff. Tr.1061) at 13-14; Dahlberg
at 8. Individuals who later became members of the Board of Directors of
Southern Nuclear informally discussed the status of efforts to form Southern

| Nuclear, and other issues of common interest, as representatives of The Southern

| Company Management Council. Farley at 13-14.
Mr. McCoy testified that ne Southern Company Management Council is not

| described in the Vogtle FSAR because the Council is not the licensee of the
| Vogtle facility or an organization with responsibilities regarding the operation of
I the Vogtle facility. The Southern Company Management Councii only reviewed

GPC's budget in connection with The Southern Company's obligations to its
| stoci. holders. McCoy at 16. Neither 10 C.F.R. 5 5033 nor 10 C.F.R. 5 50.34
| requires that such budget review activities be included in an FSAR. Tims. there
i was no misrepresentation to the NRC and Intervenor's allegations in Is!.ues 15

and 17 are without merit.

| In issue I, Intervenor asserts that key neFotiations between GPC and Ogle-
| thorpe Power Corporation were conducted by Mr. Farley.
| Mr. Farley testified that he conducted certain negotiations with Mr. Stacey i

| of Oglethorpe Power Corporation at the request of Mr. Dahlberg, but the major
! part of the negotiations were through Mr. Grady Baker and Mr. Fred Williams.

Farley at 33; see also Dahlberg at i1 12. Mr. Williams confirmed that he was )
| in charge of negotiating the agreement, and that in his view, Mr. Farley merely 1

i provided Oglethorpe Power Corporation information and comfort about setting '

! |

II'Intervenor nuscharactenus GPC s Apnl I response. The response stated, at 4

| The Southern System Managernent Council proudes a forum for dw cuchange of informanon among
nuhsidiary compames that will aid the Compames' daily operanons, it reviews system perfanunce and
it provides strategic and pohey guidance to the system However. day to-day management of pohey and
operaung issues penasmng solely to an mdiv dual subsidiary company is the esclusive responsibihty of.

the subsidaary company's CEO

intervenor offered no evidence that showed the statenient to be enaccurate I
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up nuclear operating companies. Tr. 2482-83 (Williams). Thus, Mr. Farley's
participation does not indicate control of GPC licensed activities.

Intervenor claims in Issue i that Mr. Farley reviewed data requests and
testimony before the Georgia Public Service Commission in support of GPC's

| 1989 rate case. Mr. Farley testified that he had no responsibility for GPC's rate
case and did not direct Mr. Mcdonald's activities rciated to the 1989 rate case.

| Tr.1803 (Farley); Farley at 34-35. Mr. Farley's monitoring of data requests to
make sure that the SONOPCO Project was providing expeditious support (Tr.i

! 1803-11 (Farley)) does not reHect control over licensed activities.
In Issue 9 Intervenor alleges that GPC's April 1,1991 response to the

| petition falsely stated that the resolution of a dispute between Messrs. Dwight
! Evans (GPC Executive Vice President-External Affairs) and Mcdonald by Mr.

Dahlberg's direction to Mcdonald regarding the presentation of performance
indicators to the Georgia Public Service Commission was evidence of the

| reporting relationship and indicative of who was in control of nuclear operations
at the Vogtle and Hatch facilities. Intervenor claims that this statement is false
because Mr. Mcdonald, after an August 10, 1989 meeting, did not follow
Mr. Dahlberg's instructions, and Messrs. Mcdonald and Farley reviewed and
approved testimony that did not include alternative performance indicators.

The hear ng record does not support Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Mcdonald <

did not follow Mr. Dahlberg's instructions. Messrs. Mcdonald and Dahlberg )
both testified that a decision was made at the August 10.1989 meeting to be |
prepared to propose alternative performance standards, if necessary, and that this
strategy was carried out in the handling of the 1989 rate case. Pretiled Testimony
of A. William Dahlberg, Ill, ff. Tr.1061, "Dahlberg," at 17; Mcdonald at 15-17;
Tr.1192-22,1137-41 (Dahlberg); Tr.1504 (Mcdonald). Mr. Earley received
copies of the draft testimony to be submitted to the Georgia Public Service ;

Commission, but he neither approved nor disapproved it. Farley at 34. He l

was in agreement with Mr. Dahlberg's decision that GPC should be prepared to !
propose alternative performance standards, if necessary. Tr. I 108-09 (Dahlberg). !

Such actions do not indicate control of nuclear operations or budget policy. )
In issue 20, Intervenor claims that in its April 1,1991 response to the petition I

(at 12, Attachment 1), GPC inaccurately states that Mr. Farley did not create the
outage philosop'ay* for the Vogtle facility. Intervenor asserts that the response
is inaccurate because (1) Mr. Farley was involved in the establishment of the |
outage philosophy at the Vogtie facility,(2) Mr. McCoy referred to Mr. Farley's j

l

,

N As used here. "outaFe phdosophy" refers to outage scheduhng Specahcally. the "phdowphy" was to use an
" optimum" setedule - a schedule without the snclusion of tame for contingencies McCoy at 14-15. |

|
|
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role as indicated by an audio tape (Tape No. 236) recorded in August 1990,i2i
and Mr. Parley testified during a deposition that "Farley staff meetings" were
held every week.

The record shows that GPC's April 1,1991 response to the petition was accu-
! rate because Mr. Mcdonald established and implemented the outage philosophy
; and Mr. Fa-ley was not involved in overseeing the establishment of the outage

| philosophy. Mcdonald at 13; Tr.1518-20 (Mcdonald); McCoy at 14; Farley
| at 30. Mr. McCoy's statements on Tape No. 236 referred only to " discussions"
| about the outage philosophy that included Mr. Farley, and do not show that Mr.
! Farley set, established, directed, or created the outage philosophy at the Vogtle ,

! facility. McCoy at 14. Mr. Farley testified that he (1) did not direct the operating
'

philosophy and other executive matters concerning operation of the Vogtle fa-
cility in the weekly staff meetings, (2) did not have any authority to control, and i

(3) did not attempt to exercise any control over management decisions affecting
'

; licensed activities or personnel matters concerning the Vogtle facility. Farley at
'

22. Moreover, Mr. Mosbaugh admitted that he had no personal knowledge to
i

support his claim that the outage philosophy came from Mr. Farley. Tr. 2129-35.
Accordingly, the hearing record does not support Intervenor's allegation in

Issue 20 that GPC's April 1,1991 statement is inaccurate or that Mr. Farley
controlled operation of the Vogtle facility by establishing or implementing the |

Vogtle outage or other operational philosophy.
In summary, the hearing record shows that nuclear policy decisions for the

Vogtle facility were established and implemented by GPC, and there was no ;

evidence that Mr. Farley established the outage philosophy or any other oper-
ational policies for the Vogtle facility. Mr. Farley's limited involvement in a
1989 rate case matter before the Georgia Public Senice Commission (i.e., his

,

review of draft testimony regarding alternative performance standards) does not
|

indicate any control of GPC's nuclear operations or licensed activities. Inter- 1

venor also provided no information that The Southern Company Management
Council acted as the SONOPCO Project board of d; rectors until the Project was |
incorporated.

C. Employing, Supervising, and Dismissing Nuclear Personnel

In his Statement of Issues and the petition, as supplemented, Intervenor asserts
that Mr. Farley exercised control over the Vogtle facility because he (1) selected
and approved GPC's management staff; (2) reviewed nuclear personnel in 1989
as evidenced by GPC Management Council's exclusion of nuclear personnel

i21 Tlus issue is also raned in the October 1.1990 Supplenent to de Petmon at 4. Petmoners claim that Mr
McCoy's taped statement. that the outage plulosophy was created by Mr Farley and others, suptwwts their assemon
that Vogtle propet management assumed that Mr Farley. not Mr Dahlberg, controlled Vogtle's operations.
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| from its 1989 companywide review of management; (3) decided that Mr. Michael

Barker, a GPC employee, would not be transferred from the SONOPCO Project
to the Nuclear Operations Contract Administration (NOCA) group in Atlanta; (4)
prepared Mr. Mcdonald's annual performance appraisal; and (5) implemented
changes in Vogtle personnel evaluations and pay. (Issues 1,6,8,14A,14B,15,

| 19, ' ., 27, and 28; October 1,1990 Supplement to Petition at 1-3.)
! He hetu..g mcord fails to support Intersenor's allegation (Issues 6 and 15;

October 1,1990 Supplement to Petition at 1-2) that Mr. Farley selected and
approved GPC management staff. The decision to select the individual officers
responsible for GPC's nuclear operations was made by GPC management with
the approval of the GPC Board of Directors. GPC's Vice President, Grady
Baker, and not Mr. Farley, recommended that Messrs. Mcdonald and Hairston
become officers of GPC. Mr. Farley's involvement in the selection of Messrs.
Mcdonald and Hairston was limited to concurring as President of APC that they
could take on the additional responsibilities associated with managing GPC's
nuclear facilities. Farley at 25-26.

Mr. Farley's involsement in the hiring of Mr. McCoy consisted of discussing
Mr. Mcdonald's proposal to hire him. Mcdonald at 10-11; Farley at 25-26;
McCoy at 5-6; Tr.1349-50 (Mcdonald) and Tr.1727 (Hairston). GPC's CEO.
Mr. Rober'. W. Scherer, interviewed Mr. McCoy before he was appointed, and
the GPC Board of Directors subsequently appointed Mr. McCoy to his current
position. McCoy at 1,5, and 6.

Mr. Farley was involved in the selection of Messrs. McCrary and Long as
Vice Presidents in SCS. As President of APC, Mr. Farley was consulted on the
appointments of Messrs McCrary and Long because the Farley nuclear facility
was being supported by the SONOPCO Project and SCS oflicers. Hairston
at 24. Mr. Farley was a member of a selection cornmittee, including GPC
and APC representatives, to make recommendations for the Vice President of
Administrative Services position.822 Mr. Mcdonald and Mr. Jack Causey of
GPC were also members. Tr.1276 (Mcdonald).

Rus, the hearing record supports the conclusion that Mr. Farley did not
make decisions regarding the hiring of any of the officers reporting to Messrs.
Mcdonald and Hairston. Mr. Farley's limited involvement with SCS officers
within the SONOPCO Project (such as Messrs. McCrary and Long) does not
appear inappropriate since the SONOPCO Project and 13 SCS officers were also
providing support to the APC nuclear plant.

Intervenor's assertion (Issues I and 14A) that the GPC Mangment Coun-
cil's exclusion of nuclear personnel from its 1989 companywide review of man-
agement was evidence that nuclear operations were reviewed by Mr. Farley was

322
Typeal of the selection process for SCS senior personnel, no wiection commmce was convened for Mr teng

because tus functions and position in the SoNOPCo Project were similar to his posmon in sCS rwiey at 22-24
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not supported by the hearing record. Mr. Dahlberg testified that the nuclear
management was not included because the nuclear officers had just been re-

| viewed as part of the recent formation of the SONOPCO Project. Tr. 1185 88
.

(Dahlberg).
|

| Intervenor asserts (Issue 8) that GPC's August 24, 1994, response to a i

Licensing Board question was inaccurate because it failed to identify the3
,

NOCA group as an organizatien that had oversight responsibilities within GPC,|
failed to state that SONOPCO Project personnel refused to cooperate with
NOCA, and that SONOPCO personnel, including Mr. Farley, interfered with
the operation, staffing, and existence of NOCA.'"

The hearing record indicates that NOCA never performed the type of over-
sight functions identified by the Board's question. NOCA did not perform I
any oversight function regarding licensed activities and the people assigned to 1

| NOCA were not qualified to perform oversight of licensed activities. Tr. 2565-
76,2579,2588-89,2596 (McCoy); Tr.1238 (Dahlberg); McCoy Rebuttal at 3.

| While NOCA was, in part, formed by Mr. Dahlberg to monitor the performance
of GPC's nuclear plants, it was later determined that its data-gathering function
duplicated activities of SONOPCO Project personnel reporting directly to Mr.
Dahlberg. Dahlberg at 13; Tr. I193 (Dahlberg).

I

Mr. Hobby, who was General Manager of NOCA, testified that employees
, in the SONOPCO Project refused to cooperate in supplying him information

| regarding the plants, and prevented him from hiring the employees needed
; to perform NOCA's intended function. Mr. Mcdonald viewed NOCA as an
I impedance in the GPC chain of command and admitted that he did not cooperate

with NOCA because he felt Mr. Hobby was attempting to act as an int:rmediary
between Mr. Mcdonald and Mr. Dahlberg. Tr.1483 (Dahlberg); see also

1

Tr.1485 (Mcdonald). Mr. Mcdonald's concern as a GPC official regarding
the GPC chain of command does not constitute transfer of control of licensed

; activities at GPC nuclear facilities. Furthermore, Mr. Hobby lacked any persona!
'

knowledge that Mr. Farley directed or otherwise influenced Mr. Mcdonald's
actions regarding NOCA. Tr. 2352-57 (Hobby).

|
Intervenor's claim that Mr. Farley interfered with the staffing of NOCA by

deciding that Mr. Michael Barker, a GPC employee, could not be transferred
from the SONOPCO Project to the NOCA group in Atlanta (Issue 8; October
1,1990 Supplement to Petition at 3-4), was not substantiated. Mr. Hobby
admitted that only GPC employees attempted to prevent him from interviewing

123
Quesnon 2 m the Board's Memorandum and OrJer. dated May 25.1994, asked what organuauonal umts or

executne persmnel of GPC had any form of oversight acuvny over the sONoPCO Project, such as "managenal
connot, audns. mvesnFanon, personnel, quahty assurance or control, or root cause assessnrnts ''
124

Peurioners assert that Mr. Wilham Evans. a GPC Corporate Concerns invesugator. sold Mr. Hotiey that Mr
Farley would be "malung the call" as to whether Mr Hobby could mierview a SoNoPCO cambdate for the
NoCA performance engmeer posmen. October 1.1990 Supplenem to Petition at 3-4

!
!
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| Mr. Michael Barker for the NOCA performance engineer position. Tr. 2360-
61 (llobby). The hearing record shows that Messrs. Ilairston and Mcdonald.
both GPC officers, opposed this transfer because they believed that the NOCA

| position had been assigned an inflated rating. Tr. 1737-38 (llairston); Tr.1490-
94 (Mcdonald). Mr. Barker discussed his transfer directly with Mr. Dahlberg.
Tr.1222-23 (Dahlberg). Neither Mr. Farley nor Mr. Grady Baker couid recall

l any discussion of Mr. Barker on May 5,1989, with Mr. Dahlberg regarding
Mr. flobby's proposed additions to the NOCA staff. Tr. 1759-60, 1820-21
(Farley); Baker DOL Deposition at 41. Mr. liobby's belief about Mr. Farley's j
interferene: was based on informa' ion from individuals who did not attend the i

1May 5,1989 meeting. Ilobby at 41; Evans Deposition at 17-18. Accordingly, j
tSe assertion that Mr. Farley "made the call"is not supported by the record. j

Mr. Farley did tell Mr. Dahlberg on or about May 5,1989, that some orga- I

nizations in The Southern Company system, such as NOCA, were duplicative ]
(Farley at 32-33; Tr.1756 (Farley)), but Mr. Dahlberg came to the same conclu-
sion without Mr. Farley's input. Dahlberg at 13; Tr.1228 (Dahlberg); Tr. 2461,
2497-2504 (Williams). nus, Mr. Farley's action did not convey a command,
or constitute control, over GPC personnel matters.

Intervenor's claim (Issue 1) that Mr. Farley prepared Mr. Mcdonald's annual
performance appraisal was not substantiated. The record shows that Mr.
Mcdonald's annual performance appraisal was prepared by Messrs, liarris and
Dahlberg the respective CEOs of APC and GPC. A:though Messrs. liarris and
Dahlberg gave Mr. Farley a chance to comment on the review, Mr. Farley did
not know what was finally done. Tr. 1861-62 (Farley).

The record does not substantiate Intervenor's claims (Issues 1 and 6) that Mr.
Farley implemented changes in personnel evaluations and pay with respect to |
Vogtle nuclear operations. The record shows that Mr. Farley did not itnplement |
changes to personnel evaluations or pay policy for Vogtle nuclear operations
personnel. Mr. Farley explained the new Southern Company systemwide
policies and answered questions on them. Farley at 31. This involvement was
appropriate for his position as a Southern Company officer and did not constitute
control over licensed activities of GPC's nuclear facilities.

As an Executive Vice President of The Southern Company, Mr. Farley
|

addressed nuclear plant employees to brief them on the systemwide changes '

being made to the incentive pay programs of all of the operating companies.
At that time, he also polled employees about any concerns they had with their
employment situation. Such systemwide activities are typically performed by a
representative of The Southern Company. Mcdonald at 17-18. These activities
do not constitute improper control of GPC personnel or NRC-licensed activities.

In summary, the record does not show that Mr. Farle) controlled GPC
nuclear facilities by employing, supervising, and dismissing nuclear personnel,
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or that GPC provided inaccurate information to the NRC regarding Mr. littley's
involvement with personnel matters.

|

D. Controlling Costs

In his Statement of issues, Intervenor alleged that Mr. Farley's control of GPC
nuclear facilities is shown through budget and personnel pay matters in that (1)
Southern Nuclear, its predecessor, and The Southern Company controlled GPC's
nuclear budget since November 1988; (2) Mr. Farley implemented changes in
personnel evaluations and pay for Vogtle nuclear operations personnel; and (3)
the GPC Management Council did not review GPC's 1990 nuclear operating
budget. Intervenor asserts that inaccurate and incomplete information was
provided to the NRC regarding GPC's control of budget and personnel pay
matters. (Issues 1,6,12,14A,14B. and 17.)

Intervenor alleged in Issue 6 (see also Issues I and 12) that GPC's budget
had been under the control ef Southern Nuclear since November 1988, and thus

the March 28,1991 Vogtle FSAR amendment revising Chapter 13 inaccurately
states that (1) the GPC Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations reports
to GPC's President and CEO with respect to all matters concerning budgets,
and (2) Southern Nuclear matters are currently limited to operational support
activities

Intervenor's allegation regarding budget control is based upon his opinion
that GPC's 1990 budget was approved by Mr. Farley and later by Mr. Addison
over Mr. Dahlberg's objection. Testimony of a number of witnesses about
GPC's 1990 budgeting process, and subsequent nuclear budgets, shows that GPC
retained control of its nuclear budgets. GPC's 1990 (and later) nuclear budgets
were reviewed by the Presidents of APC (Mr. Harris), GPC (Mr. Dahlberg),
SCS (Mr. Franklin), The Southern Company (Mr. Addison), The Southern
Company Executive Vice President-Nuclear (Mr. Farley). the Executive Vice
President-Nuclear Operations of GPC and APC (Mr. Mcdonald), probably the
Senior Vice President-Nuclear Operations of GPC and APC (Mr. Hairston),
probably the nuclear plant project Vice Presidents (Messrs. McCoy, Beckham,
and Woodard), and probably the SONOPCO Project Assistant Comptroller (Mr.
Gilbert). Dahlberg at 9. The SONOPCO group presented the 1990 budgets
recommended by Messrs. Hairston and Mcdonald for all three GPC nuclear
facilities to Mr. Addison and his staff during a December 1989 meeting in
Birmingham, Alabama. Mr. Addison then visited each of the operating groups
and received a report on their budgets from Mr. Mcdonald, Mr. Hairston,
and the project vice presidents. Farley at 28-29; Tr.1392-94, Tr.1405-06
(Mcdonald). The proposed budgets for the three nuclear facilities were then
submitted to the operating companies, APC and GPC Mr. Dahlberg received,
from the OPC Management Council, the portion reflecting GPC's nuclear plants
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for incorporation into the overall GPC budget and for approval. Budget approval
was then given by GPC's CEO for the GPC capital and operating budgets, and by

| the GPC Board of Directors for the capital budget. After approval by GPC. the
| total GPC budget was submitted to The Southern Company. Dahlberg at 9; Tr.

| 1240-41 (Dahlberg); Mcdonald at 14-15. GPC Management Council reviewed
I the IPO GPC nuclear budgets, as part of the tatal GPC budget, before they

were approw g ..ir. Dahlberg. The capital budget wns also approved by the
GPC Board of Directors. Dahlberg at 10.

Mr. Farley's involvement was limited to reviewing the budgets as an Execu-
tive Vice President of The Southern Company and advising Mr. Addison, who

| was responsible for the review of all operating company budgets. Dahlberg
at 10; Tr.1779 8.2.1795 (Farley). Mr. Dahlberg determined ahether the 1990
budget was acceptable. Farley at 27. Mr. Addison had never, however, approved
or disapproved GPC's budget over Mr. Dahlberg's objection. Dahlberg at i1.

The review of budgets of subsidiaries by holding companies (e.g., The
Southern Company) to ensure that the budgets of the operating companies were
reasonable and appropriate is not unusual or indicative of a transfer of con-
trol.' 5

Accordingly, the hearing record does not support Intervencr's assertion that
Southern Nuclear controlled GPC's budget. Therefore, there is no support for
Intervenor's claim that GPC inaccurately stated that (1) the GPC Executive Vice
President-Nuclear Operations reports to GPC's President and CEO with respect
to all matters concerning budgets, and (2) Southern Nuclear matters are curren'ly
limited to operational support activities. The record supports a conclusion that
Southern Nuclear matters are limited to operational support activities.

Intervenor asserts in issue 14A that GPC's April I,1991 response to the
petition is false in stating that the GPC Management Council functioned as a
policy-setting body and made corporate resource allocation decisions because,
in late 1989, the GPC Management Council did not participate in the review
of GPC's 1990 nuclear operating budget. The hearing record, however, showed
that Intervenor's assertion was incorrect in that the GPC Management Council
did review the 1990 nuclear bud et as part of the total GPC budget reviewF

before approval by Mr. Dahlberg. See Tr. 1396-98, 1403; Dahlberg at 10.
Intervenor claims in issue 14B that in the April 1,1991 response to the

petition, GPC misrepresents that Mr. Mcdonald repor';d periodically to the

129 ne review of GPC's budget by The Southern Company Management Council in connecuan with The Southern
Company's obhgations to sus stodbolders is not an actmty thai need be desenbed in the Vogile ISAR. and its
orrussien does not warrant the conclusion that GPC's Apnl I.1991 response to the petismn was maccurate as

; Intervenor asserts n issue 17
|
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GPC Management Council regarding matters such as budgets and organizational
goals.

-fMr. Mcdonald testified that he reported to the GPC Management Council on
nuclear operating matters, including budget matters, with the qualification that
" reported" meant "provided budgets for their review."u' Organizationally, he
reported only to the GPC CEO. Mcdonald at 14. In view of Mr. Mcdonald's
testimony, the hearing record does not support a conclusion that GPC's April 1,
1991 response was inaccurate.

In summary, the hearing record does not support a conclusion that GPC
misrepresented its budgets affecting the operation of GPC licensed facilities.
There is no indication in the hearing record that the particular process GPC used
to develop its budget is dispositive to Intervenor's assertion that Mr. Farley The
Southern Company, or SONOPCO Project controlled the operation of the Vogtle

;

facility. Rather, the record shows that GPC was responsible for the costs of the !

Vogtle facility. After review by GPC's Management Council, the operating and
capital budgets were approved by GPC's President and CEO, and the capital
budget was also approved by the GPC Board of Directors, ne record does not
support the conclusion that Messrs. Farley and Addison approved GPC's nuclear
budgets. As an Executive Vice President of The Southern Company, Mr. Earley
was involved in reviewing the nuclear budgets as part of the normal process
for preparing annual budgets in the Southern system. Given ne Southern
Company's holding company status, Mr. Addison's involvement in reviewing
and providing guidelines and requirements for adequate earnings and reasonable
capital needs was appropriate.

11. OTilER Al.LEGED INACCURACIES COMMUNICATED
TO NRC

Intervenor's Statement of issues and the petition contain assertions that GPC
managers provided inaccurate or incomplete information to the NRC when,

describing its organization and plans to form Southern Nuclear, and when
l responding to the petition. The alleged misrepresentations or omissions re-

gand statements about (1) the Vogtle chain of command, (2) Mr. Dahlberg's

4

* Meetmg nunules sN>w that Mr Mcthmaid partwipated in Manageneni Council nretmgs about the 1989 and I2

1990 budgets on September 23 and october 14.1988, and presented orgaruzaimnal goals for the VoFtle and Hatch
facihues dunng a tiecember 7.1988 nretmg. Intervenor t.sh 135 (nreting mmunes) at 27, 29-30. 42-43. Mr
Mcdonald sciended a July 25. 1989 rneeung dunns ubch the 5-year capital budget targets were approved, and
the 6dedule for budget reviews, mdudmg Manage tent Couned review and Mr. Addawn's renew. was agreed
upon intervenor Lxh.135 at 71-73 The ManaFenrne Council aim conudered nudear budgets dunng necungs
on Novender 6 and 14. and December 4.1989 Inserwenor Exh 135, at 90. 9.L96,97 (c.pital budgeo,98, IMI6
Omdear update).

I
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relationship with Vogtle site management. (3) Mr. Farley's responsibilities as
Executive Vice President-Nuclear of The Southern Company, (4) the 1989 title
of Mr. Dahlberg, (5) SONOPCO Project's control over the Vogtle facility since
November 1988, (6) the composition of the GPC Management Council. and (7)
the title held by Mr. fiuley in 1988. (Issues 1,2,12,13,18,19, and 26-28.)

The hearing record regarding the alleged illegal license transfer issue does
not support that GPC concealed an unauthorized role of Mr. Earley or a defacto,
unauthorized organization for control of GPC nuclear facilities.

In Issue 1 (see also Section 2.206 Petition lill.2: and July 8,1991 Supple-
ment l!!!), Petitioners stated that GPC misled the Commission about the chain
of command from the Vogtle Project's Plant Manager (i.e., the General Man-
ager) to its CEO before the NRC issued the operating license for the facility.

On March 30,1989, the Commissioners met to discuss and possibly vote on
the full-power operating license for Vogtle Unit 2. Commissioner Carr expressed
concern about the hierarchy between the Vogtle Plant Manager and the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO), noting that it " looked to me like he was a long way
from the CEO." Mr. R.P. Mcdonald, GPC Executive Vice President--Nuclear
Operations, responded that (1) he (Mr. Mcdonald) reported to Mr. A. William
Dahlberg, the GPC CEO; (2) that Mr. Ken McCoy, Vice President of Vogtle,
reported to Mr. Mcdonald; and (3) that Mr. George Bockhold, then Vogtle
General Manager, reported directly to Mr. McCoy. At the conclusion of the
meeting, the Commissioners voted unanimously in favor of the license, and the
license was issued the following day.

On May 1,1989, Mr. W.G. Hairston, Ill, Senior Vice President for Nuclear
Operations, sent the NRC a letter of correction of the transcript. noting that
Mr. Mcdonald had " inadvertently left out the Senior Vice President of Nuclear
Operations. The organization is as described on figures 13.1.1-1 and 13.1.1-2
of the Vogtle Final Safety Analysis Report."

The Petitioners claim that Mr. Mcdonald knowingly made false statements
to the NRC Commissioners in the presence of Messrs. Dahlberg, McCoy, and
Bockhold during his response to then Commissioner Carr in that he "climinated
one entire level of management between the plant manager and the CEO."
Moreover, the Petitioners asserted (Petitioit at 8) that:

Messrs. Dahlberg. McCoy and Bockhold vhn-id have known that Mr. Mcdonald's statenrnts
were false and should h.we brought this to the immediate anenuon of the Commission and
otherwise corrected the record before the Conunission acted on the Vogtle full-power hcense
request,

In its Response to the Petition of April 1,1991, GPC noted that the
Commission had been apprised of the Company's organization before the
meeting on March 30,1989, including the Senior Vice President position, by
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an amendment to the Vogtle FSAR that was submitted November 23, 1988.
The amendment described the reporting chain as being from Mr. McCoy to Mr.
llairston to Mr. Mcdonald. GPC's Response also indicated that the NRC had
reviewed the organizational structure in December 1988 and issued an inspection
report.'2' In the inspection report, the NRC stated that the vice presidents of the
Farley, flatch, and Vogtle facilities reported to the Senior Vice President, who
reported to the Executive Vice President, and that the organization for Vogtle
was consistent with the Vogtle FSAR amendment submitted in November 1988.

i
in its April 1,1991 Response, GPC also noted that, during the March 30 |

meeting, Commissioner Rogers stated that he had reviewed the Company's '

organizational chart during his visit to the plant site. In addition, GPC noted
q

that it had submitted the letter of correction to the transcript approximately 2 i

weeks after receiving the NRC transcript. !

He NRC Staff has reviewed this issue and concludes that Mr. Mcdonald's I
reply to then Commissioner Carr was inaccurate in that the transcribed record 1

Iclearly contradicted other documents of record, including the FSAR and NRC
inspection reports. The inaccuracy was material in that the reply (1) was in
direct response to the Commissioner's stated concern regarding an orFanizational
structure in w hich the plant manager appeared to be "a long way from the CEO,"
(2) could have influenced the Commission's decision, and (3) could have been
considered by the Commission in reaching its decision.

There was no apparent motive for Licensee and its employees to attempt
to deliberately mislead the Commissioners since the Licensee had previously
provided correct information, and NRC Staff members were present who knew
the correct information.'2" The NRC Staff does not view Mr. Mcdonald's
inaccurate statement or omission as intentional or significant in that it is unlikely
the statement would have caused the Commission to reach a different decision.
No enforcement action was taken regarding the omission of Mr. Hairston in the
organizational structure.

In summary, while inaccurate information was initially 3 ven to the Commis-i

sioners, it appears to have been inadvertent, it was corrected by the Licensee
upon discovery, and the NRC Staff was already aware of the correct information.
Under the NRC's Enforcement Policy (NUREG-1600), unsworn oral statements
that are unintentionally inaccurate are not normally acted upon unless they in- !
volve significant information by a licensee official. While the Licensee should :
have corrected the material omission either during or immediately following the ;

meeting, further action regarding this omission is not warranted due to its mi-
I
;

127 NRC Impection Report Nos 5432158-41. 50 36648-41. 54424/88M 54425M8-77. 5434848 33. and
5436448-33, dated Ithruary 7.1989
12s Mr. John Rogge. the NRC's Semor Residens Inspector for the Vogtle facihty at the time. attended the meeting I

with the Conmasmners in Washington, DC, and icstified dunog the Phase I heanng that at that rneeung he was
swore that Mr. Hairston was in the vogile chman of command Tr. 2731 (Rogge).
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nor significance and because no information other than the Petitioners' opinion;

l exi +: to support the position that the omission was intentional. ,

int "enor also alleges (see Issue 1) that GPC falsely stated during the March
30, 1989 meeting with NRC that Mr. Dahlberg had a " personal hands on"
relationship with the maeagement at the plant site. The meeting transcript

! (Inte unor Hearing Exh.17), at page 5, indicates that Mr. Dahlberg described
GPC's uppe. ....oagement as being accessible. The record shows that Mr.

|

Dalbberg visited plants periodically and the Vogtle facility at least twice in
1989, and was involved in nuclear operations. His " hands-on" manegement style
referred to his oversight, his daily communications with the nuclear management,

| his plant visits, and his willingness to take calls periodically from the site.
Intervenor Hearing Exh. 32, at 4,15; McCoy at 6-7; Tr. I153 59 (Dahlberg).
Therefore, the record does not support the allegation that the ttatement was

,

inaccurate.

In issue 2, Intervenor states that Mr. Hairston s letter of May 1,1989, to the t
~

NRC correcting the Unit 2 full-power license hearing transcript was inaccurate
in asserting that an attached FSAR Figure 13.1.1-1 as amended November 23,
1988, accurafely depicted the corporate management structure for the Vogtle
facility since the figure did not portray Mr. Farley's role, and indicated that
Mr. McDornld (the " Executive Vice President-Nuclear Operations" position)

,

reported to Mr. Scherer (" Chairman and CEO"), rather than to Mr. Dahlberg ;

(" President"
In December 1988, Mr. Scherer relinquished his position as CEO and Mr.

!Dahlberg beame CEO, but not Chairman. Thus, Intervenor is correct inasmuch
as FSAR Figuie 13.1.1-1 had not been updated to reflect this change of title.
Moreover, the figures attached to the May 1,1989 letter should have shown the

;

Executive Vice President-Nuclear reporting to the " President and CEO," which
was Mr. Dahlberg's correct title.

Mr. Hairston testified during the transfer hearing that the only purpose of the
May 1,1989 letter was to correct Mr. Mcdonald's om% n of Mr. Ifairston's
role during the Unit 2 full-power hearing. Mr. Hairsto.. .ad others did not notice
the cuidated title in the CEO box. Hairston at 29.

Messrs. Allenspach and Rogge, who participated in NRC Staff's review of
the organizational structure for the full-power licensing of Vogtle Unit 2 and
the related inspection of the organizational structure in Ibcember 1988, testified
that the focus of the NRC Staff's review of the organization in control of the
Vogtle facility was at Mr. Hairston's level and lower and they attached no

,

particular significance to the organizational structure represented at levels above
Mr. Hairston. Tr. 2678-80, 2698.
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There is no evidence that Mr. Hairston's explanation regarding the outdated
title in the CEO box was inaccurate or that the NRC was misled in any significant
manner by this oversight. In addition, as discussed in Section III.B.I.a of this
Director's Decision. Mr. Farley was not in the Vogtle chain of command. -

In summary, while Intervenor is correct that FSAR Figure 13.1.1-1 did not
accurately reflect Mr. Dahlberg's title of " President and CEO," the error was

.

not a significant factor in the NRC Staf f evaluation of the information, and there
is no evidence that it rmsled the NRC. The record does not support Intervenor's
assertion that the figure is also inaccurate because it failed to reflect Mr. Farley's
role in the control of the VoFtle facility.

In Issue 12, intervenor claims that in the April 1,1991 response to the peti-
tion, GPC misstated Mr. Farley's responsibilities as Executive Vice President-
Nuclear as including:

,

(1) overseeing the formanon of Southern Nuclear. (2) actmg as spokesman for Southern
Nuclear among chief executive officers of the other Southern Company affiliates.* and (3)
repre:;cnung the Southern Company on the nahonal scene concerning generic nuclear power
issues.

Mr. Mcdonald testified that this description is an accurate reflection of Mr. !

Farley's duties as described in Mr. Mcdonald's letter agreement dated April 24,
1989, with Mr. Itanklin of SCS. The description is consistent with the NRC
Staff's historical knowledge of Mr. Farley's activities and duties. The hearing
record provides no substantive evidence to the contrary,

in Issue 13, Intervenor asserts that, because Mr. Hairston was a GPC Senior
Vice President in April 1991 and had never been a member of the GPC
Management Council, GPC's April 1,1991 response to the petition falsely states
that the "GPC Management Council is made up of all the Executive and Senior
Vice Presidents of GPC."

Intervenor is correct with respect to Mr. Hairston and the error was admitted
in the hearing testimony. Mcdonald at 13-14: Tr. at 1075-77 (Dahlberg); Tr.
1442-43 (Mcdonald). There is no evidence that the error was anything other i

than a simple c,versight. The primary focus of the statement, that Mr. Mcdonald
was on the Management Council and Mr. Farley was not, is correct. %e NRC
was not significantly misled by the error with respect to Mr. Hairston. 4

In Issue 28, Intervenor alleges that the April I,1991 GPC response to
the petition falsely states that Mr. Farley's role in the selection of personnel
for the SONOPCO Project was proper in that "Mr. Addison requested such
assistance from Mr. Farley and such assistance fell within his duties as Executive

*The rnponse to the pention stated that this funtoon refers to Mr Isley's membership on the Southern system
|

Management Council
|
I
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Vice President-Nuclear of The Southern Company." Intervenor claims that
this statement is false because the staffing selections were mtde in 1988 and
Mr. Farley did not become Executive Vice Pmident-Nuclear of The Southern
Company until March 1,1989.

i

Intervenor is correct. Mr. Mcdonald admitted that, technically, the April 1,
1991 response to the petition was inaccurate in stating that staffing selections
made in 1988 were within Mr. Farley's duties as Executive Vice President- '

Nuclear of The Southern Company since Mr. Farley had not yet assumed that
position in 1988. Mcdonald at 12.

The error was not significant or intention tl because the same page of the
April 1,1991 response (Intervenor Exh. 48, at 9) indicated Mr. fitriey's correct
title in 1988, i.e., President of APC.

In Issue 26, Intervenor alleges that in a September 4,1992 license amend- '

ment application, GPC omitted facts pertaining to the actual configuration and
operation of the Vogtle facility in stating that in January 1991, Southern Nuclear
began providing nuclear support services, technical services, and administrative
services but omitting reference to the SONOPCO Project's " control over the
nuclear operations of plants Vogtle, Hatch, and Farley [which] began in Novem-
ber 1988" prior to Southern Nuclear's incorporation. Mr. Hairston testified that

i

the Septernber 4,1992 statement regarding Southern Nuclear was accurate and
that Southern Nuclear was incorporated on December 17, 1990, and became
effective January 1,1991. Hairston at 46.

The license amendments application is consistent with information received
by the NRC during the late 1990-carly 1991 time frame and the NRC was
well informed of the phased approach employed by GPC to establish a nuclear
operating company through various meetings, inspections, and discussions.
Interrenor provided no evidence that the services provided by SONOPCO
Project from November 1988 until Southern Nuclear's incorporation constituted
control over operations or licensed activities for GPC or APC nuclear facilities.
Accordingly, there is no evidence that the license amendments application of '

September 4,1992, was inaccurate or misled the NRC. j
in Issue 19, Intervenor states that in its October 3,1991 response to the

section 2.206 petition as revised July 8,1991, GPC falsely states that (1)
'the selection process used in 1988 for the staffing of SONOPCO was not

completed during the two-day meeting of SONOPCO Project executives, and
(2) Mr. Mcdonald "never purported to give an unqualified or rigid top-dewn i

characterization of how the organization was staffed."
Messrs. McCoy and Mcdonald testified that while a number of individuals

were identified as the most likely candidates for positions within the SONOPCO
Project during that two- or three-day meeting, the selection process continued
beyond the meeting. McCoy at 16; Mcdonald at iI; Tr. at 1301 (Mcdonald).
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Mr. Mcdonald testified that the selection process invohed Mr. McCoy and
Mr. J.T. Beckham (Vice President of the Hatch facility) starting at the top of
the organization and, using a blank organization chart, identifying prospectise
candidates who were most qualified for positions in the organization. Selected j
managers then participated in selecting those individuals who would be working i
for them. He only recalled that they settled on the top tier during the meeting,

|
although they may have penciled in other names, and the other candidates were '

shuffled around for a couple of weeks. Tr. at 1301,1304-08 (Mcdonald). <

Given Mr. Mcdonald's description of the selection process, the hearing |
record does not support the conclusion that the statement regarding GPC's
October 3,1991 statement is inaccurate or misleading. 1

In Issue 27 Intervenor alleges that GPC's October 3,1991 response to
the petition inaccurately states that Mr. Mcdonald's testimony concerning
the selection of Messrs. McGiary and Long given in the Yunker and Fuchko |
DOL proceeding was not inconsistent with his testimony in the Hobby DOL
proceeding.

i

During the licensing transfer hearing, Mr. Mcdonald testified that his answers
i

were different, and were not contradictory, because the questions were different. I
In the Yunker and Fuchko proceeding, when he was asked who selected Messrs. |

McCrary and Long for their positions in the SONOPCO Project, he understood
the question to be who was ultimately responsible for referring them to the
Board of Directors, and he replied he was not sure but assumed it was the
President of Southern Company Services. In the Hobby case, he was asked
if he was " involved" in selecting them and, since .he had been invohed with
recommending them, gave an affirmative reply. Mcdonald at Il-12.

In light of the differences in the queso m posed, the evidence does not
support the conclusion that GPC's response r )ctober 3,1991, is inaccurate.

III. CONCLUSION

The record shows that GPC provided some inaccurate or incomplete infor-
mation to the NRC when describing its organization and plans to form Southern
Nuclear, and when responding to the petition. This information involved (1) the !

omission of Mr. Hairston when Mr. Mcdonald described the Vogtle chain of |
command during a March 30,1989 meeting; (2) a 1989 FSAR organizational |

chart showing the position of Mr. Dahlberg as "Chainnan and CEO" rather |

than " President and CEO"; and (3) GPC's April 1991 written response to the
petition indicating that the GPC Management Council included all Senior Vice

,

Presidents (which was inaccurate because Mr. Hairston was not a member), and I
indicating Mr. Farley's title in 1988 to be Executive Vice President-Nuclear of
The Southern Company (a position he did not assume until March 1,1989).
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This inaccurate or incomplete information was not significant in terms of NRC-

focus on nuclear operations and licensed activities or in the context of the overall
correct information provided to the NRC, and did not mislead the NRC. Thus |

the inaccuracies and omissions are not sufficient to warrant NRC enforcement,

action or conclusions that (1) GPC concealed an unauthorized role of Mr. Farley
'

or a 4 facto, unauthorized organization for control of GPC nuclear facilities; '

1

or (2) GPC . .:_ .;ie requisite character and integrity to be a licensee.,
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

<

i OFFICE OF ENFORCEMENT
1

|

James Lieberman, Director

in the Matter of

i
WESTINGHOUSE ELECTRIC*

CORPORATION
(Madison, Pennsylvania) March 20,1997,

I

The Director, Office of Enforcement, has taken action with regard to a
| petition filed by Shannon Doyle requesting that the Commission take action
i with regard to Westinghouse Electric Corporation. The Petitioner requested that

the Commission investigate allegations that Westinghouse willfully provided
false information to the Department of Labor (DOL), institute a show-cause j

- proceeding pursuant to 10 C.F.R. 9 2.202, and/or impose a civil penalty upon !
Westinghouse. The Petitioner had asserted, as a basis for his request, that j

*

Westinghouse had failed to correct the DOL record and provided material false=

| statements to the DOL Administrative Law Judge in a case arising under the
Energy Reorganization Act. In denying the petition, the Director determined ;

that the matter should be referred to the DOL Administrative Review Board for
its consideration.

|

TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS: REQUIREMENTS

The NRC generally does not have specific requirements for qualification and
training of health physics technicians.

NRC: JURISDICTION

The NRC and DOL have complementary responsibilities in the area of
employee protection.
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DIRECTOR'S DECISION UNDER 10 C.F.R. 5 2.206

1. INTRODUCTION

On May 30,1996, Mr. Shannon Doyle (Petitioner) filed a petition pur-
suant to 10 C.F.R. s 2.206 requesting that the Nuclear Regulatory Commis-
sion (NRC) take immediate action against Westinghouse Electric Corporation
(Westinghouse). Specifically, the Petitioner requested that the NRC investigate
allegations that Westinghouse has willfully provided false information to the
Department of Labor (DOL), and institute a show-cause proceeding pursuant to
10 C.F.R. 6 2.202 and/or impose a civil penalty upon Westinghouse.

As a basis for his request, the Petitioner asserted, among other things, that |

Westinghouse had failed to correct the record and, through its counsel, had
provided material false statements to the DOL Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) |
in a case arising under the Energy Reorganization Act (ERA), 89-ERA-022.
Specifically, the Petitioner asserted that Westinghouse: (1) " knowingly let
remain the false impression of the Administrative Law Judge that registration
with the National Registry of Radiation Protection Technologists (NRRirr)is a
requirement for the holding of the position of health physics technician in the
nuclear power industry"; and (2)" purposely maintained this frise impression by
providing through its counsel false material statements in maintaining that an
NRRIrr filing to the USNRC ' establishes that a passing score on the registration
test is required for the position of health physics technician.'"

By a letter dated August 16,1996, I informed the Petitioner that, pursuant to
section 2.206, the petition had been referred to me. I also informed the petitioner
that his request for immediate action had been denied, but that as provided
by section 2.206, action would be taken on his request within a reasonable
time. To address the concerns in the petition, I also requested in my August

,

16, 1996 letter that the Petitioner provide further information supporting the I
petition. In addition, by a separate letter to Westinghouse dated August 16,
1996, I requested from Westinghouse a response to certain questions, including,
among other things, whether testimony by Westinghouse before the DOL ALJ
in this case asserted that registration with the NRRfrr or a passing grade on an
NRRirf registration examination was required before gaining employment with
Westinghouse as a radiation technician.

By letter dated October 8,1996, the Petitioner responded to my August 16th
letter. By letter dated November 8,1996, Westinghouse submitted its response
to my August 16,1996 letter.

.
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II. DISCUSSION

Westinghouse is a contractor that provides services at various nuclear power
plants that hold licenses from the NRC. Hydro Nuclear Services, Inc. (Hydro),
was incorporated on January 23, 1985, as Westinghouse *s nuclear decontami-
nation service business, in part, providing workers to perform decontamination
services at nuc! car power plants. Hydro was a contractor for the Indiana &
Michigan Power Company, which holds Facility Operating License Nos. DPR-

: 58 and DPR-74, issued by the NRC pursuant to 10 C.F.R. Part 50 on March
30,1976, and December 23,1977, respectively. The licenses authorize the Li-
censee to operate the D.C. Cook Nuclear Power Plants in accordance with the
conditions specified therein.

On December 9,1988, the Petitioner filed a complaint with the DOL asserting
that Hydro had violated section 210 of the Energy Reorganization Act (now
section 21I) when it failed to hire him as a decontamination technician to work
at the D.C. Cook plants during an outage in the fall of 1968.

On March 30, 1994, the Secretary of Labor issued a Final Decision and
Order in this case, 89-ERA-22, finding that Hydro had discriminat;d against
the Petitioner.' Hydro petitioned the Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit for |

resiew of the Secretary's Final Decision and Order; however, on August 24,
1994, pursuant to a motion by the Secretary of Labor and Westinghouse, the
court remanded the case to DOL for consideration of damages.

On December 14, 1994, a hearing on damages was held before a DOL
ALJ. One of the issues raised at the hearing by the Petitioner was that he was
entitled to damages for lost promotional opportunities as a result of his wrongful
discharge. Specifically, he argued that he would have been promoted from
decontamination technician to a position as health physics technician had he not
been wrongfully discharged. With regard to this issue, on December 12,1994,
a deposition concerning the DOL complaint was taken. During the deposition,
Mr. William Burns, Westinghouse Manager of Steam Generator Field Services
and Field Readiness Operations, stated, in response to a question concerning the
requirements for qualification to work as a health physics technician: "In the
industry, the certain amount of hours would be given credit for, but there are
also requirements of certain amount of education plus a national testing program
to qualify as a radiation protection technician." (Tr.17-18.) In addition, during
the hearing, Mr. Bunis, in response to questions concerning education or testing
requirements to become a health physics technician, stated:

|

I On June 28.1995, the NRC issued a Nonee of Violanon in Enforceneni Actwn No 95-080 to wesungtmuse.
categonang tir disennunanon aga,nst Mr (Mie as a Seventy Isvel 111 volanon
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Well, to be more or lers board cerufied and receive certificates (of] educanon or testing, the
National Registry of Radiauon Protection Technicians semi-annually conduct [uct testmg

; seminars at the American Nuclear Society summer and winter meetings. The Health Physics
Society also conducts certain amounts of school and testing to become a health physics
technician. or a certified technician.

,

(Tr. .%5.)
On Maren zo, ;995, liydro filed " Post-liearing Memorandum of Law Re-

lating to the Assesment of Damages" in connection with the above matter. In,

i this filing, flydro stated, in part: "Doyle understood that to become a health
physics technician, he had to log a certain number of hours of expencnce, pass
a national test, and obtain the required educational background." (/d. at 25-26.)

On April 7,1995, liydro filed " Respondent's Proposed Findings of Fact and
Conclusions of Law" concerning the above matter. In this filing, flydro stated,
in part: "Moreover, at no time during this job with Alabama Power did Doyle
take or pass the national qualifying test needed for promotion to a board-certified
health physics technician." (/d. at 2.)

On November 7,1995, the AU issued his Recommended Decision and Order
!

on Damages (Decision on Damages). In his Decision on Damages, apparently
relying on the above, the AU stated, in part:

To establish kist promotions. Complainant must show: 1) that Complainant had the particu-
lar skills or otherjob-related quahtications required by Respondent to be promoted to health
physics technician; 2) that the heahh physics technician position was in a hne of progression
upward from the decontamination technician position. that is. the decontamination techmcian

would nonnally be promoted to health physics technician after some intenal of acceptable
perfonnance; and 3) that the prerequisite sen-ice as a decontaminanon technician is not itself j

justified by business necessity aside from the skills or other quahticanons to perform the
heahh physics technician job. [ Citation omitted.)

The Complainant has not fulfilled the first part of the analysis since he did not acquire the
hours or the necessary p. ming grade on the health physics technicians esam.

(Decision on Damages at 17.)
|

'Iherefore, the AU denied the Petitioner's claim that he would have attained a |

position as health physics technician had he not been wrongfully discharged, and
determined that the Petitioner was not entitled to damages for lost promotions.

Subsequently, the Petitioner appealed the AU's De.ision or, Damages and
also attempted to supplement the record. In his appeal and motions to supple-
ment the record, he argued that he was entitled to lost promotion,! Senefits. As
part of his Second Motion to Supplement the Record, the Petitioner submitted a
filing by the NRRI'r in a Petition for Rulemaking proposing an amendment to

,

10 C.F.R. Part 35, docketed by the NRC on November 24,1945, purportedly to )
prove that the position of health physics technician did not require the passing '

of a national certification test.
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; On April 17,1996,liydro submitted a " Memorandum of Law in Opposition
to Complainant Shannon T. Doyle's Second Motion to Supplement the Record."
In this filing,liydro stated, among other things: "At the damages hearing and-

at various depositions, . . Mr. Burns clearly testified that in order to become a
i health physics technician, one was required to . . (3) pass a national qualifying

test." (/d. at 10.)
In his petition, the Petitiorier indicates that these statements, which imply

that passing a national qualifying test was required in order to obtain or hold
the position of heath physics technician at Westinghouse,2 constitute the false
statements provided by Westinghouse's counsel. In his October 8,1996 response
to my August 16, 1996 letter, the Petitioner further asserts that the ALJ was
misled by Mr. Burns' testimony concerning schooling and testing requirements,
which resulted in the ALJ's determination that natural progression would not
have enabled him to attain the position of health physics technician.

Notwithstanding flydro's position in its " Memorandum of Law in Opposition
to Complainant Shannon T. Doyle's Second Motion to Supplement the Record,"
in its November 8,1996 response to my . August 16,1996 letter, Westinghouse
stated, in part:

No Westinghouse witness testified that NRRPT registration or passing an NRRPT registration
exam was a prerequisite to gaining employment with Westinghouse as an llP [Ileahh
Physics] technician. In fact the testinxmy is so general that it says nothing a: all about
speci6c Westinghouse or Hydro Nuclear hinng requirements or for that matter, the specific
requirerrents of any other employer.

In addition, Westinghouse asserted that its witness, Mr. Burns, provided the i
testimony concerning the NRRIrf or similar requirements or certification.110w- |
ever, Westinghouse further asserted:

1
[Tjaken in context, this testunony indicates only that HP technicians can and sometimes do

|
obtain this type of board certification and that nanonal organizations. such as the NRRPT. <

proside testing for individua's to obtain such certification The inference can not be drawn
from this testimony that such certifica: ion was are absolute prerequisite to errpioyment as a
llP technician at Westinghouse or elsewhere .

(/d. at 4.) |

l

1

2
The NRC generally does not have specibe requirenrnu for quahhcanon and tranung of health physics technicians.
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III, ANALYSIS

It appears that Westinghouse, in its November 8,1996 response to the
NRC, characterized the evidence presented to DOL differently from that actually,

| provided to the DOL in Westinghouse's submittals, as described above.
'llie NRC and DOL have complementary responsibilities in the area of em-

ployee protection.3 After considering the petition and the documents submitted
by both the Petitioner and Westinghouse, I have determined that the petition
raises matters that fall within the jurisdiction and authority of the DOL, rather
than the NRC. For this reason, I have concluded that this matter should be re-

ferred to the DOL Administrative Review Board for its consideration.

IV. CONCLUSION

Ibr the reasons set forth above, the petition is denied. In accordance with
10 C.F.R. 5 2.206(e), a copy of this Decision will be died with the Secretary of
the Commission for the Commission's review, As provided by this regulation,
this decision will constitute the 6nal action of the Commission 25 days after
issuance unless the Commission, on its own motion, institutes a review of the
Decision within that time.

FOR TiiE NUCLEAR
REGULATORY COMMISSION

James Lieberman, Director
Of0cc of Enforcement

Dated at Rockville, Maryland,
this 20th day of March 1997.

3 As noted in Secnon !!, the NRC has taken enforcenent actmn for the underlying wolation of the applicable
Comnussmn disenrrunanon regulanon
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